
Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 25 September 2019
2.00 pm
Warspite Room, Council House

Members:
Councillor Morris, Chair
Councillor Churchill, Vice Chair
Councillors Sam Davey, Drean, Mavin, Riley, Stevens, Ms Watkin and Wheeler.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

This meeting will be webcast and available on-line after the meeting.  By entering the Warspite 
Room, councillors are consenting to being filmed during the meeting and to the use of the 
recording for the webcast.

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 
webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy.

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 
process please follow this link - Get Involved

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive

Oversight and Governance
Chief Executive’s Department
Plymouth City Council
Ballard House
Plymouth  PL1 3BJ

Please ask for  Democratic Advisor
T 01752  305155
E democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk
Published 17 September 2019

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings/getinvolved
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings


Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

1. Apologies  

To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Councillors.

2. Declarations of Interest  

Councillors will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on the 
agenda.

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 10)

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 17 July 2019.

4. Chair's Urgent Business  

To receive reports on business which in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 
forward for urgent consideration.

5. Mapping of Corporate Plan to Scrutiny Committee  (Pages 11 - 12)

6. Update on the Potential Impact of Brexit on Port Health  (Pages 13 - 18)

7. Mayflower 400 Update  (Pages 19 - 38)

8. Plymouth City Centre Business Improvement District 
(2020-2025)  

(Pages 39 - 54)

9. Plan for Homes: The First Five Years  (Presentation)

10. Annual Housing Statement  (Pages 55 - 196)

11. Work Programme  (Pages 197 - 202)

12. Tracking Decisions (Pages 203 - 206)



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 17 July 2019

Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 17 July 2019

PRESENT:
Councillor Churchill, Vice-Chair in the Chair.
Councillor Mavin, Vice Chair.
Councillors Mrs Aspinall (substitute for Councillor Morris), Buchan (Substitute for 
Councillor Stevens), Sam Davey, Drean, Riley, Ms Watkin and Wheeler.

Apologies for absence: Councillors Morris and Stevens.

Also in attendance: Paul Barnard (Service Director for Strategic Planning and 
Infrastructure), Tracey Beeck (iMayflower Project Manager), Councillor Bowyer 
(Shadow Leader), Paul Brookes (Interim Chief Executive – The Box), Caroline 
Cozens (Strategic Projects Manager), Councillor Dann (Cabinet Member for 
Environment and Street Scene), Kat Deeney (Head of Environmental Planning), 
David Draffan (Service Director for Economic Development), Councillor Evans 
OBE (Leader), Kate Farmery (Head of Business (The Box)), Lindsey Hall (Real Ideas 
Organisation), Nigel Hurst (Head of Contemporary Arts (The Box), Josh McCarty 
(NMP Project Advisor), Kevin McKenzie (Policy and Intelligence Advisor), Nicola 
Moyle (Head of Heritage, Arts and Film), Helen Prendergast (Democratic Advisor) 
and Nina Sarlaka (Enterprise and Inward Investment Manager). 

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 4.55 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the Panel will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so 
they may be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm 
whether these minutes have been amended.

11. Appointment of Vice-Chair  

The Committee agreed that Councillor Mavin be appointed as Vice-Chair for this 
particular meeting.

12. To Note the Appointment of the Vice Chair  

The Committee noted the appointment of Councillor Churchill as the Vice-Chair for 
the forthcoming municipal year 2019/20.

13. Declarations of Interest  

In accordance with the code of conduct, Councillor Buchan declared a personal 
interest in minute 16, as follows –

● her daughter had completed the ‘Future Make’ programme ran by 
the Real Ideas Organisation;

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 17 July 2019

● a family member employed by Plymouth College of Art.

14. Minutes  

The Committee agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 5 June 2019 are a 
correct record.

15. Chair's Urgent Business  

Councillor Churchill (Chair) advised that whilst it was not a Brexit issue, it had been 
brought to his attention that residents were experiencing problems in being able to 
access prescribed medicines.

Councillor Mrs Aspinall (Chair of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee) advised that she would look into this issue and report back to 
the Committee.

16. The Box Update  

Councillor Evans OBE (Leader), Councillor Bowyer (Shadow Leader), David Draffan 
(Service Director for Economic Development), Caroline Cozens (Strategic Projects 
Manager), Paul Brookes (Interim Chief Executive – The Box), Nicola Moyle (Head of 
Heritage, Arts and Film), Nigel Hurst (Head of Contemporary Arts (The Box) and 
Kate Farmery (Head of Business (The Box)) presented the update on the Box 
together with a presentation which highlighted the following key areas –

(a) The Box brought together a unique combination of cultural partners 
and heritage collections including the City Museum and Art  Gallery, 
the Plymouth and West Devon Record Office and the local historical 
collections of the Central Library;

(b) the project would create a major cultural statement and would make 
a step change for Plymouth’s cultural sector;  it would provide a new 
cultural attraction that supported the targeted increase in tourism 
for both the City and the region, increasing visitor numbers from 
80,000 to 250,000 per annum;

(c) four community projects were currently underway and were 
designed to target a range of key Plymouth audiences and 
community groups which included the Maker Memories, Plymouth 
After Dark, Your Recipes, Your Heritage and Plymouth Roots;

(d) the conservation of the figureheads was the most significant of its 
kind in a generation and not only secured the future of the 
Devonport figureheads but identified The Box as a centre of 
excellence and innovation for the preservation and display of 
maritime heritage, with one of the largest collections in the UK;

Page 2



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 17 July 2019

(e) the construction contract had recently been rephrased due to 
construction delays from abnormal conditions on the site which had 
required additional work to St Luke’s Church, as well as the former 
museum and library buildings; this had resulted in sections being 
handed over to enable the fit out programme to start whilst separate 
construction areas remained safely active;

(f) ‘Reload’ was the programme of activities planned over the last 12 
months of the programme, leading up to the opening in 2020; this 
would be a challenging part of the programme, as the collections 
would be moved from their current locations into the new facility;

(g) a comprehensive plan for the opening of the new facility had been 
drawn up which would ensure The Box was ready in Spring 2020; 
the plan focused on ‘our visitors’, ‘our staff’, ‘our income’ and ‘our 
building’;

(h) the latest approved budget for The Box was £44.452m and reflected 
an ambitious investment in the City for growth, culture and 
innovation;  whilst the project remained within its current funding 
envelope, abnormal site conditions continued to be found causing 
additional pressure on the remaining contingency, such as a 
significant amount of asbestos and needles found in the ground to 
the south of St Luke’s Church which required specialist removal;

(i) the Council was currently holding the project risks whilst the build 
programme and fit out of the galleries and other spaces within the 
building were completed; the largest risk was the pressure on the 
current agreed funding for the project; there was also a reputational 
risk of the outcome of the project not meeting expectations; 
however this had been mitigated with a very strong cross party 
member involvement in the programme, throughout its design and 
now the construction period;

(j) the driver for the programme was to open the visitor experience in 
the spring 2020, in time for the Mayflower celebrations; this was a 
fixed deadline that imposed constraints to the contract delivery of 
the buildings and exhibitions.

The main areas of questioning from Members related to –

(k) what measures had been taken to rectify the culvert issue;

Page 3



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 17 July 2019

(l) how much asbestos had been found on site and how had this delayed 
the project;

(m) whether the marketing of The Box was being undertaken with 
particular focus on the cruise ships due to visit the City in 2020;

(n) seeking an assurance that the disabled access to The Box had been 
well designed including the provision of parking; currently the Regent 
Street car park was not fit for purpose for disabled users;

(o) what measures had been undertaken to mitigate anti-social 
behaviour in the outside space;

(p) whether the demographics of people visiting the new facility would 
be pro-actively monitored, to ensure engagement across all 
communities;

(q) how the volunteers would be supported and whether any 
consideration had been given to accrediting this role; 

(r) how Councillors could support the long term sustainability of 
community engagement, in particular the 12 ‘cold spots’ that had 
been identified as having the lowest engagement.

The Committee noted the report and agreed the Plan for Learning and Engagement.

The Committee requested that all Ward Councillors be briefed on the Plan for 
Learning and Engagement, in order to assist with the areas identified as having low 
engagement (the 12 ‘cold spots’).

17. The iMayflower Project  

Councillor Evans OBE (Leader), David Draffan (Service Director for Economic 
Development), Tracey Beeck (iMayflower Project Manager), Nina Sarlaka (Enterprise 
and Inward Investment Manager) and Lindsey Hall (Real Ideas) presented the 
iMayflower project which highlighted the following key areas the –

(a) iMayflower Project was funded by the Department for Culture, 
Media and Sports (DCMS), through the creation of the Cultural 
Development Fund (CDF) and administered by the Arts Council 
(ACE);

(b) Devonport Market Hall (Listed Building) was being repurposed to 
become an immersive technology centre which would support 

Page 4



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 17 July 2019

Plymouth’s creative talent to bring to life world class heritage and 
shape the new journeys in its diverse communities;

(c) the project proposed to take a systematic/ecological approach to 
stimulating growth in and demand for the region’s creative and 
cultural industries; the funding would provide the ability to 
collectively grow various key strategic elements of the cultural and 
creative industrial ecology in and around Plymouth;

(d) the iMayflower project was only one of five successful applications 
from around 100 across England; the Cultural Development Fund 
was a new initiative which arose out of the Industrial Strategy and 
the recently announced Creative Industries Sector Deal; the success 
of the application had been down to the exceptional nature of the 
bid, the ambition and achievements to date;

(e) the total value of the project was £5,958,617 which was funded 
through a grant of £3,497,301; match funding of £2,461,316 was 
being provided by the six delivery partners; the Project would run 
for three years April 2019 to March 2022;

(f) two aspects of the project would focus on employment and skills;

(g) the public launch (Ignite: a Festival of Creativity) of the project had 
been well attended; the launch to the wider business community 
would take place in July 2019.

The key areas of questioning from Members related to –

(h) how the Council could help to encourage people to stay in the City, 
in particular graduates;

(i) how people could access funding through Creative England;

(j) what measures were being taken to ensure that the FAB City 
concept added real value to the efforts being made to promote 
sustainability and also tie in with the climate emergency;

(k) how the project could ensure graduate retention whilst also engaging 
with people who were resident in the City.

The Committee noted the report.

Page 5



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 17 July 2019

18. Plymouth Sound National Marine Park  

Councillor Dann (Cabinet Member for Environment and Street Scene), Paul Barnard 
(Service Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure), Kat Deeney (Head of 
Environmental Planning) and Josh McCarty (NMP Project Advisor) provided a 
presentation on Plymouth Sound National Marine Park which highlighted the 
following key areas –

(a) why should we create the Plymouth Sound National Marine Park - 

● Plymouth Sound and the Tamar Estuaries Marine Protected 
Area covered five times the size of the City;

● Plymouth was home to one of the largest fish markets in the 
UK and an incredibly important asset for the UK fishing 
industry;

● the waters were currently managed collaboratively by the 
Tamar Estuaries Consultative Forum that brought together 
the 18 organisations with statutory responsibilities for the 
waters;

● HMNB Devonport, the largest naval base in Western Europe 
was located within the Sound;

● the marine sector in Plymouth employed over 7,100 people;

● like the National Parks on land, there was a huge level of 
support for and interest in the marine environment with 116 
million day trips to the UK coast recorded in 2017;

(b) a legacy we can create together;

(c) engagement -

● 60 face to face meetings had been held;

● 160 individuals and organisations contributed to the first 
engagement exercise providing detailed comments, views and 
challenges;

(d) proposed objectives to -

Page 6



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 17 July 2019

● establish the UK’s first national Marine Park in Plymouth 
Sound;

● develop Marine Citizenship – increasing ownership, 
understanding and use of the marine environment, utilising 
this enhanced engagement to improve community health and 
wellbeing;

● create a greater sense of public and business engagement and 
pride in the waters around Plymouth, and enhance and 
celebrate the natural beauty and wildlife in and around our 
coastal waters;

● promote truly sustainable use of Plymouth Sound, carefully 
balancing social, economic and environment needs to deliver a 
world-class environment that had a positive impact for 
everyone;

● develop a framework for National Marine Parks that can be 
replicated across the UK, not just in the far South West, 
leading to a network of these special places;

(e) next steps included -

● translate the work and commitment form the City and 
surrounding communities into a meaningful declaration in the 
autumn;

● continue to undertake all work collaboratively with those 
who live, work, protect and enjoy Plymouth Sound as we 
develop and embed the National Marine Park;

● develop a business plan for the National Marine Park within 
the first year that would set a sustainable future for the Park;

● continue to work with others at a national level to ensure 
that Plymouth  Sound was the first in a network of National 
Marine Parks.

The key areas of questioning from Members related to –

(f) whether Plymouth would be in the first in the country to establish a 
National Marine Park;

Page 7



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 17 July 2019

(g) whether the National Marine Park would be a legal entity;

(h) what mechanism was in place to ensure the engagement of all the 
relevant agencies and organisations, in order to establish the Marine 
Park;

(i) whether engagement had been undertaken with the other local 
authorities (Cornwall Council, Devon County Council and South 
Hams District Council);

(j) what measures would be put in place to effectively manage the 
balance between social, economic and environmental needs of this 
area;

(k) whether there was a conscious effort, within this process, to 
connect residents of the City to the Park.

whether there had been a conscious effort, within this process, to 
connect the residents of the City to the Marine Park.

The Committee noted the report and the assurance that all Councillors would be 
provided with the results of the current consultation exercise.

19. Work Programme  

The Committee agreed to include an update on the iMayflower project on its work 
programme (and schedule at an appropriate time, in consultation with officers).

Councillor Mrs Aspinall noted that the Visitor Plan 2020-2030 was due to be 
scrutinised by the Committee in November 2019 and asked how disabled groups, 
such as Plymouth Area Disability Action Network (PADAN) could become involved 
in this process.

The Chair advised that the relevant officers involved with the Visitor Plan 2020-2030 
would be made aware of this issue.

20. Tracking Decisions  

With regard to minute 8, a response was still awaited relating to the possible link of 
mortality rates (due to air pollution) specifically related to the five areas contained 
within the AQMA.

Page 8



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee Wednesday 17 July 2019

Councillor Wheeler considered that whilst the cycle path from Plymouth to 
Yelverton had not been included within tranche 2 of the Transforming Cities Fund, 
this scheme should be included in the next tranche of the fund and as such 
Councillor Coker, the Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure 
should be urged to progress this issue.

The Committee noted the progress of its tracking decisions.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



10 July 2019 OFFICIAL

MAPPING OF CORPORATE PLAN TO 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Current Areas of Responsibility Map to Corporate Plan Priorities 
(some appear across more than one 
committee)

Brexit, Infrastructure and 
Legislative Change

Relevant policies in the Plymouth Plan

Response to Central Government’s 
Policy Making

Capital Programme

Strategic Procurement

Corporate Property

Development planning

Strategic Highways

Economic Development

Heart of the South West Productivity 
Plan

Strategic Transport policies and 
strategies

Cultural Infrastructure

Climate change and sustainability

Reviewing impact of  Brexit on the city 

Proposing measures that Government 
should take to provide stability for the 
council and partners in light of Brexit

Exploring powers could be devolved 
from the EU directly to local authorities

Hear call-ins relevant to the role of the 
committee

 An efficient transport network
 A broad range of homes
 Economic growth that benefits as 

many people as possible
 Quality jobs and valuable skills
 A vibrant cultural offer
 A green and sustainable city that 

cares about the environment
 A strong voice for Plymouth 

regionally and nationally
 A welcoming city

Performance, Finance and 
Customer Focus 

Relevant policies in the Plymouth Plan

Corporate Performance Monitoring

Financial Performance Monitoring

Annual Budget Setting Process

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Revenues and benefits

Homelessness

Communications

Human resources

Audit and Risk

 A clean and tidy city
 People feel safe in Plymouth
 A welcoming city 
 Listening to our customers and 

communities
 Motivated, skilled and engaged staff
 Spending money wisely
 Providing quality public services

Page 11 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

MAPPING OF CORPORATE PLAN TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEES Page 2 of 2
OFFICIAL 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Current Areas of Responsibility Map to Corporate Plan Priorities 
(some appear across more than one 
committee)

Transformation

Bereavement Services and Register 
Office

Community Safety

Customer Services

Street scene and Waste

Parking

Hear call-ins relevant to the role of the 
committee

Education and Children’s 
Social Care

Relevant policies in the Plymouth Plan

Early Years Services

Schools, colleges and other educational 
settings

Child Poverty

Special Education Needs, behaviour and 
attendance, narrowing the gap in 
outcomes

Safeguarding Children

Cared for children

Youth offending

Adoption and Fostering

Corporate Parenting

Hear call-ins relevant to the role of the 
committee

 Improved schools where pupils 
achieve better outcomes

 Keep children, young people and 
adults protected

 Focus on prevention and early 
intervention

Health and Adult Social 
Care

Relevant policies in the Plymouth Plan

Integrated Commissioning

Hospital and community health services 

Dental services, pharmacy and NHS 
ophthalmic services;

Public health services

Adult Social Care Services

Adult Safeguarding Services

Hear call-ins relevant to the role of the 
committee

 Keep children, young people and 
adults protected

 Focus on prevention and early 
intervention

 Reduced health inequalities
 A welcoming city

Page 12



Page 1 of 5

OFFICIAL

Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative 
Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of meeting: 25 September 2019

Title of Report: Update on the Potential Impact of Brexit on Port Health

Lead Member: Councillor Sally Haydon (Cabinet Member for Customer Focus and 
Community Safety)

Lead Strategic Director: Ruth Harrell (Director of Public Health)

Author: Katharine O’Connor (Environmental Health (Food Safety) Service 
Manager

Contact Email: katharine.oconnor@plymouth.gov.uk

Your Reference: KOC190925

Key Decision: No

Confidentiality: Part I - Official

Purpose of Report
The purpose of this document is to give an overview of how the impact of Brexit is likely to affect the 
Port Health function of the Public Protection Service (PPS). The report will also introduce the issues 
faced by the Port Operator, Associated British Ports (ABP), and their biggest customer, Brittany 
Ferries. Finally, the report will outline the process and decisions to be made regarding the pursuit of 
Plymouth as a world class border, with a Border Inspection Post (BIP).   

Recommendations and Reasons
1. Acknowledge the impact that Brexit will have on PPS and the Port of Plymouth
2. Lobby for support for Plymouth as a strategic port and the need for an updated risk assessment
3. Support an urgent business case to describe Plymouth as a key port in the UK Government’s 

Future Borders programme with a world class border, including a Border Control Post and the 
full range of port facilities for import and export. 

Alternative options considered and rejected
Do nothing and accept that there will be no further funding for Plymouth

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan
The report links to the corporate priorities of ‘A Growing City’ and ‘A Caring Council’

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:    
Increased activity to support Brexit is cost-recoverable but it will impact on PPS ability to undertake 
statutory duties for the first 8 – 12 weeks after Brexit. There will be resource implications if, following 
the required business case, a decision is made to invest and promote Plymouth as a world class border.   

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications: 
The immediate impact of Brexit is unlikely to have any effect on the carbon footprint. Increased port 
traffic associated with BIP status will probably have a minor impact on carbon footprint. 

Page 13 Agenda Item 6



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 2 of 5

OFFICIAL

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:
* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote 
equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected 
characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not.
No other implications

Appendices 
*Add rows as required to box below

Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 
If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate 
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.  

Ref. Title of Appendix

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

A Update on the potential impact of Brexit on 
Port Health and Public Protection Service

Background papers: 
*Add rows as required to box below

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works, 
relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
work is based.

Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it 
is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.  

Title of any background paper(s)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

  
Sign off:

Fin djn.1
9.20.
112

Leg lt/333
46/16
09

Mon 
Off

Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text.

HR Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text.

Asset
s 

Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text.

Strat 
Proc

Click here 
to enter 
text.

Originating Senior Leadership Team member:  Giles Perritt

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report?  Yes Ruth Harrell

Date agreed: 15/09/2019

Cabinet Member approval:  Approved by Councillor Sally Haydon

Date approved: 16/09/2019

Page 14



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 3 of 5

OFFICIAL

1.0 Update on the potential impact of Brexit on Port Health and Public 
Protection Service

1.1 Plymouth City Council’s Port Health Authority is part of the Public Protection Service (PPS) 
with a remit for food safety and infection control. PPS also encompasses Trading Standards 
functions. Brexit will bring about changes to import and export requirements (specifically for 
food, animal feed, pets and product safety) and will generate an increase in demand for business 
advice from local businesses. 

1.2 As a Port Health Authority, Plymouth is exposed to additional costs that will not be 
experienced by other Local Authorities. Plymouth Port Health Authority has received a little 
funding to assist with the preparations for Brexit from the Food Standards Agency. Plymouth 
City Council has not received any additional port funding from central government as Plymouth 
has not been acknowledged as a Strategic Port. 

1.3 Government departments have been working to design customs and other control 
arrangements at the UK border in a way which ensures goods can continue to flow into the 
country, and won’t be delayed by additional controls and checks. However, the UK 
Government does not have control over the checks which member states impose at the EU 
border. The European Commission has made it clear that it is likely to impose full third country 
controls on people and goods entering the EU from the UK.

2.0 Import controls
2.1 Day One

2.11 Because the risk is not expected to change on day one, no new controls are envisaged in 
relation to imports of high-risk food and feed (with the exception of catch certificates for 
fishery products) from the EU until the UK Government deems that the risk assessment has 
changed. 

2.12 To maintain high levels of food safety, the UK will require importers of high-risk food and feed 
to pre-notify the Food Standards Agency (FSA) of imports from the EU. A new online import 
notification system is being developed. This requirement would have no direct impact at the 
border or for port health authorities. Pre-notifications would be made electronically, in 
advance, by those introducing high-risk foods into the UK, and would be managed by the Food 
Standards Agency. No additional controls would be introduced at the border.

2.2 Border Inspection Post

2.21 Plymouth is not a Border Inspection Post (BIP). If the risk assessment for high risk food and 
animal feed changes, and the UK government decides to start imposing import controls on high 
risk EU food, the meat, fish and dairy produce that is currently imported through Plymouth will 
need to be diverted to a Border Inspection Post. This equates to approximately 1500 vehicles 
of freight per year which would have to be re-directed. Southampton is currently the closest 
operating Border Inspection Post.  

2.22 Plymouth would be a suitable strategic location for a Border Inspection Post (BIP) and 
designation as a BIP would ensure that the current freight could continue to be imported if the 
UK decides to impose import controls. Port operators are responsible for building BIP facilities. 
Plymouth City Council is currently assisting Associated British Ports (the port operator at 
Millbay) with information about minimum requirements for a BIP facility. It is unfeasible to 
expect that high-risk food can continue to come into the EU with no import checks indefinitely, 
however, based on current available information it is difficult to justify a business case for 
investment into building a Border Inspection facility, because currently there is no need for one 
in Plymouth. 

Page 15



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 4 of 5

OFFICIAL

2.23 ABP and Brittany Ferries have indicated that they would definitely want to secure the current 
high risk freight – they wouldn’t want to lose this traffic to other ports. If Plymouth was to 
become a Border Inspection Post, there would be potential to attract new business, and to 
relieve pressure on South East ports by accepting high risk cargo at peak times, but current 
estimates to build a suitable facility are well in excess of £1.5m. This excludes the cost of 
staffing, which ultimately would be covered by import charges, but further work is required to 
scope out true costs and whether there is the potential to explore alternatives such as inland 
facilities. See 5.0.

2.24 To complicate matters further, a new suite of EU regulations concerning official food controls 
comes into effect in December 2019 in the EU and replaces Border Inspection Posts with 
Border Control Posts (BCPs). The UK position regarding adoption of this new set of 
regulations is currently unclear.

2.25 Although Plymouth Port Health Authority is not expecting extra port checks (except catch 
certificates) on imported food and feed from day one, the Environmental Health Officers and 
Trading Standards Officers will be expected to continue to check traceability, food safety and 
product safety during routine food hygiene inspections and investigations inland, which may add 
time to each intervention. 

2.3 Transit Cargo

2.31 Changes would apply to control requirements for imports of third country animal products and 
high-risk food and animal feed which move through the EU before arrival in the UK on EU Exit. 
Importers would need to notify UK authorities using the new import notification system and 
would be directed to an existing UK BIP where the relevant checks would take place. As 
Plymouth is not a BIP, there shouldn’t be any of this cargo from day one. However, PPS is still 
working to quantify how much transit cargo (particularly animal feed) currently enters the port. 
Available intelligence to date suggests that Plymouth currently receives very little cargo that has 
originated from outside the EU at the port. 

2.4 Re-routing location

2.41 There will be an increase in the number of consignments requiring import control checks at 
existing UK Border Inspection Posts as a result of the need to carry out checks on transit items 
that are currently carried out elsewhere in the EU. Plymouth was previously identified has as a 
port that will take extra ferries carrying cargo to help alleviate this extra pressure on the BIPs. 
If Brittany Ferries are again approved to take extra freight, this could impact on the amount of 
fishery products entering and leaving Plymouth requiring certification. 

2.5 Catch Certificates

2.51 EU fishery products landed to Plymouth from the lorries on the ferries will require PPS to issue 
Catch Certificates in accordance with Illegal, Unreported and Unregulated fishing legislation 
(IUU). This is a new and onerous duty. It is estimated that between 80 and 200 vehicles per 
year will arrive into Plymouth requiring certificates. This will be chargeable to the importer at 
full cost recovery but there is a significant impact on capacity in the Food Safety team. This is a 
documentary check and should not require any cargo to be held at the port.

3.0 Exports
3.1 Exports to the EU do not currently need any special documentation, so this is a new area that 

will require resource and training. There will be a significant increase in requests for Export 
Health Certificates to accompany food being exported from Plymouth based exporters and the 
fish quay. The export certificates themselves will be calculated at full cost recovery, however, 
the resource required to issue them will have an impact on the Food Safety team. There will be 
increased demand for business advice concerning imports and exports of goods. 

Page 16



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 5 of 5

OFFICIAL

3.2 Plymouth Port Health Authority has been awarded £25k from the Food Standards Agency for 
this financial year to help with preparation for food and feed Brexit-related issues. The 
requested amount was £158K to cover time spent in scoping the impact of a no deal Brexit, for 
attendance at meetings (government departments, Plymouth City Council and industry) and for 
staff training and backfill for the work that PPS is anticipating. The Food Standards Agency do 
not believe that the impact on PPS from imported foods will be significant, hence the small 
award. Export Health Certificates and Catch Certificates are DEFRA and Marine Management 
Organisation functions and there has been limited funding opportunities for these functions. PPS 
has been offered £25k in a joint bid with South Hams District Council for Export Health 
Certificates in case of a no deal. 

3.3 PPS estimates that a no deal Brexit will require additional staff for the food safety impact, plus 
admin support. It is possible to cost recover some of this from Export Health Certificates and 
Catch Certificates but these are not statutory functions and will impact on PPS ability to deliver 
our statutory duties. Due to succession planning, PPS has invested in training for a new 
inspector and this officer will be ready to undertake new duties from November 2019.  

4.0 Strategic Port Status

4.1 Plymouth is still pursuing government in order to secure status as a strategic port. It is 
currently unclear which departments or personnel were involved in assessing that Brexit will 
have a low impact on Plymouth. Other local authorities (such as Ramsgate and Sheerness) were 
included on the high impact list solely on the basis that they might be asked to accept traffic 
rerouted from the Dover/Calais crossing. However, Ramsgate has no roll on roll off ferry 
operator, or any contractor aiming to provide one. Plymouth is the only operational roll on roll 
off ferry terminal in the South West region and as such it is very important to the agrifood and 
fisheries businesses which proliferate across the South West, Brittany and Spain. 

4.2 The Port Risk Assessment for Plymouth must be urgently reviewed, this time in partnership 
with the relevant stakeholders so that central government and the Cross Government Border 
Delivery Group can understand the true potential impact of Brexit.  

5.0 Plymouth as a ‘World Class’ border
5.1 Plymouth has clear ambitions to become a world class border and is determined to play a part 

in the Border Delivery Group Future Borders programme. 

5.2 Plymouth City Council is in discussion with neighbouring local authorities, DEFRA and Seafish 
over the creation a sub-regional fishery products export hub covering Devon and Cornwall. 
This will duplicate the model being trialled in Scotland and could enable Plymouth Port Health 
Authority to issue export health certificates for fishery products from across the peninsula 
before export. 

5.3 To support Plymouth as a fully functioning port, and due to early morning and night sailings, 
Plymouth City Council would like to urgently undertake a business case to re-establish a 
permanent presence at the port. The vision would be to have a fully functioning port office, 
combining Environmental Health and Trading Standards functions and co-located with ABP, 
Brittany Ferries and Border Force. 

5.4 Plymouth is not currently listed as a Border Inspection Post and does not have the necessary 
infrastructure. If Plymouth cannot put this in place, traffic which currently crosses the channel 
into Millbay may have to be diverted to other potentially busier ports. By working with other 
port stakeholders on the business case, and re-establishing a port office, Plymouth will be well 
placed to secure a Border Control Post and world class border for the future.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4

OFFICIAL

Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative 
Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of meeting: 25 September 2019

Title of Report: Mayflower 400 Update
Lead Member: Councillor Peter Smith (Deputy Leader)

Lead Strategic Director: Anthony Payne (Strategic Director for Place)

Author: Charles Hackett (Chief Executive Officer – Mayflower 400)

Contact Email: Charles.hackett@mayflower400uk.org

Your Reference: N/A

Key Decision: No

Confidentiality: Part I - Official

Purpose of Report
The purpose of the report is to update Scrutiny regarding the Mayflower 400 initiative; an ambitious 
initiative of multiple projects, creating visitor product, a cultural programme, and positioning Plymouth 
nationally and internationally. 

Recommendations and Reasons

Endorse continuing PCC support of the Mayflower 400 programme
Encourage councillors to take part in Mayflower Makers training or attend alternative information 
session
Encourage councillors to support applications to Mayflower 400 Community Sparks from non-central 
parts of the city

Alternative options considered and rejected
The current portfolio of activity therefore represents the outputs from a significant and ongoing review 
of activity, which will continue through to the end of the commemoration in November 2020

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan

Corporate Plan:

The Mayflower programme aligns closely with the vision for the city incorporated in the Corporate 
Plan:

Growing Plymouth: the programme is a key element of the city’s growth agenda. The 
commemoration has stimulated and supports private/public capital investment valued at over £200mm, 
and initial estimates suggest a potential uplift of around 600k additional visitors in 2020 against 2015 
figures. This will deliver major ongoing benefits to the city resulting from increased visitors and 
investment. 

Page 19 Agenda Item 7



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 2 of 4

OFFICIAL

Pioneering Plymouth: Mayflower 400 articulates Plymouth’s commitment to innovation and forward 
thinking. Recognising benefits achieved by Liverpool, Hull and many other communities, the programme 
is delivering major economic regeneration through cultural investment. Via the Trade Expo and 
Creative Industries activity, Mayflower 400 will help promote the pioneering spirit embedded within 
the city, highlighting Plymouth as a hub for world class creative output, research and business.   

Caring Plymouth: the programme is committed to building community cohesion and encouraging 
healthy lifestyle choices. The Mayflower Sparks Community Fund is aimed at mobilising communities to 
develop their own activity, providing forums to build relationships and resilience that will continue post 
2020. The programme is also actively working with traditionally excluded groups to encourage their 
participation; for example work is underway with Plymouth Youth Offending Team to develop a 
Mayflower themed art project for 2020, and support was provided to the inaugural Plymouth BAME 
business awards. Through the commission of Argyle Community Trust, a range of Mayflower themed 
sports activities have been delivered to date. This will escalate through to 2020, with the Mayflower 
Sports Fund, administered by the Trust, providing opportunities for grassroots clubs to raise 
participation. 

Confident Plymouth: through Mayflower 400, Plymouth is growing its reputation regionally, 
nationally and internationally. Plymouth is successfully leading a partnership of over 11 UK destinations 
in delivery of the national Mayflower partnership, and has developed strong relationships in the US and 
Netherlands; activity with these partners will continue post 2020, providing ongoing benefits to the 
city. Further links have been developed in DCMS and other government departments that will support 
future government lobbying. The overall look of the city will receive a significant uplift through 
investment secured, raising pride in the city amongst residents. This will be further enhanced through 
the programme’s focus on highlighting the city’s rich heritage, ensuring residents understand and value 
Plymouth’s key role in many of the world’s most important maritime voyages.

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:    

The Council has committed the following funding to Mayflower:
- £2.25m revenue funding over 5 years
- £5m for capital projects
- £1.5 for public realm activity

This funding is already incorporated within the Medium Term Financial Plan; no further resources are 
requested through this report

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications: 
Many of the Mayflower 400 events and activities are not delivered directly by PCC. As part of standard 
agreements with funded delivery partners and partners to which Mayflower 400 branding has been 
granted, alignment with Plymouth plan for plastics has been stipulated. 

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:
* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote 
equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected 
characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not.

Page 20



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 3 of 4

OFFICIAL

Participation in the volunteering programme, Mayflower Makers, being led by Our Plymouth, is open to 
all. With the recruitment of a Volunteer Manager, an steering and oversight group experienced in 
managing volunteers has been established to ensure correct planning and execution.

The Mayflower 400 Community Sparks programme specifically considers and aims for a wide and 
diverse range of projects and communities, to ensure all communities of identify or interest have equal 
opportunity to take part in the Mayflower 400 commemoration programme. Similarly, other parts of 
the community programmes (schools, sport) include activities that can broadly be accessed.

Appendices 
*Add rows as required to box below

Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 
If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate 
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.  

Ref. Title of Appendix

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

A Briefing report Mayflower 400

B  Mayflower 400 Community Sparks Projects

Background papers: 
*Add rows as required to box below

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works, 
relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
work is based.

Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it 
is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.  

Title of any background paper(s)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

  
Sign off:

Fin pl.19.
20.1
10

Leg MS/3
3286

Mon 
Off

Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text.

HR Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text.

Asset
s 

Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text.

Strat 
Proc

Click here 
to enter 
text.

Page 21



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 4 of 4

OFFICIAL

Originating Senior Leadership Team member:  David Draffan

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report?  Yes – Anthony Payne

Date agreed: 08/09/2019

Cabinet Member approval: Councillor Pete Smith (approved by email)

Date approved: 05/09/2019

Page 22



Official

Mayflower 400: Update Report for Scrutiny Committee 
Sept’19

While including some background information, this report aims to provide to the Scrutiny Committee an 
update on the Mayflower 400 programme without covering all content of previous committee papers and 
presentations.

Introduction

The Mayflower 400 commemoration in 2020 will be an exceptional year of culture for Plymouth, with over 
100 events currently in development through the Council’s events team and partners across the city and an 
associated capital programme.

Aims:
 Plymouth perception: To showcase Plymouth internationally, nationally and locally to drive visibility 

and engagement with the Plymouth city brand
 Residents engagement: To increase pride and aspiration in Plymouth through the Mayflower 400 

programme locally and internationally to make 2020 ‘our year’ for Plymouth
 Physical space & experience: To catalyse improvements to the public realm and infrastructure, 

transforming residents and visitor’s experience of Plymouth
 Improved offer, service & welcome: To increase the offer, service and welcome to visitors, and 

increase the number of national and international visitors through 2020 and afterwards

With the opening event, Illuminate in November 2019, rapidly approaching, the programme is entering a 
mixed phase of delivery, detailed planning and communications. Key activities in this phase include:

- Ensuring delivery of core events programme
- Support for partners to deliver grassroots and wider programming, for example through the 

Mayflower 400 Community Sparks Fund, schools materials and projects, sports programme, business 
support

- Implementation of the first phase of marketing, communications and PR in the city of Plymouth
- Implementation of first phase of national communications and PR around the ‘year to go’ and ‘opening 

event’ moments
- Development of key sector (Visitor Destination, Creative and Marine) positioning and communications 

Plymouth’s marketing and communications plan for implementation through 2020.
- Continued follow through on the international marketing that has been underway over the last 3 years 

using funding from central government
- Detailed planning and implementation of city readiness in terms of street services, highways, 

maintenance and repairs

Background

2020 marks the 400th anniversary of the Mayflower voyage, one of the most influential journeys in global 
history and a defining moment in the shared history of Britain, the United States of America, Native American 
Nation and the Netherlands. The anniversary provides a special opportunity to inspire people across our 

Page 23



Official

nations with the stories of that iconic voyage, exploring themes of migration, tolerance, freedom and 
democracy that have such contemporary relevance.

An exciting national and international programme, the Mayflower 400 commemorations will highlight the 
significance of the special relationship between our nations; transform communities, provide cultural, business 
and visitor links; explore the different sides of the story; and celebrate the people and places of this epic 
pioneering tale.

Plymouth’s Mayflower programme will ensure we maximise the opportunities presented by the 400th 
anniversary of the journey of the Mayflower from Plymouth to the US in 2020. Exploiting Plymouth’s great 
natural and heritage assets, the programme will modernise the city and help stimulate an economic renaissance 
attracting jobs and commercial opportunities. Alongside this, it proposes a transatlantic cultural celebration fit 
for a global audience. It will provide a legacy for the city as a first class cultural destination, touching residents, 
friends and visitors alike for generations to come.

The Mayflower 400 Partnership 

Plymouth has been formally designated as the lead partner for the UK by central government, successfully co-
ordinating a range of activities nationally including the creation of coherent branding, the delivery of multiple 
successful funding applications and the alignment of events such as Illuminate.  Furthermore, Plymouth has 
provided leadership in promoting a coherent international approach to Mayflower 400.

Governance

Page 24



Official

Strategic leadership for Plymouth’s Mayflower 400 programme is provided through the Destination Plymouth 
framework, with Adrian Vinken OBE chairing the DP board. The board directors and invitees are:

An operational programme board sits under this, comprising of project leads and key partners including 
Plymouth City Centre Company and Plymouth Waterfront Partnership. Project leads carry responsibility for 
delivering their own project boards incorporating relevant stakeholders. 

Adrian Vinken also acts as the chair for the national Compact Partnership, with lead representatives from each 
UK destination meeting on a quarterly basis to progress the national programme. 

Overview
- A programme of over 400 ‘moments’, ranging from international civic ceremonies to local community 

events, giving everyone the chance to get involved through the year and highlighting Plymouth’s 
exceptional creative and community talent 

- Major new cultural attractions, including The Box, new heritage trails and the Elizabethan House 
- Investment in Plymouth’s public realm, to ensure the city looks its best and provides a great canvas for 

everything that happens through the year
- An international marketing programme that has given Plymouth and partner UK locations an 

unprecedented presence at global events such as World Travel Market, the world’s leading travel 
trade show

- Over 500,000 additional visits are anticipated to Plymouth in 2020
- We have received crucial support from Plymouth’s business community, who have so far committed 

over £400,000 to ensure we’re making the most of the commemoration for all the city’s residents 

Funding
- From Plymouth City Council’s revenue commitment of £2.25m, the programme has successfully 

leveraged a further £7.4m through grant funding and sponsorship to date, supporting the 
commemoration programme, communications and creative industries legacy

- From the Council’s Mayflower specific capital commitment of £5m, the programme is successfully 
leveraging a further £1.1m to date through grant funding

- Additionally, Arts Council England has committed £16m into Plymouth core arts and culture capacity 
over 5 years, to go through the Mayflower 400 2020 year.

Adrian Vinken Chairperson & Director, and Chief Executive Theatre Royal Plymouth 

Cllr Tudor Evans Director and Leader, PCC

Richard Stevens Director and MD, Citybus

David Alder Director and Chief Marketing Officer, Plymouth University

Nigel Godefroy Director and Chair, Plymouth City Centre Company

Cdre Peter Coulson Director, Naval Base Commander, Devonport

Charles Hackett Chief Executive, Mayflower 400

Tracey Lee Observer, Chief Executive, PCC

David Draffan Observer, Assistant Director for Economic Development, PCC

Amanda Lumley Observer, Executive Director, Destination Plymouth

Hannah Harris Observer, Chief Executive, Plymouth Culture

Page 25



Official

Plymouth Programme overview and highlights
Scrutiny Committee are asked to view the video at https://vimeo.com/350699865/a93edff7f9 as part 
of this report. The video shows a selection of the Mayflower 400 activities, and importantly a 
sample of the diverse groups and individuals involved.

On top of our usual impressive Plymouth event calendar in 2020, we’ve over 100 Plymouth Mayflower events 
or activities, from over 400 moments across our UK Mayflower 400 partnership. Many of those events are 
small scale, based in communities and organisations across the city. But some are big – many thousands on the 
Hoe for things like the Mayflower week, the Ceremony on 16th Sept, the Muster weekend, Illuminate 2019 
and 2020; some are ambitious art – like TRP’s production with Wampanoag participants, temporary large scale 
art installations; some are just fun; some are thought-provoking – like The Box Mayflower exhibition, 
contemporary art responses, Native American artists’ installation in Plymouth.

Highlight and example events are detailed below. However, full event listing can be provided by the Mayflower 
400 team for planning purposes. Details of the events that are in the public domain can be found on the 
Mayflower 400 website. Not all events are yet in the public domain.

Signature and Highlight Events:
 Mayflower Week 2020

o Monday – Field Gun Festival, featuring junior and senior teams
o Wednesday – Mayflower Ceremony, a four-nations ceremony commemorating the 

Mayflower’s journey and legacy. Big stage, big screens, huge choir of Plymothians, performance 
and narrative

o Thursday – Royal Marines Rehabilitation Triathlon, in which both international and UK 
athletes will complete. First time this ‘wounded warrior’ event has been held in the public area 
of the Plymouth Hoe

o Saturday & Sunday – Mayflower Muster, a celebration of Plymouth’s military heritage, with the 
UK, US and Dutch Armed Forces working together to create a spectacular festival of live 
displays, interactive demonstrations and a host of other activity

 Illuminate 2019 and 2020
o Illuminate is a spectacular light-based festival that will connect Mayflower 400 destinations and 

signal the start and end of the anniversary year in November in November 2019 and 2020 
respectively

o This will become a major festival or light, including digital and light-based art with commissions 
from local artists. Different from things like Durham Illumiere as it will use Plymouth’s unique 
waterfront and Plymouth Sound, and, in some imaginative way, connect Plymouth to all the 
other Mayflower 400 locations doing their local Illuminates

 Opening of the Box, Plymouth’s new £40m+ cultural hub, will be a flagship opening in spring 2020 with 
a range of Mayflower related exhibitions and activities, including:

o ‘Mayflower: Legend & Legacy’ exhibition, curated by The Box
 The Box will open with this exhibition, including 250 objects from about 35-40 

institutions. There will be 3 object rotations, keeping it fresh for residents as well as 
visitors

o ‘Wampum: Stories and Shells from Native America’, commissioned by The Box

Page 26

https://vimeo.com/350699865/a93edff7f9


Official

 A nationally touring exhibition and a commission from Plymouth to acknowledge our 
cultural connection to the Wampanoag people who met the Mayflower and ensured 
the survival of the new English settlers. It will include the commissioning of a new 
wampum belt, made exclusively by the Wampanoag people of the Mashpee and 
Aquinnah nations, to mark the 400th anniversary of the sailing of the Mayflower

o Contemporary Art Exhibitions in the Box
 A programme of four temporary contemporary arty exhibitions will run alongside 

‘Mayflower 400: Legend and Legacy’. 
o This programme will explore historical and contemporary perspectives on the Mayflower’s 

legacy and include commissions by contemporary artists. Themes will include migration, 
identity, commemoration, ethnography, colonialism and its impact. 

 ‘This Land’, a production by Theatre Royal Plymouth and the Wampanoag
o A truly remarkable performance of the Mayflower’s voyage, involving 2,000 people on both 

sides of the Atlantic to create an inspiring production at the Theatre Royal Plymouth.
o Members from the Wampanoag Tribe and residents of Plymouth, Massachusetts join their 

counterparts from Plymouth, UK, to perform the Mayflower story from multiple viewpoints 
with music from global folk artist Seth Lakeman.

 ‘OSTAR’  - the oldest and original single handed cross-Atlantic race, accompanied by TWOSTAR, the 
two-crew version

Further Cultural Highlights:
A series of headline cultural projects have been supported using £400,000k of funding secured from central 
government. These will deliver unique and thought provoking experiences, largely developed by Plymouth 
based artists, including:

 ‘Settlement’ 
o Native American artists in partnership with the Conscious Sisters will create a radical large-

scale installation of public art called Settlement, based in Central Park. This will run for four 
weeks during the summer of 2020 exploring colonialism, migration and their deep effects on 
indigenous people. 

 ‘Roots Up!’ by Street Factory
o People across the city will take part in a mass street dance reaching from the Barbican to the 

Hoe, led by the award-winning Street Factory in a bold and contemporary interpretation of 
the Mayflower story. This will incorporate four hip hop theatre pieces, telling real life stories 
through the cornerstones of hip hop culture - b-boying, grafitti, MCing, rapping, poetry, 
spoken word and DJing. They will be inspired by core Mayflower’s values - freedom, humanity, 
imagination and the future.

 ‘The 400’ by Le Navet Bête
o A light hearted and irreverent look at Britain’s relationship with the USA – from 1620 all the 

way through to now by renowned comedy/clowning theatre company Le Navet Bête. 
 ‘Being Seen’ by Beyond Face will raise the profile of people of colour working in the arts.

o A production called Beyond 2,000 Stories will be created in 2020, when four performers from 
Plymouth will be invited to create a new show for the Mayflower 400 programme that will 
then go on a national tour.

 A series of four classical concerts organised by Plymouth Music Accord
o Performances by University of Plymouth Choral Society, Plymouth and District Organists’ 

Association, Plymouth Symphony Orchestra and the Plymouth Philharmonic Choir. 

Page 27



Official

 ‘Directions’ by Marcy Saude
o A programme of film and video screenings will showcase work by artists from both Native 

American backgrounds and black, Asian and minority ethnic communities in the UK.
 ‘Pride 2020’ by Plymouth Pride

o Plymouth Pride will return with a Mayflower twist and increased scale in August 2020, creating 
a spectacular festival celebrating LGBT+ culture. It will include a parade through the heart of 
the city, workshops on the themes of freedom, humanity, imagination and the future and 
explore previously ‘hidden’ LGBT+ history.

Showing off our heritage:
 Plymouth has led the creation of the national Mayflower Trail, connecting 11 UK locations, creating a 

joined-up trail to attract US visitors and to create a flow through to Plymouth
 Mayflower Steps are being repaired and restored
 Elizabeth House - restoration and reinterpretation of Plymouth’s historic Elizabethan House, opening 

2020
 Mayflower Heritage Trail around the Elizabethan city area and Barbican, opening 2020

iMayflower
The Mayflower 400 programme is a core element of this project of c£3.5m from the Cultural Development 
Fund to promote creative industry activity across the city. As well as supporting events and marketing for 
2020, this will promote opportunities for creative organisations to access support from a range of institutions 
including the University of Plymouth, RIO’s Market Hall development and Plymouth College of Art. As well as 
supportive positioning of Plymouth as a creative industries centre, this project provides legacy support and 
stimulation of the creative industries 

A separate Scrutiny session has focused on this project.

Trade & Tech
Plymouth’s inaugural Mayflower Trade Expo event launched in 2016, drawing in around 100 senior 
representatives from the international marine tech community and highlighting world-class developments 
taking place in the city including the Mayflower Autonomous Ship and Ocean’s Gate. The Expo is planned as an 
ongoing, biennial event that will continue post 2020. The 2018 Expo successfully took place in June, attracting 
over 200 attendees.

Cruise
An initial cruise industry project has been completed for Mayflower 400. This has generated to date 12 cruise 
ship bookings for 2020 in Plymouth bringing in just under 15,000 passengers and generating an economic 
impact in the region of £1 million.

Communities & Residents activity

Involvement of communities and residents across the city, not only in attending major events but in taking part 
in activities near to them, is central to the overall programme and objectives. There is a comms stream 
specifically to reach residents (see below in ‘National and Local Marketing and Communication’), but key parts 
of the activity programme specifically to involve communities and residents are the Mayflower 400 Community 
Sparks Fund, the community Sport Programme, the Schools programme and the Volunteers (Mayflower 
Makers) programme.

Page 28



Official

Sports
Plymouth Argyle Community Trust are engaging clubs and organisations across the city to create new ways for 
communities in Plymouth to be active and learn about their city and heritage. 
Activities include: 

 the ‘Get Active’ campaign to increase participation with 12 sports, one for each of 12 months through 
2020

 A ‘Community Games’
 A Mayflower ‘Special Olympics’ event, contingent on ongoing fundraising. (This is not ‘The Special 

Olympics’, but a small events with that organisations and teams from Mayflower 400 UK locations) 
 Mayflower Sports Week, run in conjunction with Argyle, Albion and Raiders
 Mayflower 400 Sporting Voyage Education Programme with schools, combing history with American 

style sports

Mayflower 400 Community Sparks Fund
A fund for local community projects, the Mayflower 400 Community Sparks fund, co-ordinated by Vital Sparks, 
launched in April 2018. The fund is targeted at mobilising grass-roots community, arts and cultural activity.  
Funding is available for projects that can be delivered by November 2020 and that will enable people living in 
Plymouth to take part in the Mayflower 400 commemoration. Grants are available up to £3,000, or £5,000 in 
exceptional circumstances. 

Mayflower 400 Community Sparks does not fund:
 Activities that take place outside Plymouth 
 Retrospective grant aid for work already completed or which will have started before the application 

is considered
 Publicity campaigns
 Projects whose prime aim is to redistribute earned income from the proposal to other good causes 

including charitable appeals and organisations
 Commercially run projects
 NPOs (National Portfolio Organisations funded by Arts Council England) or national organisations

Half this fund is now allocated, with projects from a enormously wide range of community lead Mayflower 
projects, from Town Crier, Morris dancing, school story-tellers, to projects addressing immigration and 
patriarchy and workshops at the Respect festival (PDREC). The deadline for applications to the third round of 
funding is 31st October 2019. One further round will be run in the first part of 2020.

Full summary list of project funded is provided in further appendix.

While there is considerable diversity in the project and communities funded so far through Community 
Sparks, most of the projects are from areas central to Plymouth. Therefore, in the third and fourth rounds 
extra effort is being made to encourage projects from Plymouth areas further from the city centre.

Schools support
There is guidance for schools for Mayflower-based delivery of the curriculum, competitions and projects, and 
story-teller support for schools in most deprived areas, so that every school should be able to engage their 
young people with their heritage

Page 29



Official

 Mayflower 400 syllabus content - A bespoke portfolio of Mayflower syllabus content has been created 
for key stages 1, 2 and 3, reaching across all subjects. This, and wider resources, are available on our 
website at mayflower400uk.org/education 

 Thanksgiving meals in schools with information, by CaterEd
 Mayflower 400 Citizenship Project - creating a new ‘Compact’ by young people which will be used by 

the City Youth Council and Plymouth Youth Parliament 
 Mayflower 400 Anthology –collections of poetry, prose and stories from young people in Plymouth 

collated into the Mayflower 400 Anthology, with support from University of Plymouth

Volunteering
- The Mayflower 400 Volunteer programme aims to contribute 100,000 hours of volunteering in 

support of the Mayflower programme, providing an in-kind value of over £1m. The programme is 
being delivered by Our Plymouth, aligning with their wider remit to engage volunteering across the 
city. 

- To date over 200 people have attended the Mayflower Maker introductory session
- 98 people registered on the doit.life in the Mayflower Maker community group
- A volunteer coordinator has been recruited to ensure the right volunteer is at the right place at the 

right time with the right kit. 
- Businesses have provided further support, for example through the ‘Road to Mayflower’ scheme co-

ordinated by Building Plymouth
- Volunteers, in their ‘Mayflower Makers’ uniforms have already been active at recent events such as 

British Fireworks Championships and promotion of Plymouth at Paddington Station. Integration into 
the full events programme is ongoing

- The ‘routes’ for volunteers are illustrated in the schematic, will all being trained as ambassadors and 
specific training or support being arranged for additional activities

-

Update on Mayflower 400 specific capital programme

Page 30



Official

There are a wide range of public-private partnership projects based around Mayflower 400 or looking to 2020 
as a deadline or a stimulus as a legacy project. These include:

 Plymouth’s new cultural attraction, ‘The Box’, the opening and capacity of which will be critical to 
2020

 Drake Circus Leisure
 Pilgrim Public Realm project
 Infrastructure road projects
 Phase 1 of the railway station regeneration
 Hotel infrastructure including Derry’s, Millbay, the Pavilions and the legacy1620 development
 Plymouth Argyle’s Mayflower Grandstand

 
In Addition, a number of Mayflower specific projects are being delivered across Council departments:

Mayflower Trails and Steps Enhancement 
- 3 new trails have been developed, incorporating Plymouth’s Mayflower and wider history. One of 

these trails will include physical infrastructure and the other two will be digital, launching in early 2020
- Works are being completed at the Mayflower Steps and West Pier, to improve their appearance for 

2020 

Historic Houses
- The project is in the process of completing the procurement process for the build lead for the 

Elizabethan House. This should open in summer 2020, and will be the centre of a significant 
engagement programme supported through funding secured from the NHLF

In addition, the Mayflower £1.5m Pilgrim Public Realm Project continues to deliver wider public realm 
improvements to key areas. Work to date includes:

 Replacement flags and bins on the Hoe
 Improvements to Cliff Road
 Upgraded Wi-Fi infrastructure
 Improvement coach infrastructure 
 Sheikinah Mission/Probation commissioned to provide capacity for general works up to and through 

2020

Visitor Marketing
Visitor marketing to US visitors, as well as US and European, has been ongoing for over 2 years now, with 
funding from Visit England, Visit Britain and DCMS. Details of the national Mayflower 400 international visitor 
marketing project and the US Connections project have been provided at previous Scrutiny committee 
meetings. Momentum of this effort has been maintained by phasing of staff resourcing by Destination Plymouth 
through 2019/20, ensuring continued high level of engagement of travel trade and travel media.

Additional delivery of this extended period, ‘Phase 2’ of the Mayflower 400 national visitor marketing project, 
led by Destination Plymouth, since the last Scrutiny Committee update include:

 More than 10 new bookable Mayflower themed experiences are now available across the UK.
 12 itineraries were developed and made available to download on the Mayflower 400 website aimed at 

groups and individuals.

Page 31



Official

 14 Cruise Excursion itineraries were available to download. 
[Figures below as at April 2019]

 17,299 unique website users visited www.mayflower400uk.org.
 971 new consumer sign-ups to e-newsletters via website.
 1644 brochure downloads (top brochure download ‘Pilgrim Roots’).
 5 operators are selling Mayflower tours. 

12 cruise ships confirmed as coming into Plymouth for 2020.
 60 new travel trade contacts were made as a result of attendance at NTA Annual Convention, WTM, 

Cruise Britain Showcase and the US Sales Mission. 
 The four nation US media launch held in Boston on 14th March generated significant coverage for the 

project with over 120 pieces and $100k of coverage, with a reach of over 200m.
 6 hosted press trips have taken place. 
 Launch of A digital trail app - w/c May 13th; the app has been designed to encourage movement between 

destinations and promoted as ‘Mayflower Self-Guided Tours’ for walking and driving. 
 A cruise market research report ‘Developing England’s Cruise Tourism Product’ was conducted by G. P. 

Wild (International) Limited during February –March 2019 with the following key outputs;  
o There are opportunities to work on scenic attractions, accessibility of port cities and overnight 

stays (note: needs strong theme and/or event).
o Rich variety in shore excursions; historical sites and cultural attractions and passenger satisfaction 

are absolutely key for call decisions.
o Theme appeal has value provided that the theme is strong – key mentions for Royals and Golf. 

Others also mentioned.
o Language information provision and guides key.

In addition, to further the Mayflower 400 national trail, a national trail app has been developed and launched, 
supporting bring people to UK and through England to the Mayflower destinations and Plymouth. 

National and Local Marketing and Communication
Funding was secured early in 2019 through the Cultural Development Fund and commercial sponsorship to 
provide budget for marketing and communications locally, regionally and nationally, and further beyond the 
visitor sector. A Marketing & Comms Director has been recruited with extensive experience of major 
international events and place marketing, and a marketing & comms plan has been developed and agreed with 
the Destination Plymouth board.

This comprised of 3 communications plans:
1. Mayflower 400 nationally

To ensure that the anniversary and commemoration is widely recognised nationally and internationally, 
Plymouth leads the comms and PR for the whole national Mayflower 400. A National PR Agency has 
been engaged to deliver mainstream national and international PR for the Mayflower 400 project.

2. Plymouth
Through the Mayflower year, and the attention that Plymouth will get through the Mayflower 400 
programme, communications plan will deliver mainstream national and international PR to promote 
key Plymouth business sectors currently identified as:

Page 32

http://www.mayflower400uk.org/


Official

 Visitor Destination
 Creative industries & Culture
 Marine

Working groups are set up or being set up to steer the messaging and content for each of these area, 
working through the Marketing & Comms Director to a single PR agency. 

3. Community 
A detailed communications plan has been developed to ensure that awareness and invitation reaches 
all parts of Plymouth.
City dressing, advertising, media coverage will start September 2019
Opening event Illuminate November 2019 will be the following major communications milestone and 
moment

Plymouth M400 Legacy
Many parts of the programme described above provide legacy directly or indirectly. The key elements of legacy 
for Plymouth from Mayflower 400 fall in the categories of: Perception, Events, and Physical

Perception legacy
• Plymouth understood as a city of Creative Industries and Maritime Tech 
• Increased awareness of Plymouth as a beautiful, historic and cultural destination 
• Increased pride in Plymouth as a city on international and national stage

Ongoing events
• Illuminate as an annual light festival for the city
• Marine Tech Expo as a regular showcase

Physical
• The Box
• National Mayflower Trail will continue as visitor product
• Mayflower steps repair
• Plymouth Mayflower heritage trail
• Elizabethan House restored, reinterpreted and reopened
• Wider significant investments into growing Britain’s Ocean City

• Coach station, Train station redevelopment, Hotel development, Drake’s Circus 
Leisure, Plymouth Argyle’s Mayflower stand, Millbay Boulevard 

Visitor
Mayflower 400 in 2020 marks the beginning of the whole East coast of the USA turning 400 up to Boston in 
2030. From this perspective 2020 is just the start of a 10 year campaign to attract additional US visitors to 
Plymouth which will in turn increase economic impact and support jobs. New visitor product has been 
developed which will continue to be ‘sold and distributed’ by tour operators and travel agents post 2020. The 
same is true of the cruise activity which already is seeing bookings for 2021 being accepted and has a long term 
ambition to grow visits up to 30 ships annually.
The legacy of Mayflower will also be fulfilled through continuing infrastructure development including a pipeline 
of new hotels which are still required to enable the city to grow value and productivity in the visitor sector for 
the long term.

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL

Mayflower 400 Community Sparks Round 1 and 2
Round 1.

1) North Prospect Community Choir
£4,000 has been awarded to North Prospect Community Choir to produce a new celebratory 
choral work exploring the theme, Sounds of the Ocean City. This funding will give the choir 
the opportunity to work with composer Adrian Hull to produce new music for their adult choir 
and Mayflower Community Academy’s children’s chorus.

2) Joyce’s Quilt Women’s Group
£4,000 goes to the Joyce’s Quilt women’s group for a unique quilting project called ‘Pilgrim 
Mothers – A New World’. The project will be launched on International Women’s Day in 2019 
and will work with women’s groups around the city. Participants will design and sew squares 
that explore how life could have been different if women had taken the lead instead of the 
Pilgrim Fathers when they landed on the shores of Massachusetts.

3) The Mayflower Morris Muster
£3,000 will finance The Mayflower Morris Muster in 2020, which will see a dozen Morris 
sides from across the UK, the Netherlands and the US dancing at various venues in 
Plymouth to celebrate the history and diversity of this unique style of dance. The Muster will 
be hosted by Plymouth Morris Men which celebrates its 50th birthday in 2020.

4) Plymouth Cruise Ship Volunteers
Plymouth Cruise Ship Volunteers received £3,000 to give the Welcome Caravan at Millbay 
Docks a much needed makeover. Funds will also be used to buy uniforms for the volunteers 
and banners to create a vibrant and exciting first glimpse of the city on arrival.

5) Stoke Traders and Residents Association (STaRS)
A bursary of £3,000 will enable Stoke Village Fun Day to run kite workshops in 2019 and 
2020. When the kites are finished community members will write their hopes and dreams on 
them. These will then form part of a Mayflower procession through Stoke Village and up to 
the Blockhouse where they will fly their kites sending their dreams into the skies.

6) Age UK Plymouth
Age UK Plymouth has linked up with a care home called Cozy Corner in Plymouth, 
Massachusetts to develop an exciting art project for older people called Friends Across The 
Sea. This transatlantic project will be run in collaboration with By Design Collective and will 
use written correspondence, digital platforms creative art, theatre and music as a tool to 
communicate, discuss ideas and create a community that is strengthened by the Mayflower 
celebrations. The project will be supported with a bursary of £2938.

7) Royal Adelaide Art & Yoga CIC
Royal Adelaide Art & Yoga CIC secured £2,900 to run the Mayflower Postcard Exchange 
and Exhibition, which will invite local people and individuals in the USA to send postcards to 
RAAY for a unique cultural exhibition. There are 30 towns and cities named after Plymouth 
across the United States and the residents will be encouraged to share life in their Plymouth 
through the art of postcard writing.

8) All Nations Ministries
£2,318  will bring the popular tea dances organised by Lady Astor bang up to date. All 
Nations Ministries will host an intergenerational and cross-cultural tea dance with a 
difference on the Hoe in 2020. Popular dances to Swing and Big Band music will be 

Page 35



OFFICIAL

complemented by African, Filipino and Thai dance displays. This special event aims to break 
down barriers between different cultural groups.

9) Town Crier
Penny Tarrant & Debbie Jones supported by the Hoe Neighbourhood Forum
£2,150 has been awarded to Hoe residents Penny Tarrant and Debbie Jones, supported by 
the Hoe Neighbourhood Forum, to run a competition to find a new Town Crier. The 
competition will be open to anybody resident in Plymouth and will be held in the city centre 
for everyone’s entertainment. The successful Town Crier will promote all the exciting 
activities happening for Mayflower 400.

10) Plymouth Tree Partnership
A new variety of apple named the ‘Pilgrim 400’ will be brought to the city by Plymouth Tree 
Partnership. This commemorative tree produces a medium sized fruit, round in shape and of 
a rosy appearance and is most suitable for cooking. A bursary of £1,750 will help the 
partnership provide low cost apple trees and a certificate of authenticity to schools and civic 
groups in Plymouth.

11) Plymouth Zine Library
Plymouth Zine Library will receive £1,500 to run workshops across the city to teach people 
the art of zine production. Zines are self-created, self-published small magazines which 
come in a variety of formats from comics, to collage to Illustration. In the workshops 
Plymothians of all ages which explore how they feel about Mayflower 400. The larger zine 
will be produced and will be free at different venues across the city.

12) The Minster Church of St Andrew
The Minster Church of St Andrew has been given £1,500 to run a programme of events 
including a flower and quilt exhibition to commemorate Mayflower 2020. The church will also 
host an exhibition of children’s art and creative writing.

Round 2.

13) Schools Storyteller
Twenty five of the most deprived primary schools in Plymouth will be offered ‘The Story of 
The Mayflower’ - a one-hour dramatic storytelling performance. A bursary of £4,800 will fund 
Katy Cawkwell to deliver this though-provoking session which will enrich the lives of school 
children, teachers and the wider school community.

14) The Plymouth Brick project 
The Plymouth Brick project has received £3,000 towards its goal to deliver a lively public 
artwork on Glen Park Avenue Steps in Mutley. Devised by artist Dan Petley, the project is 
aiming to engage with over 3000 people who will each paint a design on a brick in the wall 
next to the steps, transforming this neglected space into a vibrant art gallery. Dan will be 
supported by local artists, The Shekinah Mission, Open Doors International Language 
School and PADAN.

15) Art, Craft and Laughter 
‘Art, Craft and Laughter’ has received £3,000 to produce a sail for the vintage sailing boat 
Tectona. This unusual art project will take a large sail and cut it into 80 pieces which will be 
decorated by people struggling with mental health issues. Once sewn back together the sail 
will symbolise how people can make better progress through life when they are supported.

Page 36



OFFICIAL

16) Feminist Fusion 
Feminist Fusion has been granted £3,000 to hold challenging community discussions around 
the themes of the Mayflower including immigration and patriarchy. They will also host an 
innovative art project with students from Lipson Community College and showcase art from 
local artists. ‘We Are All On A Journey’ will culminate in a show and exhibition in November 
2020.

17) Routeways 
Routeways has been granted £3,000 to run a series of workshops creating 17th century 
artefacts and developing its own Mayflower production and environment to stimulate young 
people with autism, ADHD and learning disabilities.

18) Transforming Plymouth Together
£3,000 goes to Transforming Plymouth Together in support of an Arts Council application for 
a faith-based production for Plymouth schools and the wider community.

19) ‘Respect’ style event with learning disabilities, autism and physical disabilities
 A celebratory event for people in the city with learning disabilities, autism and physical 
disabilities has been given seed funding of £3,000. Social worker Jane Devlin will deliver a 
‘Respect’ style event that celebrates difference and allows people with disabilities the 
freedom to express themselves. Jane Devlin said: “We are thrilled to be putting on this 
festival and our event will be fun packed with guest speakers, performances and interactive 
activities. Although our focus will be on celebrating difference, this ‘first of its kind’ event in 
Plymouth will also help people recognise that we all share similar aspirations in life.”

20) Gdynia Way Bridge
The bridge on Gdynia Way is the focus of a project working with the Polish Community in 
Plymouth. £3,000 has been awarded to support community action that will see the faded 
Polish folk art flower mural get a much-deserved revamp. This is part of the wider Road to 
Mayflower project being led by the local construction industry through Building Plymouth.

21) Adelaide Street 
Adelaide Street residents will need to dust off their bunting and unpack their tablecloths for a 
special Mayflower 400 event. The street has been given a bursary of £3,000 to run a 
traditional street party with complimentary art workshops.

22) Plymstock Community Forum 
Plymstock Community Forum has successfully secured £2,423 for an ambitious project to 
produce a large-scale tapestry. Local embroiderers and needlework volunteers will 
document the extensive and colourful history of Plymstock, from the Roman invasion 
through to the present day. The finished work will be sited at Plymstock Library.

23) Plymouth Archaeological Society 
What was life like in 17th century Plymouth? A consortium led by the Plymouth 
Archaeological Society has secured £2,000 towards a heritage symposium called ‘Plymouth 
1620: The Place, The People, The Evidence’ and a series of walks and talks which will 
reveal a picture of life in Plymouth in 1620.

24) Genealogical Conference 
Devon Family History has been granted £2,000 towards its International Genealogical 
Conference in August 2020 at Plymouth Guildhall. A diverse programme of talks will 
investigate DNA, tribal history and the experience of tracing your family tree by Mayflower 
descendants.

Page 37



OFFICIAL

25) Plymouth Hope
£2,000 goes to Plymouth Hope for an art workshop that will take place at its festival 
celebrating the sport, art and culture of Plymouth’s diverse communities.

26) Plymouth & Devon Racial Equality Council 
Plymouth & Devon Racial Equality Council has secured £2,000 towards artist workshops at 
the Respect Festivals leading up to 2020. The funding will help pay for artists of colour to 
produce exciting sessions for children.

27) Plympton St Maurice Civic Association 
Plympton St Maurice Civic Association will receive £2,000 for a Mayflower-themed picnic on 
Castle Green. Their bursary will also support a guided history walk and weeklong Anglo-
American Film Festival at Plympton St Maurice Guildhall.

28) Toute Ensemble Renaissance Windband 
Members of the University of the Third Age will be treated to a fun workshop of 17th century 
popular dances courtesy of a £1,300 bursary to Toute Ensemble Renaissance Windband. 
There will also be opportunities for the public to experience dance and music from the time 
of the sailing of the Mayflower.

The third round of ‘Mayflower 400 Community Sparks’ is now open. The deadline for 
applications is 31 October, 2019. More information and an application form can be 
downloaded from www.theboxplymouth.com/mayflower400-community-sparks

Page 38

http://www.theboxplymouth.com/mayflower400-community-sparks


Page 1 of 16

OFFICIAL

Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative 
Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of meeting: 25 September 2019

Title of Report: Plymouth City Centre Business Improvement District 
(2020-25) 

Lead Member: Councillor Mark Lowry (Cabinet Member for Finance)

Lead Strategic 
Director:

Anthony Payne (Strategic Director for Place)

Author: Patrick Knight, Economy, Partnerships and Regeneration Manager

Steve Hughes, Chief Executive, Plymouth City Centre Company

Contact Email: patrick.knight@plymouth.gov.uk

Your Reference: DEV/ED/ED/PROJ/CC/CCBIDsFINALSCRUTINYCOMMITTEEPKVERSION

Key Decision: Yes

Confidentiality: Part I - Official

Purpose of Report
This report sets out Plymouth City Council’s rationale and support for the renewal of the Plymouth 
City Centre Company (CCC) Business Improvement District for 2020-25.

The report defines the Council’s financial and other support for the CCC’s City Centre BID, as well as 
its commitment to establish baseline agreements for the City Council’s existing services within the BID 
area. Any business contributions through the BID that come from the private sector (BID levy c.£2.1m) 
are effectively additional investment over and above the support made by the City Council which totals 
c.£672,500. This brings the total projected value of Plymouth City Centre’s BID to c.£2,772,500. In 
addition, the City Council has committed capital funding of c.£43m towards developments that will 
lever private sector investment of c.£130m. 

The BID legislation does not require that the Local Authority endorse the BID proposals, however it is 
essential that Plymouth City Council confirms its support (financial and in kind) prior to the ballot and 
before the BID will reach the end of its third term on 31st March 2020. Through approval of this 
report’s recommendations the Council will signal its strong support for Plymouth City Centre 
Company’s City Centre BID Business Plan (2020-25). 

The Committee is asked to note and support the recommendations to Cabinet, which are as follows:

Recommendations and Reasons
1. Endorse the principles and overall approach of the Plymouth City Centre Company BID and 

their Business Plan for 2020 to 2025.

Reason:  To confirm the partnership approach to the Business Improvement District and to 

Page 39 Agenda Item 8



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 2 of 16

OFFICIAL

continue with a framework for service improvement mechanisms within the Business 
Improvement District area.  

2. Approve the City Council’s financial and in kind contributions as set out in this report (totalling 
£672,500) and to demonstrate its continued commitment to the City Centre Company BID at 
existing levels through the proposed BID Concordat and Contract for the provision of services 
within the Plymouth City Centre Business Improvement District area.

Reason:  To enable the Plymouth City Centre Company Ltd. to implement the Business Plan 
2020 to 2025.

3.  Authorise the City Council Chief Executive as returning officer to instruct a Ballot Holder to 
undertake a ballot of appropriate businesses within the City Centre Company Business 
Improvement District area.

Reason:  To enable a ballot in the Business Improvement District area to be conducted in 
accordance with Regulation 7 Schedule 2 of the Business Improvement District (England) 
Regulations 2004. 

4. Delegate to the Strategic Director for Place authority to vote on behalf of the City Council in 
the Plymouth City Centre Company Business Improvement District ballot.

Reason: To discharge the City Council’s responsibilities in relation to the ballot as an occupier 
within the Plymouth City Centre Business Improvement District area in a timely manner 
consistent with the Business Improvement District ballot programme and in order to achieve 
the City Council’s wider economic and regeneration objectives for the city centre.

5. Delegate to the Strategic Director for Place authority to approve the Plymouth City Centre 
Company Business Improvement District Contract provided that it accords with the general 
principles set out in this report.

Reason: To allow the Business Improvement District Contract to be formally signed after the 
Business Improvement District ballot and in advance of the formal commencement of the new 
Business Improvement District for the period 2020 to 2025.

6.        PCC is already committed to funding the City Centre Company, through its Medium Term
           Financial Strategy, so no new funding commitments are requested.

Reason: To enable the CCC to operate successfully and generate revenues that can then be 
reinvested for the BID’s delivery.

7. Request the Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change OSC to review the Business 
Improvement District proposals and make a recommendation to the City Council 
regarding the exercising its power of veto. The meeting to then make a recommendation to Full 
Council.

Reason: To meet the requirements of Regulation 12 of the Business Improvement District 
(England) Regulations 2004 in relation to the use of the power of veto and to provide 
independent scrutiny of the Business Improvement District proposal.

Page 40



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 3 of 16

OFFICIAL

Alternative options considered and rejected

Option 1: Progress city centre management through a different vehicle using a voluntary 
contributions approach
This has been rejected by the City Centre Company because the anticipated income and levels of 
commitment would be significantly reduced as a result of differential contributions from different 
businesses.

Option 2: Amend some of the assumptions in the existing Business Improvement District 
Business Plan
This was rejected as the current level of service provision within the City Centre has to be met or 
enhanced above pre-Business Improvement District levels for the duration of the BID Business Plan in 
order to meet the requirements of the regulations.  In addition previous experience in delivering the 
City Centre BID Business Plans demonstrates the added value of a realistic but challenging programme 
of integrated initiatives in levering other sources of income above the basic Business Improvement 
District levy.

Option 3: Abandon the Business Improvement District Model
This was rejected as it might mean that some of the services and management to be undertaken by the 
City Centre Company would have to be managed in-house by Plymouth City Council and it is not 
considered this would allow sufficient private sector involvement and flexibility in the operation of the 
activities.

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan

The Plymouth Plan’s ‘Growing’ and ‘International’ chapters highlight the importance of Plymouth City 
Centre as a primary economic node, which is being enhanced and regenerated as a vibrant modern 
mixed-use regional shopping centre of appropriate scale for prevalent retail patterns, with high
levels of Internet connectivity, high quality high density urban living, and a hub for culture and leisure to 
serve the wider city.  It is also crucial in delivery of the refreshed Plymouth Visitor Plan (2020-30), 
enabling Plymouth to position itself an ‘urban base’ for visitors to stay to combine activity and culture. 

We recognise that the Plymouth City Centre Company Ltd. (PCCC) has been hugely successful 
delivering significant achievements and improvements over the past 15 years and a major voice for 
many businesses, organisations and partnerships within the City. Representing more than 500 
businesses within the Plymouth City Centre area it has gained a national reputation for best practice 
and has transformed the city centre environment into a safer, cleaner and more vibrant place for 
residents and visitors alike. The BID is about sustainable partnerships that help drive investment in the 
area.

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:    

Over the five year term of the BID Plymouth City Council will continue to support the BID with ‘in 
kind’ commitments amounting to the value of £72,500, cash contributions of £187,500 (contribution to 
Christmas Illuminations), £300,000 from Street Trading, and will pay an estimated £112,500 in BID levy 
payments. All of this support is already signed off within the Medium Term Financial Strategy, so no 
additional PCC funding commitments are requested or need approval.

Page 41



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 4 of 16

OFFICIAL

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:

No new carbon footprint implications are implied by the BID renewal.

However, with work on the City Council’s Climate Action Plan progressing there is an opportunity for 
the CCCo/PCC to work together to promote action to reduce carbon emissions relating to the City 
Centre.

It is noted that many street traders using on street electricity supplies have been encouraged to source 
their electricity through renewable electricity suppliers/ contracts and are doing so. This could be 
taken further with the range of retailers/traders that the Council has contractual arrangements with.

In addition the CCCo could look at the potential for delivery of a wider business advice scheme re low 
energy equipment (low energy lightbulbs, heat pumps etc.) and using renewables.

Early action on establishing a portfolio of City Centre action is therefore envisaged.

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:
* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote 
equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected 
characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not.
None. Plymouth City Centre Company Ltd. will continue to ensure that its activities support these 
objectives.

Page 42



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 5 of 16

OFFICIAL

Further background information:

1.0 Introduction

This report sets out Plymouth City Council’s rationale and support for the Plymouth City Centre 
Company’s (CCC) Business Improvement District (BID) for Plymouth City Centre (2020-25).

Plymouth city centre’s economic vibrancy is of vital importance to the city, supporting 14% of the city’s 
employment and is a key priority for this Council. Through the BID we have invested heavily in the city 
centre, matching the contribution of levy payers and prioritising city centre projects within our capital 
programme in line with the BID’s ambitions. The BID has proved to be a resounding success. 

The report defines the Council’s financial support for the CCC’s City Centre BID4 as well as its 
commitment to establish baseline agreements for the City Council’s existing services within the BID 
area. Any business contributions through the BID that come from the private sector (BID levy c.£2.1m) 
are effectively additional investment over and above the support made by the City Council which totals 
c.£672,500 over the five years. This brings the total projected value of the City Centre BID to 
c.£2,772,500 over the BID term.

1.1 The City Centre Company Vision

To position Plymouth City Centre as the major retail, visitor and leisure destination on the South 
West Peninsula.

With its partners, the BID will raise the profile of Plymouth as Britain’s Ocean City and maximise the 
potential of the recent investment in cultural, leisure and entertainment venues to drive economic 
growth. 

1.2 The City Centre BID4 Operation

A Business Improvement District (BID) is a private sector led management organisation for a precisely 
defined geographical area, where business rate payers have identified projects and services that will 
have a positive impact on their trading environment. Businesses located within the area vote to invest 
collectively in delivering these improvements which are wholly additional to those already delivered by 
local, statutory bodies. Once a BID has been established, all businesses contribute a BID Levy based on 
the rateable value of their premises (hereditaments) to ensure fairness and equity. BIDs have a 
maximum duration of five years.

The Plymouth City Centre Company Ltd. will be responsible for delivering the new City Centre BID. 
PCCC is an independent, not for profit company limited by guarantee, which currently operates as a 
voluntary membership partnership with a Board of Directors representing all the key business sectors 
in the BID area, run by and for local businesses.

PCCC will provide leadership and management and be directly accountable to City Centre businesses 
for the delivery of the BID Business Plan, working in partnership with Plymouth City Council, Plymouth 
Waterfront Partnership, Destination Plymouth, and other public agencies to benefit businesses located 
within the City Centre area.

1.3 The City Centre Company Objectives

The City Centre Company’s new BID will:

Page 43



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 6 of 16

OFFICIAL

Act as ONE BUSINESS VOICE for the city centre, influencing and working with partners, to:

 Recognise and adapt to the changing retail climate to ensure landlords and tenants find new 
uses for empty units

 Re-invigorate the city centre by pro-actively seeking inward investment and facilitating 
development

 Improve connectivity between the waterfront and city centre, giving visitors  more reason to 
visit both locations

In addition, the BID will:

 Attract more visitors with marketing and promotion and a high-quality, year-round programme 
of events 

 Improve our public spaces, so they are vibrant, clean, welcoming, green and safe

 Support our businesses with range of services to reduce costs and improve customer 
experience

The new BID’s projects are designed to enable the city centre to thrive and to maximise the 
opportunities driven by a continuously changing consumer marketplace including, out-of-town 
shopping, online shopping, and changing customer expectations and habits. The BID and partnership 
activities will respond proactively by offering targeted, attractive and unique experiences to attract, 
retain and exceed the expectations of new and existing customers.

1.4 The City Centre Targets

The City Centre BID will help the City to achieve its Visitor Plan targets:
 To grow visitor spend by 30% from £347 million to £450 million in a decade
 To increase the total visitor numbers by 15% from 5.1 to 6 million by 2030

This will involve positioning Plymouth as an ‘urban base’ through which to enjoy modern city centre 
shopping, leisure, cultural activities and evening and night-time experiences e.g. The Barcode cinema 
and leisure complex, The Box, Royal William Yard and Millbay.

2.0 How Will City Centre BID4 Be Managed?

The City Centre BID will be managed by Plymouth City Centre Company Ltd. which will be directly 
accountable to City Centre businesses for the management of this area and the successful delivery of 
the BID business plan. 

The BID’s governance will be the responsibility of the PCCC Board, giving City Centre businesses and 
other stakeholders control in formulating strategy and overseeing BID project delivery. In addition, as a 
member of the CCC, businesses will also have a vote on major decisions.

The BID boundary area will cover the primary areas of the City Centre including the area to the North 
of Royal Parade and up Armada Way to North Cross, the area West of Armada Way across to Western 

Page 44



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 7 of 16

OFFICIAL

Approach, the area to the East of Armada Way across to Charles Cross. The City Centre Company BID 
area will buffer up to the Plymouth Waterfront Partnership BID area ensuring enhanced links between 
the two areas and a seamlessly positive visitor experience. 

3.0 The Costs to Businesses

In February 2020 the businesses will have to decide whether to vote Yes or No to fund delivery of the 
final City Centre BID Business Plan. If a majority of businesses vote Yes, then all businesses in the BID 
area will be required to contribute an annual BID Levy payment, based on the rateable value of the 
premises that the business occupies.

The proposed annual BID Levy is based on 1.363% of a business property’s rateable value (RV).
For example, if the RV is £30,000 a business will pay £409 per annum, that’s £7.86 per week.

4.0 The Development of BID4

The BID Business Plan has been driven at every stage by business owners and managers seeking to 
improve their trading environment and profitability. 

Building on from the previous three BID business plans, CCC has listened to business concerns, ideas 
and priorities, evolving this BID Business Plan from a highly structured, detailed, democratic 
consultation process, involving a number of key stages. Extensive consultation has taken place with the 
business community since February 2019 through a series of face-to-face meetings, surveys, workshops 
and ‘open door’ meetings. The BID is about investment in the area and sustainable partnerships. 
Consequently, the Plymouth City Centre Company’s Business Improvement District Business Plan and 
the proposed projects within it are the result of extensive consultation with City Centre businesses 
reflecting their priorities and aiming to deliver them over the 5 year BID period.

5.0 Value for Money 

If the majority of businesses vote yes, around 550 identified businesses (including City Council 
premises) within the City Centre BID area will be required to contribute through a Levy. The 
Plymouth City Centre Company Ltd. will then aim to secure match funding which could further 
increase the five-year investment.

Based upon rateable value, the average city centre business will pay an annual levy £765 (£14.70 a 
week) in return for significantly higher benefits in terms of visitor spend and other advantages.

Based upon existing rateable values within the BID area:

7.5% of businesses will pay less than £100 per year
49% of businesses will pay between £100 and £500 per year
23% of businesses will pay between £500 and £1,000 per year
19% of businesses will pay between £1,000 and £5,000 per year
1.5% of businesses will pay more than £5,000 per year

It is proposed that a minimum rateable value threshold of £4,000 is set within this new BID term, 
below which no additional BID levy is made. This will help support those very small businesses within 
the independent retail areas as well as in the market which add distinctiveness, diversity and character 
to the city.

6.0 Projected Funding/Budget over 5 Years

Page 45



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 8 of 16

OFFICIAL

Total estimated BID Levy income from
City Centre businesses/organisations £2.1m*

Total projected other private sector funding £2,565,000 

Total projected PCC cash and in kind contribution. £672,500

Total value of existing City Council 
Services, BID levy, and Match Funding

                                                                            

Total 5 Year joint PCC and BID funding

*Based upon current projected budgets which could be subject to change

Planned funding breakdown over 5 years:

Planned Funding Value £ Cash or in kind?

PCC  - Capital Programme (OTS/NGS/Civic Centre/West End) 43,000,000 Subject to funding and        
business cases

PCC - Street Trading contribution     300,000 cash
PCC - Xmas lights installation     187,500 cash
PCC - BID levy payment    112,500 cash
PCC - Levy collection (admin and legal)        72,500 In kind
Total planned PCC contribution 43,672,500 Cash/in kind

 
CCC - BID levy income (projected) 2,115,000 Cash
CCC - Landlords - BID voluntary subscriptions  150,000 Cash
CCC - Commercial Trading Income  100,000 Cash
CCC - PARC: MRS – Security radios / PARC – Trading income 200,000 Cash
Total planned CCC BID contribution 2,565,000 Cash
Total planned funding PCC and CCC 46,237,500 Cash/in kind

Plymouth City Council will work in partnership with the Plymouth City Centre Company and Plymouth 
Waterfront Partnership to maximise commercial income from street trading activities. 

7.0 Why Continue with the City Centre BID?

The continuation of the BID will result in continuing delivery of significant improvements, providing a 
private sector-led approach to managing the City Centre area, attracting more visitors by supporting the 
work of Destination Plymouth and increasing customer spend.

8.0 How will the City Centre BID maximise its impact?

The BID Levy will be paid by every business and ring fenced for projects identified in the final BID 
Business Plan.

Page 46



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 9 of 16

OFFICIAL

The BID Levy is match funded by Plymouth City Council and other partners to generate further funds 
from additional sources. This City Centre BID aims to lever £6 of additional match funding for every £1 
of BID levy received from businesses within the BID area, to maximise the delivery of project and service 
improvements.

9.0 City Centre Service Baselines
The proposed BID projects and services will be entirely additional to any services already delivered by 
Plymouth City Council. PCCC will establish a contractual agreement with Plymouth City Council to 
regularly review Council services delivered within the BID area. Once the BID has been established, 
the Council will be contractually obliged to maintain agreed standards to confirm to baseline service 
level agreements for the following services:

 Safety 
 Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)
 Community safety and management

 Cleanliness
 Graffiti and fly posting removal 
 Gully cleansing
 Power washing, e.g. planters/litter bins
 Street cleansing (inc. bin emptying/washing)
 Waste collection (Trade and Domestic)

 Promotion
 Attractions 
 Events 
 Visitor information provision
 Marketing and promotion, including visitplymouth/citycentrebid and WestendPlymouth websites
 Social media and PR 
 Supporting the work of Destination Plymouth

 Planning 

 Other Services
 Administrative support
 Car parking
 ICT provision and office space
 Supporting major events

 Maintenance
 Grounds maintenance (inc. weed spraying)
 Highways maintenance and management
 Traffic signals and pedestrian crossings
 Trees and landscape development

9.0 City Centre BID Ballot

All non-domestic rate paying businesses within the proposed BID area will be eligible to vote on the 
final City Centre BID Business Plan (Proposal), apart from those excluded (see exemptions in Section 
10). A four week postal ballot will be held between 28 January and 27 February 2020.

Page 47



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 10 of 16

OFFICIAL

Each person entitled to vote in the City Centre BID ballot shall have one vote in respect of each 
hereditament in the geographical area of the BID on which non-domestic rates are payable.

The ballot will have to meet two tests. First, a simple majority (above 50%) of those voting must vote 
in favour. Second, those voting in favour must represent a majority of the aggregate rateable value of 
hereditaments voting. 

The ballot papers will be forwarded to those ratepayers who are eligible to vote on 28 January 2020 
and must be returned by 5pm on 27 February 2020.

10.0 The City Centre BID Levy, Liability and Collection

The City Centre BID Levy will be payable by all businesses located within the boundary of the defined 
City Centre BID area with the following exemptions:

 Those with a rateable value of £4,000 or less
 Commercial car parking spaces that are rated separately

The City Centre BID Levy will be set on the 1st April 2020, based on the rateable value shown in the 
2017 Local Non-Domestic Rating list, updated for any changes in ratepayer appeals, additions and 
removals from the list, and will last for the duration of the BID.
There will be no refunds given for retrospective years as a result of successful appeals but changes in 
values will be reflected by a corresponding change to the levy for the year in which notification is 
received and for subsequent years.
For new assessment, splits and mergers (of rateable values) brought into the list between 1st April 
2020 and 31st March 2025, the rateable value used will be that as shown in the Non-Domestic Rating 
2017 at the date the new or amended assessment is brought into that list. In addition any “Taken out 
of Rating” cases will be deleted from the effective date as advised by the Valuation Office Agency to the 
City Council’s Non-Domestic Rates section. 
The City Centre BID Levy will not be reduced where the ratepayer is a charity or non-profit making 
organisation. The BID levy will also not be affected by the Government’s Small Business Rate Relief 
Scheme which came into effect on 1st April 2005. The City Centre BID Levy is payable on the whole 
rating assessment irrespective if part or all of it is empty. In the case of empty properties, the City 
Centre BID levy will be collected at 100% from either the owner or leaseholder (if an occupational 
lease exists).

The BID levy will be collected by Plymouth City Council annually on 1st April. The Council will 
reimburse the PCCC with BID Levies on a quarterly basis. The average BID Levy collection rate for 
the last five years has been greater than 95%.

11.0 Governance and Management

The current PCCC Board of Directors will represent all business sectors currently operating in 
Plymouth. The Board will meet at least quarterly.

The new BID will be managed by Plymouth City Centre Company Ltd (PCCC). As an independent, 
not-for-profit company, the Plymouth City Centre Company will continue to be directly accountable to 
retailers for the management of the city centre and the successful delivery of the BID. The Plymouth 
City Centre Company is responsible for one wholly owned subsidiary company - Plymouth Against 
Retail Crime Limited.

Page 48



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 11 of 16

OFFICIAL

The new BID’s governance and management arrangements will support: 

 individual city centre businesses engaging directly with the Plymouth City Centre Company Board
 grouping city centre businesses together to enable collective discussions
 establishment of an appropriate forum for individual businesses and/or groups to present their 

views to the Board, and
 creation of a Board structure that allows direct representation of city centre businesses on the 

Board

It is anticipated that the Board will be constituted with up to fifteen directors drawn from a cross-
section of BID levy-paying businesses and stakeholders. One seat will be allocated to a Plymouth city 
councillor. 

Plymouth City Centre Company will continue to work closely with Destination Plymouth (DP), which 
holds strategic oversight for delivery of the city’s Visitor Plan, aiming to grow visitor spend by 30% 
from £347 million to £450 million, and increase the total visitor numbers by 15% from 5.1 to 6 million, 
by 2030.

Plymouth City Centre Company will continue to be consulted by DP on its priorities to drive the 
visitor economy and will support the BID to effectively market and promote the city centre. 
Destination Plymouth will support joint projects, events, marketing and PR where this is cost effective 
and in the city centre’s interests.

The Board structure is designed to give city centre businesses the opportunity to have a real say on 
project development, delivery and day to day issues. 

12.0 Alteration of BID Arrangements

The City Centre BID area and the BID Levy percentage cannot be altered within the five year lifetime 
without an Alteration Ballot.    

The City Centre BID projects, headings, costs and timescales can be altered by the Board, within the 
constraints of BID income - providing that the City Centre BID’s aims are adhered to.

13.0 Commencement and Duration of the BID

The City Centre BID’s fourth term will start on 1st April 2020 and will operate for five years. 

A postal ballot of business ratepayers in the City Centre BID area, based on the list of non-domestic 
ratepayers, will take place between 28 January and 27 February 2020. The result of the ballot will be 
announced by 28 February 2020. 

If the City Centre BID proposal is approved, it will operate for five years from 1st April 2020 until 31st 
March 2025. At or before the end of this period, the Board may choose to seek renewal of the City 
Centre BID’s mandate.

14.0 Projects Identified by City Centre Businesses 

The priorities identified in the BID business plan (2020-2025) have been drawn up following extensive 
consultation with businesses and stakeholders in the BID area. The BID is in constant dialogue with its 
BID levy payers through face to face meetings, monthly newsletters, networking events and its BID 
website and social media channels.

Page 49



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 12 of 16

OFFICIAL

Consultation on the new business plan began in February 2019 and included, two surveys of BID levy-
paying businesses, regular BID business meetings, visitor and business surveys at two of the BID’s major 
events Flavour Fest and the West End Carnival. The City Centre Company’s BID Business Plan and 
projects within this summary document are the result of the priorities identified by businesses:

 Permanent and Dedicated Management 

Establish a City Centre management structure accountable to businesses to prioritise and deliver benefits for all 
users. Taking control of the trading environment by co-ordinating and championing business and partner efforts 
to regenerate the area, whilst working in partnership with and holding the City Council to account for delivery of 
existing services. 

 Marketing & PR

The BID will leverage Plymouth marketing and promotion activities by developing three interrelated/ nested 
brands: Britain’s Ocean City, City Centre, and West End brands. In addition, PCCC are developing smart hyper-
local marketing activities for traders who are new to digital marketing. This will benefit the overall city centre 
and the unique character of our independent shops in the West End. 

PCCC will retain and target new markets, using the ‘Britain’s Ocean City’ brand and supported by exciting 
campaigns that drive peak trading, local and regional spend whilst supporting the positioning of Plymouth as a 
leading UK visitor, retail and leisure destination. The new BID will seek to maximise the opportunities created by 
new cultural and leisure attractions, including The Box and the Barcode and Mayflower400.  
PCCC will also promote the growing night-time economy.

 Major Events

PCCC will increase the city centre’s share of the regional tourism spend measured by day visitor numbers. PCCC 
drive footfall year round, particularly at Christmas, through the provision of new attractions and a city-wide 
approach to marketing. 

PCCC new West End events will reinforce the distinctive West End brand. PCCC signature events (e.g. Flavour 
Fest, Switch-On / Christmas in Plymouth/Plymouth Summer of Fun) will also be scaled up and better 
commercialised; whilst designed to drive and better distribute footfall. All will provide exciting animation, 
supported by community events and national campaigns, to distinguish the city centre from clone towns. 
CCC will also look to maximise the potential of Mayflower 400 events in 2020 and continually seek to improve 
the city centre experience by adding to the events programme.

 Cleaner City Centre

Ensure that the City Council’s cleansing standards are maintained and operationally manage existing Council 
cleansing staff to ensure a rapid response clean team. 

The new BID will also focus more on weed removal and work with community partners to provide colourful 
planting displays. 

The BID will continue with its successful free trade waste recycling scheme for BID levy payers. 

Page 50



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 13 of 16

OFFICIAL

 Safer City Centre

The new BID will build on PARC’s (Plymouth Against Retail Crime) outstanding success to date. PARC will be 
responsible for delivering all Safer projects. In addition, PARC will use new technologies to share intelligence with 
the Police, Safer Plymouth, Pubwatch, Best Bar None, and other groups to better coordinate and address issues 
in the day and evening economy. PARC will continue to be a full subsidiary company of the City Centre 
Company.
PCCC supported the city’s successful bid for Purple Flag accreditation, recognising that Plymouth has a safe and 
welcoming night-time economy.
PCCC will work closely with partners to develop and promote the city as an evening and night-time destination. 

 Inward Investment and Regeneration

The BID will help the City Council to establish an agreed vision for development of key city centre sites and seek 
funding for targeted improvements. A new approach is being taken with the establishment of a city centre 
regeneration group. The council will provide a dedicated resource to assist the BID to proactively address the 
changing nature of the High Street with a particular emphasis on trying to find new uses for empty retail units 
and add to the diversity of the city centre by attracting housing, office and leisure investment.
The BID will also work with Plymouth City Council and Destination Plymouth, encouraging strong retail brands, 
accommodation providers and new businesses to invest. 

 BID Member Benefits

Gain increased networking and advertising opportunities through free membership for BID Members of 
Destination Plymouth providing a listing on the Visit Plymouth, and City Centre Company websites; 

The BID has created a brand and new identity for the West End and set up a dedicated website and social 
media channels to promote the area. All West End businesses can upload news and information about their 
individual business to the website and use the social media channels for further marketing. 

Appendices 
*Add rows as required to box below

Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 
If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate 
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.  

Ref. Title of Appendix

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

A Briefing report title

B  Equalities Impact Assessment (if applicable)

Page 51



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 14 of 16

OFFICIAL

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

Place – Economic Development

STAGE 1: WHAT IS BEING ASSESSED AND BY WHOM?
What is being assessed - 
including a brief description of 
aims and objectives?

The proposal to continue the operation of the Plymouth City Centre 
Business Improvement District (BID) and support for the City Centre 
Company to deliver its plan covering Safer, Events, Cleaner and 
Marketing themes.

Author Paul Vann

Department and service Economic Development

Date of assessment September 2019

STAGE 2: EVIDENCE AND IMPACT
Protected 
characteristics
(Equality Act)

Evidence and 
information (eg 
data and 
feedback)

Any adverse 
impact
See guidance on how to 
make judgement

Actions Timescale and 
who is 
responsible

Age Customers of the 
City Centre 
Company and BID 
activities are 
reckoned to include 
a fully cross-sectional 
workforce and most 
of the population of 
the City and its retail 
catchment area and 
travel-to-work area.

 

No significant 
adverse impacts are 
considered to exist 
although it is 
recognised that 
some individual 
elements of the 
programme of 
activities in the City 
Centre are from 
time to time 
focussed on 
particular population 
groups (eg families 
with children).

None proposed. N/A

Disability Disability access 
issues are raised and 
addressed from time 
to time eg lifts in 
buildings being out of 
action.

Yes, as and when 
issues arise.

CCCo can, does 
and will continue 
to provide a 
useful route to 
addressing issues 
with relevant 
businesses in the 
City Centre.

Ongoing.

Faith/religion or 
belief

Such groups are 
expected to be 
proportionately 
represented amongst 
City Centre users.

Some activities 
supported by the 
CCCo can be seen 
to support some 
faith/religious groups 
more than others 
(eg Christmas 
events) and could be 
seen as adverse but 

No change in 
action proposed.

Ongoing.

Page 52

http://documentlibrary/documents/equality_toolkit.pdf


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 15 of 16

OFFICIAL

can bring people of 
different faiths 
together.

Gender - including 
marriage, 
pregnancy and 
maternity

Such groups are 
expected to be 
proportionately 
represented amongst 
City Centre users.

 

No adverse impacts. None proposed. N/A.

Gender 
reassignment

Such groups are 
expected to be 
proportionately 
represented amongst 
City Centre users.

No adverse impacts. None proposed. N/A.

Race Such groups are 
expected to be 
proportionately 
represented amongst 
City Centre users.

  

No adverse impacts. None proposed. N/A.

Sexual orientation 
-including civil 
partnership

Such groups are 
expected to be 
proportionately 
represented amongst 
City Centre users.

  

Relevant events, 
such as Gay Pride, 
are and will be 
supported by the 
CCCo.

No change in 
action proposed.

N/A

STAGE 3: ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS FOR THE FOLLOWING? IF SO, 
PLEASE RECORD ACTIONS TO BE TAKEN
Local priorities Implications Timescale and who is 

responsible
Reduce the gap in 
average hourly pay 
between men and 
women by 2020. 

None. N/A.

Increase the number of 
hate crime incidents 
reported and maintain 
good satisfaction rates in 
dealing with racist, 
disablist, homophobic, 
transphobic and faith, 
religion and belief 
incidents by 2020. 

Police advice is that reports of hate crimes are 
increasing in number which is, in part, owing to 
the easier channels of communication and multi-
agency working. In addition ‘political/societal’ 
developments have probably led to more 
occurrences with young people and migrant 
issues being factors (main times are 3.00 pm to 
4.00 pm, associated with school finishing, and 
midnight to 1.00 am). 

Maintaining the 
multiagency working on 
this issue and the work of 
the City Centre 
Company’s PARC in 
conjunction with Police 
action are seen as key.

Good relations between 
different communities 
(community cohesion)

It is expected that the wide ranging events 
supported by CCCo will on the whole support 
(have supported) good relations between 
Plymouth’s communities.

Ongoing support of wide-
ranging events.

Page 53



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 16 of 16

OFFICIAL

See above for Police intelligence on this issue

Human rights
Please refer to guidance

None N/A

STAGE 4: PUBLICATION

Responsible Officer Date

Strategic Director, Service Director or Head of Service

Background papers: 
*Add rows as required to box below

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works, 
relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
work is based.

Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it 
is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.  

Title of any background paper(s)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Plymouth City Centre Business Improvement 
District (2020-25) 

  
Sign off:

Fin pl.19.2
0.112

Leg MS/16
.09.19

Mon 
Off

Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text.

HR Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text.

Assets Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text.

Strat 
Proc

Click here 
to enter 
text.

Originating Senior Leadership Team member:  David Draffan, Service Director for Place

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report?  Yes – Anthony Payne

Date agreed: 12/09/2019

Cabinet Member approval:  Councillor Mark Lowry approved via email dated 06/09/19

Date approved: 06/09/2019

Page 54

http://documentlibrary/documents/guide_to_completing_equality_impact_assessments.pdf


Page 1 of 4

OFFICIAL 

Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative 
Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of meeting: 25 September 2019

Title of Report: Annual Housing Statement
Lead Member: Councillor Mark Coker (Cabinet Member Srategic Planning and 

Infrastructure)

Lead Strategic Director: Anthony Payne (Strategic Director for Place)

Author: Grant Jackson (Planning Officer)

Contact Email: Grant.Jackson@plymouth.gov.uk

Your Reference: N/A

Key Decision: No

Confidentiality: Part I - Official

Purpose of Report
Each Local Planning Authority in England is required by the National Planning Policy Framework to 
produce an Annual Housing Statement setting out key facts around the delivery of housing in their 
area.  The information in the Annual Housing Statement covers a range of indicators, such as the 
number of new dwellings completed, with planning permission but not started, and under construction 
at the 1st April each year.  The most important element of the Annual Housing Statement relates to 
whether the local planning authority can demonstrate a 5 year land supply of sites for housing 
development.

In July 2019, the Joint Local Plan Partnership Board approved the publication of the first JLP Housing 
Position Statement to be produced following the adoption of the Plymouth and South West Devon 
Joint Local Plan (in March 2019).  This Housing Position Statement used the results of the 2019 Annual 
Housing Survey to set out a full set of information on housing delivery across the plan area, including 
the up to date 5 year land supply.  It should be noted that following the adoption of the JLP, monitoring 
of housing delivery, and particularly the calculation of the 5 year land supply, is undertaken for the 
whole plan area – i.e. Plymouth City Council, and those parts of South Hams District Council and 
West Devon Borough Council which fall outside of the Dartmoor National Park Authority area.  The 
Housing Position Statement therefore sets out information on housing delivery at the whole plan level, 
information on delivery in each of the Policy Areas set out in the JLP (the Plymouth Policy Area and the 
Thriving Towns and Villages Policy Area), and at individual local planning authority level – following the 
approach to monitoring set out in Policy SPT3 and Annex 2 of the JLP.

The Housing Position Statement is attached to this report, and Committee is asked to note the 
following key headlines from the document:

 Across the plan area, a total of 1,388 dwellings (net) were delivered between April 2018 and 
April 2019.  Of these, 850 were delivered in Plymouth.  This level of completions shows that 
the JLP is on track to deliver its housing target.

Page 55 Agenda Item 10



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 2 of 4

OFFICIAL 

 Across the plan area there were 2,204 dwellings under construction at April 2019, and 13,250 
dwellings with planning consent – demonstrating the strength of the supply of land for new 
homes across Plymouth and South West Devon.  

 There was also a high level of new dwelling starts during the monitoring year of April 2018 to 
April 2019.  Across the plan area construction had commenced on 1,845 homes (932 of which 
were in Plymouth) Taken with the high level of dwellings under construction, this leads to a 
forecast of 1,925 dwellings (net) being completed in the next monitoring year (2019 – 2020), 
1,156 (net) are forecast to occur in Plymouth.

 Taken together, this performance leads to a very robust 5 year land supply position.  A total of 
8,797 dwellings are identified across the plan area in the 5 year land supply (4,117 of which are 
located in Plymouth), which equates to 6.4 years of supply when compared to the target set out 
in the JLP.

 1,663 affordable dwellings (net)were delivered in the first 5 years of the plan period at an 
average of 333 dwellings per year (1,036 of which are located in Plymouth) .  This delivery is 
slightly ahead of the targets set out in the JLP.  

Recommendations and Reasons
It is recommended that the contents of this report, and the attached Housing Land Supply Position 
Statement 2019 is noted.

Alternative options considered and rejected
All Local Planning Authorities are required to produce an Annual Housing Statement setting out the 
detailed information contained in the report.

The National Planning Practice Guidance provides the option of ratifying a 5 year land supply (5YLS) 
position through inspection by the Inspectorate every year and therefore fixing the position for 12 
months.  The process is costly and resource intensive and is perhaps more appropriate for authorities 
who are seeking to move from non-demonstration to demonstration of a 5YLS or authorities whose 
5YLS is marginal.  As we can demonstrate a robust and substantial 6.4 YLS position it is not considered 
that the JLP Councils need to apply to the Inspectorate at this time to confirm the 5YLS position, 
particularly given the cost and resource implications of doing so.  

The option of choosing to have the 5YLS examined by the Inspectorate remains open each year, and so 
if officers feel there is merit in using this process in future years as a result of the monitoring of housing 
delivery, the option to do so would be available to the JLP Councils, and the Partnership Board would 
be asked to decide on a course of action.

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan
The Annual Housing Surveys and the Housing Position Statement show that housing delivery, both 
across the JLP plan area and in Plymouth is on track to deliver the targets set out in the Plymouth and 
South West Devon Joint Local Plan and the Plymouth Plan.

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:    
No implications

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications: 

Page 56



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 3 of 4

OFFICIAL 

The JLP sets out a spatial strategy for development across Plymouth and South West Devon, which 
represents a sustainable distribution of homes, employment premises, infrastructure and facilities and 
which ensures that sensitive environments are protected.  It also sets out policies to require 
development uses low carbon building practices and encourages small scale renewable energy 
generation.  This report shows that housing development is coming forward as envisioned by the JLP, 
and by showing the JLP Councils can demonstrate a robust 5 year land supply of land for housing also 
ensures that the spatial strategy and policies set out in the plan can continue to be delivered without 
challenge.  This report therefore enables the Councils to continue to deliver sustainable development 
which provides the opportunities for people to reduce their carbon footprint.

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:
* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote 
equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected 
characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not.
No implications

Appendices 
*Add rows as required to box below

Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 
If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate 
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.  

Ref. Title of Appendix

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

A Plymouth, South Hams & West Devon Local 
Planning Authorities’ 2019, 5 Year Housing 
Land Supply Position Statement July 2019

Background papers: 
*Add rows as required to box below

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works, 
relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
work is based.

Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it 
is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.  

Title of any background paper(s)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

  
Sign off:

Fin pl.19.
20.1
05.

Leg 3329
8/AC
/11/9
/19

Mon 
Off

N/a HR N/a Asset
s 

N/a Strat 
Proc

N/a

Page 57



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Page 4 of 4

OFFICIAL 

Originating Senior Leadership Team member:  Paul Barnard

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report?  Yes - Anthony Payne 

Date agreed: 11/09/2019

Cabinet Member approval:

 
Date approved: 16/09/2019

Page 58



  

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Plymouth, South Hams & 
West Devon Local Planning 
Authorities’ 2019, 5 Year 

Housing Land Supply 
Position Statement 

 
 
 

July 2019

Page 59



1 
 

Contents 
1. Introduction ............................................................................................................................................... 2 

2. What is the 5 year land supply? ............................................................................................................ 2 

3. What is the Housing Delivery Test? .................................................................................................... 3 

4. National Policy & Guidance - Demonstrating a 5 Year Supply ...................................................... 9 

5. JLP whole plan delivery 2014-2019 & 5 Year Housing Land Supply Position (2019 
monitoring point) ........................................................................................................................................... 11 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1. MHCLG letter confirming recalculated 2018 HDT measurement for the 3 JLP 

authorities  
Appendix 2. Plymouth LPA supply over the next 5 years (2019-2024)  
Appendix 3  South Hams LPA supply over the next 5 years (2019-2024) 
Appendix 4. West Devon LPA supply over the next 5 years (2019-2024) 
Appendix 5.  Sites removed from 5 Year Land Supply (lapsed and undeliverable consents & 

sites considered developable not deliverable 2019-2024) 
Appendix 6.  Amendments to past net additional dwelling delivery due to NPPF/NPPG 

changes regarding counting student and communal accommodation  
Appendix 7. List of Small sites in 5 year land supply 
Appendix 8. Small Sites Windfall Allowance – historic evidence 
Appendix 9. List of sites with consent for Communal Accommodation & list of losses forecast 

in the 5 YLS 
Appendix 10 Progress towards JLP Policy Area and LPA monitoring targets at 2019 

monitoring point 
 
  

Page 60



2 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This position statement presents the five year housing land supply position for the Joint 

Local Plan (JLP) Authorities1 as of 31st March 2019 for the five year period from 1st April 
2019 to 31st March 2024.  It sets out an updated methodology and five year land supply 
calculation based on the relevant changes in the: revised National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) published 19th February 20192, updates to the National Planning 
Practice Guidance (NPPG) published 13th September 2018 and subsequently amended on 
22nd July 2019, and the publication of the 2018 Housing Delivery Test results.  

 
1.2 The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (JLP) was adopted by South Hams 

District Council on 21st March 2019, Plymouth City Council on 26th March 2019 and 
West Devon Borough Council on 26th March 2019. As a result of adoption of the JLP in 
March 2019 the council’s 2018 Housing Delivery Test result has been revised and then 
2019 5 Year Land Supply (YLS) is position is now set against the Housing Requirement in 
the JLP.  This report therefore sets out the new position in light of the adoption of the 
JLP.  

 

2. What is the 5 year land supply? 
 
2.1 The NPPF was revised and published in February 20193.  Paragraphs 67 and 73 of the 

NPPF require local planning authorities to identify a 5 year supply of deliverable sites.  
Paragraph 73 specifically states: 

 
“Local planning authorities should identify and update annually a supply of specific deliverable 
sites sufficient to provide a minimum of five years’ worth of housing against their housing 
requirements set out in the adopted strategic policies, or against their local housing need where 
strategic policies are more than five years old.  The supply of specific deliverable sites should in 
addition include a buffer (moved forward from later in the plan period) of: 
a) 5% to ensure choice and competition in the market for land; or 
b) 10% where the local planning authority wishes to demonstrate a five year land supply of 

deliverable sites through the annual position statement or recently adopted plan, to account 
for any fluctuations in the market during that year; or 

c) 20% where there has been significant under delivery of housing over the previous three years, 
to improve the prospect of achieving the planned housing supply.”  

 
  

                                            
1 Plymouth City Council, South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough Council 
2 The NPPF was further amended on 19th June 2019 to remove paragraph 209a which has no bearing on the policy 
and guidance associated with this Housing Position Statement, the 5 Year land Supply and Housing Delivery Test 
3 See footnote 2 

Page 61



3 
 

What is the starting point for the JLP authorities to demonstrate a 5 Year 
Land Supply? 

 
2.2 The revised NPPF and NPPG4 make clear that the starting point for calculating the 5YLS 

is the Housing Requirement figures identified in strategic policies provided they are less 
than 5 years old or more than 5 years old, but have been reviewed and are found not to 
need updating.  In other circumstances the starting point for calculating the 5 YLS will be 
the Government’s new standard method for ‘Local Housing Need’ (LHN).   

 
2.3 As the JLP has recently been adopted (March 2019) the Housing Requirement within the 

JLP is the starting point for calculating the 5 YLS figure and therefore the 5 year land 
supply is no longer set against the Government’s new standard method for ‘Local Housing 
Need’ (LHN).   

 

3. What is the Housing Delivery Test? 
 
3.1 The government have introduced the Housing Delivery Test (HDT) to determine Local 

authorities’ performance against its new standard method for LHN or adopted plan 
housing requirement (whichever is the lower).  The HDT measures5 in percentage terms 
the net additional dwellings provided in a local authority area over the past three years 
against the lower of the Adopted Housing Requirement or the authority’s LHN over the 
past three years.   

 
3.2 The Secretary of State published the 2018 HDT results for each local authority in England 

in February 20196 and the NPPF indicates that the Secretary of State will publish the 
results every November. As the publication of the HDT results preceded adoption of the 
JLP, the results published related to each Local Planning Authority individually.  

 
 
3.3 The HDT has the following policy consequences 

1. If delivery falls below 95% then an Action Plan must be published. 
2. If delivery falls below 85% then a 20% buffer should be added to the five year 

supply7 
3. If delivery falls below 75% then there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 

development8 
 

                                            
4 NPPG paragraph 030 Reference ID:3-030-20180913 
5 The method for calculating the HDT measurement is set out in the HDT measurement rule book 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/housing-delivery-test-measurement-rule-book 
Further details of the HDT and its implications are contained within the NPPG 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/housing-and-economic-land-availability-assessment 
6 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/housing-delivery-test-2018-measurement 
7 The buffer to be applied to the 5 year supply is now set by the result of the HDT 
8 NPPF paragraph 11d and footnote 7 

Page 62

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/housing-delivery-test-measurement-rule-book
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/housing-and-economic-land-availability-assessment


4 
 

3.4 There are however transitional arrangements in place in relation to the application of the 
presumption in favour9 and this is set out in Annex 1 of the NPPF.  For 2018 the 
presumption in favour would apply the day after the publication of the HDT10 if delivery 
falls below 25% and for 201911 it would apply if delivery falls below 45%. 

 
 
HDT Calculation - Total net homes delivered over the last three years 

 
3.5 The HDT measurement rulebook explains that the number of net homes delivered to be 

used in the HDT (which is measuring delivery against plan requirement and LHN) is the 
National Statistic for net additional dwellings12 with adjustments for net student 
accommodation and net other communal accommodation.13  

 
 

How to count student cluster flats and communal accommodation? 
 
3.6 As a result of the guidance contained in the HDT measurement rulebook it is now the 

case that student cluster flats are to be counted as single dwellings14 against plan 
requirement and LHN figures.  Furthermore the Government has also introduced ratios 
to be applied to student communal and other communal accommodation15 which are also 
to be counted against plan requirement and LHN. 

 
3.7 As the HDT applies to the past three years the Government has required Local 

Authorities to make adjustments to the net supply statistics retrospectively to account 
for the changes introduced in the guidance.  The three JLP authorities have therefore 
adjusted their past delivery figures and future supply figures to ensure it complies with the 
requirements of the HDT and is consistent with the NPPF/NPPG. The amendments and 
implications for each authority individually and collectively are set out below in the HDT 
result and 5 year supply position statement for the JLP authorities. 

 
 
HDT Calculation - Total number of homes required over the last three years  
 
Housing requirements more than five years old 

 
3.8 The HDT measurement rulebook indicates in paragraph 14, that where the latest adopted 

housing requirement figure is over five years old the figure used will be, for areas with a 

                                            
9 NPPF paragraph 11d and footnote 7 
10 19th February 2019  
11 HDT to be published in November 2019 
12 https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/net-supply-of-housing published by MHCLG annually in November  
13 As defined in the Housing Flow Reconciliation (HFR) guidance notes at https://www.gov.uk/guidance/dwelling-
stock-data-notes-and-definitions-includes-hfr-full-guidance-notes-and-returns-form 
14 Provided they meet the government definition of a dwelling 
15 Not previously accounted for in the JLP authority statistics due to the provisions of the old NPPG which is 
superseded by the new guidance. 

Page 63

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/net-supply-of-housing
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/dwelling-stock-data-notes-and-definitions-includes-hfr-full-guidance-notes-and-returns-form
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/dwelling-stock-data-notes-and-definitions-includes-hfr-full-guidance-notes-and-returns-form


5 
 

local plan or a joint local plan, the minimum annual local housing need figure.16 Paragraph 
21 of the rulebook then explains that there are transitional arrangements in place in 
relation to the minimum annual local housing need figure.  It states “in identifying the 
correct housing requirement figure for the calculation, for the financial years 2015-16, 2016-17 
and 2017-18, the minimum annual local housing need figure is replaced by household projections 
in all aspects of the Housing Delivery Test measurement stated in this Rule Book17” 

 
3.9 Paragraph 22 of the rule book then identifies the relevant household projections and 

annual average year array to use for the years 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18.18 
 

Housing requirements less than five years old 
 
3.10 Paragraph 12 of the HDT measurement rulebook indicates that where the latest adopted 

housing requirement figure is less than five years old, or has been reviewed and does not 
need updating, the figure used will be the lower of either the latest adopted housing 
requirement or the minimum annual local housing need figure.  With regard to Adopted 
Joint Plans paragraph 12 makes clear that where the housing requirement is set out in an 
adopted joint plan; the joint plan should be clear whether areas will be measured jointly 
or separately for the purposes of the HDT. 

 
 
What happens now that the JLP is adopted?  

 
3.11 Paragraphs 16 to 18 of the HDT measurement rulebook explains that any new housing 

requirement will be used for the calculation of the HDT from the date that it becomes 
part of the development plan and that for calculating the HDT, the new adopted housing 
requirement will apply from the start of the relevant plan period.  Following adoption of 
new strategic policies, the new housing requirement figure can be used to recalculate the 
HDT results during the year in collaboration with MHCLG. 

 
How will areas with joint local plans be monitored for the purposes of the 
Housing Delivery Test? 

 
3.12 The NPPG states “Areas which have or are involved in the production of joint plans will have 

the option to monitor their Housing Delivery Test over the whole of the planning area or on a 
single authority basis. This will be established through the plan making process and the approach 

                                            
16 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728523/HDT_Mea
surement_Rule_Book.pdf 
17 Footnote 18 to paragraph 21 states that “Household projections will be used in the Housing Delivery Test 
calculation for financial years up to and including financial year 2017-18, as the standard methodology for the 
minimum annual local housing need figure did not apply prior to this date.  After this date the minimum annual 
local housing need figure will be used” 
18 For 2015/16 – the annual average taken of years 2015-2025 from the 2012-based household projections.  For 
2016/17 – the annual average taken of years 2016-2026 from the 2012-based household projections.  For 2017/18 
– the annual average taken of years 2017-2027 from the 2014-based household projections. 

Page 64

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728523/HDT_Measurement_Rule_Book.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728523/HDT_Measurement_Rule_Book.pdf


6 
 

will need to be set out in the plan.  For joint plans less than 5 years old in November 2018, the 
authority will need to notify MHCLG of their preference” 

 
 
What does this mean for the JLP Authorities regarding the recalculated 2018 
Housing Delivery Test & 2019 5 Year Land Supply position? (Post Adoption of 
the JLP) 

 
  

3.13 The adopted JLP sets out Housing Requirements and 5 year land supply position at policy 
areas (Plymouth Policy Area and Thriving Towns and Villages). Under the provisions of 
the revised NPPF/NPPG and HDT measurement rulebook, Housing Requirement, the 
HDT and the 5 year land supply can only be set out at the whole plan level or single 
authority level.  On this basis the JLP’s housing requirement and 5 year supply at the 
Policy Area level is inconsistent with the new NPPF & NPPG.  The JLP authorities post 
adoption of the JLP have notified the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government of the newly adopted JLP containing a new Housing Requirement and that 
the JLP Authorities have chosen the whole plan option for the purposes of the application 
of the HDT and 5YLS.  In accordance with Paragraph 18 of the Housing Delivery Test 
Rule Book the JLP authorities therefore requested a recalculation of the HDT 
measurement for 2018.  The Government have therefore recalculated the HDT 
measurement for 2018 (see appendix 1) which confirms that under the provisions of 
transitional arrangements the HDT and 5 year land supply is applied at the whole plan 
level and this supersedes the position set out in Policy SPT3 of the JLP, without the need 
to review the policy in the adopted plan until the plan is reviewed 5 years from adoption.  
This is consistent with NPPG paragraph 06319   

 
 
 The Recalculated Housing Delivery Test measurement for 2018 
 
3.14 As explained above the HDT is a percentage measurement of the number of net homes 

delivered (the numerator) divided by the number of homes required (the denominator) 
over the last 3 years (2015-2018).  The number of homes required20 is the lower of the 
latest adopted housing requirement or the minimum local housing need (LHN) figure21.  
Table 1 below shows that for the HDT measurement the minimum LHN figure22 is to be 
used as it is lower than the JLP whole plan housing requirement annualised.  

 
 
 

                                            
19 Reference ID:3-063-20180913. 
20 MHCLG, Housing Delivery Test Measurement Rulebook - paragraph 12, July 2018  
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728523/HDT_Mea
surement_Rule_Book.pdf  
21 See paragraph 3.8 and 3.9 above which explains that under transitional arrangements LHN is replaced by 
household projections   
22 See footnote 21 

Page 65

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728523/HDT_Measurement_Rule_Book.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728523/HDT_Measurement_Rule_Book.pdf


7 
 

Table 1: HDT Measurement – Number of Homes Required (the Denominator) 
 
 

 Number of Homes Required23 Total 
number of 

Homes 
Required 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2015-2018 
Plymouth CC 
(relevant annual 
average HH 
projections) 

476 475 562 1,514 

South Hams DC 
(relevant annual 
average HH 
projections) 

210 213 240 663 

West Devon BC 
(relevant annual 
average HH 
projections) 

293 290 235 818 

Whole Plan 
Area 
(combined 
annual HH 
projections) 

978 979 1,037 2,99424 

JLP Whole Plan 
Requirement 
(Annualised) 

1,335 1,335 1,335 4,005 

 
3.15 The number of homes delivered (the numerator) over the period 2015-2018 is shown 

below in table 2.  As the HDT measurement therefore uses as its denominator in the 
equation the minimum LHN25 which includes Dartmoor National Park the HDT 
methodology therefore has to include the number of homes delivered in the Dartmoor 
National Park to ensure the test is a fair test.  It is important to note that the JLP housing 
requirement relates only to the area covered by the JLP and does not include Dartmoor 
National Park.  If the JLP housing requirement was lower than the minimum LHN26 and 
became the denominator in the equation then the delivery in Dartmoor National Park 
would be excluded from the total number of dwellings delivered (the numerator).  
 
   

  

                                            
23 All numbers in the table are rounded to the nearest whole number. 
24 See appendix 1 – MHCLG letter identifying recalculated HDT measurement as a result of adoption of the JLP 
25 See footnote 21 
26 See footnote 21 

Page 66



8 
 

Table 2:  Number of Homes Delivered (the numerator) 
 
 Number of Homes Delivered27 Total 

number of 
Homes 

Required 
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2015-2018 

Plymouth CC  1,130 489 1,439 3,05828 
South Hams DC 
(inc DNP) 

42829 32630 55131 1,305 

West Devon BC  15432 29033 17634 818 
Whole Plan 
Area  

1,712 1,011 2,166 4,889 

 
3.16 The recalculated 2018 HDT measurement as a result of the adoption of the JLP and 

applied to the whole plan area is shown in table 3 below (see also appendix 1). 
 
  

Table 3: Recalculated 2018 HDT measurement  
 

Number of homes 
required 

Total 
number 
of 
homes 
required 

Number of homes 
delivered 

Total 
number of 
homes 
delivered 

HDT 2018 
measurement 

HDT 2018 
consequence 

2015-
16 

2016-
17 

2017-
18 

 2015-
16 

2016-
17 

2017-
18 

   

978 979 1,037 2,994 1,712 1,011 2,166 4,889 163% None 
 
                                            
27 As published in the Government’s net additional Supply data series https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-
data-sets/live-tables-on-net-supply-of-housing 
28 The actual figures for each year were as follows: 2015/16 = 1,129, 2016/17 = 557, 2017/18= 1,372. The 
provisions of the HDT measurement rulebook required adjustments to how students and communal 
accommodation should be counted. As Government policy does not allow retrospective changes to the National 
Supply Series, Government included the adjustments all in year 2017/18. The overall total for the three years is the 
same.  This is discussed further in the 5 year supply section (Section 5 and appendix 6) 
29 This figure did not include DNP delivery as DNP delivery was not reported in 2015/16.  There was an additional 
dwelling delivered in DNP which would bring the total 429 dwellings however Government policy does not allow 
retrospective changes to the data except for communal accommodation. 
30 This figure did not include DNP delivery as DNP delivery was not reported in 2016/17.  There was an additional 
7 dwellings delivered in DNP which would bring the total to 333 dwellings however Government policy does not 
allow retrospective changes to the data except for communal accommodation. 
31 This figure does include 40 dwellings delivered in DNP 
32 This figure did not include DNP delivery as DNP delivery was not reported in 2015/16.  There was an additional 
6 dwellings delivered in DNP which would bring the total to 160 dwellings however Government policy does not 
allow retrospective changes to the data except for communal accommodation. 
33 This figure did not include DNP delivery as DNP delivery was not reported in 2016/17.  There was an additional 
19 dwellings delivered in DNP which would bring the total to 215 dwellings however Government policy does not 
allow retrospective changes to the data except for communal accommodation. 
34 This figure does include 16 dwellings delivered in DNP 

Page 67

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-net-supply-of-housing
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-net-supply-of-housing


9 
 

 Which buffer should therefore be applied to the 5YLS? 
 
3.17 The recalculated 2018 HDT result for the 3 JLP authorities is above 95% therefore there 

are no policy consequences and a 5% buffer only is required for the purposes of the JLP 
whole plan area 5YLS. 

 

4. National Policy & Guidance - Demonstrating a 5 Year Supply 
 
 

What constitutes a ‘deliverable site’ in the context of housing policy? 
 
4.1 The revised NPPF (February 2019)35 has revised the definition of ‘deliverable’ which 

applies to sites that can be identified in the 5 year land supply.  This is defined in the 
glossary of the NPPF as follows:  

 
“Deliverable: “To be considered deliverable, sites for housing should be available now, offer a 
suitable location for development now, and be achievable with a realistic prospect that housing 
will be delivered on the site within five years. In particular: 

a) sites which do not involve major development and have planning permission, and all sites 
with detailed planning permission, should be considered deliverable until permission expires, 
unless there is clear evidence that homes will not be delivered within five years (for example 
because they are no longer viable, there is no longer a demand for the type of units or sites 
have long term phasing plans). 

b) where a site has outline planning permission for major development, has been allocated in 
a development plan, has a grant of permission in principle, or is identified on a brownfield 
register, it should only be considered deliverable where there is clear evidence that housing 
completions will begin on site within five years. 

 
 
4.2 The three JLP authorities interpret this definition to mean that small sites (below 10 

dwellings with either outline of full permission, and major sites (10 dwellings or more) 
with detailed permission are considered to be deliverable unless there is clear evidence to 
demonstrate that they are not.  Large sites of 10 or more dwellings with outline 
permission or are allocated in a development plan should only be considered deliverable 
where there is clear evidence that housing completions will begin on site within five years. 

 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 

 
4.3 The NPPG36 provides additional guidance on what is meant be ‘clear evidence’ in relation 

to assessing whether sites with outline permission (major development - 10 dwellings and 
                                            
35 The NPPF was further amended on 19th June 2019 to remove paragraph 209a which has no bearing on the policy 
and guidance associated with this Housing Position Statement, the 5 Year land Supply and Housing Delivery Test. 
36 NPPG paragraph:036 Reference ID:3-036-20180913 

Page 68



10 
 

above) permission in principle, allocated in a development plan or identified on a 
brownfield register can be considered deliverable within the 5 year land supply.  It states  

 
“this evidence may include: 

• any progress being made towards the submission of an application; 
• any progress with the site assessment work; and 
• any relevant information about site viability, ownership constraints or infrastructure 

provision. 
 

For example: 
• a statement of common ground between the local planning authority and the site 

developer(s) which confirms the developers’ delivery intentions and anticipated start and 
build out rates. 

• a hybrid planning permission for large sites which links to a planning performance 
agreement that sets out the timescale for conclusion of reserved matters applications 
and discharge of conditions.” 

 
4.4 The NPPG37 also states that annual position statements will be expected to include 

commentary on whether delivery has either exceeded or not progressed as expected and 
an indication of the reasons for acceleration or delays to the commencement on sites or 
effects on build out rates. The NPPG38 also states that LPA’s need to engage with 
stakeholders who have an impact on the delivery of sites to provide a robust challenge 
and to seek as much agreement as possible on the potential delivery on sites which 
contribute to the 5 year land supply. 

 
4.5 The JLP authorities, 2019 5 year land supply assessment has been produced on the basis 

of the requirements of the revised NPPF ‘deliverability’ definition and the guidance set out 
in the NPPG.  The JLP authorities have liaised with developers/promoters of sites 
contained within the JLP Housing supply during May and June 2019 to establish: 

• agreements on delivery profiles and delivery rates for sites  
• progress towards submission of applications where applicable. 
• whether there is ‘clear evidence’ of non-delivery or delivery of 

consents/allocations within the 5YLS, in line with the requirements of the 
‘deliverability’ definition 

• reasons for a site’s acceleration or slow down if applicable, and  
• whether there is a developer on board 
 

4.6 The 5YLS position for the whole plan area is set out below combining the summary tables 
for each authority’s supply identified to deliver over the next 5 years (2019-2034) and 
provides details of the housing delivery within the JLP plan period to date.  The detailed 
components of the whole plan 5YLS broken down by the supply in each LPA area is set 
out in appendices 2, 3 and 439.  These appendices indicate: 

                                            
37 NPPG Paragraph: 048 Reference ID: 3-048-20180913 
38 NPPG Paragraph: 051 Reference ID: 3-051-20180913 
39 Appendix 2 – Plymouth LPA, Appendix 3 – South Hams LPA, Appendix 4 West Devon LPA 

Page 69



11 
 

• the site’s planning status, including how many dwellings have commenced 
construction if applicable. 

• whether there is an agreement in relation to the delivery profile with the 
developer/promoter. 

• the assumptions that the LPA’s have made with regard to lead in times and 
delivery rates where applicable.  

• whether there is ‘clear evidence’ to support its inclusion in the 5YLS where 
applicable and whether there is ‘no clear evidence’ to justify a site’s exclusion 
from the 5YLS where applicable.   

 
4.7 Some sites40 previously identified in the 2018 year supply have been moved out of the 5 

year supply due to their progress or status changing since 2018 and the latest evidence on 
their delivery.  The sites that have been removed from this year’s 5YLS and the reasons 
for their removal are identified in appendix 5.    Whilst delivery on some of these sites 
may well occur in the 5 year supply, the evidence at this stage and their current planning 
status suggests delivery in the 5 year supply cannot be completely relied upon and 
therefore a cautious approach is taken.  Should progress occur on these sites during the 
next 12 months then they could be brought forward into the 5 year supply if there is 
clear evidence to justify delivery can be realistically assumed.   

 

5. JLP whole plan delivery 2014-2019 & 5 Year Housing Land Supply 
Position (2019 monitoring point) 

 
 
Net additions to the dwelling stock in 2018/19 
 

5.1 Table 4 below shows the Housing Survey results for 2018/19 by whole plan, policy and 
LPA area.    

 
Table 4:  Net additions to the dwelling Stock in 2018/19 
 
Geographical Area Net additional dwellings – 

2018/19 
 Plymouth LPA 850 

 South Hams LPA 465 
 West Devon LPA 73 

JLP Whole Plan Area Total 1,388 
 Policy Area- Plymouth 883 

 Policy Area – Thriving Towns & Viilages 505 
 

                                            
40 Appendix 5 identifies the list of sites previously identified in the 2018-23 5 YLS that have subsequently moved 
out of the 5 year supply on the basis of the 2019 position update.  These appendices also list sites with consent 
that have been considered to be undeliverable and sites where the consent has lapsed since April 2018. 

Page 70



12 
 

Total net completions from the plan base date by year 
 
5.2 Table 5 below shows the total net completions from the adopted JLP plan base date 

(2014) by year.    
 

Table 5: Total net additions to the dwellings stock from the adopted JLP base date (2014) 
 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Total 
(net 
additions 
2014-
2019) 

Plymouth LPA 700 1,129 557 1,372 850 4,608 

South Hams LPA41 177 428 326 511 465 1,907 
West Devon LPA42 116 154 196 160 73 706 

JLP whole plan area 
total 
(taking account of 
revised NPPF/NPPG 
changes regarding 
how student and 
communal 
accommodation 
should be counted for 
the HDT &5YLS43 

993 1,711 1,079 2,043 1,388 7,214 

Policy Area - 
Plymouth  

700 1129 557 1,398 883 4,667 

Policy Area – Thriving 
Towns & Villages 

293 582 522 645 512 2,547 

 
 
5.3 The JLP Housing Requirement is to deliver 26,700 net additional dwellings over the plan 

period 2014-34, which is annualised to 1,335 dwellings per annum (dpa).  At the 2019 
monitoring point 7,214 dwellings have been delivered in the first 5 years of the plan 
period across the JLP whole plan area.  This represents a surplus of 539 dwellings above 
the housing requirement annualised at this point of 6,675 dwellings (1,335 x 5 years). 

 

                                            
41 Excluding delivery in DNP 
42 Excluding delivery in DNP 
43 Appendix 6 identifies the differences in the net additional supply as a result of the NPPF/NPPG changes regarding 
how to count student and communal accommodation when compared to the position set in the JLP at 
examination, which was being examined under transitional arrangements and against the NPPF 2012 and NPPG 
prior to July 2018.  

Page 71



13 
 

Chart 1: JLP – Net additions to the dwelling stock in the whole plan area (2014-2019) 

  
 

5.4 Table 6 below provides a breakdown by development type of the 7,214 net additions 
since the base date of the development plan. 

 
Table 6 – Net additions to the dwellings stock in the whole plan area, by development 
type (2014-2019) 
 

 
 

Net additional affordable housing from development 2014-2019 
 
5.5 Policy SPT 3 refers to a target of 6,600 net additional affordable dwellings from 

development over the plan period 2014-34 annualised to 330 dpa.  Net affordable housing 
delivery from development over the first 5 years of the plan period (2014-2019) = 1,663 
dwellings at an average of 333dpa and a surplus position of 13 dwellings at the 2019 
monitoring point.    

Breakdown of Delivery 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019
Total 

2014-2019
Small and Large Sites (net) 928 1,602 1,060 1,616 1,406 6,612

Student 65 67 58 387 15 592

Communal Accommodation (net) 0 2 -39 -22 -33 -92

Extra Care 0 40 0 60 0 100

Mobile and Temporary 0 0 0 2 0 2

Total Net 993 1,711 1,079 2,043 1,388 7,214

Total Net Affordable Dwellings 128 468 212 449 406 1,663

993

1711

1079

2043

1388

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Dw
el

lin
gs

 P
er

 A
nn

um
 (n

et
)

Year

JLP - Net additions to the dwellings stock in the whole plan area (2014-2019)

JLP Housing Requirement 1,335 dpa (net)

At April 2019, 539 dwellings above
cumulative target (Requirement 
Annualised).  

Page 72



14 
 

 
 
What is the 5 Year supply for the JLP whole plan area for the period 2019-
2024? 
 

5.6 The supply identified in the next 5 years (2019-2024) for each of the JLP authorities is set 
out in detail by source type in appendices 2, 3 and 4.  Table 7 below brings together the 
total supply identified from each LPA and identifies a total net supply of 8,797 dwellings 
for the 2019-2024 period.  
 
Table 7: 5YLS – Total net supply across the whole plan area 2019-2024 
 
 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total Supply 

(net) 2019-2024 
Plymouth LPA 1,156 696 950 893 422 4,117 
South Hams LPA 558 770 630 836 659 3,453 
West Devon 
LPA 

211 286 311 260 159 1,227 

Whole Plan Area 
5YLS Total 

1,925 1,752 1,891 1,989 1,240 8,797 

 
  

5.7 At April 2019 a total of 15,454 dwellings had consent in the whole plan area, 2,204 of 
which had commenced construction. A total of 22,668 dwellings therefore have either 
been delivered are currently under construction or have planning consent at April 2019, 
which represents 85% of the JLP housing requirement. A significantly high total of 1,845 
dwellings had commenced construction in the 2018/19 monitoring year, therefore the 
forecast for next year (2019/20) is very high at 1,925 dwellings (net)44, which would 
increase the surplus position from 546 at the 2019 monitoring point to 1,136 dwellings at 
the 2020 monitoring point. It should be noted that not all dwellings with consent appear 
in the 5 year supply due to phasing on large sites and some sites with consent have been 
assessed as being undeliverable45.   
 
5YLS Supply Source – Large sites (sites of 5 or more dwellings in PPA and 10 or more in 
TTVPA) 
 

5.8 All large sites46 with consent have been assessed.  Sites with outline and detailed consent 
for less than 10 dwellings and sites of 10 dwellings or more are considered deliverable 
unless there is ‘clear evidence’ to suggest otherwise.  Sites with outline consent and JLP 
allocations with no consent have been assessed to establish whether there is ‘clear 
evidence’ that they can be considered deliverable in the 5 YLS.  Where there is ‘clear 
evidence’ to suggest that any site with any form of consent could be considered 

                                            
44 Some 290 demolitions are forecast for 2019/20 on 2 regeneration sites in Plymouth (PLY 58.6 and PLY 58.15) 
45 see appendix 5 
46 5 dwellings or more in the PPA and 10 dwellings or more in the TTVPA 

Page 73



15 
 

undeliverable it has been removed from the 5YLS.  These sites are identified in appendix 
5.  On this basis there is no need to apply a lapse rate to sites identified from this source 
as all sites in this category have been assessed and sites removed where considered 
undeliverable. 
 

5.9 Where applicable the lead-in-times and delivery rate methodologies that informed the 5 
year supply assessment in the JLP examination in early 2018 have been used to inform 
assumptions and to sense check against developer’s forecasts and assumptions47. 
 
Supply Source – Small Sites & Small Sites Lapse Rate 
 
 

5.10 A list of small sites48 contained in the 5YLS are provided in Appendix 7 broken down by 
 LPA area.  As these sites are not required to be assessed for deliverability as the NPPF 
‘deliverable’ definition makes clear that these sites should be considered deliverable 
unless there is clear evidence to indicate they will not be delivered.   A lapse rate49 is 
applied to the small sites within the 5YLS where the site has yet  to commence 
construction consistent with the approach taken in the examination into the JLP.   
 
Supply Source – Small Sites Windfall Allowance 
 

5.11 The supply contains an allowance for small sites (non-garden land) based on historic 
evidence.  Appendix 8 provides the evidence for the small sites windfall allowance for 
both the Plymouth Policy Area and the Thriving Towns & Villages Policy Area.  The 
allowance is for sites less than 5 dwellings within the Plymouth Policy Area and remains at 
42 dwellings per annum as a result of small site delivery.  Within the Thriving Towns & 
Villages Policy Area, the allowance is for sites less than 10 dwellings and has increased 
from 54-56dpa to 91dpa.  The evidence to justify this increase is set out in Appendix 8.    
The allowance is only applied in years 4 and 5 of the 5 year supply.  
 
Supply Source – Neighbourhood Plan Allowance 
 

5.12 JLP Policy TTV25 makes provision in the order of 550 homes sought from the sustainable 
villages as part of the overall housing provision for the Thriving Towns and Villages Policy 
Area.  72 dwellings are forecast to be delivered in the 5 year period in the TTV from this 

                                            
47 Plymouth SHLAA Main Report 
Plymouth SHLAA Appendix7 - Lead in Times Methodology 
Plymouth SHLAA Appendix 8 - Delivery Rate Methodology 
Revised Housing Topic Paper (Provision and Supply) January 2018 TP3(rev) Appendix 11.2 
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/HousingTopicPaperProvisionSupplyUpdated.pdf    
48 The threshold for small sites in Plymouth LPA is below 5 dwellings as the JLP allocated sites of 5 dwellings and 
above within the Plymouth LPA.  The threshold for small sites in South Hams & West Devon LPA’s is below 10 
dwellings in line with threshold for major development as the JLP allocated sites of 10 dwellings and above in the 
South Hams and West Devon LPA areas.  
49 10% in the Plymouth Policy Area (Plymouth LPA and SH urban fringe) 15% in Thriving Towns & Villages Policy 
Area 

Page 74

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/PlymouthStrategicHousingLandAvailabilityAssessmentMainReport.pdf
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/PlymouthStrategicHousingLandAvailabilityAssessmentAppendix7.pdf
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/PlymouthStrategicHousingLandAvailabilityAssessmentAppendix8.pdf
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/HousingTopicPaperProvisionSupplyUpdated.pdf


16 
 

supply category.  They are on 2 sites with consent but are not JLP allocations nor counted 
as other large site commitments.  These 2 sites are listed in Appendix 3. 
 

 
Supply Source – Student Accommodation 
 

5.13 The changes to the NPPF and NPPG post July 2018 make clear that student 
accommodation in the form of cluster flats is to be counted against adopted housing 
requirements and LHN as single dwellings.  This represents a change to the previous 
planning framework where student accommodation could only be counted on the basis of 
the amount of accommodation released to the market.  The JLP authorities’ 
demonstrated evidence of such a release of market housing as a result of the provision of 
purpose built student accommodation within Plymouth.   
 

5.14 The JLP authorities produced a methodology to count the effective release of student bed 
spaces in HMO’s to the open market.  The methodology50 used to inform the housing 
supply in the JLP is now superseded by new Government guidance and therefore the 5 
year supply now contains the student accommodation sites that are under construction 
or with consent and their respective dwelling numbers.  The deliverability of these sites 
and their delivery profile has been assessed in liaison with responses provided by 
developers/promoters.  Where a site with consent has been considered to be 
undeliverable it has been removed from the 5 year supply and a list of such sites is 
provided in appendix 5.  On this basis there is no need to apply a lapse rate to the sites 
contained in the supply as they have been assessed and are considered deliverable in 
accordance with the NPPF ‘deliverable’ definition and guidance set out in NPPG. 

 
Supply Source – Communal Accommodation 

 
5.15 The NPPG51 provides a methodology for the counting of communal accommodation52. 

The methodology provides a national ratio (1.8) to be applies to C2 communal 
accommodation on the basis of bed spaces i.e. number of bed spaces divided by 1.8.  The 
supply therefore applies this ratio to such sites including consents that result in the loss of 
communal accommodation.  Sites that make up this source of supply can be found in 
appendix 9. 

 
The 2019 whole plan area 5 YLS position 

 
5.16 Table 8 below sets out the years of supply against the adopted JLP whole plan housing 

requirement at the 2019 monitoring point. 
 

  

                                            
50 https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/PlymouthStudentAccommodation.pdf 
51 Paragraph: 061 Reference ID: 3-061-20180913 
52 Including student accommodation but not student cluster flats as they are counted as single dwellings provided 
they meet the Government definition of a dwelling.  There are no student communal accommodation consents 
within the supply. 

Page 75

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/PlymouthStudentAccommodation.pdf


17 
 

Table 8: 5 YLS 2019-2024 against JLP Whole Plan Housing Requirement 
 
 

5 Year Land Supply 2018-2023 against Whole Plan 
Housing Requirement 

Step 5YLS Components Results 
A JLP whole plan Requirement 2014-34 26,700 
B JLP whole plan requirement annualised (A/20) 1,335 
C Net additional dwellings delivered 1st April 

2014 - 31st March 2019 
7,214 

Di Shortfall/surplus against JLP whole plan 
requirement since 1st April 2014 
(1,335x5=6,675) - C 

-539 (i.e. a 
surplus) 

Dii Residualised surplus for next 5 years 
(surplus/remaining years) x 5 years 
(Di/15)x5 

-18053 

E Five year requirement (Bx5 i.e. 1,335x5) 6,675 
F Five year requirement with shortfall/surplus 

(E – Dii) 
6,495 

G F with 5% buffer 6,820 
H JLP authorities deliverable supply 1st April 

2018 – 31st March 2024 
(4,117+3,453+1,227)54 

8,797 

I Five year land supply position  
(H/ (G/5) 

6.4 years 
supply 

 
Conclusion 
 

5.17 A 6.4 year supply is identified, therefore a 5 YLS can be demonstrated across the whole 
plan area.  Progress towards the monitoring targets at the Policy Areas and LPA areas are 
set out in appendix 10. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

                                            
53 NPPG paragraph 045 Reference ID:3-045-20180913 does not require the surplus to be residualised. It states 
“Where areas deliver more completions than required, the additional supply can be used to offset any shortfalls 
against requirements from previous years”.  This would seem to imply that all of the surplus could be deducted 
from the requirement for the 5 year supply, In light of the implications of the HDT however a more cautious 
approach would be to residualise the surplus over the plan period. 
54 Plymouth + South Hams + West Devon (deliverable supply 2019-2024, identified in table 7). See also appendices 
2, 3 & 4 supply tables. 

Page 76



 
 

APPENDIX 1 
MHCLG letter confirming recalculated 
2018 HDT measurement for the 3 JLP 

Authorities 

Page 77



 

  
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government 
2 Marsham street 
London 
SW1P 4DF 

  

Richard Grant 
Strategic Planning Manager (Joint Local 
Plan) 
For Plymouth City Council, West Devon 
Borough Council and South Hams District 
Council 
Strategic Planning and Infrastructure 
Plymouth City Council 
Ballard House 
West Hoe Road 
Plymouth 
PL1 3BJ 

 
 
Tel: 0303 444 0000 
Email: planningpolicy@communities.gov.uk 
  
www.gov.uk/mhclg 
  
Date: 10 May 2019 

 
 
I am writing to you following your notification to the Ministry of Housing Communities and 
Local Government that Plymouth City Council, South Hams District Council and West Devon 
Borough Council have a newly adopted joint plan containing a new housing requirement.  
 
In accordance with Paragraph 18 of the Housing Delivery Test Rule Book, you have 
requested that we now use this newly adopted housing requirement and related plan period 
to re-calculate your Housing Delivery Test measurement for 2018. 
 
Consequently, based upon the revised information you have supplied, Plymouth City 
Council, South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough Council’s Housing Delivery 
Test measurement has now been re-calculated based on the new requirement.  I am 
therefore in a position to confirm that Plymouth, South Hams and West Devon’s revised 
2018 joint measurement is as follows: 
 

Number of homes 
required 

Total 
number 

of homes 
required 

Number of homes 
delivered 

Total 
number of 

homes 
delivered 

Housing 
Delivery Test: 

2018 
measurement 

Housing 
Delivery Test: 

2018 
consequence 

2015-
16 

2016-
17 

2017-
18 

 2015-
16  

2016-
17  

2017-
18  

   

978 979 1,037 2,994 1,712 1,011 2,166 4,889 163% None 
 
The Department publishes the Housing Delivery Test measurement once annually, and 
therefore does not amend the Housing Delivery Test publication when an area adopts a new 
housing requirement. However, to provide clarity, you should publish this on your website.   
 
For the avoidance of doubt, this letter supersedes the measurements for each of your local 
authority areas which were published on 19th February 2019.   
 

Page 78

mailto:planningpolicy@communities.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/mhclg


The revised Housing Delivery Test measurement for Plymouth, South Hams and West 
Devon will take effect upon receipt of this letter, as will any consequences that apply as a 
result of the measurement.  
 
The consequence shown above will remain in place until the next full publication of the 
Housing Delivery Test measurement. 
 
Finally I’d like to take this opportunity once again to congratulate you on the adoption of a new 
plan.   
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Planning Policy 

Page 79



 
 

APPENDIX 2 
Plymouth LPA supply over the next 5 

years (2019-2024) 

Page 80



 Plymouth Administrative Area Monitoring Point : 31 March 2019    Delivery forecasts: made at June 2019

Policy 

PLYMOUTH LPA

Site Name

Planning 

Application 

Number

P
la

n
n

in
g
 S

ta
tu

s 

a
t 

e
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s 

P
e
rm

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s 

D
e
li
v
e
re

d
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1
9

2
0
1
9
-2

0

2
0
2
0
-2

1

2
0
2
1
-2

2

2
0
2
2
-2

3

2
0
2
3
-2

4

 T
o

ta
l 
P

la
n

 R
e
m

a
in

d
e
r

 2
0
2
4
-3

4

2
0
3
4
/3

5
+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 

board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accelerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promoter 

Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

Small sites total (list of small sites as appendices) 237 1 92 94 50 0 0 0 0

LP061  NHS Trust Plymouth Hospitals, 

Plymouth Royal Eye Infirmary
14/01228/FUL Under Construction 42 30 12 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 all 12 dwellings (flats) had commenced construction.  

Developer anticipates completion in September 2019.
Yes N/A

Former Plymouth Preparatory School, 

Beechfield Grove
14/00128/FUL Under Construction 12 11 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

Leftover dwelling (residue of large site) yet to commence as at April 

2019.  No response from developer regarding delivery of remaining 

dwelling with detailed consent.

N/A
Assumed delivery of remaining dwelling in 2019/20 as 

remainder of site complete.

North Prospect Phase 3, Wordsworth 

Crescent
15/01956/FUL Under Construction 159 143 16 0 0 0 0 0 0

Developer confirms remaining 16 dwellings (under construction at 

April 2019) expected to be completed by end of June 2019.  

Developer indicates site had experienced significant delays due to 

drainage infrastructure which required redesign work and a diversion

Yes N/A

Land off Towerfield Drive

14/00135/FUL 

14/00223/FUL 

18/00018/FUL

Under Construction 93 49 44 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 the remaining 44 dwellings had commenced 

construction.  Developer indicated the delivery slowed slightly in 

2018/19 than that prevously envisaged due to sales rates.  Developer 

anticipates completion of the remaining 44 dwellings by Jan 2020

Yes N/A

Land off Aberdeen Avenue 17/01227/REM Under Construction 85 20 65 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019, 20 dwellings had completed, 35 dwellings had 

commenced construction and 30 dwellings (with detailed consent) 

had yet to commence construction. Developer still anticipates 

completion of all 65 remaining dwellings by end of March 2020 as 

previously envisaged.

Yes N/A

Nightingale Close 17/00570/S73 Under Construction 70 41 29 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019, 41 dwellings had completed, 27 dwellings had 

commenced construction and only 2 dwellings (with detailed consent) 

had yet to commence construction. Developer anticipates completion 

of the remaining 29 dwellings by December 2019. Poor weather, 

lower sales rates and drainage infrastructure issues were cited as 

reasons for the site delivery being slower than envisaged at the 

outset.

Yes N/A

Mannamead Centre, 15 Eggbuckland Road 14/02336/FUL Under Construction 29 0 29 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 all 29 dwellings had commenced construction and 

none had completed.  Developer indicates delivery of dwellings 

delayed due to boundary disputes/party wall agreements, tree 

preservation applications and connection of mains services to the site. 

Additionally, lack of block layers has also caused delay. Developer 

anticipates all dwellings will be complete by end of March 2020.

Yes N/A

PLYMOUTH LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 

HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24

Large Sites Commitments

P
age 81



Policy 

PLYMOUTH LPA

Site Name

Planning 

Application 

Number

P
la

n
n

in
g
 S

ta
tu

s 

a
t 

e
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s 

P
e
rm

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s 

D
e
li
v
e
re

d
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1
9

2
0
1
9
-2

0

2
0
2
0
-2

1

2
0
2
1
-2

2

2
0
2
2
-2

3

2
0
2
3
-2

4

 T
o

ta
l 
P

la
n

 R
e
m

a
in

d
e
r

 2
0
2
4
-3

4

2
0
3
4
/3

5
+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 

board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accelerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promoter 

Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

LP041 Former Car Park Pier Street 15/01629/FUL Under Construction 14 4 10 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 4 dwellings had completed and the remaining 10 had 

commenced construction.  Site has not developed as anticipated and 

has been delayed due to financial issues.  Developer/Agent indicates 

that site has been refinanced, construction has recommenced and 

expects site to be complete by March 2020

Yes N/A

Old Mays Nursery, Vinery Lane 16/01779/REM Under Construction 12 11 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
As at April 2019 11 of the 12 dwellings had completed and the 

remaining dwelling had commenced construction
N/A Assumed completion of last dwelling by end of March 2020

1 Armada Street 16/02274/FUL Under Construction 12 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0

All 12  dwellings still under construction as at April 2019 (large 

conversion). Developer still anticipates completion of all dwellings by 

August 2019.

Yes N/A

The Presbytery, Hendwell Close 07/02110/FUL Under Construction 8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 As at April 2019 all 8 dwellings had commenced construction No response from developer
Assumed all 8 dwellings under construction will complete by 

end of March 2020

Peirson House 17/01826/S73 Under Construction 76 0 76 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 the development (flats) had commenced 

construction.  Developer confirms anticipated completion before end 

of March 2020

Yes N/A

Dudding Court 8 Craigie Drive 17/00009/FUL Under construction 10 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 the development (large conversion) had commenced 

construction.  No recent response from Developer, however 

Developer previously indicated expected delivery in 2019/20 

No updated response from Developer

Development has commenced construction and reasonable to 

assume that delivery on track to complete by end of March 

2020 as developer initially envisaged

23 How Street Plymouth 17/01997/FUL Under construction 12 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0
As at April 2019 all 12 dwellings had commenced construction.  

Developer confirms completion anticipated in 2019/20
Yes N/A

Zone E, 4 Phelps Road 17/01350/FUL Under Construction 14 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 0
As at April 2019 all 14 dwellings had commenced construction.  

Developer confirms development has now completed post April 2019 
Yes N/A

St Budeaux Library Victoria Road 18/00643/FUL Under Construction 24 0 24 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 all 24 dwellings had commenced construction.  

Developer confirms that all 24 dwellings will be complete by end of 

October 2019.

Yes N/A

Colebrook House, 51 Newnham Road 17/02471/FUL Under Construction 14 0 8 6 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019, 8 dwellings had commenced construction and 6 

(with detailed consent had yet to commence construction. No 

response from Developer/Promoter.

No response from Developer/Promoter

Reasonable to assume that the 8 dwellings under construction 

would complete by March 2020 and the remaining 6 by March 

2021

Land adjacent to 110 Kenmare Drive 18/02080/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

Previous consent for 8 dwellings considered undeliverable last year 

and removed from 5YLS.  However site now subject to a new detailed 

consent for 6 dwellings. As at April 2019 all 6 dwellings had yet to 

commence construction. Developer indicates delivery of all 6 

dwellings in 2020/21

Yes N/A

Beacon Castle Sport & Social Club, Channel 

Park Avenue

18/00041/REM, 

16/01269/OUT 

previous - 

12/01362/OUT  

08/02049

Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
7 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent (non-major) for 8 dwellings.  As at April 

2019 all 7 dwellings had yet to commence construction.  No update 

from Developer.  Developer previously indicated Contractor on 

board and delivery anticipated in 2020/21

Yes
Assumed delivery of all 8 dwellings with detailed consent in 

2020/21 as developer/promoter envisaged in November 2018

P
age 82



Policy 

PLYMOUTH LPA

Site Name

Planning 

Application 

Number

P
la

n
n

in
g
 S

ta
tu

s 

a
t 

e
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s 

P
e
rm

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s 

D
e
li
v
e
re

d
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1
9

2
0
1
9
-2

0

2
0
2
0
-2

1

2
0
2
1
-2

2

2
0
2
2
-2

3

2
0
2
3
-2

4

 T
o

ta
l 
P

la
n

 R
e
m

a
in

d
e
r

 2
0
2
4
-3

4

2
0
3
4
/3

5
+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 

board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accelerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promoter 

Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

Admiralty House, Mount Wise Crescent 16/02212/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
12 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 0

Site yet to commence as at April 2019, however Developer indicates 

site has commenced construction post April 2019.  Developer 

indicates delay due to unexpected additional asbestos, requiring 

significant additional asbestos removal and additional LBC for removal 

of ceilings. Developer now anticipates completion pushed back to  

Summer/Autumn 2020

Yes N/A

Land at Prince Maurice Road 18/00432/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
99 0 0 49 50 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 99 dwellings.  As at April 2019 the site 

had not commenced construction.  Developer previously indicated 

delivery of 44 dwellings in 2019/20 but now anticipates no 

completions in 2019/20 but all 99 dwellings by end of March 2020.  

Commencement on site has been delayed due to slow worm 

relocation, developer indicates start on site in July 2019.

No

Given site has been delayed and no dwellings are under 

construction it has been assumed that all 99 dwellings are 

unlikely to complete in 2019/20.  It has therefore been 

assumed delivery should be spread across 2019/20  (49 

dwellings)and 2020/21 (50 dwellings).  This is consistent with 

the SHLAA lead in times and delivery rates for a site of this 

size.

Former Tothill Sidings, Desborough Road 16/01422/REM
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
50 0 0 0 50 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 50 dwellings.  Site has yet to commence 

development as at April 2019, however applicant has applied to 

discharge all pre commencement conditions. No update from 

applicant regarding delivery profile or whether a developer is on 

board, and alternative scheme currently subject to a pre-app.  No 

clear evidence at this stage to suggest consented scheme 

undeliverable or no longer being pursued

No update from applicant regarding delivery profile

Assumed delivery in 2021/22 as per last year.  No clear 

evidence forthcoming to change assumption and applicant 

applied to discharge all pre-commencement conditions. 

Assumption accords with SHLAA lead in time/delivery rates 

evidence.

5-12 Arundel Crescent 05/00862/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
24 0 0 24 0 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed extant consent for 24 dwellings and has yet to 

commence development as at April 2019.  Development has not 

progressed as envisaged last year due to some land ownership issues.  

Developer indicates start on site imminent and delivery of all 

dwellings by November 2020

Yes N/A

Land at Raglan Road 16/02429/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 6 dwellings (minor).  As at April 1st 2019 

no dwellings had commenced construction.  No update from 

developer/promoter

No update from developer

As site is minor development with detailed consent, delivery 

continues to be assumed in 2020/21 given no dwellings had 

commenced at April 2019.  No clear evidence site won't be 

delivered.

16-20 Duke Street 17/01770/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
24 0 0 0 24 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 24 dwellings (major).  As at April 2019 

the development had not commenced.  Developer cites  delays in 

acquiring materials as reason fro delays in commencement compared 

with that enisaged last year.  Developer now indicates start on site in 

Autumn 2019 and delivery of all 24 dwellings in 2021/22.

Yes N/A

Land Adj to 790 Wolseley Road 18/01153/FUL
Sites with Planning 

Permission not started
6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

Site previously removed from 5YLS but now subject to a new detailed 

consent for 6 dwellings (minor).  As at April 2019 all 6 dwellings had 

yet to commence construction.  No delivery profile from 

developer/promoter.

N./A

As site is minor development with detailed consent, delivery 

of all 6 dwellings assumed in 2020/21 given no dwellings had 

commenced at April 2019.  No clear evidence site won't be 

delivered.

28 George Place 18/00570/FUL
Sites with Planning 

Permission not started
9 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0

New consent 2018/19 (windfall) Site has detailed consent (minor) As 

at April 2019 all 9 dwellings had yet to commence construction. 

Developer anticipates discharging pre commencement conditions and 

start on site before May 2020 and completion late 2022.  

Yes N/A

P
age 83



Policy 

PLYMOUTH LPA

Site Name

Planning 

Application 

Number

P
la

n
n

in
g
 S

ta
tu

s 

a
t 

e
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s 

P
e
rm

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s 

D
e
li
v
e
re

d
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1
9

2
0
1
9
-2

0

2
0
2
0
-2

1

2
0
2
1
-2

2

2
0
2
2
-2

3

2
0
2
3
-2

4

 T
o

ta
l 
P

la
n

 R
e
m

a
in

d
e
r

 2
0
2
4
-3

4

2
0
3
4
/3

5
+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 

board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accelerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promoter 

Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

Ford Baptist Church Alfred Road 18/01855/FUL
Sites with Planning 

Permission not started
10 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0

New consent 2018/19 (windfall) Site has detailed consent  for 10 

dwellings (major) As at April 2019 no dwellings had commenced 

construction.  Developer indicates that site has commenced post 

April and anticipates completion in Jan/Feb 2020

Yes N/A

Bostons Boat , Baylys Road 17/02074/FUL
Sites with Planning 

Permission not started
15 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0

New consent 2018/19 (windfall) Site has detailed consent  for 15 

dwellings (major) As at April 2019 development had yet to 

commence.  Developer in the process of aquiring ownership and 

anticipates delivery in 2020/21

Yes N/A

Land Adj 29 Compton Park Road 18/01888/FUL
Sites with Planning 

Permission not started
8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 8 dwellings (minor).  As at April 2019 all 

8 dwellings had yet to commence construction.  No response from 

developer/promoter regarding delivery profile, however pre 

commencement conditions have been discharged

No delivery profile provide by developer/promoter

Site is minor development with detailed consent.  As site has 

yet to commence construction, it is reasonable to assume 

completion by end of March 2021 in accordance with SHLAA 

Lead in time and delivery rate methodology.  No clear 

evidence site will not be delivered.

Foliot House Budshead Road  (conversion) 18/01494/GP2
Sites with Planning 

Permission not started
22 0 0 22 0 0 0 0 0

New consent 2018/19 (windfall) Site has detailed consent  for 22 

dwellings (major) As at April 2019 the development (large 

conversion) had yet to commence construction. No response from 

Developer/promoter

No response from developer/promoter

Site has detailed consent.  As site has yet to commence 

construction reasonable to assume delivery in 2020/21  in 

accordance with SHLAA lead in time and delivery rate 

methodology.  No clear evidence site will not be delivered.

Rockville 2A Rockville Park (conversion) 18/01748/FUL
Sites with Planning 

Permission not started
10 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0

New consent 2018/19 (windfall) Site has detailed consent  for 10 

dwellings (major) As at April 2019 the development (large 

conversion) had yet to commence construction. No response from 

developer/promoter regarding delivery

No response from developer/promoter

Site has detailed consent.  As site has yet to commence 

construction, it is reasonable to assume completion by end of 

March 2021 in accordance with SHLAA Lead in time and 

delivery rate methodology. No clear evidence site will not be 

delivered.

Crown And Column, 223 Ker Street  

(conversion)
16/00995/LBC

Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started*
5 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (conversion) for 5 dwellings (minor). N/A

Site has detailed consent (conversion).  Assumed delivery in 

2019/20. No clear evidence conversion will not be delivered.

9 Parade  (conversion) 16/02312/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started*
6 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (conversion) for 6 dwellings (minor). N/A

Site has detailed consent (conversion).  Assumed delivery in 

2019/20. No clear evidence conversion will not be delivered.

144-146 Vauxhall Street  (conversion) 17/00218/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started*
7 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (conversion) for 7 dwellings (minor). N/A

Site has detailed consent (conversion).  Assumed delivery in 

2019/20. No clear evidence conversion will not be delivered.

Metropolitan House 37 Craigie Drive  

(conversion)
17/01169/FUL

Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started*
8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (conversion) for 8 dwellings (minor). N/A

Site has detailed consent (conversion).  Assumed delivery in 

2020/21. No clear evidence conversion will not be delivered.

Wyndham Hall, Wyndham Street East  

(conversion)
17/02043/FUL

Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started*
6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (conversion) for 6 dwellings (minor). N/A

Site has detailed consent (conversion).  Assumed delivery in 

2020/21. No clear evidence conversion will not be delivered.

P
age 84



Policy 

PLYMOUTH LPA

Site Name

Planning 

Application 

Number

P
la

n
n

in
g
 S

ta
tu

s 

a
t 

e
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s 

P
e
rm

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s 

D
e
li
v
e
re

d
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1
9

2
0
1
9
-2

0

2
0
2
0
-2

1

2
0
2
1
-2

2

2
0
2
2
-2

3

2
0
2
3
-2

4

 T
o

ta
l 
P

la
n

 R
e
m

a
in

d
e
r

 2
0
2
4
-3

4

2
0
3
4
/3

5
+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 

board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accelerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promoter 

Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

1 The Crescent  (conversion) 17/02104/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started*
7 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (conversion) for 7 dwellings (minor). N/A

Site has detailed consent (conversion).  Assumed delivery in 

2020/21. No clear evidence conversion will not be delivered.

Sandon Court, 1 Craigie Drive  (conversion) 18/00568/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started*
5 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (conversion) for 5 dwellings (minor). N/A

Site has detailed consent (conversion).  Assumed delivery in 

2021/22. No clear evidence conversion will not be delivered.

97-99 Mutley Plain  (conversion) 18/00602/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started*
7 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (conversion) for 7 dwellings (minor). N/A

Site has detailed consent (conversion).  Assumed delivery in 

2021/22. No clear evidence conversion will not be delivered.

The River View Centre, Astor Drive  

(conversion)
18/01222/FUL

Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started*
6 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (conversion) for 6 dwellings (minor). N/A

Site has detailed consent (conversion).  Assumed delivery in 

2021/22. No clear evidence conversion will not be delivered.

Tamar House, St Andrews Cross 17/01911/S73 Under Construction 77 56 21 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 the development (student accommodation) had 

commenced construction.  Developer/Agent confirms completion 

expected by September 2019 for September intake

Yes N/A

Derry's Department Store, 88 Royal Parade 17/00586/S73M Under Construction 205 0 205 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 All 205 dwellings had commenced construction 

(large conversion -student flats). Developer still anticipates 

completion of scheme ready for occupation by September 2019 in 

time for September 2019 intake.  

Yes N/A

Belgrave Snooker Club, Belgrave Road 15/02137/FUL Under Construction 43 0 43 0 0 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 43 units (student flats) and had 

commenced construction post  April 2018.  Applicant confimrs 

delivery of all student units in 2019/20 in time for September 2019 

intake.

Yes N/A

84-86 North Road East 17/01953/FUL Under Construction 17 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 the development (student units) had commenced 

construction.  Developer anticipates completion of the scheme in 

time for September 2019 intake of students 

Yes N/A

Crescent Point, The Crescent 14/01264/FUL Under Construction 137 0 137 0 0 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 the development (student accommodation) is still 

considered to be under construction as it is not ready for occupation.  

Dvelopment subject to legal dispute and H&S issues need to be 

resolved 

N/A

Assumed legal and H&S issues could be resolved during  

2019/20  and development could be ready for occupation by 

end of March 2020 

41 North Hill 17/02091/FUL
Sites with Planning 

Permission not started
41 0 0 0 41 0 0 0 0

New consent 2018/19 (windfall) Site has detailed consent (major).  As 

at April 2019,  development (student studio flats) had yet to 

commence. Developer/promoter indicates commencement of site in 

January 2020 but did not provide completions date

N/A Developer only provided commencement date

Site has detailed consent (conversion & extension).  On the 

basis of commencement of development in Jan 2020, 

reasonable to assume delivery in 2021/22 in accordance with 

SHLAA lead in times and delivery rate methodology.  No clear 

evidence development will not be delivered.

1 The Moneycentre 1 Drake Circus 17/02141/FUL
Sites with Planning 

Permission not started
163 0 0 0 0 163 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 163 dwellings (Student accommodation).  

As at April 2019 site had yet to commence construction.  Site is let at 

present, development indicates development can come forward in 

2022 and anticipates completion of the scheme in 2023.

Yes N/A

47A North Road East 15/01251/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
39 0 39 0 0 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 39 dwellings.  As at April 2019 the 

development had yet to commence.  However the development has 

commenced post April and the Developer indicates a completion date 

of March 2020

Yes N/A

Large Sites Commitments (students) P
age 85



Policy 

PLYMOUTH LPA

Site Name

Planning 

Application 

Number

P
la

n
n

in
g
 S

ta
tu

s 

a
t 

e
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s 

P
e
rm

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s 

D
e
li
v
e
re

d
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1
9

2
0
1
9
-2

0

2
0
2
0
-2

1

2
0
2
1
-2

2

2
0
2
2
-2

3

2
0
2
3
-2

4

 T
o

ta
l 
P

la
n

 R
e
m

a
in

d
e
r

 2
0
2
4
-3

4

2
0
3
4
/3

5
+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 

board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accelerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promoter 

Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

PLY15 Civic Centre None Allocated 248 0 0 0 0 144 0 104 0

Detailed planning application validated in March 2019 (for 144 

dwellings) a few months later than envisaged last year.  Application 

due to be determined in summer 2019. Given delays in submission of 

application, developer now envisages reasonable to assume 

completion of all 144 dwellings (flatted scheme) associated with first 

phase during 2022/23.  2nd phase delivery anticpiated post 5 year 

supply in 2025/26.

Yes
As flatted conversion scheme all completions would occur in 

same year.

PLY24 Sutton Road West 17/02323/FUL 
Planning Permission Not 

Yet Started 
194 0 0 0 14 0 0 180 0

Site has detailed planning consent for part of the site (major - 14 

units) and last year developer indicated completion in 2021/22.  No 

update provided by developer post April 2019.   Remainder of 

allocation likely to be delivered outside 5 year supply in years 6-10 

and no clear evidence to indicate earlier delivery at this stage.

No update provided by developer.

Site has detailed consent for 14 dwellings.  Assumed delivery 

in 2021/22 as envisaged by developer last year. No clear 

evidence site will not be delivered.

PLY25 Sugar House, Sutton Harbour 18/01245/FUL 
Planning Permission Not 

Yet Started 
170 0 0 0 170 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 170 dwellings (major flatted 

development).  As at April 2019 the development had yet to 

commence.  Developer anticipates delivery of all 170 dwellings by end 

of March 2021. No update provided by developer in 2019. 

No update provided by developer.

Site has detailed consent.  As the site has yet to commence at 

April 2019 and the development is a flatted scheme that could 

be an 18 month to 2 year build, assumed delivery will be one 

year later in 2021/22 than that envisaged by the developer last 

year. Flatted scheme so all completions would occur in same 

year.

PLY28 land north of Cliff Road, The Hoe 17/00952/Ful
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
88 0 0 0 88 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 88 dwellings (flatted scheme)and had yet 

to commence construction as at April 2019.  As the site as yet to 

commence construction delivery has been put back one year to 

2021/22, delay due to financial issues.  No clear evidence to suggest 

site isn't deliverable at this stage.

N/A - no update on delivery provided.

Site has detailed consent and although delayed, no clear 

evidence to indicate site won't be delivered, reasonable to 

assume delivery put back a further year to 2021/22  which 

accords with SHLAA lead in times/delivery rate evidence.

PLY29 Millbay Waterfront - Land at Millbay Road 14/01448/OUT
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
325 0 0 17 60 60 60 128 0

Part of wider regeneration scheme that has yielded dwellings prior to 

plan period as well as earlier in plan period.  At April 2019 there were 

217 dwellings currently under construction. Subsequesnt reserved 

matters applications for the remainder of the outline expected 

towards completion of current phases. Delivery profile for remainder 

of outline provided by developer last year.  No update provided this 

year.

No new update from Developer regarding remainder of 

outline consent.

Assumed continuation of delivery profile for remainder of site 

as envisaged by developer last year.   Consistent with SHLAA 

lead in time and delivery rate methodology.

PLY29
Millbay Waterfront - Land at Millbay, Millbay 

Road
16/00751/AMD Under Construction 137 0 137 0 0 0 0 0 0

Site with detailed consent for 137 units. All 137 dwellings had 

commenced construction as at April 2018.  Developer continues to 

anticipate completion of all 137 dwellings in 2019/20 as envisaged last 

year.

Yes

Delivery Rate accords with SHLAA Delivery rate 

methodology - Majority of scheme apartments therefore will 

all complete in same year.  

PLY29
Millbay Waterfront - Plot C2, Land at Millbay, 

Millbay Road
17/00140/REM Under Construction 80 0 80 0 0 0 0 0 0

Site with detailed consent for 80 units. The development (80 extra 

care units - flatted scheme) had commenced construction as at April 

2019.  Developer continues to anticipate completion of the scheme in 

2019/20 as envisaged last year.

Yes

Delivery Rate accords with SHLAA Delivery rate 

methodology - flatted development therefore will all complete 

in same year.  

Allocated Sites

P
age 86



Policy 

PLYMOUTH LPA

Site Name

Planning 

Application 

Number

P
la

n
n

in
g
 S

ta
tu

s 

a
t 

e
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s 

P
e
rm

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s 

D
e
li
v
e
re

d
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1
9

2
0
1
9
-2

0

2
0
2
0
-2

1

2
0
2
1
-2

2

2
0
2
2
-2

3

2
0
2
3
-2

4

 T
o

ta
l 
P

la
n

 R
e
m

a
in

d
e
r

 2
0
2
4
-3

4

2
0
3
4
/3

5
+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 

board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accelerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promoter 

Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

PLY29 Millbay Waterfront - Plot C1 18/00995/REM
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
58 0 0 58 0 0 0 0 0

Part of PLY29.  This phase has detailed consent for 58 dwellings.  No 

update from Developer this year, however still assumed to deliver 

post completion of current phases under construction anticipated to 

complete this year.

No update from Developer
Phase has detailed consent (major).  Delivery assumed in 

2020/21 as envisaged by developer last year. 

PLY31 Bath Street East
18/01014/OUT (part 

of site

Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started (part of site), 

residual unconsented

7 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0
Outline consent for part of the site for 7 dwellings (non-major).  No 

response from developer regarding delivery profile.
No response from developer

A site has outline consent for 7 dwellings (non-major) 

assumed to be deliverable in the 5YLS in year 5

PLY36.3 Mount Wise Devonport  Area D 17/01134/FUL Under Construction 73 0 0 0 73 0 0 0 0

As at April 2019 all 73 dwellings (apartments) had commenced 

construction.  Developer indicates completion of the scheme now 

envisaged in 2021/22 due to delays completing phase 3 of Mount 

Wise and securing funding.

Yes N/A

PLY40
Seaton Neighbourhood - Land at Seaton 

Neighbourhood
12/02027/OUT Site Under Construction 634 0 0 44 80 80 84 346 0

PLY40
Seaton neighbourhood - Land at Seaton 

Neighbourhood
16/00601/REM Under Construction 119 111 8 0 0 0 0 0 0

PLY40 Seaton Neighbourhood - Phase 6 18/00911/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
15 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0

PLY50 Saltram Meadow -  Plymstock Quarry, The Ride 07/01094/OUT Under Construction 1134 0 0 44 93 93 93 811 0

PLY50
Saltram Meadow - Plymstock Quarry, Broxton 

Drive

12/01171/REM & 

13/00941/REM and 

16/00488/REM 

17/00166/REM 

17/00835/REM

Under Construction 550 411 88 49 0 0 0 0 0

Site has delivered 216 dwellings since in the last 4 years at a rate of 

54dpa which includes 105 dwellings on a phase that completed in 

2017/18 .  There are 8 dwellings remaining with detailed consent that 

the developer confirms will be complete by end of March 2020.  

Developer confirms phase 6 anticipated to complete in 2020/21.  

Reserved matters application for 126 dwellings (phase 9) was 

validated in November 2018 and is yet to be determined.  Developer 

anticipates 60 of these dwellings to be delivered in 2020/21.  No 

update is provided regarding the delivery profile for the remainder of 

the site to that provided by the developer last year.  Developer 

anticipates imminent pre-app discussions for remaining phases.

Yes In part

Developer suggested that the 44 dwellings associated with 

phase 9 (part of live reserved matters application yet to be 

determined) should be increased to 60 dwellings.  Given the 

delivery of this phase is in combination with the 15 dwellings 

at phase 6 the delivery profile for phase 9 has been unaltered 

at this stage.  Delivery profile for remainder of scheme 

remains the same as the developer anticipated in November 

2018. The delivery profile continues to reflect a planning 

condition that restricts the site to delivering no more than 

350 units prior to  completion of the Forder Valley Link Road 

in 2019/20.

Site has delivered 411 dwellings in the first 5 years of the plan period 

at a rate of 82 dwellings per annum.  At April 2019 56 of the 

remaining 137 dwellings had commenced construction and developer 

anticipates that only 49 dwellings with detailed consent will remain to 

be delivered by end of March 2020.  Developer has not provided an 

update with regard to the delivery rate to be applied to future phases 

that are subject to the outline consent.  Last year the developer 

indicated that the delivery rate for future years would increase to 93 

dwellings.

From 2020/21 assumed increased delivery rate of 93dpa as 

per developer's response in November 2018.  Delivery rate is 

consistent with that seen in the first 3 years of delivery 

(89dpa)

Yes

P
age 87



Policy 

PLYMOUTH LPA

Site Name

Planning 

Application 

Number

P
la

n
n

in
g
 S

ta
tu

s 

a
t 

e
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s 

P
e
rm

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s 

D
e
li
v
e
re

d
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1
9

2
0
1
9
-2

0

2
0
2
0
-2

1

2
0
2
1
-2

2

2
0
2
2
-2

3

2
0
2
3
-2

4

 T
o

ta
l 
P

la
n

 R
e
m

a
in

d
e
r

 2
0
2
4
-3

4

2
0
3
4
/3

5
+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 

board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accelerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promoter 

Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

PLY53 Former China Clay site, Coypool None JLP Allocation 400 0 0 0 0 70 70 260 0

The site has been acquired by Homes England.  Homes England has 

submitted a DES application and regular pre-application meetings are 

now taking place on a range of issues. The process of remediation of 

the land has begun and demolition of some of the former industrial 

buildings will shortly be starting - currently considering pre-

commencement conditions. Homes England continue to anticipate a 

planning application (outline/hybrid)will be submitted in mid-2019, and 

following a planning decision, that marketing of the site will happen in 

2020, start on site September 2020 and completion of all phases by 

September 2028 as the site will be parceled up and offer a wide range 

and type of housing to ensure higher delivery rates.

Yes

On the basis of Homes England intelligence of anticipated 

start on site in September 2020 and completion of all 

dwellings by September 2028, a cautious assumption of first 

yields in 2022/23 (year 4 of the 5YLS) are realistic and a 

delivery rate of approx.70 dpa over the 6 years to 2028.  This 

accords with SHLAA lead in times/delivery rate evidence.  if 

start on site acheived in September 2020 then reasonable to 

assume more dwellings would come forward into the 5 year 

supply than assumed here.  

PLY58.3 Coombe Way & Kings Tamerton Road
18/00193/OUT - 

pending decision
JLP Allocation 40 0 0 12 14 14 0 0 0

Application withdrawn.  PCC owned site, developer on board and 

liasing with Homes England regarding funding.  PCC Anticipate new 

detailed application in summer 2019 with start on site late 2019 for 

first market units. PCC anticipate 12 dwellings to be delivered in first 

phases by end of March 2021.  2nd phases (community led homes - 

serviced plots for sale) anticipated to deliver across 2021-2023.

Yes N/A

PLY58.5 North Prospect phase 4 None JLP Allocation 182 0 0 30 57 51 44 0 0

Site is the last phase of the North Prospect regeneration and follows 

phase 5.  Developer has revised delivery profile when compared with 

last year and indicates a lower delivery rate than previously envisaged 

relating to their latest funding bids and due to delay in progressing the 

planning application.   Developer anticipates an increase in 14 

dwellings regarding the forthcoming full application.

Yes 

Delivery profile reflects the allocation quantum until such time 

as the forthcoming application for this phase is consented. 

(the profile does not therefore include the additional 14 

dwellings the developer refers to.

PLY58.6 North Prospect phase 5 17/01701/FUL Under Construction 143 0 9 87 47 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 143 dwellings.  As at April 2019 24 

dwellings had commenced construction.  Developer indicates delivery 

profile should remain the same as that envisaged last year.  

Yes N/A

PLY58.15 Savage Road, Barne Barton
18/01288/FUL - 

pending decision
JLP Allocation 204 0 0 0 80 124 0 0 0

As at April 2019 application had yet to be determined (detailed 

consent has been granted post April 2019).  Application involves 

demolition of 228 dwellings (which are accounted for within the 

demolition row of the summary table) Developer still anticipates start 

on site for phase 1 (145 dwellings) in early 2020 and completion by 

December 2020.  Demolitions for phase 2 will commence once 

residents have moved into first phases of phase 1, anticipated to be by 

April 2021. It is anticipated that phase 2 (59 dwellings) will then 

complete by April 2023.  Developer has adjusted delivery profile from 

last year to 80 dwellings in 2021/22 and 124 dwellings in 2022/23 

(Phase 1 and 2 converge with regard to delivery. 

Yes N/A

P
age 88



Policy 

PLYMOUTH LPA

Site Name

Planning 

Application 

Number

P
la

n
n

in
g
 S

ta
tu

s 

a
t 

e
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s 

P
e
rm

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s 

D
e
li
v
e
re

d
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1
9

2
0
1
9
-2

0

2
0
2
0
-2

1

2
0
2
1
-2

2

2
0
2
2
-2

3

2
0
2
3
-2

4

 T
o

ta
l 
P

la
n

 R
e
m

a
in

d
e
r

 2
0
2
4
-3

4

2
0
3
4
/3

5
+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 

board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accelerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promoter 

Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

PLY59.5
Stirling House & Honicknowle Clinic, 

Honicknowle Green
None JLP Allocation 20 0 0 0 20 0 0 0 0

Developer indicates submission of application delayed but due to 

submit in July 2019.  Developer anticipates start on site March 2020 

and completion of scheme by November 2021.

Yes N/A

PLY59.16 Whitleigh Community Centre 16/02033/FUL
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
27 0 0 27 0 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 27 dwellings.  As at April 2019 the no 

dwellings had commenced construction.  Developer indicates start on 

site expected in June 2019 with a 54 week build programme.  All 27 

dwellings complete by July 2020

Yes N/A

PLY59.17 Chaucer Way School 15/00858/OUT Under Construction 137 71 62 0 4 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for all but 4 dwellings which have outline 

consent.  As at April 2019 the remaining 62 dwellings with detailed 

consent have all commenced construction.  The developer confirms 

that all remaining dwellings will be complete by September 2019.  The 

4 dwellings with outline consent (non-major) are for self build plots 

and delivery of these dwellings are now assumed to be delayed until 

2020/21.

Yes N/A

PLY60.1 Redwood Drive, Plympton 16/00150/FUL Under Construction 190 98 73 19 0 0 0 0 0

Site with detailed consent.  As at April 2019 there were 92 dwellings 

remaining to complete, 73 of which had commenced construction.  

Developer confirms all remaining dwellings are programmed for 

completion by December 2019

Yes in part

Assumed delivery of the 73 dwellings under construction in 

2019/20 and delivery of the remaining 19 that had yet to 

commence at April 2019 in 2020/21

PLY60.3 Former Plympton Hospital 16/02233/FUL Under Construction 54 48 6 0 0 0 0 0 0

Site with detailed consent. As at April 2019 the development had 

almost completed with 6 dwellings remaining still under construction 

but nearly complete

N/A
Assumed remaining 6 dwellings to complete in 2019/20 as the 

dwellings were close to completion in April 2019

PLY60.5 Land at 60 Vinery Lane 17/02158/OUT
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0

Site has outline consent for 5 dwellings (non major).  As at April 2019 

no dwellings has yet to commence construction. No update or 

response from developer regarding delivery profile or submission of 

reserved matters.  

No response from developer

Assumed submission of reserved matters by December 2019 

(when outline expires) and delivery in to 2020/21.  

Assumption accords with SHLAA lead in time/delivery rate 

methodology.

PLY60.7
Land between Undercliff Road and Barton 

Road, Turnchapel
17/01246/FUL Under Construction 7 1 6 0 0 0 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 7 dwellings.  1 dwelling completed in 

2018/19 4 dwellings had commenced construction and 2 had yet to 

commence construction as at April 2019.  Developer indicates 

completion of all 7 dwellings anticipated in 2019/20.

Yes N/A

PLY60.9 Land at Plympton House

17/01675/S73 

17/01676/S73 

15/02229/ful & 

15/02230/Ful

Under Construction 14 4 4 6 0 0 0 0 0

Site is a mixture of new builds and conversions. As at April 2019 site 

is under construction and had completed 4 dwellings in 2018/19. No 

specific detail from developer regarding delivery profile for remaining 

dwellings. One additional dwelling had commenced construction

No update from developer

All dwellings (conversions and new builds) have detailed 

consent and site has already completed 4 dwellings.  Assumed 

delivery of the remaining 10 dwellings as follows: 4 dwellings 

in 2019/20 and remaining 6 dwellings in 2020/21

PLY60.10

Land off Newnham Road, Colebrook (Planning 

Application addressed as Land off Colebrook 

Road)

17/01216/FUL 
Planning permission - Not 

Yet Started
43 0 0 0 0 43 0 0 0

Site has detailed consent for 43 dwellings.  Agent indicates delivery of 

scheme delayed by one year due to delay in developer coming on 

board, process ongoing.

Yes

Site has detailed consent.  Delivery assumed to be delayed 

until 2022/23 no clear evidence of non delivery given current 

status of site.

P
age 89



Policy 

PLYMOUTH LPA

Site Name

Planning 

Application 

Number

P
la

n
n

in
g
 S

ta
tu

s 

a
t 

e
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s 

P
e
rm

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s 

D
e
li
v
e
re

d
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1
9

2
0
1
9
-2

0

2
0
2
0
-2

1

2
0
2
1
-2

2

2
0
2
2
-2

3

2
0
2
3
-2

4

 T
o

ta
l 
P

la
n

 R
e
m

a
in

d
e
r

 2
0
2
4
-3

4

2
0
3
4
/3

5
+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 

board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accelerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promoter 

Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

PLY48
Sherford New Community Land 

South/Southwest of A38
15/00519/REM BOVIS Site Under Construction 212 107 8 0 0 0 0 0 0

PLY48
Sherford New Community Land 

South/Southwest of A38

15/00517/REM and 

16/00287/REM 

TAYLOR WIMPEY

Now 24 instead of 19 

4430/17/ARM 

(increase of 5)

Site Under Construction 209 83 28 0 0 0 22 0 0

PLY48
Sherford New Community Land 

South/Southwest of A38

15/00518/REM 

LINDEN 

15/00958/REM(ANO

THER CONSENT 

FOR 25)

Site Under Construction 189 34 10 0 0 0 0 0 0

5
 Y

e
a

r 
S

u
p

p
ly

 

T
o

ta
l

2
0
1
9
-2

0

2
0
2
0
-2

1

2
0
2
1
-2

2

2
0
2
2
-2

3

2
0
2
3
-2

4

2,791 519 413 800 679 380

742 390 201 142 9 0

666 462 0 41 163 0

236 92 94 50 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

-18 -4 -9 -5 0 0

84 0 0 0 42 42

-3 0 -3 0 0 0

-381 -303 0 -78 0 0

4,117 1,156 696 950 893 422

Yes N/A

Small Windfalls Forecast

Communal Accommodation (Net)

Demolition and Conversion Loss

TOTAL

Large Sites  Commitments at March 2019

Large Sites  Commitments at March 2019 (Student Accommodation)

Small Sites  Commitments at March 2019 (before applying discount for future lapsing)

Small Sites Commitments at March 2019 (Student Accommodation)

Small Sites 10% allowance for future lapsing (applied only to commitments not started)

PLYMOUTH  LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY  ADMINISTRATIVE AREA

TRAJECTORY SUMMARY

FORECAST HOUSING SUPPLY 2019 to 2024 

Supply Categories 

Allocated Sites

Site is a major new settlement with outline consent for 5,500 

dwellings.  The site has detailed consent for 610 dwellings as at April 

2019.  The site straddles the city boundary and 292 dwellings with 

detailed consent are within the city boundary and the other 318 are 

within South Hams LPA area.  The remaining dwellings associated 

with Sherford fall within the South Hams LPA area. As at April 2019 

only 68 dwellings remain to complete in the Plymouth LPA area.  

Developer confirms the 46 dwellings under construction will 

complete in 2019/20.  Developer anticipates the remaining 22 

dwellings in Plymouth are anticipiated to be delivered later in 2023/24 

post relocation of show room and car park.  The consortium of 

developers (Linden, Taylor Wimpey and Bovis) have indicated a 

delivery profile of 264 dpa  (across both LPA areas) and have 

indicated delivery could increase to 300 dpa (all development post 

2020 is within the South Hams LPA area).  

P
age 90



 
 

APPENDIX 3 
South Hams LPA supply over the next 5 

years (2019-2024) 

Page 91



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

SOUTH HAMS LARGE SITES
0 West Alvington Hill, 

KINGSBRIDGE
28/0508/15/O Planning 

permission- 
Not Yet Started

60 0 0 0 20 20 20 0 0 Site has outline consent for up to 60 dwellings. Current 
detailed planning application  (Reserved Matters for 57 dws)  
validated. Additional information about the RM application 
has been requested and a time extension agreed.  Capacity 
remains at 60 dwellings as decision penidng on RM 
application. Site land owner/developer is a house-builder  
(Baker Estates).  No site start and as expected no dwellings 
completed at the 2019MP.

Yes - agrees with  build rates, and 
anticipates a swift site start in 2019/2020.

At this time, the RM application has not been determined, 
so the site capacity remains at the 60 dwellings from the 
outline consent.  Developer agrees wtih build rate 
assumptions (20dpa), which are realistic, mindful that 
developer is proceeding with nearby  development at 
Malborough. Developer provided delivery trajectory 
anticipates first dwellings in 2020/21.  Sufficient lead in 
time available  for first completions forecast to be 
2021/22.With RM applcation submitted by a housebuilder 
and trajectory agreed the Council considers there is 
sufficient clear evidence that the dwellings will be begun 
and completed in   the 5 year period, and are therefore in 
the forecast for the 5 years from the 2019MP.

0 Kings Arms Hotel, Fore 
Street, KINGSBRIDGE 
TQ7 1AB

1515/17/FUL Planning 
permission- 
Not Yet Started

15 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (full) for 15 dwellings. As expected 
by the previous forecast, the site had not started and no 
dwellings were completed as at end March 2019.   
Landowner was Vision Residences - site has been marketed.
New information from the developer's agent :- the build 
contract is out to tender.

Yes
Agent for  developer had previously  
indicated that site is unlikely to start 
before summer 2019 and take 2 years to 
complete.  New  information by telephone 
from the agent for the developer: site start 
is now expected within 6 to 12 months; & 
a 2.5 year build programme, ie later than 
previously forecast. Implies 15 completions 
in 2022/23 - Council agrees.

Previous forecast was based  on standard lead  in time; 
and build programme indicated in the application for this 
conversion of a listed building  + 2 new build dwellings. 
New information indicates a delay, and increased lead in 
time. So taking new information into account, the Council 
anticipates 15 dwelling completions in 2022/23 (ie All 15 
dws forecast for delivery in the 5 year period).

0 Rainbow View, Parkers 
Way TOTNES

1483/17/POD
3895/17/POD 

Under construction 26 0 0 26 0 0 0 0 0 Site has 2 alternative consents -where Prior Approval has 
been given (26 and 30 dwellings).   Separate Full application 
for external works - granted approval. Some demolition 
works within the Prior Approval  occurred in 2018.  Site has 
started by end March 2019  (ground breaking ceremony was 
held 13 March 2019). As expected, no dwellings were 
completed in 2018/19.   Developer is Leading Homes and 
main build contractor is SEG Building Services .
Leading Homes state that further detailed application(s) is to 
be submitted - but further information about this is to be 
announced.

Yes.
Agent previoiusly advised that  landowner 
did  not intend to implement the 
1483/17/POD consent for 26 dws. New 
response from. Leading Homes confirms 
intention to progress 3895/17/POD (ie 30 
dws) but has also agreed with the Council's 
trajectory for 26 dwellings (and to the build 
rate and date of first completions).

Previous trajectory relied on standard  Lead in time. That 
has been superseded by  site start, demolitions on site and 
role of Leading Homes in delivering the development.  
Now realistic to aniticpate completions earlier than 
previously forecast. Build rate consistent with proposal 
being an office to residential conversion  & all completions 
at same time in a single year 2020/21, so no change in 
build rate compared to previous forecast.  Some 
uncertainty about the number of dwellings so the Council 
considers it prudent for this forecast to be based on  26 
dwellings, forecast for completion in 2020/21. (All 26 dws 
forecast for delivery in the 5 year period.)   
Application for the 30 dws scheme did not provide 
floorplans so unable to determine dwelling mix at this 
time. Subsequent monitoring will check number and mix 
of dws.   Any future development  proposals on this site 
will be considered in  future 5YLS assessments.

0 Tides Reach Hotel, Cliff 
Road, SALCOMBE TQ8 
8LJ

2826/15/FUL Planning 
permission- 
Not Yet Started

10 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (full)  for refurbishment of hotel an 
c/u of hotel to 10 dwellings.  Agent information: Site started 
14 May 2019  including substantial drainage works and 
drainage infrastructure.  As expected, there were no dwelling 
completions by end March 2019.  Landowner is Harbour 
Hotel Ltd.  Build contractor has been appointed.

Yes Same  lead in time and completion of 15 dws (and the 
hotel) in 2020/21, as in previous forecast. Ie all 15  dws 
forecast for delivery in the 5 year period from the 2019MP. 

0 Land at SX805 510, 
Town Farm, 
BLACKAWTON

06/0992/14/F Under construction 60 22 25 13 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction  following detailed consent (full) for 
60 dwellings.  22 completions in 2018/19 is slower than the 
30 that had been forecast.  21 dwellings under construction 
at the 2019 Monitoring Point.  Linden Homes is the site 
developer.

No response With site start and  completions in 2018/19 there is no 
change to the lead in time. However, the slower than 
expected delivery in 2018/19 coupled with 21  dwellings 
under construction  indicates a modest slowdown. The 
Council considers it prudent to reduce the build rate from 
30dpa in the previous forecast down to  25dpa . This 
reduces the forecast completions in 2019/20 from 30 
down to 25, & the remaining 13 dwellings completed in 
2020/21. Ie 38  dws forecast delivery in the 5 year period. 

Page  1

P
age 92



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

0 Land north of Canes 
Orchard BRIXTON

1825/16/OPA Planning 
permission- 
Not Yet Started

28 0 0 8 20 0 0 0 0 Site had outline consent for 29 dws, but since the 2019 
Monitoring Point the site benefits from the  subsequent 19 
June 2019  Committee resolution to approve a detailed 
application for 28 dws.  As expected, there was no site start 
and no dwellings completed as at the 2019 Monitoring Point. 
ADPAD is the developer and intends to build the dwellings.  
Forecast of of a slightly later start and  first completions  
results in  fewer dwellings forecast for delivery in 2020/21 (8) 
compared to the previous forecast of 20 but otherwise no 
evidence of slowdown or acceleration.  

No (but this was because the developer 
had not anticipated the positive outcome 
of the DM committee decision in June 
2019). Developer still expected 
development to occur. 

Previous forecast  based on average lead in time for site 
size (Housing Topic paper Appendix 11.2 (TP3(rev)) , 
modified by progress of RM applications.  Application for 
28 dws has committee resolution to approve (subject to 
S106). But no application yet to discharge conditions.  It is 
necessary to allow sufficient time to submit & determine 
application(s) to discharge conditions.  Site start forecast 
therefore put back from September 2019 to early winter 
2019, and consequential change to date of first 
completions, now forecast to be October 2020.
No change to forecast build rate (20 pa- as this is a smaller 
site, expectation of SME).  Ie all 28  dws forecast for 
delivery in the 5 year period. 

0 Hareston Farm, BRIXTON Under construction 14 4 4 4 2 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction following detailed consent for 
conversion of barns to dwelling.  4 built and 10 under 
construction  at the  2019 monitoring point. Development 
has been slower than previous forecast (which anticipated  9 
dws built in 2018/19 including the Pump House).  The 
developer Dart Developments confirms that the slow down 
was due to very slow sales.

No (but this was because the developer 
also counted 2 other dwellings with Class Q 
Prior Approval which the Council does not 
include in the large site forecast).  
Developer considers build rate is 4 dpa.

Council accepts the developer's forecast build rate of 4 
dpa, so site is forecast to be completed Autumn 2021 ( Ie 
the remaining 10  dws forecast for delivery in the 5 year 
period). 

0 field opposite Wheat 
Park, Totnes Road, 
DIPTFORD

17/2267/12/F Under construction 12 0 0 10 2 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed (full) consent. Technical site start by March 
2016 related to detailed consent (full ) for 15 dws. New 
detailed consent (full)   0428/18/FUL for 12 dws granted in 30 
July 2018 - applicant was Jameson Homes.  New Deed of 
Variation of the S106 agreement was signed  with new 
developer Jameson Homes. Application  to discharge 
conditions 13 and 14 of consent 0428/18/FUL granted 
December 2018. As previously expected, no dwelling 
completions in 2018/19.  Developer  Jameson Homes is the 
housebuilder and agrees with forecast build rate, lead in 
times  and the trajectory (for 12 dws).

Yes (Jameson Homes confirms intent to 
implement new full planning consent for 
12 dws and that site remains available).

Council trajectory reflects the new consent ( Ie all 12  dws 
forecast for delivery in the 5 year period). 

0 Gara Rock Hotel, EAST 
PORTLEMOUTH (western 
building; rotunda; + 
secret suite)

3586/16/F Planning 
permission- 
Site Started

13 10 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction following detailed consent (full) for 
change of use to 13 dws (C3) .   Agent for developer has now 
confimed that application 1138/18/VAR for 13x  C3 dws has 
been implemented. Although 1 dwelling was previously 
under construction as part of the hotel development, only 
the building shell was built;  the interior was not completed. 
So no completion of that dwelling occured at that time. 
Development has accelerated with 10 dwellings completed in 
2018/19, earlier than previously expected. The remaining 3 
dwellings were under construction at the 2019MP.

Yes. (Agreed  trajectory (by telephone) - 
and confirmed that application 
1138/18/VAR has been implemented). 

Council amended the  trajectory - so that at the 2019MP it 
reflects the accelerated development, with 10 xC3 
dwellings completed in 2018/19.  3 xC3 dwellings 
remained under construction and are expected to be 
completed in 2019/20 (Ie the 3 remaining  dws forecast for 
delivery in the 5 year period). 

0 Development site of SX 
7752 4240, FROGMORE

43/2855/14/F 
2071/18/FUL

Under construction 11 9 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction following detailed consents (full) 
for a net total of 11 dwellings, 9 of which were  built before 
2018. No  change to site capacity but timing of completion of 
the remaining 2 dwellings amended compared to previous 
forecast as no dwellings were under construction at end 
March 2019 . Agent confirms that landowner intends to  to 
implement application 2071/18/FUL (2 dwellings) . 

Yes -(agreed by agent for land owner by 
telephone 9 May 2019).

Latest  intelligence from the agent for the landowner  re- 
affirmed that the intention is to implement application 
2071/18/FUL (2 dwellings)and provides evidence to justify 
amending the site start date and the completion date of 
the 2 dwellings).  The Councils’ latest forecast anticipates 
2 dwellings being completed in 2020/21 (( Ie the 
remaining 2 dws are  forecast for delivery in the 5 year 
period). 

Page  2

P
age 93



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

0 Land at Alston Gate, 
MALBOROUGH TQ7 3BT

33_46/0918/14/O Planning 
permission- 
Not Yet Started

16 0 0 0 0 16 0 0 0 Site   (Alston Gate Phase 2  Malborough)  has detailed 
consent (RM) for 16 dwellings following outline consent 
granted December  2017.  Discharge of some conditions 
approved 20 June 2018, but application to discharge 
precommencement condition for a Construction 
Management Plan has not yet been received  As expected, 
site has not started and no dwelling completions as at the 
2019 Monitoring Point.  Site remains available.

No response from applicant (Cholwells 
Court.)

Trajectory allows sufficient time to submit and determine 
application to discharge precommencement condition 
relating to  CMP, with site start by end 2020 if this consent 
is to be implemented. The Council have applied a reality 
check and amended their initial forecast. The Council now 
forecasts dwelling completions on Alston Gate Phase 2, 
Malborough being delivered in 2022/23 once  the 
completions of dwellings consented at Malborough Park 
(now under construction) have finished. This implies site 
works in first half of  2021/22, with dwellings under 
construction in 2nd half of 2021/22 and first completions 
from Spring 2022 (ie all 16 dws delivered in the 5 year 
period).

Tor Hill Quarry, Ipplepen 
Road, MARLDON TQ3 
1SE

3951/17/FUL Planning 
permission- 
Not Yet Started

10 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (full) for 10 dwellings. 
 This is a new site (windfall) because it was granted 
conditional approval  in 2018/19 so there is no previous 
forecast. Site has not started as at 2019 Monitoring Point. 
There were no completions in 2018/19.  No application yet 
received to discharge conditions. The developer Lite Homes 
confirms the site is available.

Yes (telephone information  from 
developer Lite Homes Ltd, that the site is 
available, that they expect to deliver 10 
dwellings  in 2021/22)

Mindful of the new information from developer, Lite 
Homes, the Council concludes there is sufficient time to 
submit & determine an application  to discharge 
precommencement conditions, undertake enabling/ site 
works and  construct 10 dwellings by  March 2022.( Ie all 
10 dws are  forecast for delivery in the 5 year period).

0 Stanborough Farm, 
Moreleigh, TOTNES TQ9 
7JQ

22/1967/13/F Under construction 12 8 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction, with 8 dwelllings built 2014-19. 
The 2 in 2018/19 is slighlty slower delivery than the 4 
previously forecast. Agent confirms that the 2  dwellings 
under construction at 2019MP are intended to be completed 
by March 2020 and the remaining 2 completed  by March 
2021.  Landowner is project managing the house-building.

Yes (information from agent for 
landowner)

Mindful of completions to date, and intelligence provided 
by the developer, the Council forecasts  all the remaining 4 
dwellings  for delivery in the 5 year period.

0 Sx 5670 4944, west of 
Collaton Park, NEWTON 
FERRERS

37/2548/14/O Planning 
permission- 
Not Yet Started

70 0 0 0 0 20 30 20 0 Site has outline consent for 70 dws.
Detailed planning  application  for approval of one of the 
Reserved Matters (layout)-validated 16 August 2018, decision 
pending.
Further RM applications will be submitted. 
Application to discharge condition 2 (phasing) was approved 
20 August 2018.  Applications to discharge other conditions - 
yet to be recieved.
As expected, the site has not started and there were no 
dwelling completions as at the 2019 Monitoring Point.
The Design and Access Statement in the RM application, 
states that Pillar Land Securities and Coln Residential (a 
housebuilding company) are Joint Venture Partners in this 
scheme. Agent confirms that the site remains available.

Yes (and information from agent for 
landowner/applicant - anticipate further 
RM applications in the next 1 to 2 years).

The Councils are mindful that the first RM application 
(landscape only) has not yet been determined, other RM 
applications are needed  and other pre-commencement 
planning conditions need to be discharged. The lead in 
time  also allows for site works and build out.  So the 
Councils revised  delivery profile compared to the previous 
forecast - now expects first dwellings completions April 
2022. Applications for other Reserved Matters are 
expected to be  linked to the land sale to the developer/ 
builder) .    
Build rate assumption - same as previous forecast. 
With builder as Joint Venture Partner, agreement on 
delivery trajectory, and first RM application being 
processed, the Council concludes this is sufficient evidence 
to include  50 of the 70 dwellings consented in the 
forecast of delivery in the 5 year period from the 2019MP.

0 Yealm Hotel, 104 Yealm 
Road, NEWTON FERRERS

0607/17/FUL
2975/17/VAR

Under construction 15 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site under construction following  detailed consents (full) for 
15 dws and suite of consents for discharge of conditions, The 
site has started, 15 dwellings were under construction as at 
2019 Monitoring Point. As expected, there were no 
completions in 2018/19.  Developer  agrees with trajectory. 
Developer (Red Earth Yealm Ltd)  confirmed that 
groundworks started in May 2018 and main contract works 
started August 2018

Yes  ( confirms that all 15 dws will be 
completed at the same time (December 
2019) with no phasing., and confirms that 
application 2975/17/VAR has been 
implemented)

All 15  dws forecast for delivery in the 5 year period. 

Page  3

P
age 94



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

0 Proposed Development 
Site At Sx 8504 5721  
Coombe Shute STOKE 
GABRIEL

52/2477/15/F Under construction 10 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction following detailed consent (full) for 
10 dws.  As expected, site had started but no dwellings were 
completed in 2018/19.  All 10 dwellings are forecast for 
completion in 2019/20 and developer agrees with trajectory.

Yes  (Developer Blue Cedar Homes 
previously advised that completion of the 
scheme is scheduled for June 2019)

All 10 dws forecast for delivery in the 5 year period. 

0 Sx 8502 5769 Paignton 
Road, STOKE GABRIEL

52/1503/15F Under construction 53 31 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction following detailed consent (full) 
and development has accelerated since the site  start in 
January 2018,  with 31 dwellngs completed in 2018/19 
compared to the 8 previously forecast.  Developer  Cavanna 
Homes agrees with the current forecast of 22 completions in 
2019/20 when the site will be completed.

Yes All 22 remaining  dws forecast for delivery in the 5 year 
period. 

0 Gabriel Court Hotel, 
Stoke Hill, STOKE 
GABRIEL

3903/16F Under construction 12 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction following latest detailed consent 
September 2017 and an application to vary the consent was 
approved after the  2019 Monitoring Point (no change in site 
capacity).  Applications to discharge conditions were 
approved in 2018. One existing dwelling was demolished 
after the 2019  Monitoring Point (ie 3112/18/VAR has been 
implemented). 
As expected no dwellings were completed in 2018/19.  Of the 
gross  13 dwellings with detailed consent, gross 9 (net 8) dws 
were under construction and 4 had not commenced at the 
2019 Monitoring Point.  Developer/builder Park Green (SW) 
Ltd agrees with the forecast of the gross 13 (net 12) dwellings 
being completed in 2019/20.

Yes All gross 13 (Net 12 dws) forecast for completion in the 5 
year period. 

0 Development site at 
Knighton Road, 
WEMBURY

58/1352/12/F Under construction 26 23 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction following detailed (full) consetn for 
26 dws. Although the development accelerated last year with 
13 dwellings completed in 2017/18, the development has 
slowed  with only  2 completions in 2018/19, compared to 
the 5 forecast. The remaining 3 dwellings were under 
construction at March 2019 and are forecast for completiion 
in 2019/20, which is agreed by the developer J and M Homes 
Ltd.

Yes (developer expects the remaining 3 
dwellings to be completed by August 2019)

All 3 remaining  dws forecast for delivery in the 5 year 
period.

Fort Bovisand, 
BOVISAND, Devon PL9 
0AB

2821/17/FUL  Planning 
permission- 
Not Yet Started

79 0 0 4 0 75 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (full) for gross 81 dwellings  (net 79 
as there were 2 existing dwellings on the site) plus Listed 
Building consent.  Full application for engineering works to 
stabilise the cliff below the access road, pending decision.  
Currently  discharging planning conditions.
This is effectively a new site (windfall) and there is no 
previous forecast delivery profile. (Although there had been a 
previous consent in 2016/17 for 50 dwellings it was 
dependent on a funding bid that was unsuccessful, so the 
Council assumed nil dwelling delivery and no forecast was 
made for the 2018 MP regarding that earlier consent.) 
Developer for the new consent is Fort Bovisand 
Developments Ltd.

Yes. Information by telephone in June 2019 
from agent for developer (Fort Bovisand 
Developments Ltd) :  forecast of gross 6 
dws  -the coastal cottages  completions at 
end 2020,  and the remaining 75 dwellings 
completions at end 2022.

Council   agrees with the developer (Fort Bovisand 
Developments Ltd) forecast of gross 6 dws (-the coastal 
cottages) completions in 2020/21 (net 4 counting the 
demolitions elsewhere on site),  and the remaining 75 
dwellings completions in 2022/23 . This is mindful that 41 
of these 75 will be new build apartments in a single 
building, and 34 dwellings from conversion of the upper 
and lower forts and casemates& of the Quartermaster 
House and Hill House, plus  new build Quarry Road 
cottages.  This allows sufficient time to discharge 
conditions, undertake site works and build out. ie All gross 
81 (net 79 x C3 dws) forecast for delivery in the 5 year 
period.

Page  4

P
age 95



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

TTV4 land at Cotton, 
DARTMOUTH

15_51/1710/14/O Planning 
permission- 
Not Yet Started

450 0 0 15 40 40 50 305 0 Site has Outline consents totalling 450 dws  comprising: 240 
dwellings (15_51/1710/14/O) (granted March 2016) & 210 
dws   (3475/17/OPA) on remainder of site  - granted 24 May 
2019, after the 2019 MP. 
No detailed consent.
Baker Estates has acquired the site & submitted the  2 RM 
applications. They  have now submitted 2 RM applications:   
for 3 dws (Phase 1A) validated 06 February 2019, but not 
determined as at 5 July 2019; and  for Phase 1 (240 dws) was 
validated 15 March 2019, but not determined as at 5 July 
2019.  
As expected, the site has not started and there were no 
completions at the 2019MP.

Yes With forecast first completions (15) in 2020/21 and a build 
rate of  40-50 dpa thereafter, 145 dwellings are forecast 
for completion in the  5 year period.  With the site owned 
and being developed by a housebuilder, the first RM 
applications validated and the developer agreeing with the 
trajectory, the Council considers there is sufficient clear 
evidence that  145 dwellings  will be begun and delivered 
in the 5 year period.

TTV5 Noss-on-Dart, 
DARTMOUTH

2161/17/OPA Planning 
permission- 
site started

126 0 -4 0 0 39 30 61 0 Site has hybrid consent for gross 130 (net 126) dws granted in 
August 2018. 39 of these dws have  detailed (full)  consent. 
Conditions being discharged. No reserved matters 
applications received as at 5 July 2019. 
Latest information from agent for Premier Marinas Ltd 
(landowner/developer ) -  series of RM applicationsfor the 
remainder of the dwellings would be submitted from 2022/3 
developed from 2023 onwards,
4 existing dwellings demolished since the 2019MP. As 
expected no dwellings completed by the 2019 Monitoring 
Point. Mindful of conditions in the consent & information 
from the developer, it is prudent  to increase the lead in time 
to mid 2022 when the new Philips building is expected to be 
completed. New forecast is for the 39 dwellings with detailed 
consent built by March 2023.  Forecast of  further dwelling 
completions in 2023/24, and continuing thereafter is realistic 
and consistent with the developer's information.

Yes broadly- Developer's Agent advice:  Not 
envisaged that residential development 
will commence until late 2020/2021;  
initial detailed phase of 39 units likely to be 
delivered over 2 years, and thereafter the 
RMs submitted and developed from 2023 
onwards. Premier Marinas are currently on 
site, actively progressing the development 
discharging relevant planning conditions -
so, it is likely that their current assumed 
phasing is a reasonable assumption at this 
stage. 
Note: Premier Marinas website data (May 
2019) : Construction of commercial 
buildings in July 2019 & new boatyard in 
October 2019. Renewal of  floating marina  
to begin winter 2019/20, then 
development of the hotel, new Philips 
Building & public areas. Premier aim to 
finish  these core elements by mid-2022.

The Council are mindful of consent, conditions, & phasing 
plan. These require that certain elements are delivered 
prior to commencement of any residential development. 
Those elements are not yet completed or commenced in 
some cases at June 2019. 
The Council have revised the trajectory with a longer lead 
in time, in line with developer information. Thus, gross 39 
dwellings are now forecast to be delivered in 2022/23 (ie 
the 23  Philips Building apartments (mid 2022), and 16 
waterside apartments by March 2023).  Forecast  build 
rate of 30dpa thereafter, starting with antipated  
completion of  the 13 South Bay apartments in 2023/24 
plus 17 other units currently with outline consent.The 
Council considers there is sufficient clear evidence that a 
total of gross 69 (net 65) dwellings will be begun and 
completed in the 5 year period from the 2019MP. 
The remaining 61 units with outline are forecast for 
delivery after the 5 year period. On these assumptions, 
anticipate all 130 dwellings being completed by March 
2026.

TTV6 East of Ivybridge, 
IVYBRIDGE 

27_57/1347/14/F 
NDY on 
57/2472/14/O

Part Under 
Construction (222 
dws)
Part Planning 
permission (not 
started) (198 dws)
Part Allocation 120 
dws

540 97 55 55 30 40 40 223 0 The site is controlled by 3 different developers.   Barratt 
David Wilson Homes (27_57/1347/14/F) has detailed consent 
for 222 dwellings.  Planning applications for discharge of pre-
commencement conditions were submitted and approved in 
2017 for this part of the site. The consent has been 
implemented, 97 dwellings completed and 60 under 
construction at the 2018MP. The BDW site has accelerated 
due to greater demand for units and the initial parcel didn’t 
have much affordable  - but  are now delivering  affordabel at 
pace.
The Wainhomes site now has outline consent (when the 
applicant  for 57/2472/14/O had been Hannick Homes) for up 
to 198 dws - granted 4 September 2018. .  
The remaining part of the site does not yet have an outline or 
detailed planning application.  It is part of the JLP allocation. 
An application by Taylor Wimpey requesting an EIA screening 
opinion related to 120 dws was determined in 2017 
(screening not required) .
As expected there was no site start and no completions on 
the Wainhomes and Taylor Wimpey parts of the site at the 
2019MP.

Barratt David Wilson - yes (the Councils 
accept their trajectory update for their 
consented development).
Wainhomes - yes (the Councils accept their 
trajectory update related to the consented 
development on the land that they have 
acquired. Wainhomes advise that an RM 
application to be submittted June/July 
2019).
Taylor Wimpey - No  (advise that Full 
application to be submitted June/July 2019 
- and have held initial public consultation 
event prior to preparing RM application).

The Councils have revised the initial 2019MP  trajectories 
in light of information received from the 3 
developers.BDW  development is in progress and the build 
rate forecast is consistent with rates they have acheived to 
date.Their last year of developement overlaps with the 
start of forecast completions on the Wainhomes outlet. 
Wainhomes intend submitting detailed (RM) application in 
June /July 2019. The Council considers this is sufficient 
clear evidence that 85 dwellings on the Wainhomes outlet 
will  be begun in the 5 year period. Taylor Wimpey does 
not yet have a consent. They intend submitting a detailed 
application in June/July 2019. But the combination of 
Barratt, Wainhomes and Taylor Wimpey trajectories plus 
forecast completions at Filham in Ivybridge would result in 
an unrealistic delivery rate in 2022/23 and 2023/24. This is 
of  particular concern when considered in the context of 
the delivery rate at Sherford.  So the Counci ls have 
modified the trajectory by forecasting delivery on the 
Taylor Wimpey outlet after the 5 year period. This 
'smooths' the trajectory for the site and across Ivybridge.

Page  5

P
age 96



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

TTV7 land at Filham, 
IVYBRIDGE

3703/18/OPA Allocation 200 0 0 0 30 40 50 80 0 The site is a JLP  allocation.  The developer Bloor Homes has 
submitted a hybrid application (3703/18/OPA) for 220 
dwellings (detailed for 107 and outline for 113 dwellings) 
which was validated in November 2018, and a decision is 
pending. The site is available and the developer/ 
housebuilder Bloor Homes have provided a delivery profile. 
The Council agrees with the build rate, and the forecast of 
120 dwellings delivered in the 5 year period, but is more 
cautious, with first completions  forecast in 2021/22, and  
site capacity currently at 200 dwellings. 

Yes in part. Bloor Homes forecasts 120 
dwelling completions in the 5 year period 
but with the first completions in October 
2020, resulting in 10 completions in 
2020/21, 30 in 2021/22, 30 in 2022/23, 50 
in 2023/24 and 40 dpa thereafter.  Their 
total completions forecast is based on the 
220 dwellings proposed in the hybrid 
application.

 Hybrid application has been validated and is progressing 
through the DM process, not yet determined. So site 
capacity  remains at 200 dwellings as in JLP Policy TTV7.   
The Council considers there is sufficent evidence to include 
120 completions in the 5 year period. Bloor are a 
housebuilder & confirm they have options over the land. 
They also provided a trajectory.  But the Council concludes 
first completions in October 2020 is optimistic because of 
insufficient time to complete the DM process,  to 
discharge conditions, to purchase site, & undertake site 
works & building construction. Council's more cautious 
forecast is for first completions to slip to 2021/22. Accept 
Bloor Homes forecast of 30 dws in 2021/22, then increase 
rate to 40 dpa (with 50 in 2023/24). Consequential 
modification by the Council to the TTV6 East of Ivybridge 
trajectory (Taylor Wimpey have not yet submitted an 
application, so dwellings on their site are forecast for 
delivery from 2024/25). This  avoids an unrealistic delivery 
rate overall at Ivybridge particularly when considered in 
the context of the delivery  at Sherford. 

TTV8 Land at Stibb Lane, 
IVYBRIDGE

3954/17/FUL Planning 
Permission - 
Not Yet Started

101 0 5 45 45 6 0 0 0 Site has detailed (full) consent for 101 dwellings. Application 
to discharge conditions validated 13 June 2019, decision 
pending. Persimmon are a housebuilder, have provided a 
trajectory, are the landowner and confirmed that the site is 
available. This site's forecast delivery starting  in 2019/20 
follows on from the completion of the Persimmon  Woodland 
Road Site (which has completed).  Delivery of the first 
dwellings  is later than previously forecast as date of consent 
was slightly later than predicted, & conditions have not yet 
been discharged.

Yes ( Persimmon forecasts site start July 
2019, with site works to September 2019, 
and first dwellings completed in March 
2020. First completions (5) delivered at the 
end of 2019/20. Persimmon's trajectory is 
slightly modified, with 45 dpa build rate 
compared to previous trajecory 50dpa 
forecast. Final 6 dws forecast to be 
completed at the beginning of 2022/23)

The Council agrees with the Persimmon trajectory. Target 
date for approval of ARC application to discharge 
precommencement conditions is August 2019.  So the 
Councils consider a forecast site start (ie development 
commencement) in July 2019 is optimistic, but there is still 
sufficient time to complete that DM process , site start 
and works and dwelling construction to deliver a small 
number of dwellings at the end of 2019/20. Delivery rate 
of 45dpa is realistic, mindful of the rate Persimmon 
achieved on their adjoining Woodland Road site. All 101 
dwellings are forecast for completion in the 5 year period

TTV9.1 Stowford Mill, 
IVYBRIDGE

27/1336/15/F Under Construction 97 0 16 15 0 39 0 27 0 Site under construction following detailed consent (Full) for 
Mixed use including 97 dws (regeneration of Stowford Mill 
(27 dws) plus erection of 38 new dws & 32 later living 
apartments.) Application to vary consent (net gain of 6 dws 
from increasing later living apartments by 11 to 43 and 
reducing  number of terraced dwellings by 5 ) not approved 
until after the 2019MP so not included in this trajectory.
Site started 6 October 2018. First dwelling now completed 
(post 2019MP) & 3 others were under construction at 
2019MP.
Delivery profile has slipped by a year, reflecting site start 
date, time for demolition &site works & actual lead in time 
(delivery of first dwelling in June 2019), as well as updated 
intelligence from the developer.  Now realistic to forecast the 
27 mill conversion apartments after the end of the 5 years 
from the 2019 MP.  So, fewer dwellings (70 dws) are forecast 
for completion in the 5 year period compared to previous 
trajectory ( 97dws) .

Yes, broadly. (Telephone supplied 
Information from Expedite - their 
expectation of 31 dws (new build) 
completed by June 2020; Later living 
apartments  by March 2023, and the mill 
conversion 2024/25 ie after the end of the 
5 year period)

Council agree with developers trajectory, but has modified 
the profile to forecast some completions in 2019/20  (1 
dwelling has already been completed, 3 were under 
construction, and the  June 2019 launch event can be 
expected to  encourage interest).Thus, reasonable to 
forecast delivery of  tiers 2, 3 and 4 (16 dws) in 2019/20 
and tier 1 & walled garden & farm conversion (15 dws) in 
2020/21. Currently forecast  32 later living apartments 
plus residue of 5 dws completion in 2022/23 (will be 
increased in the 2020MP trajectory when the Post 
2019MP variation consent can be counted).
Stowford Mill development serves a niche market. Its 
products are sufficiently different to set it apart from 
other large sites in Ivybridge (the latter are suburban 
estates) & from the Sherford  urban extension . So build 
rate/delivery profile of Stowford Mill development has not 
been moderated by the forecast  cumulative delivery rate 
of other Ivybridge sites.

Page  6

P
age 97



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

TTV9.3 Cornwood Road, 
IVYBRIDGE

2208/16/FUL Under Construction 34 13 21 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction following detailed (full) consent for 
35 dwellings (net 34).  Development has accelerated, as the 
gross 14 (net 13 dws) completions exceeded the 7 dws 
previously forecast for 2018/19.  9 dws were under 
construction at the 2019MP  and the developer Larkfleet 
Homes agrees that those 9 and the 12 not started will be 
completed in 2019/20.

Yes All gross 35 (net 34) dwellings are forecast for delivery in 
the  5 year period  from the 2019MP.

TTV11 West of Belle Hill, 
KINGSBRIDGE

0299/17/OPA Planning 
Permission - 
Not Yet Started

96 0 0 20 30 30 16 0 0 Outline consent  granted October 2017  for 96 dwellings.  RM 
application for 96 dws submitted by developer/ housebuilder 
Devonshire Homes,  validated March 2019 (slightly later than 
forecast), decision pending.  ARC application to discharge 
precommencement conditions also submitted March 2019. 
Forecast of first completions August 2020, with partial year 
delivery of 20 in 2019/20 then build rate of 30dpa.
LiveWest and Devonshire Homes confirmed site is available & 
they will jointly progress the consent.

Yes Lead in time is realistic, - allows sufficient time to 
complete DM process, site start and works.  LiveWest 
currently own the site. A 30dpa build rate is realistic, 
mindful of local housing market, site topography, and 
other development sites being developed at Kingsbridge.  
All 96 dws forecast for delivery in the 5 year period.

TTV22.2 Great Court Farm,  
TOTNES

03/2163/14/O
3715/16/ARM 

Under Construction 74 46 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction. 46 dws have been built of which 
41  built in 2018/19 exceeding the previouse forecast of 36 
dws for that year; 28 dwellings were under construction at 
the 2019MP. This indicates that development has 
accelerated. Same assumption of build rate of about 35 dpa, 
as used in the previous forecast so site is expected to 
completed by end 2019/20. Housebuilder/developer (Baker 
Estates) agrees with the trajectory.

Yes All  remaining 28 dws forecast for completion in the 5 year 
period from the 2019 MP.  

TTV22.3 Transition Homes, 
TOTNES

2927/15/FUL Planning 
Permission - 
Not Yet Started

27 0 0 27 0 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (full) for  27 dws (part of hybrid 
consent). Site not started. As expected , no dwellings 
completions at 2019MP. 
Subsequent 3945/18/VAR   to replace the 2 units  with:2 x 1 
bed flats and 4 x studio flat  validated 30 November 2018 - 
decision pending.  0197/18/ARM got erection of a 
Community Building approved 19 June 2019. As expected, no 
site start &no completions at 2019MP.  Delay in appointing 
contractor (selected contractor confirmed in Feb 2019 they 
would not take on the contract) so Transition Homes have 
run a retendering process; now appointed a new building 
contactor for stage 1 of the build contract. Site benefits from 
significant funding awarded to or secured for the CLT:
•  £190,000 from Community Housing Fund  
•  £108,000 funding from S106 Agreement sources
• £450,000 from HCA Shared ownership capital funding
• £300,000 from Community Infrastructure Fund 
 .

Yes - agrees with trajectory and build rate 
(Project Coordinator for Transition Homes 
Totnes CLT - advised that this is a 21 month 
programme in total, with a 17 month 
dwellings construction indicating a build 
rate equating to about 20dpa. Also advises 
that Stage 1 appoint made for a preferred 
build contract (2 stage negotiated tender)).

Trajcetory reflects latest nformation from the CLT Project 
Coordinator about scheme funding to support the latest 
delivery programme. Significant funding was awarded to 
or secured for the CLT in the last year :
Ryearch are the selected builder.  Lead in time:
• site start has been put back to October 2019 , due to 
need to retender and apoint a new building contractor
• 4-5 months of post commencement site works are 
expected (now implying completion in Jan 2020) 
• Then there is a period of 8 months to completion of 
Phase 1 (all 17 dwellings in Phase 1 completed at same 
time now implying all completed in July 2020  ie in 
financial year 2020/21)  
• Then a further 9 months to complete Phase 2 (all 10 
dwellings in Phase 2 completed at same time now 
implying that they are all completed in March 2021 ie in 
financial year 2020/21).

Page  7

P
age 98



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

TTV22.5 ATMOS (former Dairy 
Crest site)  TOTNES

0440/16/CRB Planning 
Permission - 
Not Yet Started

62 0 0 0 0 13 26 23 0 Site has  a  Community Right to Build Order made 1  March 
2017 for 62 affordable dwellings and 37 affordable older 
peoples units.    Equivalent to a detailed consent. Some of the 
conditions in the Order have been met, others are in 
progress.  Totnes Community Development Society  Director 
information indicates site started expected in October 2019, 
slightly later than previous forecast. As expected, no 
completions at 2019MP.
TCDS agrees with trajectory and build rate. .
Order also includes 37 units for older people aged 55+ 
accommodation (TCDS expects these to be C3 with 
completion in 2021). But site capacity remains at 62 x C3 for 
this trajectory  (will not have sufficient certainty that the 37 
units are C3 dwellings until conditions met) .  These 37 units 
are counted in supply as C2 accommodation (applying the 
standard factor of 1.8 set out in government guidance)

Yes - agrees with trajectory and build rate 
Advises that:  contract for the sale of the 
site is being drawn up.; Tenders have been 
invited for the Build; Contractor work for 
the first stage work on the south side of 
the site; Site srart forecast for October 
2019; updated potential delivery profile -
modifying first year forecast, &changes to 
completion phases in subsequent years. 62 
dwellings being delivered over a 4-5 year 
build programme. Average build rate is 
about 12-15 dpa  for the 62 affordable 
dwellings. Their development is forecast to 
be completed by March 2026.
Anticipates that another 37 units of older 
persons accommodation will be completed 
in 2023

The trajectory shows that 39 of the 62 x C3 dwellings are 
forecast for delivery in the 5 year period. Site start is now 
expected to be October 2019, slightly later than the 
previous forecast of early 2019.  New advice from TCDS 
Director. This justifies amending the lead in time ie first 
completions are now expected to be by March 2023 (Lead 
in time includes 2 years of site works including 
demolition/remediation and enabling  works to bring the 
site to serviced plots.)
Remaining 23 xC3 dwellings forecast for delivery after the 
5 year period.
The 37 xC2 older peoples units (counted as communal 
accommodation) is additional to the trajectory.

TTV24.4 Brimhay Bungalows, 
DARTINGTON

14/0142/15/F Under Construction 14 -14 13 15 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction following detailed consent (full) for  
32 dws (net 14 - as 18 existing units are to be demolished). 
Application for discharge of conditions, submitted by the 
developer South Devon Rural Housing Association, was  
approved 13 November 2018.
14 of the existing dwellings were demolished in 2018/19. As 
expected, no dwellings were completed at the 2019MP, but 
12 dwellings were under construction (the SDRHA 
apartments). SDRHA confirm that they are progressing the 
consent  in conjunction with their subsidiary Rural Homes 
Ltd.  The remaining 4 dwellings are expected to be 
demolished in 2019/20.

Yes  - Council agrees with the  SDRHA 
information- forecast :
Phase 1 - 12xSDRHA apartments plus 
5xopen market dws forecast completed in 
December 2019.
Phase 2 - 7 x open market dwellings  
forecast completed March 2021.
Phase 3 - 8 x ROC flats forecast completed 
March 2021.)

AND confirms that as at June 2019, 12 
apartments and 5 dwellingswere under 
construction.

All gross 32 dws forecast for completion in the 5 year 
period from the 2019 MP.

TTV24.12 West of Palm Cross, 
MODBURY

35/0059/15/F Under Construction 92 88 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction, following detailed consent (full). 
88 dwellings completed to date. Delivery has accelerated 
with 34 completions in 2018/19, higher than the 25 that  had 
been forecast. 3dws were under construction and the 
remaining 1 dw with detailed consent had not started at the 
2019 MP. The developer, Bloor Homes agrees with the 
trajectory.

Yes All remaining 4 dws forecast for completion in 2019/20 ie 
in the 5 year period from the 2019MP.

TTV24.14 West of Barracks Road, 
MODBURY

1391/18/FUL Planning 
Permission - 
Not Yet Started

40 0 10 30 0 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (Full) for  40 dwellings  granted 
November 2018.  Site had not started at the 2019MP and as 
expected there were no dwelling completions..  Site  started 
May 2019, ie after the 2019 Monitoring Point. The developer, 
Bloor Homes agrees with the trajectory.

Yes - agreed trajectory and buld rate All 40 dwellings forecast for completion in the 5 year 
period from the 2019MP.

Page  8

P
age 99



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

TTV24.16 Bonfire Hill,  SALCOMBE  41/1915/13/F 
(part of this 
permission)

Under Construction 13 1 6 6 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction, following detailed consent. 
1 dwelling was built in 2015/16 but the 9 dwellings that were 
under construction at the 2018MP remained under 
construction at the 2019MP.  Development slowed in the 
2018/19, when no dwellings were completed, compared to 
the forecast of 9. In June 2019, developer/builder Versant 
(Salcombe) Ltd advised that delivery slowdown was due to 
disruption of the funding stream with works generally pulled 
back to coincide with funding capacity. Given the nature of 
the market in this region there is no incentive to accelerate at 
this period of the year. Build out will restart and progress in 
line with earlier anticipated rates.

Yes - trajectory and build rate. Confirms 
that funding issues have been resolved.

All remaining 12  dws forecast for completion in the 5 year 
period from the 2019 MP.

TTV24.17 Shadycombe , 
SALCOMBE

41/1262/15/F
( part of site )

Part Completed 
(6 dws)
Part Planning 
Permission (2 dws)
Part Allocation (12 
dws)

20 6 0 2 0 0 0 12 0 Site is under construction. Detailed  (full) consents for 8 
dwellings on part of the site.  6 dwellings were completed  in 
2018/19 matching the previous forecast. 2 dws on the site of 
former workshop  (0087/18/FUL ) were not started at 
2019MP but the agent for developer (Yellow Bridge 
Developments) advises  they are expected to be completed in 
2020/21. Trajectory concurs with that information.
No planning applications on the remainder of the site and no 
builder engaged at this time for the remainder of the site.  
Consequently the  trajectory for the remaining 12 is similar to 
the previous forecast, with  completions for the remaining 12 
dws forecast after the 5 year period.

Yes -SHDC as  promoter and part 
landowner - agrees with trajectory.

Yes Information from BBH Architects -
Agent for  Yellow Bridge Developments 
Hoped that the development will 
commence before the end of 2019 and 
take no more than 12 months to complete.

Only the 2 dwellings not started but with full consent are  
forecast for completion in the 5 year period. 
With no planning applications on the remainder of the site 
and no builder engaged at this time for the remainder of 
the site the Council concludes that there is not sufficient 
clear evidence for the remaining 12 dwellings to be 
completed in the 5 year period.  Consequently the 
remainder of the site is not deliverable at this time, but 
remains availalble  and developable, so these 12  dwellings 
are forecast for completion after the 5 year period, 

TTV24.19 Green Park Way , 
CHILLINGTON

0771/16/OPA Planning 
Permission - 
Not Yet Started

65 0 0 25 25 15 0 0 0 Site has outline consent for 65 dwellings.  Current detailed 
application (Reserved Matters) for 64 dwellings  submitted by 
Acorn Property Ltd (landowner) was validated 1 November 
2018.Application re-advertised - within consultation/publicity 
period .   The RM application was on the 19 June 19 
Development Management Committee Agenda with an 
officer  recommendation  for conditionlal approval but the 
decision was deferred to a subsequent committee. The 
application is on the 17 July 2019 DM Committee Agenda 
again with officer recommendation for conditional approval.  
Latest information confirms that Acorn Property will manage 
the development. As expected, the site had not started and 
there were no completions at the 2019MP.

Yes  - agreed trajectory and build rate. 
(Further telephone information 11 July 
2019  from Acorn Property Group 
confirmed that Acorn will manage the 
development, using build contractors)

The site does not yet have detailed consent so the 
2019MP forecast is based on the 65 dwellings capacity in 
the outline consent.  With the RM application 
recommended for approval and the trajectory agreed by 
the developer the Council considers there is sufficient 
evidence for all 65 dws to be forecast for completion in 
the 5 year period from the 2019 MP.

Page  9

P
age 100



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

PLY48 Sherford New 
Community Land
South/Southwest of A38

7_49/2426/06/OU
T

Under construction 4890 0 0 183 264 264 242 2640 1297

PLY48 Sherford New 
Community Land
South/Southwest of A38

07/0678/15/RM
BOVIS

Under construction 97 11 61 25 0 0 0 0 0

PLY48 Sherford New 
Community Land
South/Southwest of A38

07/0677/15/RM 
0523/16/ARM 
4430/17/ARM
TAYLOR WIMPEY

Under construction 76 6 64 6 0 0 0 0 0

PLY48 Sherford New 
Community Land
South/Southwest of A38

07/0679/15/RM 
LINDEN HOMES

Under construction 145 38 57 50 0 0 0 0 0

ALLERN LANE, 
TAMERTON FOLIOT, 
SOUTH HAMS, 
PLYMOUTH FRINGE

Under Construction 65 0 20 40 5 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction following detailed consent (full) for 
65 dwellings. Discharge of conditions approved 05 October 
2018.  Site started in October 2018. However, there were no 
completions in 2018/19 compared to the 40 forecast. The 
builder/ developer Taylor Wimpey  confirmed that the 
infrastructure lead in period delayed the first completion. The 
Council concurs with the revised Taylor Wimpey delivery 
profile which is set out in the  trajectory, and forecasts first 
completions October 2019..

Yes All 65 dws are forecast for completion in the 5 year period 
from the 2019MP

Site is a major new urban extension with outline consent for 
5,500 dwellings.  Site has detailed consents for 610 dwellings 
as at end March 2019.  It straddles the LPA boundaries with 
detailed consent for 292 dws in the city and 318 dwellings in 
the South Hams LPA area.  The remaining  4,890 dwellings 
with outline consent are in the South Hams. 
S73 application to vary outline consents including 
amendments related to the Town Code and Sustainability 
chapters, granted consent October 2017.
S73 application granted consent in February 2019 to vary 
several conditions in the outline consent, with alternative 
structure, layout + configuration, accommodating changes to 
the Masterplan.  
Further evidence of this site gearing up post 2019MP is 
provided by detailed (RM) applications for another 203 dws 
(Phase 1a) granted consent in May 2019, and additional RM 
applications for 428 dws were due by end June. Two of these 
have been received  (110 dws (part of Phase 1b) was 
submitted by Cannon Kirk, & validated 02 July 2019; and  116 
dws (part of Phase 1b) by Bovis Homes - validated 11 July 
2019).  
As at end March 2019, total of 279 completions had occurred 
(224 in Plymouth and 55 in the South Hams) . Of these 279, 
142 were completed in 2018/19, which is slower than the 
previous forecast of 176. Of the 142, 111  were completed in 
Plymouth and 31  in the South Hams. 
The developers consortium (Linden, Taylor Wimpey and 
Bovis) agree with the overall delivery rate of 264dpa for the 
scheme.  The number or site outlets has increased to 4. 
Cannon Kirk are in the Constortium, so their supply would 
add to the delivery rate.  

Yes  
The Consortium developers (Linden, Taylor 
Wimpey and Bovis) agree that  he delivery 
rate of 264dpa (88dpa per developer) is a 
reasonable assumption from 2020/21 
onwards. However, their Planning 
consultantsadvise that the Consortium  
may want to increase to 100dpa each from 
2021  and can reveiw this at the 2020MP.
The Consortium anticipate detailed 
applications for 428 dwellings being 
submitted by the end of June  ( Bovis 100, 
Cannon Kirk 107, Taylor Wimpey 110, 
Linden 111) but details may change once 
submitted.

Council officers  visited the site in April 2019 to establish 
the breakdown of the developers' delivery profile between 
the LPAs.  There were a total of 223 dwellings under 
construction on the whole site (41 in Plymouth and 182 
South Hams) and on the basis of development progress it 
has been assumed cautiously that 228 completions are 
likely to be completed by end of March 2020. 182 of these 
228 are forecast to be built in the South Hams in 2019/20 . 
The delivery rate then rises to 264  dws forecast to be built 
in the South Hams in 2020/21  thereafter. This is a 
cautious forecast, mindful that the Constortium may want 
to increase delivery to 100 dpa on each of their outlets 
(implying 300 dpa in total) and a fourth outlet (Cannon 
Kirk) will be operating, who are additional to the 
Consortium's supply.
All development post 2020 will be in South Hams LPA 
area.   Site development will extend beyond the JLP plan 
period.

Page  10

P
age 101



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

SOUTH HAMS NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN ALLOWANCE SUPPLY CATEGORY (CONSENTS COUNTED TOWARDS THE 550 ALLOWANCE IN JLP POLICY TTV25)

0 NPA SX710394 Adjacent 
to Malborough Park, 
MALBOROUGH

0549/17/OPA
1780/18/ARM 
4077/18/ARM 

Planning 
Permission - 
Not Yet Started

53 0 0 20 20 13 0 0 0 The site has detailed (RM) consents for a total of 53 
dwellings. Approval for discharge of conditions granted 31 
August 2018. Baker Estates has acquired the land and is the 
developer  No site start at 2019MP, but the site has now 
started after the 2019MP and site works are underway,. As 
expected there were no completions at the 2019 Monitoring 
Point. Developer agrees with the trajectory.   Delivery profile 
takes into account the proximity of another site (West 
Alvington Hill, Kingsbridge) also being developed by Baker 
Estates.  As for the 2018MP forecasts, the delivery rate on 
both sites has been reduced as they are expected to be built 
at the same time and offer similar products. 

.

Yes in part - agrees with build rate and 
trajectory (developer information  also 
states that first 10 dwellings are forecast 
for completion at end 2019)

All 53 dws forecast for completion in the 5 year period 
from the 2019 MP.  This site is counted towards the 
Neighbourhood Plan Allowance supply category as part of 
the overall TTV supply.
Build rate is 20dpa. Some inconsistency in developer's 
responses, and anticipating 10 dws at end 2019 may be 
optimistic.  Council considers it prudent at this time to 
forecast first completions from April 2020 (but it could be 
slightly earlier just before the 2019 Monitoring  Point)

0 NPA Land Off School 
Road, STOKE FLEMING

1554/17/OPA
1109/18/ARM  

Planning 
permission- 
Not Yet Started

19 0 0 19 0 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (Reserved Matters)l for 19 dws, 
following outline approval 1554/17/OPA. As expected, the 
site has not started and there were no completiions at the 
2019 Monitoring Point    Developer Blue Cedar Homes agrees 
with   trajectory.

Yes, agreed the trajectory -(Information 
from Blue Cedar Homes - anticipates site 
start September 2019 and forecasting first 
completions in March 2021 - with all 19 
dwellings completed at the same time in a 
single phase.)

All 19 dws forecast for completion in the 5 year period 
from the 2019 MP.  This site is counted towards the 
Neighbourhood Plan Allowance supply category as part of 
the overall TTV supply.

Page  11

P
age 102



SOUTH HAMS LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring Point 31 March 2019   Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy 
SOUTH HAMS LPA

Site Name

Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

T
o

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

el
lin

g
s 

D
el

iv
er

ed
 2

01
4-

20
19

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

T
o

ta
l P

la
n

 R
em

a
in

d
er

 2
02

4-
34

20
34

/3
5

+

Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/
Landowner/

Promoter Agreement with Forecast
Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

182 264 264 264 242

20 40 5 0 0

2 2 2 2 2

155 254 200 262 212

96 79 54 146 50

100 100 100 100 81

0 -8 -15 -15 -12

0 39 20 13 0

0 0 0 64 64

0
3 0 0 0 21

0 0 0 0 0

204 306 271 266 244
354 464 359 570 415

558 770 630 836 659

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

558 770 630 836 659

15 15 15 15 15

573 785 645 851 674

Note: figures may not sum precisely due to rounding
80 u/c at 

SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT 3528

SOUTH HAMS -PPA Plymouth Fringe Sub TOTAL
SOUTH HAMS TTV South Hams Sub TOTAL

SOUTH HAMS LPA TOTAL 

75
SOUTH HAMS WITHIN DNPA AREA  (ESTIMATED 5 YEAR 
SUPPLY)

SOUTH HAMS  DISTRICT COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE 
AREA
TRAJECTORY SUMMARY
 FORECAST HOUSING SUPPLY 2019 to 2024 

Supply Categories 

5 Year 
Supply Total

SOUTH HAMS LPA TOTAL 3453

TTV-South Hams COMMUNAL ACCOMMODATION (Net)

SOUTH HAMS  LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY  ADMINISTRATIVE 
AREA
TRAJECTORY SUMMARY
 FORECAST HOUSING SUPPLY 2019 to 2024

Supply Categories 

TTV-South Hams SMALL WINDFALL ALLOWANCE

5 Year 
Supply Total

1216

65

10

1083

PPA Plymouth Fringe ALLOCATIONS

PPA Plymouth Fringe Large Site Commitments at 2019 
Monitoring Point

PPA Plymouth Fringe Small Sites - Commitments at 2019 
Monitoring Point

TTV - South Hams Large Sites ALLOCATIONS 

TTV-South Hams NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN ALLOWANCE -consents

TTV - South Hams Large Sites Commitments at 2019 Monitoring 
Point

TTV - South Hams Small Sites Commitments at 2019 Monitoring 
Point

Discount for small sites lapsing

3453

425

481

-51

72

128

TTV-South Hams MOBILE and TEMPORARY  (Net) 0

24

1291
2162

Page  12

P
age 103



 
 

APPENDIX 4 
West Devon LPA supply over the next 

5 years (2019-2024) 

Page 104



WEST DEVON LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring point 31 March 2019.  Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy Site Name
Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
01

9

T
o

ta
l 

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
D

el
iv

e
re

d
 2

0
1

4-
2

0
19

2
01

9-
20

2
02

0-
21

2
02

1-
22

2
02

2-
23

2
02

3-
24

T
o

ta
l 

P
la

n
 R

em
a

in
d

e
r

 2
0

2
4-

3
4

2
03

4/
3

5+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promote
r Agreement with Forecast

Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

WEST DEVON LARGE SITES
0 Baldwin Drive, 

OKEHAMPTON
00108/2015 RM
02420/2012/O
02418/2012/O

Under construction 43 0 0 0 20 23 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (RM)  for 43 dwellings
Site started 03/05/2017. Spine road laid out.
Applications discharging conditions approved in April to 
June 2017.  As expected, no dwellings completed in 
2018/19.
Trajectory  delivery profile remains as previously 
forecast and agreed with agent on behalf of applicant 
Leander Developments. 

Information 6/11/2017 from agent 
for Leander Developments about 
delivery profile . Clients are 
considering when to commence 
construction of the houses. Units are 
likely to be completed within the 
next 5 years - exact time-scales are 
unknown.  Suggest back loading 
delivery  as follows:   2020/21 – 20 
dws; 2021/22 – 23 dws.

Information 6/11/2017 from agent for Leander 
Developments about delivery profile . Clients are 
considering when to commence construction of the houses. 
Units are likely to be completed within the next 5 years - 
exact time-scales are unknown.  Suggest back loading 
delivery  as follows:   2020/21 – 20 dws; 2021/22 – 23 dws.

Harewood House, 
TAVISTOCK

2232/17/FUL Under construction 48 0 18 0 11 8 0 0 0 Site is under construction following detailed (full) 
consent for 48 dwellings (C3 apartments) . This is a new 
site (windfall) because it was granted conditional 
approval in 2018/19 so there is no previous forecast. 
Site has started and 48 dwellings were under 
construction at end March 2019.  Developer is Churchill 
Retirement Living, and  their trajectory anticipates the 
first dwelling occupied by end 2019 but building not fully 
occupied until 2023. The proposal is for older peoples 
housing, and the agent advises that sales  rates are 
lower due to the age restriction.   The Council accepts 
that for this site, sales/occupation are a reasonable 
forecast of delivery each year for the 2019MP trajectory. 

Yes. The developer's forecast is 
based on sales, rather than the 
physical completion of the whole 
apartment building.  They  forecast 
18 apartments sold/occupied in 
2019/20, 11 in 2020/21, 11 in 
2021/22 and 8 in 2022/23.

The first dwelling completion and occupation in the block of 
apartments  is forecast for end 2019. Mindful that the 
apartments will be fitted out to client specification, the 
Councils anticipate that in this case a unit is completed 
when the unit has been fitted to specification and is ready to 
be occupied. So the forecast of  completions for this 
trajectory reflects the  sales rates as advised by the 
developer (with first completions 2018/19 and final 8 
completions in 2022/23).  Ie all 48 dws are forecast for 
delivery in the 5 year period.

Land South Of North Road 
LIFTON Devon 

2323/16/OPA Planning permission- 
Not Yet Started

20 0 0 10 10 0 0 0 0 Site has outline consent for 20 dws. As expected the site 
has not started and there were no dwelling completions 
as at the 2019 Monitoring Point.  The previous trajectory 
forecast completions outside the 5 year period. 
Harrington Homes  had previously advised that a 
Reserved Matters application would be submitted 
February 2019, but the 1834/19/ARM application for 20 
dws was actually  submitted in May, and finally received 
by the LPA on 10 June 2019  (not validated as end June 
2019). The developer /housebuilder (Harrington Homes) 
agrees with the Council's trajectory and built rate.

Yes - Developer/housebuilder agrees 
with trajctory and  build rate.  
Confirmed that developer  had 
submitted RM application in May 
2019 with files uploaded to the 
Planning Portal. Developer  forecasts  
first dwelling completions  in May 
2020.

With RM  application files not received by WDBC until 10 
June 2019,  the Council considers it prudent to forecast a 
site start  slightly later than the October 2019 date 
previously forecast. Forecast date for  first completions has 
been moved back from  May 2020 to Aug/Sept 2020. With a 
build rate of 20dpa, the forecast now anticipates 10  
completions in 2020/21  & the remaining 10 dws in 2021/22. 
With the RM application received, &  housebuilder 
Harrington Homes (SW) Ltd owning the site and agreeing 
the trajectory there is sufficient evidence to include the site 
completions within the 5 year period from the 2019 MP.  
The site is deliverable.

0 The Market, Fore Street, 
NORTH TAWTON

3105/16/FUL
3106/16/FUL 
13457/2009  RM
 8748/2006/OKE 
outline

Under construction 20 8 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 Site is under construction following detailed consents. 4 
dwellings completed before 2014, and 8 built 2014 to 
2018.  A further 12 dwellings with detailed consent. As 
expected none were completed in 2018/19, but 12 were 
under construction at the 2019 Monitoring Point. The  
developer East Devon Estates agrees with the forecast of 
12 completions in 2019/20.

Yes.  Developer confirms that 4 of 
these 12 dws were completed in 
April 2019, and the remaining 8 are 
expected to be completed in 
September 2019.

All 12 remaining  dws forecast for delivery in the 5 year 
period. 

P
age 105



WEST DEVON LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring point 31 March 2019.  Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy Site Name
Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
01

9

T
o

ta
l 

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
D

el
iv

e
re

d
 2

0
1

4-
2

0
19

2
01

9-
20

2
02

0-
21

2
02

1-
22

2
02

2-
23

2
02

3-
24

T
o

ta
l 

P
la

n
 R

em
a

in
d

e
r

 2
0

2
4-

3
4

2
03

4/
3

5+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promote
r Agreement with Forecast

Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

0 Cross Roads Farm Road 
from Huddispitt Ctoss to 
Cross Road, LEWDOWN

0035/16/OPA
2878/16/F

Planning permission- 
Not Yet Started

17 0 0 3 0 0 0 14 0 Detailed consent (full) for 3 dws on part of the sites  plus 
Outline consent for 14 dws on the remainder of the site. 
Application to discharge conditions 3,4,7 related to the 
full application for plot 17,- conditions discharged 20 
December 2018
Recent applications since the 2019 Monitoring Point:
  RM applicaƟon for 14 dws was received on 1 July 2019, 
but not yet validated (10 July) .
 ApplicaƟon for vary condiƟon 2 of outline consent was 
received on 3 July 2019 but not yet validated (at 10 July 
2019).
As expected, site has not started and no dwellings 
completed in 2018/19.
The developer is Southern Properties, but no response 
received from them regarding the trajectory.

Information by telephone 12 June 
2019 from Agent for developer, 
advised  that Reserved Matters 
application was due to be sent to 
WDBC within next couple of weeks. 
Agent sent trajectory to Southern 
Properties but no response received.

Previous trajectory for 2018MP drew on evidence (2017MP 
evidence (TP3L)) reflecting developer response forecasting 
17 dws completed by 2021/22. 
Discharging conditions on Plot 17 supports current 
expectation of delivery of the 3 dwellings with detailed 
consent in 2020/21. ie 3 forecast for delivery in the 5 year 
period.
But although an RM application for 14 dwellings was 
submitted after the 2019MP, the Councils are mindful that a 
response from Southern Properties (applicant/builder) has 
not been received about the  trajectory forecast .  
Consequently the Councils consider that there is not 
sufficient clear evidence at this time that the 14 dwellings 
with outline consent will be begun in the  5 year period  
from the 2019 MP. Allthough not counted as deliverable 
those 14 dwellings are developable & the site is available.  

0 Land  to rear of Rowan 
Cottages, LEWDOWN   EX20 
4DG

0825/16/FUL Planning permission- 
Not Yet Started

11 0 0 6 5 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (full) for 11 dwellings. As 
expected, the site has not started and no dwellings were 
completed in 2018/19 following the approval in 
September 2017..  Applicant is Vallis Developments, but 
a housebuilder has not been identified at this time

Note:  southern 2/3 of this site was in Allocation H16 in 
the adopted 2005 West Devon Local Plan review, but 
that plan is no longer part of the  development plan for 
the area, following adoption of the JLP.

No response from developer Lead in time based on evidence  Revised Housing Topic 
Paper – (TP3(rev)).  Appendix 11.2 -site of 10 -49 dws with 
full pp.  ie  2 year 2 months between full pp & completion of 
first dwellings  Ie by Nov 2019 .
But this is modified as  Council considers that it is still 
prudent to add  10 months (ie first completions by Sept 
2020). 21 months have elapsed since consent was granted 
for 01/09/2017, and no application received yet to discharge 
precommencement planning conditions.  
No evidence to justify amending the forecast build rate10-
15 dws pa  (still  anticipate SME for this smaller site in a rural 
area).  Forecast is for 6 completions in 2020/21 and the 
other 5 in 2021/22.

0 Abbey Meadows, 
CRAPSTONE

0147/17/OPA Planning permission- 
Not Yet Started

22 0 0 8 14 0 0 0 0 Site has outline consent for up to 22 dwellings. As 
expected the site has not started and no dwellings were 
completed as at the 2019 Monitoring Point. New 
evidence establishes that the developer  is Poltair 
Ventures , and   that Poltair Homes will submit an RM 
application (understood to be by 30 June 2019, but not 
yet received as at 10 July 2019) .  The site has been 
purchased by Poltair Homes/Classic Builder.

Yes in part. New developer agrees 
with build rate  but not the lead in 
time. 
Developer intends to submit RM 
application by 30 June 2019 and  
expects first completion in Q1 of 
2020/21 (monitoring year) and site 
completed by Q4 of 2020/21. 
Expects that site capacity will be 21 
dws.  Poltair Homes have announced 
on their website (Instagram feed)  
advertising that they are just about 
to submit a planning application for 
the  the Abbey Meadow site.

The Council's 2019MP trajectory is based on the outline 
consent capacity of 22 dwellings. The RM application, 
confirming site capacity has not yet been received or 
determined.  To be realistic, the Council  trajectory  has a 
slightly longer lead in time than the developer's forecast Ie 
Council considers it prudent to allow for more time for RM 
determination and discharge of precommencement 
conditions, ie by Feb/March 2020, then site start with 3 
months of site works followed by 4-5 months for 
construction. So that first dwelling completion is November 
2020. At 20dpa, implies 8 completions in 2020/21 and 14 in 
2021/22.
All 22  dws forecast for completion in the 5 year period from 
the 2019 MP. 

P
age 106



WEST DEVON LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring point 31 March 2019.  Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy Site Name
Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
01

9

T
o

ta
l 

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
D

el
iv

e
re

d
 2

0
1

4-
2

0
19

2
01

9-
20

2
02

0-
21

2
02

1-
22

2
02

2-
23

2
02

3-
24

T
o

ta
l 

P
la

n
 R

em
a

in
d

e
r

 2
0

2
4-

3
4

2
03

4/
3

5+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promote
r Agreement with Forecast

Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

TTV14 East of OKEHAMPTON 01089/2013/O
4059/16/VAR 

PARCEL 2
Part under construction 
(73 dws with RM)
Part Allocation)

682 4 40 60 60 44 20 54 0 Parcel 2 has detailed (RM) consents for a total of 282 
dwellings,The site is partJ of LP allocation TTV14. Some 
conditions have been discharged.  Detailed consent  
(Reserved Matters) granted  2 May 2018 for 73 dwellings  
(Redrow) 
Subsequent 4 RM applications granted consent after the 
2019 montoring point (for 75 dwellings (Redrow) , and  
111, 17 and 6 dwellings (for ADPAD).   Development of 
Parcel 2 has started, with 4 completions and 10 
dwellings under construction on Redrow  (Phase 1). 
With 4 completions at end March 2019, development 
has been less than ‘expected progress’ for the site of 15 
dwellings, as the site has geared up .
224 dws on Parcel 2 are forecast for completion in first 5 
years.  Residue of Parcel 2 is forecast for delivery after 
the 5 year period.

Agent for developer/housebuilder 
Redrow (with consents for 148 dws) 
agreed the trajectory and a build 
rate 40 dpa on all of Parcel 2, 
The agent for developer/builder 
ADPAD (with consents for 134 dws) 
considers that development on their 
consents would occur concurrently 
with th Redrow development, with 
additional build rate of 20 dpa on 
their consents ie meaning that there 
would be two developers building at 
the same time on Parcel 2.

With the wholeof Parcel 2 now covered by RM consents, the 
site capacity has effectively been reduced  from the capacity 
in the outline consent  (up to 375 dws) down to 282 dws. 
The Council considers that with two outlets delivering 
concurrently  it is reasonable to anticipate delivery of up to 
60 dpa on Parcel 2. Redrow Homes development has already 
commenced with 4 completions and 10 under construction.  
Sufficient lead in time available  for the ADPAD development 
for their part of the site to deliver from April/May 2020.
On this basis the Council forecasts 224 dwellings 
completions in total on Parcel 2. in the 5 year period from 
the 2019 MP.

TTV16 Callington Road, TAVISTOCK 00554/2013/O
2780/18/ARM 

Planning Permission - 
Not Yet Started

600 0 0 30 40 40 40 450 0 Site has detailed (Reserved Matters) consent for 157 
dwellings granted 5 March 2019 (Phase 1) , plus detailed 
planning application(Reserved Matters) - Phase 2  
validated October 2018 and pendiing decision.  Phases 3 
and 4 on the residue of the site benefit from  conditional 
outline consent granted in 2015.
Whole site is a JLP allocation
Application for discharge of conditions validated in 2018 
and pending decision. 
Phasing scheme required by the S106 Agreement para 
5.1 (including a detailed chronology of the development, 
and no more than 4 phases) to be approved by the LPA 
& by County Council prior to commencement of 
development had not been submitted as at 17 May 
2019.
As expected, the site had not started and there were no 
completions by the 2019MP. A site start was forecast for 
May 2019. 

No new information received from 
Bovis Homes (previous forecast was 
based on an agreed build rate of 
75dpa - which implied two outlets 
operating concurrently on this site)

Bovis Homes submitted the RM applications for Phases 1 & 
2. Based on telephone advice from the agent the Council 
understands that Phase 2 development will follow after 
Phase 1 is completed  ie they are consecutive, not 
concurrent. This implies only one outlet (Bovis) during their 
development.  At this time, the Council concludes it is 
prudent to  assume a build rate of 40 dpa for Phases 1 and 
2, consistent with a single national housebuilder outlet, 
mindful of other contemporaneous housing developments 
at Tavistock. With  site start in May 2019 and  gearing up, a 
revised lead in time results in forecast of  first completions 
in mid spring 2020 and a total of 30 completions  in 
2020/21. There is sufficient clear evidence to include 150 
dwelling completions in the first 5 years from the 2019MP.
Thereafter and once Phase 3 commences, a build rate of  
75dpa is possible if there are two outlets, or if faster 
affordable housing delivery were to be achieved on this site.

TTV19.1 New Launceston Road,  
TAVISTOCK

2022/16/OPA Planning Permission - 
Not Yet Started

148 0 15 42 42 42 7 0 0 Site has detailed (RM) consent for 148 dws, granted in 
December 2018.  Application for discharge of conditions 
also approved December 2018.  As expected, no 
completions in 2018/19. Site started in May 2019 after 
the 2019 Monitoring Point, slightly later than previously 
forecast (March 2019).  

Yes (advice from developer : site 
started May 2019. Speeding up 
delivery of showhome.)

Council concurs with developer forecast. Whilst site start is 
slightly later than expected there is still sufficient time site 
works and construction for first dwelling completions to be 
achieved by the end of 2019/20.  As site has started, 
developer is speeding up delivery of showhome (by Sept 
2019) and developer agrees with 42dpa build rate, a 
forecast of 15 dws delivery in 2019/20 is realistic.   All 148 
dws forecast for delivery in the 5 year period.

TTV19.2 Butcher Park Hill, 
TAVISTOCK

00610/2015/O
4371/17/ARM 

Under Construction 110 0 50 40 20 0 0 0 0 Site has detailed consent (Reserved Matters) for 110 
dws granted 27 June 2018. Applications for discharge of 
conditions approved August and October 2018. Site 
started Oct/Nov 2018.  As expected  there were no 
completions at the 2019MP; 24 were under 
construction.
Developer (Barratt David Wilson Homes) agrees with 
trajectory and assumptions 

Yes  (advises that first dwelling 
completion is expected to be June 
2019, with 62 built by June 2020, 48 
by June 2021; equating to 50 
(2019/20), 50 (2020/21), 10 
(2021/22))

The Council's forecast broadly accords with  developer's 
delivery  information.  The former includes a forecast of 50 
completions in 2019/20 (before sites at Callington Road and 
New Launceston Road gear up delivery) but the Council has  
slightly moderated the forecast completions on this site in 
2020/21 to 40 dws, mindful of forecast delivery overall in 
Tavistock in that year, as sites at Callington Road & New 
Launceston Road gear up delivery.  This results in a residue 
of 20 completions in 2021/22. All 110 dws forecast for 
delivery in the 5 year period.

P
age 107



WEST DEVON LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring point 31 March 2019.  Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy Site Name
Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
01

9

T
o

ta
l 

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
D

el
iv

e
re

d
 2

0
1

4-
2

0
19

2
01

9-
20

2
02

0-
21

2
02

1-
22

2
02

2-
23

2
02

3-
24

T
o

ta
l 

P
la

n
 R

em
a

in
d

e
r

 2
0

2
4-

3
4

2
03

4/
3

5+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promote
r Agreement with Forecast

Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

TTV19.3 Brook Lane, TAVISTOCK 00233/2015/O
0955/17/FUL

Planning Permission - 
Not Yet Started

23 0 0 17 6 0 0 0 0 Full planning application for 23 dwellings granted 
conditional approval 12 October 2018 which  
supersedes the previous outline consent for 23 dws.  As 
expected  there were no completions at the 2019MP.  
Application to discharge conditions not yet received.
Site start date revised from Spring 2019 to Autumn 2019 
.   Developer (Westward Housing Group) agrees with the 
trajectory and build rate assumption.

Yes (advice from developer : Autumn 
2019 site start. This revised date is 
due to the need to procure new 
contractors. The application to 
discharge conditions then follows.)

Due to later start date, forecast completions are split across 
2 monitoring years.  All 23 dwellings are forecast for 
completion in the 5 year period from the 2019 MP. 

TTV19.4 The Trendle, TAVISTOCK 2092/16 FUL
4121/17/FUL

Planning Permission - 
Site Started

13 0 12 0 0 1 0 0 0 Site has detailed consents (full) for 13 dwellings, with 12 
dwellings under construction at the 2019 Monitoring 
Point. Those 12 are forecast to be completed in 2019/20 
. Application  4121/17/FUL for Plot 13 received 
conditional full approval on 30 January 2018. However, 
the 13th dwelling has not started.  Developer (Blue 
Cedar Homes) agrees with the trajectory.

Yes. Advises: Blue Cedar are keeping 
the planning permission for plot 13 
alive; and believes  that site access 
gates to the main development site 
have been built as per application 
4121/17/FUL ie relocated approx 1m 
to the south (DAS statement -this 
ensures there is not a direct 
proximity conflict between the 
operation of the gates & view / 
impact from the front bay window of 
Plot 13.)

Application  4121/17/FUL for Plot 13 has not expired . Still 
sufficient time for Plot 13 to be built in the 5 year period 
from the 2019MP. Dwelling on  plot 13 can still be 
developed as it is understood that site access gates to the 
main development site were constructed  as per application 
4121/17/FUL.  The 1 remaining dw forecast for completion 
in the 5 year period from the 2019 MP. 

TTV24.8 Hatherleigh Market, 
HATHERLEIGH

EXPIRED Allocation 106 0 0 0 24 24 24 34 0 The site is a JLP Allocation. 
Current forecast is for first completions in 2020/21. 
Delay  in delivery of a year was consequential to outline 
consent (Mixed use development including 106 dws) 
expiring 1 August 2017. 23 April 2019 West Devon 
Development Management and Licensing Committee 
resolved to delegate to Head of Practice lead 
Development Management, in conjunction with 
Chairman to conditionally grant planning permission, 
subject to a Section106 legal agreement regarding 
detailed planning application (full) for redevelopment 
including 102 dws.
Information received from developer  (Kingswood 
Homes) advised that delivery is sales dependent. 
Trajectory reflects that lead in time, (allows sufficient 
time for applications determination, site works and 
construction) and Council assumption of 2 phases '.

yes, in part - (previousInformation 
from developer -build rate 2 
dwellings per month ie 24 pa  first 24 
completions in 2020/21 . This is 
slower delivery (build rate of 2 
dws/month) compared to the 
previous forecast  of 3dws/month 
for the 2017MP trajectory.

Assume development proceeds in phases. Mindful of 
developer's view that delivery  depends on sales, the 
Councils' cautious delivery profile  forecasts completions of 
24dpa in first 3 delivery years, and delivery continuing 
thereafter.  This results in 72 dwellings forecast for 
completion in the 5 year period (ie deliverable) and the 
residue being 'developable. This delivery profile also avoids  
overlap with the forecast of later delivery of the other 
allocation at Hatherleigh (Hatchmoor).  

P
age 108



WEST DEVON LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY - 2019 MONITORING POINT 
HOUSING SUPPLY FORECAST 2019/20 to 2023/24
Monitoring point 31 March 2019.  Delivery forecasts : made at June 2019

Policy Site Name
Planning 
Application 
Number

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 a
t 

en
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
01

9

T
o

ta
l 

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
P

er
m

it
te

d

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
D

el
iv

e
re

d
 2

0
1

4-
2

0
19

2
01

9-
20

2
02

0-
21

2
02

1-
22

2
02

2-
23

2
02

3-
24

T
o

ta
l 

P
la

n
 R

em
a

in
d

e
r

 2
0

2
4-

3
4

2
03

4/
3

5+ Progress commentary (available, developer on 
board, submission of planning app, progress 

against previous forecast (slowing/accellerating)

Developer/Landowner/Promote
r Agreement with Forecast

Assumptions (lead in times/delivery rate)

2
01

9-
20

2
02

0-
21

2
02

1-
22

2
02

2-
23

2
02

3-
24

117 189 192 151 91

30 38 60 31 0

60 60 60 60 48

0 -5 -9 -9 -7

0 0 0 0 0

4 4 8 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 27 27 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

211 286 311 260 159
0 0 0

Note: figures may not sum precisely due to rounding
56 u/c at 2018Monitoring Point

2
01

9-
20

2
02

0-
21

2
02

1-
22

2
02

2-
23

2
02

3/
2

4

211 286 311 260 159

15 15 15 15 15

226 301 326 275 174

5 Year 
Supply Total

159

740

288

-30

0

16

54

1227WEST DEVON LPA  5 YEAR SUPPLY TOTAL (NET)

Communal Dwellings

Small Windfall Allowance

MOBILE and TEMPORARY  0

Large Sites Commitments at March 2019

WEST DEVON LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY  ADMINISTRATIVE AREA
TRAJECTORY SUMMARY
 FORECAST HOUSING SUPPLY 2019 to 2024

Supply Categories 

Small sites Commitents at March 2019 (before applying discount)

Discount for small sites lapsing

Neighbourhood Plan Allowance

Allocated Sites

WEST DEVON DISTRICT 1302

WEST DEVON BOROUGH COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AREA
TRAJECTORY SUMMARY
 FORECAST HOUSING SUPPLY 2019 to 2024 

5 Year 
Supply Total

WEST DEVON LPA  5 YEAR SUPPLY TOTAL (NET) 1227

WEST DEVON WITHIN DNPA AREA  (ESTIMATED 5 YEAR SUPPLY) 75

P
age 109



 
 

APPENDIX 5 
Sites removed from 5YLS by LPA area 
(lapsed and undeliverable consents & 
sites now considered developable not 

deliverable in 2019-2024) 

Page 110



Plymouth LPA - Sites with extant consent considered to be undeliverable in 2018 and position not changed 
 
 

Application 
Number Address Reason Dwellings 

06/00588/REM Agaton Farm 

Site has extant planning consent for a further 15 units as 1st 
phase/block of 6 units delivered in 2010.However remainder of 
scheme stalled and not deliverable therefore 15 dwellings 
removed from supply. 

15 

15/01726/FUL 80/82 Ebrington Street 
Proposal for 6 dwellings will not proceed as application 
superseded by new consent for an extension to adjoining car 
park. 6 dwellings removed from housing supply. 

6 

12/00005/FUL Brown Bear, 20 Chapel Street 

Existing consent undeliverable. Removed 17 dwellings from supply 
until future application submitted and determined. Site has 
potential to deliver 6 dwellings in the 5 year supply. Live 
application for 6 dwellings, if consent attained then site can be 
back in the supply. 

17 

 
 
  

P
age 111



Plymouth LPA - Sites with insufficient evidence to justify delivery of dwellings in the 5 year Supply (2019-2024) 
 
 

Commitments 

Application 
Number Address Reason Dwellings 

17/01944/FUL Seawings, 101 Lawrence Road 

Under the new NPPF  'deliverability' definition site now 
considered developable and pushed back to years 6-10. Site is 
extant however removed from 5YLS and pushed back to years 
6-10 as consent considered undeliverable and subsequent 
application did not attain consent. Clear evidence of non delivery 
in the next 5 years. 

7 

17/00760/FUL Sherwell House, North Hill 

Under the new NPPF  'deliverability' definition site now 
considered developable and pushed back to years 6-10. Site is 
extant at April 2019 however removed as Developer indicates 
consent will not be implemented due to a number of 
complications.  Clear evidence of non-delivery in the next 5 
years. 

14 

15/01622/FUL Mayflower House, 178 to 184 Armada Way 

Under the new NPPF 'deliverability' definition site now 
considered developable and pushed back to years 6-10. Site 
removed as Developer indicates consent will not be 
implemented as there has been a change of controlling interest 
and new developer/promoter indicates current scheme not 
viable and therefore not intended to be delivered. Alternative 
scheme currently being pursued through a live pre-app.  Clear 
evidence of non-delivery in the next 5 years at this stage. 

140 

  

P
age 112



16/00554/FUL 17-19 Mayflower Street 

Under the new NPPF 'deliverability' definition site now 
considered developable and pushed back to years 6-10. Site 
removed as Developer indicates consent will not be 
implemented as there has been a change of controlling interest 
and new developer/promoter indicates current scheme not 
viable and therefore not intended to be delivered. Alternative 
scheme currently being pursued through a live pre-app. Clear 
evidence of non-delivery in the next 5 years at this stage.  
 

162 

 
 

Allocations 

Policy 
Number Address Reason Dwellings 

PLY36.2 Mount Wise Area A  

Under the new NPPF 'deliverability' definition site now 
considered developable and pushed back to years 6-10. Site 
identified as an allocation in the JLP. Developer now asserts that 
delivery of this phase is delayed by three years compared with 
that envisaged last year.  Developer did not provide any reasons 
for the delay.  On the basis of the developer's 2019 update there 
is no clear evidence of delivery in the next 5 years although the 
site could come forward again into the 5 year supply should the 
site progress quicker than the developer now envisages. 

145 

PLY46.9 Land adjacent to Plumer Road 

Under the new NPPF 'deliverability' definition site now 
considered developable and pushed back to years 6-10 as 
consent has now lapsed. Site is considered to be developable and 
potential for an alternative scheme/delivery vehicle to bring 
forward a new planning application in future. Given consent has 
now lapsed at this stage there is no clear evidence to justify its 
continued inclusion in the 5YLS.  The site could come forward 

61 

P
age 113



Allocations 

Policy 
Number Address Reason Dwellings 

again into the 5YLS when there is clarity regarding the delivery 
of an alternative proposal. 

PLY56.1 Former Nursery Haye Road  

Under the new NPPF 'deliverability' definition site now 
considered developable and pushed back to years 6-10.  Site has 
not progressed as envisaged last year as pre-app was returned. 
No update forthcoming from the promoter/developer regarding 
progress therefore no clear evidence at this stage of delivery of 
dwellings in the next 5 years.  Site could return to the 5YLS 
when there is clarity regarding the delivery of a scheme, a 
timeframe for the application and a delivery profile from the 
developer. 

9 

PLY58.7 Douglass House  

Under the new NPPF 'deliverability' definition site now 
considered developable and pushed back to years 6-10.  No 
clear scheme at present or developer on board therefore no 
clear evidence at this stage of delivery of dwellings in the 5YLS.  
Site could return to the 5YLS when there is clarity regarding the 
delivery of a scheme, a timeframe for the application and a 
delivery profile from the developer. 

5 

PLY59.2 Land either side of Clittaford Road 

Under the new NPPF 'deliverability' definition site now 
considered developable and pushed back to years 6-10.  Site no 
longer considered deliverable in the 5YLS, as not coming 
forward as anticipated last year.  Landowner now pursuing 
alternative proposals and housing developer no longer on board.  
Site could return to the 5YLS when there is clarity regarding the 
delivery of a scheme, a timeframe for the application and a 
delivery profile from the developer. 

108 

P
age 114



Allocations 

Policy 
Number Address Reason Dwellings 

PLY 59.13 Land North of Clittaford Road   
Under the new NPPF 'deliverability' definition site now 
considered developable and pushed back to years 6-10 for the 
same reasons as PLY59.2 (as site is linked to PLY59.2) 

9 

 
 

P
age 115



Plymouth LPA - Lapsed Commitments (Large sites 5 dwellings or more) 
 

Application 
Number Address Dwellings 

16/02073/FUL Blake Lodge  10 

16/02351/FUL 436 Tavistock Road  11 

 
 

Plymouth LPA - Lapsed Commitments (Small sites 4 dwellings or less) 
 

Application 
Number Address Dwellings 

15/00424/FUL 50 Ebrington Street 3 

16/02150/FUL 17 Compton Park Road 1 

16/02305/REM 1 South Down Road 1 

16/00431/OUT 120 Fletemoor Road 1 

16/00331/FUL Plot 10 Adjacent To Wanstead Grove 1 

P
age 116



Application 
Number Address Dwellings 

16/01941/REM Plot 26, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove 1 

16/01954/REM Plot 9, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove 1 

16/02096/REM Plot 15, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove 1 

16/02097/REM Plot 25, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove 1 

16/02326/REM Plot 14, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove 1 

17/00187/REM Plot 6, West Park Primary School Wanstead Grove 1 

15/00436/FUL 67 Lake View Drive 1 

16/01898/FUL Adj 107 Cunningham Road 1 

16/00237/OUT Riverford, Estover Close 1 

16/02148/FUL 126 Bellingham Crescent 1 

P
age 117



Application 
Number Address Dwellings 

15/02062/FUL 67 Ridgeway 1 

15/00422/FUL 23 Jenkins Close 1 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 118



South Hams LPA – Lapsed Commitments (Small Sites under 10 dwellings)   
 

Parish name Application Number Address 
Net 
gain 

on site 

Brixton 07/0395/15/F Sandaway  Lodge Lane Brixton Plymouth  PL8 2AU 1 

Cornworthy 13/3211/14/F Land at Allaleigh Cross, Cornworthy, Totnes 1 

Dartmouth 15/2236/15/F Land Sx874 513  North East Of 3 Vicarage Hill Dartmouth Devon  TQ6 9EW 1 

Dartmouth 15/1820/14/F 2 Coles Court, Dartmouth, TQ6 9BW 1 

Kingswear 30/1873/15/O  Higher Contour Cottage  Redoubt Hill Kingswear Dartmouth  TQ6 0DA 1 

Kingswear 30/1422/14/F The Anchorage  Redoubt Hill Kingswear Dartmouth  TQ6 0DA 1 

Kingswear 30/0704/15/F Development site adjacent to 1 Raddicombe Drive, Raddicombe Drive, Hillhead, 
Brixham 3 

Modbury 35/1940/15/AGDPA Westerns Barn At Sx 672 510  Trehele Farm Modbury Ivybridge  PL21 0SA 1 

Salcombe 2857/15/FUL Lower Collaton Farm  Lane To Lower Collaton Malborough Devon  TQ7 3DJ 1 

Salcombe 41/2383/15/F Uppercot  Devon Road Salcombe Devon  TQ8 8HJ 1 

Slapton 44/1852/13/F Combe Cottage  Carr Lane Slapton Kingsbridge   1 

South Huish 46/3044/13/F The Nest Market Garden  Galmpton Kingsbridge Devon  TQ7 3HA 5 

Sparkwell 49/1775/15/F Development Site At Waverley  Smithaleigh Plymouth Devon  PL7 5AX 1 

Staverton 50/2494/15/AGDPA Agricultural Building At Sx7941 6576  Beaston Farm Broadhempston Devon   1 

Thurlestone 55/0529/15/F 14 Mead Lane, Thurlestone, Kingsbridge, TQ7 3PB 1 

Wembury 58/1014/15/F The Eddystone Inn  Heybrook Bay Plymouth Devon  PL9 0BN 5 

        

    Total 26 
 
 

P
age 119



West Devon LPA – Lapsed Commitments (Small Sites under 10 dwellings)  
 

Parish  Application Number Address Net gain on 
site 

Beaworthy 00885/2015 Barn At Metherell Farm  Beaworthy Devon   EX21 5TT 1 

Bratton Clovelly 00212/2015 Metherell Farm  Beaworthy Devon  EX21 5TT 1 

Exbourne 00716/2015 Courtney View  High Street Exbourne Okehampton  EX20 3SA 1 

Gulworthy 00985/2015 Barn At Lumburn  Lumburn Tavistock Devon  PL19 8HT 1 

Hatherleigh 01185/2015  Stapleford Farm  Exbourne Okehampton. Devon  EX20 3RA 1 

Hatherleigh 00527/2015 Offices  Buddle Lane Hatherleigh Okehampton Devon EX20 3HX 1 

Inwardleigh 00532/2015 Preston  Inwardleigh Okehampton Devon  EX20 3AL 1 

Northlew 2574/15/PDM Kesterfield Barn Northlew Okehampton  EX20 3PN 1 

Northlew 01011/2015 The Stables  Palmers Norley Farm Northlew Okehampton  EX20 3PN 1 

Northlew 00237/2015 Barn Adjacent To East Worth Farmhouse  Northlew Devon    1 

Okehampton 2859/15/PDM Barn at SX5920 9490 Courtenay Road Okehampton   1 

Sampford Courtenay 2806/15/PDM Building adjacent to Cloverhill Farm Sampford Courtenay Devon EX20 2SA  1 

Sampford Courtenay 00659/2015 Riverstone Farm  Exbourne Okehampton Devon  EX20 3QS 1 

Sampford Courtenay 00652/2015 Part Cricket Farm  Sampford Courtenay Okehampton Devon  EX20 2TF 1 

Sourton 00646/2015 Higher Hewton Farm  Thorndon Cross Okehampton Devon  EX20 4NQ 1 

South Tawton 00694/2015 Taw Mill  Sampford Courtenay Okehampton Devon  EX20 2SE 3 

Tavistock 00213/2015 Land Adjacent To The Laurels  Meadow Brook Tavistock Devon   2 

   
 

  Total 20 

 
 
 

P
age 120



 
 

APPENDIX 6 
Amendments to past net additional 

dwelling delivery due to NPPF/NPPG 
changes regarding counting student and 

communal accommodation 

Page 121



Net additions to the dwellings stock 2014-18 - Differences between adopted 
JLP and requirements of the new NPPF/NPPG and the HDT 
 
 
The table below shows the differences between the net additions to the dwelling stock 
over the plan period 2014-2018 in the JLP and reported in the JLP examination.  The JLP 
was examined under transitional arrangements which meant it was examined under the 
NPPF and NPPG prior to July 2018.  The provisions of the new NPPF/NPPG and the HDT 
changed the way that student cluster flats and communal accommodation should be 
counted against housing requirement or the Government’s new standard methodology for 
minimum LHN.  Government therefore required revisions to past delivery for the 
purposes of the HDT which measures delivery performance over the last three years. As a 
result of the requirement to comply with the provision of the new policy framework a 
further 448 dwellings over the 4 year period 2014-2018 were included.  The increase is 
primarily attributed to the provision of purpose built student accommodation in the form 
of cluster flats within Plymouth that were previously not able to be included. 

 
Table 1: Revised net additional supply 2014-2018 and relationship to supply identified in 

JLP examination. 
 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Total  

Plymouth LPA 700 1,129 557 1,372 3,758 

South Hams LPA (excluding 
delivery in DNP) 

177 428 326 511 1,442 

West Devon LPA (Excluding 
delivery in DNP) 

116 154 196 160 626 

Total net additional supply  
(taking account of 
NPPF/NPPG changes) 

993 1,711 1,079 2,043 5,826 

Total net additional  supply 
identified in the JLP  

928 1,660 1,103 1,6871  5,378 

Difference (increase in net 
additional supply over the 
period 2014-2018 as a result 
of the new NPPF/NPPG)  

+65 +51 -24 +356 +448 

 

                                            
1 JLP examination documents EXD63 and EXD64 indicated the net additional supply for 2017/18 
based on the requirements of the old NPPF to which the JLP was examined against. 

Page 122



 
 

APPENDIX 7 
List of small sites in 5YLS by LPA 

Page 123



Small sites (<5 dwellings) Trajectory for Plymouth LPA 
 
 

     Trajectory   

Application 
Number Address Site Status at  31st March 2019  Site 

Total  2014-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

16/00050/FUL Chrikama, 7 Station Road Under Construction 2   2         

15/01545/FUL Hardwick Nurseries, Ridge Road Under Construction 2   2         

15/02327/FUL 127 Healy Place Under Construction 1   1         

15/02120/FUL 861 Wolseley Road Under Construction 1   1         

17/01599/FUL Land Adjoining 76 Downham Gardens Under Construction 1   1         

17/00367/FUL 54 Beaconfield Road  Under Construction 1   1         

17/02395/FUL Land At Milford Lane Tamerton Foliot  Under Construction 1   1         

17/00326/FUL Land At Forget-Me-Not Lane Riverford Estover Close  Under Construction 1   1         

16/02370/FUL The Mermaid ,15 Frogmore Avenue Under Construction 1   1         

17/02399/AMD Vacant Site At Fitzroy Road Under Construction 3   3         

17/02023/FUL 19 Treby Road Under Construction 1   1         

17/01644/FUL 92 Church Road Plymstock  Under Construction 1   1         

16/02158/FUL 61 Eggbuckland Road Under Construction 1   1         

18/00587/FUL Fort House Fort Terrace  Under Construction 1   1         

17/00572/REM Plot 29, Land Adjoining Wanstead Grove, West Park  Under Construction 1   1         

16/00118/FUL Land Adjacent 71 Sefton Avenue Under Construction 1   1         

17/01967/FUL Great Woodford Cottages, Great Woodford Drive Under Construction 1   1         

18/01774/FUL 26 Vinery Lane Under Construction 1   1         

18/00083/FUL 45 Tapson Drive  Under Construction 1   1         

12/00735/FUL 61A Emma Place Under Construction 4   4         

10/00856/FUL 2 Ridge Park Under Construction 2 1 1         

06/01971/FUL 225 Embankment Road Under Construction 1   1         

15/02183/FUL  Land Adjacent 865 Wolseley Road Under Construction 1   1         

12/02015/FUL 108 Billacombe Road Under Construction 1   1         

07/00107/FUL Hazelhurst, Station Road Under Construction 1   1         

17/00719/S73 53 Shortwood Crescent Under Construction 1   1         

15/00702/FUL Land At Undercliff Road Under Construction 1   1         

12/00783/FUL Holtwood, Plymbridge Road Under Construction 2   1 1       

15/00742/FUL Land Adjacent To 5 Bayswater Road Under Construction 1   1         

16/01440/FUL Mount Stone, Cremyll Street Under Construction 1   1         

14/00660/FUL 90 Meadow Way Under Construction 1   1         

17/01352/FUL 118 Billacombe Road Under Construction 1   1         

17/01048/FUL 19 Neal Close Under Construction 1   1         

16/01485/FUL 40 Pollard Close Under Construction 1   1         

17/00488/S73 Land Adjacent To 23 Candish Drive  Under Construction 2   2         

16/00599/REM Plot 11, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove Under Construction 1   1         

P
age 124



     Trajectory   

Application 
Number Address Site Status at  31st March 2019  Site 

Total  2014-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

16/01392/REM Plot 22, Land Adjoining Wanstead Grove Under Construction 1   1         

16/01533/REM Plot 3, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove Under Construction 1   1         

16/01696/REM Plot 8, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove Under Construction 1   1         

16/01276/FUL Plot 5, Land Adjoining Wanstead Grove Under Construction 1   1         

16/01274/REM Plot 13, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove Under Construction 1   1         

16/01058/REM Plot 27, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove Under Construction 1   1         

16/01641/REM Plot 24, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove Under Construction 1   1         

17/02055/FUL Land At Petersfield Close Under Construction 4   4         

18/00654/FUL 26 Wilderness Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 2     2       

17/00675/OUT Land At Maidstone Place, Off Uxbridge Drive Planning permission - Not Yet Started 4       4     

17/02468/FUL 124 Billacombe Road  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 3     3       

17/02163/REM 18 Torland Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 2     2       

17/00783/FUL 166 Victoria Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/01480/REM 505 Tavistock Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

17/00555/OUT Odoorn Lodge, Riverford, Estover Close Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1       1     

17/00327/FUL 26 Powderham Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

16/02091/FUL 680 Wolseley Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

 17/02179/REM 3 Hollow Hayes Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

16/01262/FUL Rehoboth, Torbridge Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

16/01875/FUL 21 Meadow Park Plymouth Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/00873/FUL Land Adj To 17 Beauchamp Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 2     2       

16/00870/OUT Land Adj 8/10 Dale Avenue Planning permission - Not Yet Started 2       2     

16/01651/FUL Rear Of New Meze Grill Restaurant, Pin Lane Planning permission - Not Yet Started 3     3       

17/00766/FUL 5-7 Gibbon Lane Planning permission - Not Yet Started 4     4       

17/02469/FUL 126 Billacombe Road Plymstock  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 3     3       

17/00247/OUT Land To The Front Of 56 Vinery Lane  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1       1     

17/01827/FUL Highland Cottages New Street Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

17/00137/FUL 8 Woodland Terrace, Greenbank Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

17/00428/OUT 128 Looseleigh Lane  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1       1     

17/01007/FUL 1 Delgany Villas Delgany Drive  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

17/00726/FUL 4 Delgany Villas  Delgany Drive  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

16/02117/FUL 5 Southwell Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/00154/FUL 50 Hallerton Close  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

17/01384/FUL 68 Sherford Road  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

17/02349/FUL 16 Randwick Park Road  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

17/02298/FUL 1 Hawthorn Close  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

17/02276/FUL Braidwood Terrace Lane Planning permission - Not Yet Started 2     2       

16/02363/OUT Pengarth, Tamerton Foliot Road  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 2       2     

17/00666/REM Plot 21, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

P
age 125



     Trajectory   

Application 
Number Address Site Status at  31st March 2019  Site 

Total  2014-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

17/01172/REM Plot 4, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

16/01542/REM Plot 12, West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

14/02178/FUL Glen Lodge, Glen Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

17/02379/FUL 22 Grand Parade Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/02109/FUL 19 St James Place West  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/00644/OUT Land At Kensington Place  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1       1     

18/01840/FUL Land To The Rear Of Greenbank Cottages  Greenbank Road  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 2     2       

18/01005/REM Plot 20 West Park Primary School, Wanstead Grove Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/01073/FUL 2 Conqueror Drive  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/01466/FUL Land At Looseleigh Lane  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/01979/FUL 5 Trentham Close  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/00127/OUT 442 Tavistock Road  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1       1     

18/01304/FUL 24 The Spinney Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/01659/FUL 19 Chaddlewood Close Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/01220/REM 2 Springfield Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/01942/PIP Benhay, 100 Furzehatt Road  Planning Permission in Principle - Not Yet Started 1       1     

18/00913/FUL 13 Meadow Park Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/01912/PIP Land At 13 Westfield Avenue Planning Permission in Principle - Not Yet Started 2       2     

18/00083/FUL 2 Marine Road  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 2     2       

18/00857/FUL 19 Compton Park Road Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/01055/FUL 82 - 84 Higher Compton Road  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 2     2       

18/00567/FUL Land To Rear Of 41 Higher Compton Road  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/01380/FUL Land Adj. Lelant Nursing Home, Glen Road, Mannamead Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

18/01814/FUL Land Adjacent To Elizabeth Cottage, Riverford, Estover Close Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1   1         

18/01256/FUL Land At Thorn Park Lodge Thorn Park  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1   1         

18/00391/OUT Odoorn Lodge, Riverford  Estover Close  Planning permission - Not Yet Started 1     1       

16/00663/FUL 28 Smeaton Square  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

16/01230/FUL 1-4 Derrys Cross (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

16/01456/FUL 24 Walker Terrace  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

16/01752/FUL 8 Providence Place Stoke (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

16/01778/FUL Rusty Anchor Guesthouse, 30 Grand Parade  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

16/01781/FUL 15 Whitefield Terrace, Greenbank Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 2   2         

16/01907/FUL Athenaeum Lodge, 4 Athenaeum Street (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

16/01984/FUL 14 Molesworth Road Millbridge  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

16/01994/FUL 14-16 Victoria Road (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 4   4         

16/02008/FUL 14 Connaught Avenue  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 4   4         

16/02063/FUL 140 Albert Road (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

16/02172/FUL 98-99 Hotham Place Stoke  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

16/02195/FUL 5 Devonport Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

P
age 126



     Trajectory   

Application 
Number Address Site Status at  31st March 2019  Site 

Total  2014-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

16/02208/FUL 46 Market Road (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

16/02306/GP2 22 Queen Anne Terrace, North Hill  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

16/02411/FUL 9-11 Durnford Street (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

17/00259/GP2 98 Billacombe Road (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

17/00334/FUL 2 Buttersby Lane  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

17/00347/FUL 3 St Paul Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

17/00457/FUL Willcocks Buildings, Colebrook Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 2   2         

17/00472/GP2 17 College Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

17/00568/GP2 20 - 21 Oxford Place  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

17/00592/GP3 118 Grenville Road (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

17/00595/FUL 1 Hooe Manor, Belle Vue Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

17/00600/FUL 9 - 9A Underwood Road (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1   1         

17/00732/FUL 1 Marlborough Street (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 2   2         

17/00755/FUL 27 Athenaeum Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/00785/FUL 42 Bridwell Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/00839/GP2 110A Alexandra Road, Ford  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/00854/FUL 237 Albert Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/01052/GP2 56 Notte Street (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/01110/FUL 87 Mannamead Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/01226/FUL 66 Wilton Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/01358/GP2 66 Mutley Plain  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/01411/FUL Foresters Arms, 44 Fore Street, Plympton  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/01448/GP3 1 Dale Avenue (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/01594/FUL 78 Lipson Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 3     3       

17/02002/FUL 19 Pasley Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/02013/FUL 31 Devonport Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/02120/FUL Wyndham Street East (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

17/02334/PRUS 47A-49A The Broadway  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 2     2       

18/00055/FUL 90 New George Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 3     3       

18/00095/FUL Valletort Flats, Valletort Place (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

18/00096/FUL 67-69 Miles Mitchell Avenue  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

18/00123/GP2 16A Manor Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

18/00131/FUL Grand Hotel, 24 Elliot Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

18/00153/FUL 13 & 14 Jackson Place (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

18/00258/FUL 7 St Gabriels Avenue  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

18/00290/FUL 129 Looseleigh Lane (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

18/00434/FUL 21 Channel View Terrace (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

18/00487/FUL 8 Wyndham Square  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 2     2       

18/00554/FUL 15 Frogmore Avenue  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1     1       

P
age 127



     Trajectory   

Application 
Number Address Site Status at  31st March 2019  Site 

Total  2014-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

18/00564/FUL 2A Belgrave Lane  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/00583/FUL 50 Marlborough Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/00660/FUL 298 North Road West (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/00713/FUL 22 Cromwell Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/00743/FUL 11 Cumberland Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 2       2     

18/00746/FUL Scott Cottage, Millway Place (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/00775/FUL Ground Floor Flat, 24 Gifford Terrace Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/00800/FUL 48 - 50 Mutley Plain (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 4       4     

18/00823/FUL 21 Neswick Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/00827/FUL 2 Alfred Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/00885/FUL 19 Amity Place  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 2       2     

18/01034/PRUS 65 Union Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 2       2     

18/01036/FUL 5 Marlborough Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 2       2     

18/01138/FUL 51A Mutley Plain  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/01191/FUL 155 Vauxhall Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/01225/FUL Coombe House, The Quay  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 2       2     

18/01324/PRUS 21 - 23 Victoria Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/01440/FUL 16 Neath Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/01461/FUL 42 Mannamead Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/01479/GP2 53 Mutley Plain  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 2       2     

18/01490/FUL 29 Holdsworth Street  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/01669/FUL 31 Devonport Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/01845/FUL 9 Hazel Close  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/01887/FUL 116 Albert Road  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     

18/02016/FUL 45 Mutley Plain  (conversion) Planning permission - Not Yet Started* 1       1     
          

Year Totals   92 94 50 0 0 

                    

Trajectory Total    236 

*Small conversions (under 10 units) are monitored for completion only, works may have commenced         
          

 
  

P
age 128



Small sites (<10 dwellings) Trajectory for South Hams LPA 
 

Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Aveton Gifford 

0302/17/FUL allowed at 
appeal - Appeal Ref 
Number -
APP/K1128/W/17/3177770 

Old Walled Garden, Little Efford Lane, 
Aveton Gifford, TQ7 4PA 

Provision of dwelling and associated 
landscaping including restorationworks 
to 18th Century walled garden 
(variation to planning permission 
02/2222/14/F 

25/01/2018 0 0 1 

Aveton Gifford 4018/18/FUL Lower Wizaller Barn  Hangmans Cross To 
Chillaton Cross Modbury Devon  PL21 0SE 

Change of use of existing residential 
accommodation used for holiday 
 purposes to use as a Dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) 

22/02/2019 0 0 1 

Aveton Gifford 4041/18/FUL Torrings Barn Ashford Aveton Gifford  TQ7 
4NB 

READVERTISEMENT (Amended Site 
Address) Conversion of stone 
agricultural barn to dwelling 

15/03/2019 0 0 1 

Aveton Gifford 4078/17/ARM   Oak Park Farm   Aveton Gifford Devon  TQ7 
4LE 

 4078/17/ARM Application for approval 
of reserved matters following outline 
approval 1509/17/OPA  

24/11/2017 0 1 0 

Aveton Gifford 2698/17/FUL  Babland House Modbury PL21 0SB   
Alterations to existing coach house to 
create separate dwelling (resubmission 
of 02/1916/13/F) 

02/10/2017 0 1 0 

Aveton Gifford 0908/17/ARM Proposed agricultural dwelling at SX 685 513, 
Oak Tree Farm, Modbury, Ivybridge, PL21 0SB 

0908/17/ARM - Application for 
Appliation for approval of reserved 
matters following outline approval 
02/0385/15/O.  

11/05/2017 0 0 1 

Aveton Gifford 4082/16/PDM Barn At lower Lixton Farm  Loddiswell Devon   
TQ7 4EG 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plan 
Received) Notification for prior 
 approval for a proposed change of use 
of agricultural building to 
1no.dwellinghouse (Class C3) and 
associated operational development 
(ClassQ(a+b)) 

21/03/2017 0 0 1 

Aveton Gifford 0176/17/FUL Land To North Of Little Court Kingsbridge   
TQ7 4LE 

Erection of dwelling and garage with 
associated landscaping work 19/04/2017 0 1 0 

Aveton Gifford 2100/16/ARM Beer Wood  Greyhill Cross To Idston Cross 
Loddiswell Devon  TQ7 4EQ 

Reserved Matters application for 
access, scale, appearance, layout 
andlandscaping, pursuant of outline 
consent 02/0888/14/O for permanent 
agricultural works dwelling 

10/02/2017 0 0 1 

P
age 129



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Aveton Gifford 3748/18/ARM Land off Stray Park  Pulleys Close Aveton 
Gifford Devon  TQ7 4JE 

3748/18/ARM - Application for approval 
of reserved matters following outline 
approval 2635/16/OPA for construction 
of single dwelling  

08/02/2019 0 0 1 

Bigbury 4097/16/OPA appeal ref - 
APP/K1128/W/17/3182100 

Development Site At SX 663 471 St Anns 
Chapel Bigbury Devon 

READVERTISEMENT (Amendments to 
detail of proposed new access and road 
layout) Outline application with some 
matters reserved for 
residentialdevelopment of circa 8 
dwellings, open space and associated 
infrastructure with all matters reserved 
except for means of access (and 
associated off-site highway works) 

28/02/2018 0 0 8 

Bigbury 4120/17/FUL Land At SX 663 471  East Of The Pickwick Inn 
St Anns Chapel Kingsbridge   

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans 
Received) 4 No. new dwellings, 
vehicular access and public realm 
improvements 

14/11/2018 0 0 4 

Bigbury 1196/17/OPA   Land at SX668 471 Easton Bigbury   
Outline application with all matters 
reserved for permanent agricultural 
worker's dwelling 

05/07/2017 0 0 1 

Bigbury 3545/17/FUL Seafront  Marine Drive Bigbury On Sea   TQ7 
4AS 

Demolition of existing building and 
outbuildings and erection of 2no. 
replacement dwellings including 
creation of new access off Marine 
Drive. 

07/06/2018 0 0 1 

Blackawton 2531/18/FUL Land at SX 807 506  South of Greenslade 
House Blackawton Devon  TQ9 7BP Application for 1no. new dwelling 09/11/2018 0 0 1 

Blackawton 1972/17/FUL Land at Greenslade Road Blackawton TQ9 
7BP 

Application for erection of four 
dwellings (resubmission of 
3442/16/FUL) 

30/07/2018 0 0 4 

Blackawton 0481/16/FUL West Dreyton Farm   Blackawton Devon  
TQ9 7DJ 

Full planning application for the 
conversion of stone barns to 3 
  residential dwellings. 

03/06/2016 0 0 3 

Blackawton 0047/18/ARM Pruston Barton, Blackawton, Totnes TQ9 7AJ 

0047/18/ARM - Approval of reserved 
matters following outline approval 
06/2991/14/F  for permanent 
agricultural workers dwelling. 

10/07/2018 0 0 1 

P
age 130



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Blackawton 3955/16/PDM Watson Barn  Park Lane Blackawton Totnes 
Devon TQ9 7AA 

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use of 
 agricultural building to a dwelling house 
and associated works. 

02/03/2017 0 0 1 

Blackawton 4052/17/PDM 
Shearstone Barn  A3122 Dreyton Cross To 
Oldstone Cross Blackawton Devon  TQ9 
7DG 

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use of 
 agricultural building to a dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for 
associatedoperational development 

02/11/2016 0 0 1 

Blackawton 1381/18/ARM Land at SX806521 West Hartley Blackawton 
TQ9 7DT  

1381/18/ARM - Application for approval 
of reserved matters following outline 
approval 1212/17/OPA for a permanent 
agricultural worker's dwelling.   

15/11/2018 0 0 1 

Blackawton 1660/18/FUL Forder Barn Blackawton   TQ9 7AL 
Change of use and conversion of an 
agricultural building to 
 residential 

01/08/2018 0 0 1 

Brixton 1772/18/OPA Highlands  Chittleburn Hill Brixton Devon  
PL8 2AX 

Outline application with all matters 
reserved for construction of     single 
storey dwelling 

07/01/2019 0 0 1 

Brixton 1884/18/FUL Tuscanys Social Club  Legion Lane Brixton 
Devon  PL8 2AN 

1884/18/FUL - Application for 
amendments to planning approval 
2771/16/FUL  (Demolition of redundant 
club and meeting rooms and 
construction of 4no. dwelling units) 
including changes to roofs and garages  

19/11/2018 1 3 0 

Brixton 3055/17/FUL Hartlands  Lodge Lane Brixton   PL8 2AU 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans 
Received) Construction of four new 
 dwellings, with associated access road, 
landscaping and infrastructureincluding 
demolition of existing 
stables/outbuildings 

15/02/2019 0 0 4 

Brixton 07/0628/15/F 
Linhay Adj. To Spriddlestone Barton  
Spriddlestone Spriddlestone Devon  PL9 
0DW 

Conversion to single dwelling 15/07/2015 0 1 0 

Brixton 0525/18/FUL  Higher Hareston Manor Barn Brixton PL8 
2DL   

Application for proposed conversion of 
separate redundant building to a 
residential unit (previously approved 
ref. 3397/16/FUL) 

05/04/2018 0 0 1 

P
age 131



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Charleton 1827/18/FUL The Nursery  Marsh Lane West Charleton   
TQ7 2AQ 

1827/18/FUL - Erection of dwelling with 
associated landscaping work 
(Resubmission ofplanning consent 
2475/17/FUL).   

17/07/2018 0 1 0 

Charleton 2533/18/FUL East Farm Cottage   East Charleton   TQ7 
2AR 

Application for a new 4-bed dwelling 
with private driveway and parking 24/09/2018 0 0 1 

Charleton 1998/17/FUL Dunridge   West Charleton   TQ7 2AB 

Demolition of existing dwelling and 
detached outbuilding and 
 construction of two new dwellings 
with associated landscaping 

05/12/2017 0 0 1 

Charleton 1935/18/FUL  Greenridge  Curlew Drive West Charleton   
TQ7 2AA 

1935/18/FUL - Construction of 
dwelling.   23/08/2018 0 1 0 

Chivelstone 3611/16/VAR, appeal ref 
APP/K1128/W/17/3171783 

The Shippen Locks Farm East Prawle TQ7 
2BU 

Application for variation of condition 
number 3 (ancillary accommodation 
restriction for 'The Shippen' following 
grant of planning permission 
10/0326/13/F 

21/09/2017 0 0 1 

Chivelstone 1427/17/FUL Hines Hill   East Prawle Devon  TQ7 2BZ Conversion and renovation of existing 
chicken shed to create a new dwelling 30/06/2017 0 0 1 

Chivelstone 2852/18/FUL The Old Rocket House  East Prawle 
Kingsbridge   TQ7 2BY 

Conversion & Extension of Domestic 
Garage to Form a Single Dwelling 18/12/2018 0 0 1 

Chivelstone 
2964/17/FUL  Appeal Ref 
No 
APP/K1128/W/18/3199782 

Plot adjacent Old Coastguard Store Prawle 
Point Cottages to East Prawle Green East 
Prawle Devon TQ7 2BY 

Proposed construction of dwelling, with 
associated access, parking and 
landscaping works 

28/11/2018 0 0 1 

Churchstow 0969/18/FUL   Little Court Churchstow   TQ7 3QW Erection of 2no. dwellings with 
associated landscaping work 31/01/2019 0 0 2 

Churchstow 11/0763/15/CU Redundant agricultural barn, Gratton Farm, 
Loddiswell, TQ7 4DA 

Conversion of barn (with B1a 
permission) to create 2no. residential 
dwellings (class C3) revision to plannng 
approval 11/2012/14/CU 

15/05/2015 0 2 0 

Churchstow 11/1287/12/F Lower Warcombe Barns, Churchstow, 
Kingsbridge, TQ7 4BW 

Renewal of planning application 
11/0296/09/F for conversion of barn to 
two dwellings and annex with garaging 

03/06/2013 0 2 0 

Churchstow 1926/17/FUL  Land Adjacent To Westgate  Churchstow   
TQ7 3QN 

Erection of new detached dwelling with 
associated parking and 
 landscaping. 

17/08/2017 0 0 1 

P
age 132



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Churchstow 0394/18/FUL Talmans  Road North Of Woodlands To 
Home Farm Churchstow Devon  TQ7 3QZ 

0394/18 - Demolition of existing 
bungalow & garage and construction of 
2 no. replacement dwellings, including 
expansion of domestic curtilage.   

29/03/2018 0 1 0 

Cornworthy 0369/18/FUL 3, 4 & 5 Lower Tideford Farm Cornworthy 
TQ9 7HH  

Change of use from holiday cotttages 
to full residential 28/06/2018 0 0 3 

Cornworthy 1697/17/PDM Buzzard Barn  Lower Tideford Farm 
Cornworthy Devon  TQ9 7HH 

Prior approval for a proposed Change 
of use of agricultural building to 2 
dwellings and for associated operational 
development. 

11/07/2017 0 0 2 

Cornworthy 3019/17/FUL 2 Cornworthy Cottage  Lower Tideford Farm 
Cornworthy Devon  TQ9 7HH 

Change of use of holiday cottage to full 
residential use 25/01/2018 0 0 1 

Cornworthy 2053/17/FUL  Barn at SX821 558 north of Abbey Cross 
Cornworthy   

Change of use of agricultural building to 
residential dwelling 16/10/2017 0 0 1 

Cornworthy 0020/18/FUL East Cornworthy Reservoir   East 
Cornworthy Cornworthy   

0020/18/FUL - Conversion of 
redundant water reservoir to dwelling 
(Loss of B8 -84 sqm). 

03/04/2018 0 1 0 

Cornworthy 2679/16/PDM 
West Dreyton Farm  A3122 Collaton Cross 
To Dreyton Cross Blackawton Devon  TQ9 
7DJ 

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use of 
 agricultural building to dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for associated  
operational development (Class 
Q(a+b)) 

12/10/2016 0 0 1 

Cornworthy 4269/17/FUL Washbourne Reservoir  Washbourne 
Harbertonford Devon  TQ9 7UF 

4269/17/FUL Readvertisement - 
Revised Plans Received) Conversion of 
existing subterranean water storage 
tank to 1no detached 1no bedroom 
dwelling  and associated off road 
parking.   

20/03/2019 0 0 1 

Cornworthy 0676/18/FUL Blackness Marine  Higher East Cornworthy 
Farm East Cornworthy   TQ9 7HQ 

Provision of a new dwelling (previously 
approved under 13/1941/13/F) This one 
is a change to the design and asking for 
permission that the mobile home is 
kept during construction works 

30/04/2018 0 1 0 

Dartington 14/1785/15/F Deepdene  Cott Lane Dartington Totnes  
TQ9 6HE 

Erection of detached dwelling and 
associated parking within the garden 09/06/2016 0 1 0 

Dartington 3299/18/FUL Cott House  Cott Lane Dartington   TQ9 
6HE 

Erection of two storey detached 
dwelling and car port 10/12/2018 0 0 1 

P
age 133



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Dartington 4051/17/PDM Barn at Merrifield  Cott Meadow Dartington 
Totnes  TQ9 6HB 

Prior approval for proposed change of 
use of agricultural building to 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) and for 
associated operational development   
(Class Q(a+b)) 

26/01/2018 0 0 1 

Dartington 3911/16/FUL Land To West Of Lownard Youth Hostel  
Dartington Devon   

Proposed demolition and removal of 
existing Youth Hostel building and the 
erection of a detached 4 bedroom 
house with associated garage,    
landscaping and associated 
infrastructure 

23/05/2017 0 0 1 

Dartington 1730/18/FUL Tranquility Dartington TQ9 6EY 
Change of use of agricultural building to 
residential use (extension 
 to approval 3875/17/PDM) 

14/08/2018 0 1 0 

Dartmouth 2734/17/FUL  Land At College Way Dartmouth   TQ6 9PF 
Erection of a detached dwelling and 
annexe (resubmission of planning 
 permission 15/0359/13) 

20/12/2017 0 0 1 

Dartmouth 1753/17/FUL 6 Vicarage Hill Dartmouth   TQ6 9EW Proposed new dwelling located in rear 
garden area. 02/11/2017 0 1 0 

Dartmouth 0470/16/FUL Land adjacent to 50 Above Town Dartmouth 
Devon  TQ6 9RG 

Re-advertisement (Amended Address) 
Planning application for proposed 
 new 3 storey residence. 

07/06/2016 0 1 0 

Dartmouth 15/0392/14/F Proposed dwelling site at SX 8701 5148, site 
adj 15 Church Road, Dartmouth, TQ6 9HQ 

Erection of new dwelling (resubmission 
of 15/1874/13/F) 09/04/2014 0 1 0 

Dartmouth 2191/18/FUL Moonraker  The Keep Gardens Dartmouth   
TQ6 9JA 

Erection of dwelling with associated 
landscaping (Re-submission of    
0177/18/FUL) 

12/09/2018 0 0 1 

Dartmouth 15/2252/14/F Development site at SX 8651 5145 Site at 
Collingwood Road, Dartmouth. 

Construction of 7 dwellings (following 
refusal of planning application 
15/2265/12/F for construction of 8 
dwellings) 

02/03/2015 0 7 0 

Dartmouth 3649/17/FUL Longcross Reservoir  Townstal Road 
Dartmouth Devon   

Construction of five dwellings following 
demolition of existing operations 
buildings 

07/03/2018 0 0 5 

Dartmouth 0805/16/FUL Police Station  Mayors Avenue Dartmouth 
Devon  TQ6 9NF 

Proposed demolition of existing police 
station. Erection of four-storey 
residential development (consisting of 
5no. flats) with retained police use and 
parking at ground floor. 

22/06/2016 0 5 0 

P
age 134



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Dartmouth 2167/16/FUL Lower Broad Park Dartmouth   TQ6 9EY 

READVERTISEMENT Construction of 
three dwellings at site of redundant 
 Guttery Reservoir following 
demolition of redundant reservoir 
building 

13/02/2017 0 2 1 

Dartmouth 3558/16/PDM Agricultural Barns at  New Barn Farm Norton 
Devon  TQ6 0NH 

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use of 
 agricultural building to 3no. 
dwellinghouses (Class C3) and for 
 associated operational development 
(Class Q(a+b)) (resubmission of 
1707/16/PDM) 

05/01/2017 0 1 2 

Dartmouth 2129/16/FUL  20 Newcomen Road Dartmouth Devon  TQ6 
9BN 

Change of use of ground floor of 
former Presbytery to residential use 09/09/2016 0 0 1 

Dartmouth 2018/16/PDM Lower Norton Barn Lower Norton Cottage 
Dartmouth   

Notification for Prior Approval for a 
proposed change of use of 
 agricultural building to dwellinghouse 
(C3) and associated 
operationaldevelopment (Class Qa & b) 

22/08/2016 0 1 0 

Dartmouth 2909/15/FUL Land at SX 288020 50602  Southtown 
Dartmouth Devon  TQ6 9BZ Proposed single dwelling. 18/05/2016 0 0 1 

Dartmouth 15/2392/15/F Mill Cottage  Warfleet Creek Road 
Dartmouth Devon  TQ6 9DA 

Application for change of use of 
garage/hobby room to detached one 
bedroomed dwelling 

02/12/2015 0 1 0 

Dartmouth 15/2268/15/F Proposed New Dwelling At Sx Woodford  
Townstal Hill Dartmouth. Devon  TQ6 9PA 

Erection of new dwelling and associated 
garage and parking 25/11/2015 0 1 0 

Dartmouth 0534/18/FUL Spithead Dartmouth   TQ6 9PS 

Change of use of Flat 2 from 
commercial to residential, new timber 
stud partitions, new bathroom window 
to south elevation and new drainage 
routes from ensuite bathroom. 

20/07/2018 0 0 1 

Dartmouth 0751/18/FUL One Gun Point  Castle Road Dartmouth   
TQ6 0JN 

Erection of 2 replacement dwellings 
(Amended scheme from 0694/16/FUL) 26/09/2018 0 0 0 

P
age 135



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Diptford 0564/17/FUL Wheeldon Farm   Halwell Devon  TQ9 7JY 

Conversion of the big barn to two 
residential dwellings, use of Monkwood, 
Poppy and Foxglove for residential use 
and re-configuration of 
gardens/curtilage, together with 
cessation of motorbike business 

06/09/2017 3 2 0 

Diptford 17/2463/15/AGDPA Springfield Farm  Moreleigh Totnes Devon  
TQ9 7JR 

Prior approval for proposed change of 
use of agricultural building to 2no. 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) (Class Q) 

08/12/2015 1 0 1 

Diptford 2096/18/FUL  Barn adjacent Hastings Farm   Diptford Devon  
TQ9 7NQ 

2096/18/Ful - Demolition of barn to 
create two dwellings.   16/10/2018 0 2 0 

Diptford 4240/18/FUL barn adjacent to Robins Nest Cross Fram 
Diptford   

Demolition of existing agricultural barn 
& erection of new dwelling 21/03/2019 0 0 1 

Diptford 1750/18/FUL Land at Wagland Park Farm Diptford TQ9 
7LB   

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use of 
 agricultural building to a dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for 
associatedoperational 
development(Class Q(a)&(b)) 

07/08/2018 0 0 1 

Diptford 3737/17/PDM  crabadon Manor Barn Crabadon Cross 
Diptford TQ9 7JZ  

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use of agricultural 
building to a dwellinghouse (use class 
C3) and for associated operational 
development (Class Q(a)&(b)) 

19/12/2017 0 0 1 

Diptford 0673/17/PDM Barn at Higher Ashwell Farm   Halwell Devon  
TQ9 7LB 

Prior approval for proposed change of 
use of agricultural building to 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) (Class Q(a)) 

30/08/2017 0 1 0 

Diptford 0318/17/PDM Horner Barn  Lower Horner Halwell Devon  
TQ9 7LD 

Notification for Prior Approval for 
proposed change of use of 
 agricultural building to a dwelling house 
(Class C3) and 
 for associated operational 
development. 

24/03/2017 0 1 0 

Diptford 17/1627/15/F 
Proposed Barn Conversion At Sx 7282 5688  
Rear Of Church Park Close Diptford   TQ9 
7PH 

Replacement of existing field barn with 
new dwelling (resubmission of 
17/1200/15/F) 

08/10/2015 0 1 0 

P
age 136



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Diptford 2112/18/PDM The Cabin  Murtwell Farm Diptford Totnes  
TQ9 7NQ 

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use of 
  agricultural building to dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for associated 
 operational development (Class 
Q(a+b)) 

09/08/2018 0 0 1 

Diptford 45/1380/14/RM Lower Eastmoore Farm, Diptford, Totnes, 
TQ9 7PE 

Outline planning application with all 
matters reserved for the erection of an 
agricultural workers dwelling. 

12/08/2014 0 1 0 

Dittisham 1212/18/FUL Newlands Farm   Blackawton   TQ9 7DR Replacement of agricultural dwelling 01/10/2018 0 0 1 

East Allington 0084/18/FUL Lower Poole Farm East Allington   TQ9 7PZ 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans) 
Conversion of traditional stone barns 
into four residential dwellings together 
with provision of three 
 heritage style garages. 

01/02/2019 0 0 4 

East Allington 3820/18/FUL Higher Poole Farm  Lane To Higher Poole 
Farm East Allington   TQ9 7PZ 

Conversion of 2 redundant agricultural 
barns into dwelling with a 
    holiday let, associated landscaping 
and bat mitigation building/carport 

09/01/2019 0 0 1 

East Allington 3819/17/FUL Blackdown Barn SX771474 Cross Farm East 
Allington  

Conversion of agricultural barn to 
dwelling 10/01/2018 0 0 1 

East Allington 2769/16/PDM 
Pond Field Barn Rimpston Farm  Flear Cross 
To Rimpston Cross East Allington Devon  
TQ9 7RQ 

Prior approval for a proposed change of 
use of agricultural building 
 to a dwelling house (Class C3) and for 
associated operational development 
(Class Q) 

26/10/2016 0 1 0 

East Allington 2046/16/PDM 
Waydown Barn, Rimpston Farm  Track West 
Of Kingsbridge Fork Cross East Allington 
Devon   

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use of 
 agricultural building to dwellinghouse 
(Class C3)(Class Qa) 

24/08/2016 0 0 1 

East Portlemouth 1499/18/FUL Site at SX 750 389  Port Waterhouse East 
Portlemouth Salcombe  TQ8 8PA 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans 
Received) Erection of rural worker's   
dwelling 

08/03/2019 0 0 1 

Ermington 21/2404/15/F 1 Chapel Street Ermington Ivybridge  PL21 
9ND Erection of 3 bed detached dwelling 24/06/2016 0 1 0 

Ermington 2659/15/FUL Crooked Spire Inn  The Square Ermington 
Devon  PL21 9LP 

Conversion of part of redundant 
premises to form two new dwellings. 06/07/2016 0 2 0 

Ermington 2767/17/FUL Linhay Barn  Budlake Ermington Ivybridge  
PL21 9NG Conversion of barn to dwelling 07/12/2017 0 0 1 

P
age 137



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Ermington 2333/16/PDM Barn at East Burraton  Burraton Cross To 
Luson Burraton Devon  PL21 9LA 

Prior approval for proposed change of 
use of agricultural building to 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) (Class Qa) 

16/09/2016 0 0 1 

Ermington 1938/16/PDM 
Agricultural Building at Lower Burraton Farm  
Lane Past Lower Burraton Farm Burraton 
Devon  PL21 9LA 

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use of 
 agricultural building to dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) Class Q (a) 

10/08/2016 0 0 1 

Ermington 2715/15/PDM SX6155 7772 Hunsdon Road Ivybridge     

Prior approval for a proposed change of 
use of agricultural building 
 to a dwellinghouse (C3) and associated 
operational development 

04/02/2016 0 1 0 

Ermington 21/1707/15/F Brook Farm  Ivybridge Ivybridge Devon  PL21 
9LE 

Alterations to adjoining farmhouse for 
residential use. Conversion of barn to 
residential use. Change of use of 
existing farm shed for equestrian use 
(stables) 

19/10/2015 0 1 0 

Ermington 21/1923/15/F Proposed Dwelling At Sx 625 537  Higher 
Preston Barn Westlake Ivybridge   Conversion of stone barn to dwelling 05/10/2015 0 1 0 

Ermington 0401/19/FUL Square Field Linhay  Higher Ludbrook Farm 
Ludbrook Ermington  PL21 0LL 

0401/19/FUL - Conversion of barn to 
dwelling (amendments to planning 
permission 1188/18/FUL).   

25/03/2019 0 0 1 

Ermington 2803/15/FUL Luson Langbrook Cross To Luson Langbrook 
Westlake PL21 9JZ 

Conversion and Change of Use of an 
existing redundant stone barn within 
the curtilage of a grade II listed building 
in to a four bedroom family dwelling. 

29/01/2016 0 1 0 

Ermington 21/2168/11/F Swainstone Farm , Swainstone, Devon, PL21 
9LE,  

Conversion of barn to form single 
family dwelling 02/11/2011 0 1 0 

Halwell & Moreleigh 1310/16/OPA Land Adjacent Tor View   Moreleigh Devon  
TQ9 7JQ 

Outline Planning Application for 3 
dwellings 23/06/2016 0 0 3 

Halwell & Moreleigh 3456/17/FUL  The Byre and The Stables Lower Collaton 
Farm Blackawton  TQ9 7DW 

Change of use of land to residential 
curtilage/garden and use of two 
 barn conversions as residential 

04/04/2018 0 0 2 

Halwell & Moreleigh 1730/17/FUL  Land at Moreleigh Cross Farm Moreleigh   
TQ9 7JQ 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plan 
Received) Erection of 1no. dwelling 10/08/2017 0 1 0 

Halwell & Moreleigh 2617/16/FUL 4 Gripstone Cottages  Road Serving 
Gripstone Cottage Halwell   TQ9 7JF 

Erection of a single attached dwelling 
including parking and landscaping 10/11/2016 0 0 1 

Halwell & Moreleigh 22/2768/12/F Orchard Barn, Washbourne, Totnes conversion of redundant barn into 
residential unit of accommodation 23/01/2013 0 1 0 

P
age 138



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Halwell & Moreleigh 2240/18/PDM Ritson Barton Farm   Halwell Devon  TQ9 
7JG 

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use of agricultural 
building to a dwellinghouse (Class C3) 
and for associatedoperational 
development (Class Q(a)&(b)) 

24/08/2018 0 0 1 

Halwell & Moreleigh 3912/18/ARM   Land at Morleigh Parks Farm TQ9 7JN    
3912/18/ARM - Approval of reserved 
matters following outline approval 
reference.  

05/02/2019 0 0 1 

Harbeton 2551/16/PDM 
Higher Dorsley Barton  Green Lane To North 
Of Copperthorne Cross Harberton Devon  
TQ9 6DN 

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use of 
  agricultural building to three 
dwellinghouses (Class C3) and for 
associated operational development. 

05/10/2016 0 0 3 

Harbeton 4242/18/FUL Belsford Court  Harberton    TQ9 7SP 

Removal of holiday condition of 
approval 23/0031/02/F to allow 
 permanent residential occupation of 
the barn conversions and re-
organisation of site including parking & 
curtilage to serve a reduction in the 
number of units from 5 to 3. 

21/03/2019 0 0 2 

Harbeton 0626/18/FUL Moore Farm Barns Harberton TQ9 7LP   Conversion of existing stone barns to 
two dwellinghouses with garages 10/10/2018 0 0 2 

Harbeton 2559/17/FUL Orchard Lodge  Old Road Harbertonford   
TQ9 7PU 

Demolition of existing holiday let and 
construction of new dwelling 
  and bin/log store outbuilding, with 
associated landscaping. 

23/10/2017 0 1 0 

Harbeton 1822/17/FUL Development Site At Sx782560 
Harbertonford   TQ9 7TS 

Construction of a new two storey 
dwelling house 02/08/2017 0 1 0 

Harbeton 
3040/16/FUL.  Appeal ref 
no.  
APP/K1128/W/17/3168011 

Lower Ashridge Farm Lane From Higher 
Grove To Lowe Harberton TQ9 6EW 

Replacement of outbuilding with single 
dwelling (alternative to 23/2331/15/F 
for conversion of outbuilding to single 
dwelling) 

21/06/2017 0 1 0 

P
age 139



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Harbeton 0400/18/ARM Little Grove Farm Harberton Totnes  TQ9 
6EW 

0400/18/Arm - Application for approval 
of reserved matters following outline 
approval 2634/15/OPA for conversion 
of barn to 1no. live/work unit, 1no. 
workshop and 1no. holiday let - 
confirmed that there was a new living 
accommodation as well as the holiday 
let, by checking the plans.  

01/07/2016 0 0 1 

Ivybridge 3074/15/FUL Greenwood  Western Road Ivybridge Devon  
PL21 9AN Erection of 5 new dwellings 20/05/2016 0 0 5 

Ivybridge 27/2143/15/F South View House  Cole Lane Ivybridge 
Devon  PL21 0DG 

Retention of existing dwelling, erection 
of 3 new dwellings and 
      associated garage. Conversion of 
store over existing garage for home  
office. 

30/06/2016 0 1 2 

Ivybridge 0242/18/FUL  Godwell House  Godwell Lane Ivybridge 
Devon  PL21 0LT 

0242/8/FUL - Construction of detached 
dwelling and associated detached 
double garage in the garden area of 
Godwell House.   

31/07/2018 0 0 1 

Ivybridge 2577/17/FUL Pound Farm  Fore Street Ivybridge Devon  
PL21 9AE 

Construction of detached single storey 
dwelling and replacement garagefor 
adjacent farmhouse. 

11/01/2018 0 0 1 

Ivybridge 2387/18/ARM  Development Site At Ivydale  Godwell Lane 
Ivybridge Devon  PL21 0LE 

2387/18/ARM - READVERTISEMENT 
(Revised Plans) Approval of reserved 
matters followingoutline approval 
27_57/2139/15/O for residential 
development of 4no.  dwellings with 
associated access and other works.   

10/01/2019 0 0 4 

Ivybridge 27/1801/14/F Plum Tree Court, Fore Street, Ivybridge Erection of 2 No 3 bedroomed 
dwellings 12/06/2015 0 2 0 

Ivybridge 1085/18/FUL 4 Western Road Ivybridge   PL21 9AN Conversion of building to provide two 
flats. 14/11/2018 0 0 2 

Ivybridge 0345/16/FUL Land To Rear Of Oate Villa Western Road 
Ivybridge   

Demolition of existing garage/store and 
construction of single 
 dwelling with parking 

13/04/2016 0 0 1 

Ivybridge 0655/17/FUL First Floor 56 Fore Street Ivybridge   PL21 
9AE 

Conversion of roof space to a 2-
bedroom flat, there are also 3 flats 
which are being re furnbished. 

27/04/2017 0 0 1 

P
age 140



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Kingsbridge 1381/17/FUL Top Acre 12 Higher Warren Road 
Kingsbridge Devon  TQ7 1LG 

RE ADVERTISEMENT (Revised plans) 
Application for proposed new 
bungalowto rear. 

23/10/2017 0 1 0 

Kingsbridge 2815/18/FUL Sunny Patch  Western Backway Kingsbridge   
TQ7 1QB 

1875/17/FUL - Erection of dwelling and 
associated works.   18/12/2018 0 0 1 

Kingsbridge 4162/16/FUL 12 Buckwell Road Kingsbridge   TQ7 1NQ Proposed erection of single detached 
dwelling 06/03/2017 0 0 1 

Kingsbridge 0549/18/FUL 55 Henacre Road Kingsbridge   TQ7 1DP 

New dwelling and off road parking, 
extension to existing dwelling and new 
off road parking (resubmission of 
3847/17/FUL) 

08/05/2018 0 0 1 

Kingsbridge 2097/18/FUL  Land Off Derby Road Kingsbridge    

Proposed residential development of 
4no. 3-bed houses and 2no. 1-bed 
 flats for affordable rent with associated 
external works and parking 

07/09/2018 0 0 6 

Kingsbridge 0256/17/FUL Development Site  Tumbly Hill Kingsbridge 
Devon   Construction of 5no.apartments 04/05/2018 0 0 5 

Kingsbridge 0674/17/FUL Culver Park Close Kingsbridge   TQ7 1LD 

Construction of 5 detached dwellings 
with garages and parking areas, 
 demolition of existing stable, 
construction of Devon hedgebank on 
Western boundary, reprofiling site with 
earthworks to form access road and 
site landscaping. 

03/10/2017 0 0 5 

Kingsbridge 4140/16/FUL  Rivermaid Boatyard, Embankment Road, 
Kingsbridge, TQ7 1JZ 

4140/16/FUL - Demolition of existing 
boathouse and construction of 4no. 
three-storey dwellings to include 8 new 
car parking spaces and ferry waiting 
area, new pedestrian footpath to 
roadside (The Proposal: The proposal 
seeks to renew the planning permission 
which was granted in 2014 
(28/2132/13/F), for the erection of 4 
terraced dwellings, set within a three 
storey block.   

19/09/2018 0 4 0 

Kingsbridge 3789/16/POD Unit 3&5, Centurion Works  Lower Union 
Road Kingsbridge Devon  TQ7 1EF 

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use from Office use 
to 3 dwellings. 

03/04/2017 0 0 3 

P
age 141



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Kingsbridge 3815/18/FUL First And Second Floor 3 - 5 Mill Street 
Kingsbridge TQ7 1ED 

Change of use of the first floor and 
second floor extension to create 4 flats 
(amendment to 28/0353/12/F and 
0468/18/FUL) 

18/12/2018   3 0 

Kingsbridge 3949/18/FUL 89 Fore Street Kingsbridge   TQ7 1AB 

Resubmission of approved full planning 
consent 2747/15/FUL for alterations 
and works to facilitate change of use 
from offices (A2) to2No residential 
dwellings (C3) 

25/01/2019 0 0 2 

Kingsbridge 1402/18/FUL 60 Fore Street Kingsbridge   TQ7 1NY Conversion of upper floors of existing 
retail unit to 3 no. apartments 28/06/2018 0 0 2 

Kingsbridge 4023/18/FUL 14 Fore Street Kingsbridge   TQ7 1NY 

Internal alterations to create an 
additional first floor apartment 
   (Resubmission of 0602/18/FL this 
application was withdrawn) 

01/02/2019 0 0 1 

Kingsbridge 0207/18/FUL Development Site At Sx 7418 4302  Warren 
Road Kingsbridge Devon   

Erection of two detached houses and 
garages 20/02/2018 0 0 1 

Kingsbridge 3823/17/FUL Site Rear Of 81 Fore Street Kingsbridge   
TQ7 1AB 

Proposed conversion and alteration of 
outbuildings to the rear of 81  Fore St 
to single dwelling. 

05/01/2018 0 0 1 

Kingsbridge 0427/16/FUL  Widegates 56 Embankment Road Kingsbridge 
Devon  TQ7 1LA 

0427/16/FUL - Amendments and 
revisions to previous planning approval 
28/1630/15/F for the erection of two 
new dwelling and associated garage and 
landscaping on site of previously 
demolished dwelling.     

20/10/2015 0 0 1 

Kingsbridge 3474/18/FUL 9 Fore Street Kingsbridge   TQ7 1PG 

Creation of first floor flat and 
refurbishment of the lean to lobby, 
 removal and replacement of staircase, 
installation of soundproofing,  
installation of secondary glazing, 
removal of modern window at ground 
floor level (rear) and making good of 
rendering to external walls 

19/12/2018 0 0 1 

P
age 142



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Kingsbridge 3393/17/PDM Willow Barn Willow Farm Ledstone 
Kingsbridge TQ7 2HF 

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use of agricultural 
building to dwellinghouse (Class C3) 
and for associated  Operational 
Development (Class Q(a)&(b)) 

01/12/2017 0 0 1 

Kingston 1186/17/FUL 
Proposed Development Site At SX6390 4802  
Adj Trebles Cottage Kingston Kingsbridge  
TQ7 4PT, to be known as Heron House 

1186/17/ARC - Proposed new dwelling 
to the west of Trebles Cottage 
Kingston 

30/11/2015 0 0 1 

Kingston 4241/17/FUL Land at SX 634 475 Upper Townsend Park 
Scobbiscombe Lane Kingston TQ7 4QB 

Application for erection of a single 
storey dwelling 05/02/2018 0 1 0 

Kingswear 2072/17/FUL Land adjacent to Creek Haven Lower 
Contour Road Kingswear TQ6 0AL  

Application two bedroomed dwelling 
(revision of planning consent 
     30/2027/15/F) 

31/08/2017 0 0 1 

Kingswear 2231/18/FUL Crofters Cottage  Raddicombe Lane Hillhead   
TQ5 0EX 

Creation of new two bedroom 
bungalow, with garage and relocation of   
garage to original house 

14/11/2018 0 0 1 

Kingswear 30/0838/14/F Land adj. Littlecroft, Higher Contour Road, 
Kingswear, TQ6 0DE 

Erection of new dwelling (amendment 
to approval 30/1580/11/F) 03/06/2014 0 0 1 

Kingswear 1613/18/FUL The Lane House  Upper Wood Lane 
Kingswear   TQ6 0DF 

Proposed new dwelling in garden area 
of The Lane House and 
           alterations to existing access to 
Mount Ridley Road 

09/08/2018 0 0 1 

Kingswear 3919/18/ARC  Plot 4, Lower Contour Road, Kingswear 

3919/18/ARC - Application for approval 
of detials reserved by conditions 3, 4 & 
11 of planning consent 30/3212/14/F .  
Erection of 2no. flats 

06/05/2015 0 2 0 

Kingswear 0141/18/ARM   Ocean View Farm  Raddicombe Drive 
Hillhead Devon  TQ5 0EX 

0141/18/ARM - Application for approval 
of reserved matters following outline 
approval 0566/17/OPA for agricultural 
worker's permanent dwelling  

30/04/2018 0 1 0 

Kingswear 2115/17/FUL Reservoir House  Upper Wood Lane 
Kingswear Devon  TQ6 0DF 

Proposed erection of dwelling 
(following planning approval 
 0253/16/FUL) and change of use of 
additional ground to residential garden 
ground 

11/08/2017 0 0 1 

P
age 143



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Kingswear 2947/15/FUL The Garage Site Beacon Road Kingswear  

Demolition of existing garage and stone 
wall and erection of a 2 storey 
structure with parking for 2 cars and a 
studio flat at first   floor level 

15/04/2016 0 0 1 

Kingswear 30/1724/15/F Wayside  Lower Contour Road Kingswear 
Dartmouth  TQ6 0AL 

Alterations to provide 2no. garages, lift 
and conversion to 2no. dwellings 21/12/2015 0 1 0 

Littlehempston 1903/18/PDM Barn at SX 820 638  Tallyho Bridge 
Littlehempston Totnes  TQ9 6NG 

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use of 
  agricultural building to dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for associated  
operational development (Class 
Q(a+b)) 

30/07/2018 0 0 1 

Loddiswell 3746/18/FUL  Higher Hatch Farm, Loddiswell, Kingsbridge 
TQ7 4AJ 

3746/18/FUL-Conversion of 3 barns to 
3 dwellings with associated works and 
landscaping. (Alternative proposal to 
consents 32/0689/14/F and 
32/0690/14/LB). This is for Barns A, B & 
D only.    

07/07/2014 0 3 1 

Loddiswell 2481/18/FUL Post Office   Loddiswell   TQ7 4QH Conversion of post office to 2 No 
studio dwellings 05/10/2018 0 0 2 

Loddiswell 2773/17/PDM Lilwell Barn  Lilwell Farm Loddiswell Devon  
TQ7 4EF 

Prior Approval for proposed change of 
use agricultural building to 
 dwellinghouse (Class C3) and for 
associated operational development 
(Class Q(a+b)) 

09/10/2017 0 0 1 

Loddiswell 1155/18/PDM Agricultural building at Stanton Cottage   
Loddiswell Devon  TQ7 4EF 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans 
Received) Notification for prior 
 approval for proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for associated 
operational development   (Class 
Q(a)&(b)) 

09/07/2018 0 0 1 

Loddiswell 2078/17/FUL The Orchard  Well Street Loddiswell    Erection of residential dwelling. 12/09/2018 0 0 1 

P
age 144



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Loddiswell 0172/18/FUL  Inner Weeke Loddiswell   TQ7 4AQ 

Conversion of barn 5 to dwelling, 
involving removal of existing       
concrete block extension, replacement 
of lean-to extension with new   single 
storey extension, associated structural 
works and roofing,     demolition of 
barns 3 and 6, barn 4 to be made 
structurally sound and used for bat and 
bird mitigation. 

23/04/2018 0 0 1 

Loddiswell 3387/18/ARM  Woolston Farm   Loddiswell   TQ7 4DU 

3387/18/ARM - Application for approval 
of reserved matters for provision of an 
agricultural worker's dwelling following 
grant of outline consent 1329/18/OPA.  

13/03/2019 0 0 1 

Malborough 1391/16/OPA Hi Ho  White Cross To Malborough Green 
Malborough   TQ7 3RR 

Outline application with all matters 
reserved for two new detached    
dwellings (revised from three dwellings) 

06/08/2018 0 0 3 

Malborough 33/2944/11/F 143 Cumber Close, Malborough, TQ7 3DG Change of use from community rooms 
to dwelling 03/01/2012 0 1 0 

Marldon 34/1890/15/O Development Site At RMC Quarry  The Old 
Kiln Kiln Road Marldon Paignton TQ3 1SH 

Outline planning permission with all 
matters reserved for 5 new dwellings, 
on-site access and parking with 
associated landscaping 

27/09/2017 0 0 5 

Marldon 0178/18/FUL Winsland  Churscombe Road Marldon   TQ3 
1NA 

Demolition of existing dwelling and 
garage and formation of 3 new build 
detached dwellings 

03/08/2018 0 2 0 

Marldon 1332/17/PDM Barn 1 at Oak End  Wildwoods Lane Marldon 
Devon  TQ3 1RS 

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use of agricultural 
building to dwellinghouse (Class C3) 
and for associated operational 
development (Class Q(a+b) 
(resubmission of 0415/17/PDM) 

30/06/2017 0 0 1 

Marldon 34/1133/15/F Brownscombe Barn At Sx 8582 6468  
Brownscombe Wood Ipplepen Road Marldon   

Change of use of agricultural building to 
dwelling house (C3) 13/07/2015 0 1 0 

Modbury 1649/18/FUL The Old Vicarage Stable Modbury Devon  
PL21 0TA 

Erection of single detached dwelling and 
garage with new access 21/09/2018 0 0 1 

P
age 145



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Modbury 3369/16/PDM Building at Penn Parks Farm Modbury 
Ivybridge Devon PL21 0TB 

Prior approval for a proposed change of 
use of agricultural building 
 to a dwellinghouse. 

02/12/2016 0 0 2 

Modbury 35/3163/14/F Proposed development of barn at SX 6562 
5292, Higher Sheepham, Modbury, Ivybridge 

Conversion of barn into 2no. dwelling 
units 06/02/2015 0 2 0 

Modbury 3883/17/FUL  New Road Modbury   PL21 0QQ Conversion of former workshop to 
residential dwelling (loss of B1 -78) 09/01/2018 0 1 0 

Modbury 2545/17/FUL The Coach House  Back Street Modbury   
PL21 0RF 

Conversion of a redundant stone coach 
house building into a dwelling 26/09/2017 0 1 0 

Modbury 0576/17/PDM Barn At Traine   Modbury Devon  PL21 0RL 

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use of 
  agricultural building to a dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for 
 associated operational development.  
Previous planning application no.  
3346/16 

18/04/2017 0 1 0 

Modbury 2303/16/PDM Spindlebrook Farm  Sheepham Bridge 
Modbury Devon   

Prior approval for proposed change of 
use of agricultural building 
 to dwelling house(class C3) and for 
associated operational 
development(Class Qa+b) 

26/09/2016 0 1 0 

Modbury 35/2413/15/F Bonny Moor Barn At Sx 668 521  Modbury 
Modbury Devon   

Conversion of barn to dwelling and 
relocation of access 22/12/2015 0 1 0 

Modbury 3526/18/PDM Barn at Widland Farm Cottage   Modbury 
Devon  PL21 0SA 

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use of 
  agricultural building to dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for associated  
operational development (Class 
Q(a)&(b)) 

10/12/2018 0 0 1 

Modbury 3850/18/FUL  The Grey Barn land at SX690516 Modbury 
PL21 0SB  

0850/18/FUL - Conversion of existing 
barn to dwelling (previously approved 
under    Class Q ref. 0324/18/PDM) to 
include minor alterations, a new 
detachedcar port / garage and 
extension to the domestic curtilage  

06/02/2019 0 0 1 

Modbury 4154/17/OPA  Land at SX642512 Perry Farm Bluegate Hill 
Modbury, PL21 0TF  

Outline application (with all matters 
reserved) for a permanent agricultural 
workers dwelling 

25/07/2018 0 0 1 

P
age 146



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Modbury 0203/18/PDM.  Appeal Ref 
APP/K1128/W/18/3199823 Barn at SX676515 Babland Cross, modbury 

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use ofagricultural 
building to dwellinghouse (class C3) and 
for associated operational development 
(Class Q(a)&(b))  

17/09/2018 0 0 1 

Newton & Noss 
0778/18/FUL allowed on 
appeal 
APP/K1128/W/18/3212025 

8 Perches Close, Membland, Newton Ferrers 
PL8 1HZ 

 Erection of self build dwelling 
(resubmission of 2477/17/FUL)  22/02/2019 0 0 1 

Newton & Noss 1372/16/FUL  Land at The Fairway Newton Ferrers PL8 
1DP   

Construction of 5no. DDA-compliant 
dwellings and change of use of land 03/04/2017 0 0 5 

Newton & Noss 2288/18/FUL  Cottage Green  Parsonage Road Newton 
Ferrers Devon  PL8 1AS 

2288/18/ARM - Approval of reserved 
matters following outline approval 
0791/16/OPA  (erection of bungalow 
and detached garage).   

16/10/2018 0 0 1 

Newton & Noss 
3976/16/FUL.  Appeal ref 
no.  
APP/K1128/W/17/3173207 

Whitegates Parsonage Road Newton Ferrers 
PL8 1AS 

Demolition of single dwelling and the 
erection of two detached dwellings 21/09/2017 0 0 1 

Newton & Noss 2037/17/FUL 10 Acre  Archers Court Newton Ferrers 
Devon  PL8 1BD 

Application for replacement of barn 
with single dwelling requiring 
   change of use of land from 
agricultural to residential. 

07/09/2017 0 1 0 

Newton & Noss 1434/17/FUL The Old Workshop Pillory Hill Noss Mayo 
Devon PL8 1ED  Construction of new dwelling  20/07/2017 0 1 0 

Newton & Noss 3471/16/FUL Pillory Hill Noss Mayo   PL8 1DX 

Change of use of ancillary unit of self 
contained accommodation to 
  permanent dwelling and minor 
changes to external terrace. 

16/03/2017 0 0 1 

Newton & Noss 37/0518/15/F Briar Hill Farm, Court Road, Newton Ferrers, 
Plymouth PL8 1AR 

Replacement of existing barns with two 
holiday homes and owners dwelling 
with storage space 

11/06/2015 0 1 0 

Newton & Noss 2490/18/FUL Fourwinds 94 Court Road Newton Ferrers 
Devon  PL8 1DD 

Division of existing dwelling to create 
two 3 bed dwellings with 
 parking 

28/09/2018 0 1 0 

North Huish 1578/18/FUL Barn adjacent to Church House   North Huish 
Devon  TQ10 9NQ 

Application for change of use of barn to 
dwelling 21/02/2019 0 0 1 

North Huish 38/2488/15/F The Linhay  Manor Farm Barns North Huish 
South Brent  TQ10 9NN 

Conversion of redundant agricultural 
stone barn to a dwelling 23/12/2015 0 1 0 

P
age 147



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

North Huish 1130/16/OPA Colmer View Farm  California Cross To 
Colmer Cross Modbury Devon  PL21 0SG 

Application for outline planning 
permission with all matters reserved 
for Agricultural dwelling. 

03/06/2016 0 0 1 

North Huish 0693/16/OPA Lower Greenslade Farm   Avonwick Devon  
TQ10 9EZ 

Outline planning permission with all 
matters reserved for a permanent 
agricultural worker's dwelling 

28/04/2016 0 0 1 

North Huish 3681/17/FUL Coombe Norris North Huish   TQ10 9NJ 

Conversion of redundant barn to 
dwelling and new garage (resubmission 
of 3266/16/FUL) - Amendments to the 
design and access 

03/05/2018 0 0 1 

Rattery 3873/18/FUL Agricultural Building At Sx 771 634  The Barns 
Hood Barton Dartington Totnes TQ9 6AB 

3873/18/FUL-Application for 
conversion of agricultural barns to form 
2no. dwellinghouses (Partially 
commenced under 
39/1977/15/AGDPA).   

25/01/2019 0 0 2 

Rattery 1379/18/FUL Newlight  Syon Abbey Marley Head South 
Brent  TQ10 9JX 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans 
Received) Retrospective application 
forcreation of self-contained residential 
unit of the annex 

01/10/2018 0 0 1 

Rattery 2352/18/FUL  Holly Barn   Rattery   TQ10 9LF Erection of dwelling on site of 
agricultural building 07/09/2018 0 0 1 

Ringmore 2342/18/FUL Higher Manor Farm   Ringmore   TQ7 4HL 

Demolition of existing garden store, 
construction of a new single 
    storey dwelling and associated 
landscaping and boundary treatments 

19/09/2018 0 0 1 

Salcombe 2843/16/FUL Merrivale  Main Road Salcombe Devon  TQ8 
8JW Erection of new dwelling in garden plot 20/01/2017 0 0 1 

Salcombe 41/2068/15/F Salvora  Grenville Road Salcombe Devon  
TQ8 8BJ Erection of single detached dwelling 23/03/2016 0 1 0 

Salcombe 2080/18/FUL Cachel  Onslow Road Salcombe   TQ8 8AH 
READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans) 
New driveway to existing dwelling and 
new detached dwelling 

12/11/2018 0 0 1 

Salcombe 41/1023/15/F Spion Lodge  Bennett Road Salcombe Devon  
TQ8 8JJ 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans 
Received) Demolition of existing 
 dwelling and erection of building to 
contain 6No apartments with 
associated landscaping and car parking 

08/08/2017 0 0 5 

Salcombe 4339/17/FUL Cadmus  Bonaventure Road Salcombe Devon  
TQ8 8BE 

Planning application for the replacement 
of the existing dwelling with three 
dwellings 

07/03/2018 0 0 2 

P
age 148



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Salcombe 3838/18/FUL St Valery  Herbert Road Salcombe   TQ8 
8HW 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans) 
Extension and alterations to existing 
dwelling to create two separate 
dwellings 

15/03/2019 0 0 1 

Salcombe 3519/16/FUL, appeal ref:  
APP/K1128/W/17/3174774 

Vantage Point Bonaventure Road Salcombe 
TQ8 8BE 

 Conversion of single dwelling house 
into two dwellings and extensions to 
front rear and sides 

22/09/2017 0 2 0 

Salcombe 2704/16/FUL Ridge House  Grenville Road Salcombe   TQ8 
8BJ 

Demolition of Ridge House and 
replacement with two semi-detached 
 dwellings with parking (amendments to 
approval 41/0314/14/F) 

02/12/2016 0 1 0 

..               

Salcombe 41/1493/11/F Rutherfords, Herbert Road, Salcombe Demolition of existing and replacement 
with 2 dwellings 15/08/2011 0 0 1 

Salcombe 3419/17/FUL Land at Baptist Lane Salcombe    
Demolition of existing garages and 
erection of 1no. dwelling (revision of 
0877/17/FUL) 

24/07/2018 0 0 1 

Salcombe 3040/17/FUL Vantage One  Sandhills Road Salcombe   TQ8 
8JP 

Alteration and extension of existing 
dwelling to form two dwellings 10/05/2018 0 0 1 

Shaugh Prior 2112/17/FUL Portworthy Storage Tank  Park Lane Lee 
Moor Plymouth  PL7 5JT 

Conversion of water tank to 
dwellinghouse, partial removal of earth 
 bunds and site landscaping 
(resubmission of 0377/17/FUL) 

27/09/2017 0 0 1 

Shaugh Prior 1398/16/FUL 
Land Adjacent Montague Terrace  Road To 
Blackalder Terrace Saltram Terrace And 
Montague Terrace Lee Moor Devon  PL7 5JD 

Application for planning permission for 
construction for new four 
 bedroom detached dwelling 

02/09/2016 0 0 1 

Frogmore & Sherford 2071/18/FUL Plots 10 & 11  Creek Close Frogmore Devon  
TQ7 2FG 

Erection of two dwellings with garages 
and associated landscaping     
(amendment to planning consent 
1180/16/VAR) The current proposal 
seeks to amend the layout and 
orientation of the two dwellings 
previously approved under 
1180/16/VAR 

27/11/2018 0 0 2 

Frogmore & Sherford 
3880/17/OPA.  Appeal Ref 
No. 
APP/K1128/W/18/3205992 

Proposed development site at SX 775 424 
East Of Creek Close Frogmore Devon 

Outline application (with all matters 
reserved) for the erection of 8 
dwellings (including affordable housing), 
access and associated landscaping 

27/12/2018 0 0 8 

P
age 149



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Frogmore & Sherford 3889/18/FUL Stancombe Manor  Sherford    TQ7 2BE Continued use of property as two self-
contained Class C3 dwellings. 31/01/2019 0 0 2 

Frogmore & Sherford 1861/18/FUL Eastern Field Barn  Homefield Farm Sherford 
Devon  TQ7 2AT 

1861/18/FUL - Demolition of existing 
barn and construction of replacement 
dwelling  (following approval 
0338/17/PDM) with associated access 
and landscaping.  

31/07/2018 0 0 1 

Frogmore & Sherford 0683/17/OPA Land at Sherford Down  Sherford Down Road 
Sherford Devon  TQ7 2BA 

Outline application with some matters 
reserved for provision of 
singleresidential dwelling (resubmission 
of 2331/16/OPA) 

12/03/2018 0 0 1 

Frogmore & Sherford 0716/17/FUL 
The Cider Barn Stancombe Manor  
Stancombe Cross To Harleston C Sherford   
TQ7 2BE 

Alteration and conversion of redundant 
farm building to single dwelling and 
ancillary works 

08/05/2017 0 0 1 

Frogmore & Sherford 1844/16/FUL Annex, Oddicombe House   Chillington 
Devon  TQ7 2JD 

Erection of dwelling, part retrospective 
(previously approved as 
ancilretrospective (previously approved 
as ancillary accommodation ref 
 43_53/1526/15/F) 

17/08/2016 0 0 1 

Frogmore & Sherford 43/2299/15/RM Land at SX 778 439, Homefield Park Farm, 
Sherford 

Outline application (all matters 
reserved) for permanent agricultural 
worker's dwelling to replace temporary 
mobile home 

02/12/2015 0 1 0 

Frogmore & Sherford 43/0352/14/F Frogmore Boat Yard, Frogmore, Kingsbridge, 
TQ7 2NU 

Application for construction of rural 
worker's dwelling (resubmission of 
43/3065/13/RM) 

07/05/2014 0 1 0 

Slapton 1736/17/OPA Highclere   Slapton   TQ7 2PY 

Outline Planning Application with some 
matters reserved for two new  
dwellings and alterations to existing 
road access 

24/01/2018 0 0 2 

Slapton 0399/18/FUL The Milking Parlour  Thorn Park Barns 
Kingsbridge   TQ7 2RE 

0399/18/FUL -Proposed residential 
conversion of redundant milking 
parlour (resubmission of 2667/17/FUL)  

04/04/2018 0 1 0 

P
age 150



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Slapton 1127/16/FUL  Barnfields Slapton   TQ7 2QD 

Planning application for conversion and 
link extension to barns to 
 create a dwellinghouse together with 
associated access and change of 
 use to create residential curtilage. 

03/06/2016 0 1 0 

South Brent 3011/16/PDM  The Trough South Brent TQ10 9JT   

Notification for Prior Approval for a 
proposed change of use of 
  agricultural building to 2no. 
Dwellinghouses (Class C3) and 
associatedoperational development 
(Class Q(a+b)) 

28/11/2016 0 2 0 

South Brent 0880/18/PDM  Riverwood Barn Horsebrook South Brent 
TQ10 9EU  

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use of 
  agricultural building to a dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for 
associatedoperational development 
(Class Q(a)&(b)) 

10/05/2018 0 0 1 

South Huish 0435/18/FUL  Homefield, Hope Cove, Kingsbridge, TQ7 
3HB 

Erection of detached dwelling within 
the residential curtilage of 'Homefield' 
(resubmission of 46/0087/14/F) 

19/07/2018 0 1 0 

Sparkwell 49/2053/15/AGDPA Birchland Barns  Birchland Farmhouse 
Birchland Way Sparkwell Plymouth PL7 5DW 

Prior approval for proposed change of 
use of agricultural building to 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) and 
associated operational development 
(ClassQ) 

02/11/2015 0 2 0 

Sparkwell 20898/18/FUL Baccamore  Blacklands Cross To Stert Bridge 
Sparkwell Devon  PL7 5DF 

Prior approval for a proposed change of 
use from agricultural 
  building to dwelling house. 

05/09/2018 0 0 1 

Sparkwell 3006/18/FUL  Smithaleigh House Smithaleigh   PL7 5AX 

3006/18/FUL - Demolition of existing 
granary building and erection of new 
build  dwelling (part retrospective) 
(alternative scheme to approval 
3284/17/FUL).   

21/01/2019 0 1 0 

Sparkwell 3831/17/FUL  Baccamore Mill Sparkwell Devon  PL7 5DF Conversion of barn to dwelling 
(resubmission of 0369/17/FUL) 02/01/2018 0 1 0 

P
age 151



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Sparkwell 4400/17/FUL Welbeck Manor Sparkwell   PL7 5DF 

Extension and alterations to existing 
hotel, including conversion  of the 
former coach house to use as ancillary 
guest/golf accommodation, conversion 
of the existing lean-to in the former 
walledgarden into a dwelling, provision 
of an additional new dwelling in 
thewalled garden and reinstatement of 
the walled garden along its south- 
eastern side and extension to the 
existing car park on the site. 

19/09/2018 0 0 1 

Sparkwell 1039/18/FUL Former Hen House / Store  Smitherleigh 
House Plymouth Smithaleigh  PL7 5AX Proposed new dwelling 19/06/2018 0 0 1 

Sparkwell 0315/18/FUL A38 West Bound Slip Road Smithaleigh   PL7 
5AX 

Retrospective application for change of 
use from B1 office to 
 residential 

15/06/2018 0 0 1 

Staverton 

0146/18/FUL (Not yet 
determined if this one is 
approved there will be 8 
dwellings and not 9) 
50/2308/15/PNNEW 

Whiteways Farm  Staverton Totnes Devon  
TQ9 6AL 

50/2308/15/PNNEW - Prior approval 
for change of use from storage or 
distribution (Class B8) and any land 
within its curtilage to 9no. 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) 

07/12/2015 0 1 8 

Staverton 2190/16/POD Units 1-10  Staverton Offices Staverton 
Devon  TQ9 6AR 

Prior approval for proposed change of 
use of building from Office use 
(Class B1a) to 4no. dwellinghouses 
(Class C3) 

05/09/2016 0 3 1 

Staverton 0174/18/PDM Agriculutral Building at SX781637 Staverton 
TQ9 6AG   

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use of 
  agricultural building to dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for associated  
operational development (Class 
Q(a)&(b)) 

20/03/2018 0 0 1 

Staverton 0710/17/FUL Kingston Gate Barn  Kingston Totnes   TQ9 
6AR 

Proposed conversion from disused barn 
into a 3 bedroom residential dwelling. 17/05/2017 0 0 1 

P
age 152



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Staverton 3552/16/FUL Centre Barn Blackler Barton  Blackler Barton 
Service Road Ashburton   TQ13 7LZ 

Conversion of redundant barn into 3-
bedroomed dwellinghouse involving 
excavation of ground floor to install 
new 'geocell' reclaimed glass floor, 
underfloor heating and stone slab finish, 
replace existing sheet roofing with new 
black metal roof, conservation 
rooflights,  patent glazing to existing 
lean-to to form passive solar collector,  
new windows and doors, insulation and 
lining to external walls and ceilings, 
alterations to some roof trusses 

15/02/2017 0 1 0 

Staverton 2558/16/PDM 
The Building Land at Barkingdon Farm  Wass 
Cross To Hillcroft Past Barkington Manor 
Staverton Devon  TQ9 6AN 

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use of 
  agricultural building to a dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for 
associatedoperational development. 

05/10/2016 0 0 1 

Staverton 1731/16/PDM Proposed dwelling at SX 7849 6521, Hillcroft, 
Staverton, Totnes TQ9 6AL 

Prior approval of proposed change of 
use of agricultural building to residential 
dwelling (use class C3) 

26/07/2016 0 0 1 

Staverton 50/1891/15/F Weston Barn At Sx 7568 6467  Stretchford 
Farm Buckfastleigh   TQ11 0JY 

Conversion of stone barn to residential 
dwelling 20/10/2015 0 0 1 

Staverton 0908/18/FUL Edgeware  Austins Bridge To Dart Bridge Inn 
Buckfastleigh Devon  TQ11 0JR 

Conversion of existing agricultural 
stone barn into single residentialunit 
(resubmission of 3431/17/OPA) 

01/06/2018 0 0 1 

Stoke Fleming 0678/18/FUL Deer Park Inn, Dartmouth Road, Stoke 
Fleming, Dartmouth, TQ6 0RF 

0679/18/FUL - Demolition of existing 
building and construction of 14 no. new 
apartments, with associated car parking 
and landscape works.  

10/01/2019 0 0 9 

Stoke Fleming 2078/16/FUL Premier Garage Dartmouth Road Stoke 
Fleming TQ6 0RE 

Demolition of existing garage and filling 
station and erection of five dwellings 
with associated access, garaging and 
landscaping 

29/11/2017 0 5 0 

P
age 153



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Stoke Fleming 0791/17/PDM The Barn  Blatchmore Lane Bugford 
Dartmouth   

Prior approval for proposed change of 
use of agricultural building to 2no. 
dwellinghouses (Class C3) and for 
associated operational development 
(Class Q(a+b)) 

26/06/2017 0 0 2 

Stoke Fleming 1004/17/FUL 
The Paddock  Land at SX 864 487 South side 
of Redlap Lane Stoke Fleming Devon TQ6 
0QU 

New dwelling (resubmission of 
2462/16/FUL) 07/08/2017 0 0 1 

Stoke Fleming 0554/17/PDM Blatchmore Barn  Blatchmore Lane Bugford 
Devon   

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use of 
  agricultural building to a dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) 

18/04/2017 0 0 1 

Stoke Fleming 2198/16/FUL 
Higher Bowden Farm  Road From Ash House 
Farm To Bowden Cross Bowden Devon  TQ6 
0LH 

Conversion of leisure building into 
single dwelling 28/09/2016 0 1 0 

Stoke Gabriel 
0011/16/OPA Appeal Ref 
No - 
APP/K1128/W/17/3179884 

Land at Four Cross Paignton Road Stoke 
Gabriel TQ9 6QB 

Re-advertised (Additional Documents 
Recieved) Outline planning permission 
with some matters reserved; scheme 
includes residential development of up 
to 9 dwellings, utilising the existing 
access point 

18/12/2017 0 0 9 

Stoke Gabriel 52/2081/15/F Marians Maples  Vicarage Close Stoke Gabriel 
Devon  TQ9 6QT 

Demolition of existing dwelling and 
construction of new dwelling on 
footprint together with 3no. additional 
dwellings within the grounds 

21/02/2017 0 0 3 

Stoke Gabriel 3640/17/FUL Rowes Farm  Aish Road Stoke Gabriel Devon  
TQ9 6PX Provision of 2no. residential dwellings 20/12/2017 0 0 2 

Stoke Gabriel 3428/17/PDM Barn at Little Aish North-East of Hill Park 
Aish Stoke Gabriel, TQ9 6PS  

Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use of 
  agricultural building to dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) and for associated  
operational development (Class 
Q(a)&(b)) 

29/11/2017 0 0 1 

Stoke Gabriel 3110/15/FUL Bothy Bakehouse  Lembury Road To Ningham 
Cross Stoke Gabriel   TQ9 6PS 

Demolition of existing barn and new 
dwelling with associated 
 landscaping to replace (resubmission of 
52/2519/15/F) 

02/03/2016 0 1 0 

Stoke Gabriel 52/0693/14/F Land adjoining Rowes Farm, Aish Road, Stoke 
Gabriel, TQ9 6PX 

Proposed single-storey dwelling 
(resubmission of 52/1096/12/F) 07/05/2014 0 1 0 

P
age 154



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Stokenham 2722/18/FUL  Barn At Sx 808 427  opposite Church House 
Inn Stokenham Kingsbridge Devon  

2722/18/FUL - Conversion of 
agricultural derelict barn into habitable 
dwelling with associated external 
works, garage and log store 
(2805/17/FUL)  

05/03/2019 0 0 1 

Stokenham 1530/17/FUL Langholm   Chillington Kinsgbridge  TQ7 2JY 

Demolition of 1 no. existing bungalow 
and redundant surgery building; replace 
with 2 no. new two-storey houses 
(resubmission of previously  approved 
planning application number 
53/1741/14/F) 

12/07/2017 0 0 1 

Stokenham 3168/16/FUL The Old Abattoir  Tor Church Road 
Kingsbridge   TQ7 2TH 

Conversion of abattoir barn to single 
dwelling 08/12/2016 0 0 1 

Strete 2031/18/FUL Lower Court Barns, Old Byre  A379 Strete 
Village Strete   TQ6 0RW 

Construction of new dwelling on land 
adjoining 'The Old Byre' 15/11/2018 0 0 1 

Totnes 56/2524/15/F Proposed Development Site At Sx 7846 6054  
Follaton Farm Plymouth Road Totnes   

Erection of 2no. three bedroomed semi 
detached dwelling houses with garages 
and parking 

13/02/2017 0 0 2 

Totnes 0995/16/FUL 18 Paige Adams Road Totnes Devon  TQ9 
5LL 

Proposed affordable houses in the 
gardens of 18 Paige Adams Road 26/01/2017 0 1 0 

Totnes 56/1893/15/F 1 Ashleigh Kingsbridge Hill Totnes  TQ9 5SZ 
Erection of single dwelling with an 
undercroft parking space (resubmission 
of 56/2362/14/F) 

25/05/2016 0 0 1 

Totnes 3672/18/FUL Proposed Dwelling 47 Westonfields Totnes   
TQ9 5QX 

Erection of dwelling (Previous Consent 
now lapsed - 56/0506/08/F) 20/12/2018 0 0 1 

Totnes 0386/18/OPA 4 Argyle Terrace Totnes   TQ9 5JJ 
Outline planning application with all 
matters reserved for new        dwelling 
in front garden at 4 Argyle Terrace 

26/06/2018 0 0 1 

Totnes 56/2221/15/O Cocos Nursery  Ashburton Road Totnes 
Devon  TQ9 5JZ 

READVERTISEMENT (new description) 
Outline application with all 
mattersreserved for 5no. three 
bedroomed houses with 10 no. parking 
spaces 

14/09/2017 0 0 5 

Totnes 0894/16/FUL 
Private Car Park & Garages rear of 27-45 
Fore Street (Accessed off Station Road) 
Totnes Devon TQ9 5RP 

Re-advertisement (Amended Address) 
Development of three residential units 10/07/2017 0 2 1 

Totnes 56/2244/14/F Land To Rear Of 9 Queens Terrace Station 
Road Totnes  TQ9 5JQ 

Erection of apartment building 
comprising 3no. apartments and 
associated parking 

19/10/2015 0 3 0 

P
age 155



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Totnes 3617/17/FUL The Old Stables  Station Road Totnes   TQ9 
5HW 

Change of use of studios to two 
Almshouses (resubmission of 
3388/16/FUL) 

12/12/2017 0 2 0 

Totnes 2982/15/FUL Hamlyn's Yard  Castle Street Totnes   TQ9 
5NU 

Construction of 2no. semi-detached 
dwelling houses and provision of 
surface car parking serving dwellings 
and neighbouring 'Bridge Court' 
development's office units. 

13/07/2017 0 2 0 

Totnes 0668/16/OPA Quisty Beeches  Bourton Lane Totnes Devon  
TQ9 5JF 

Re-Advertised Application (Revised 
Plans) Outline consent for the 
construction of 2 new dwellings 

02/02/2017 0 0 2 

Totnes 1062/17/FUL 5A South Street Totnes Devon  TQ9 5DZ 

Creation of a new dwelling from the 
ancillary spaces on the ground 
 floor beneath an existing first floor 
apartment. 

21/09/2017 0 1 0 

Totnes 2103/17/POD Rear of 24 Fore Street Totnes Devon  TQ9 
5DX 

Prior Approval for a proposed change 
of use of a building from office 
use (Class B1(a)) to a dwellinghouse 
(Class C3) 

14/08/2017 0 0 1 

Totnes 1623/16/FUL garages 1-3 adjacent to 1A Christina Park 
Totnes    

Construction of a new three storey 
private residence on a brownfield  site 
currently occupied by three garages on 
a site on the outskirts ofTotnes. 

30/01/2017 0 0 1 

Totnes 0266/16/FUL 5 Christina Parade Totnes Devon  TQ9 5UU 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans 
Received) Erection of 3 bed terrace 
   house with garden and relocation of 
garages 

10/10/2017 0 0 1 

Totnes 1180/18/FUL The Proctors House  8 & 8A High Street 
Totnes   TQ9 5RY 

Renovation and retention of ground 
floor commercial space (A2) with 
associated kitchen and WC with 
existing flat above forming part of or 
separate to commercial use at No.8. 
Renovation and alteration to 
No.8Areturning to former use as 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) with pool to 
the  rear 

17/09/2018 0 0 1 

P
age 156



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Ugborough 1811/16/ARM 7 Filham Cottages  Godwell Lane To Filham 
Cross Filham   PL21 0DH 

Reserved Matters application following 
outline consent 57/0788/15/O 
  for details of access, appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale of   
demolition of garage and erection of 
single split level dwellinghouse 

13/04/2017 0 0 1 

Ugborough 0746/16/FUL Earlscombe Farm   Bittaford Devon  PL21 
0LD 

Conversion of agricultural buildings to 
create three new 
 dwellinghouses to include the 
alteration and partial demolition of 
theexisting buildings and the change of 
use of agricultural land to ancillary 
domestic curtilage 

28/11/2016 0 0 3 

Ugborough 1792/17/PDM The Barn, The Shippen  Marridge Farm 
Ugborough Devon  PL21 0HR 

Prior approval for proposed Change of 
Use of Agricultural Building 
   to a Dwellinghouse (Class C3) and 
for Associated Operational 
         Development. 

16/08/2017 0 1 0 

Ugborough 2299/16/PDM Venn Farm  A3121 Venn Cross To Kitterford 
Cross Ugborough Devon  PL21 0PE 

Prior approval application for change of 
use of agricultural building  
to dwelling house (Class C3) 

16/09/2016 0 1 0 

Ugborough 1700/18/FUL Stone Barn  Fowlescombe Farm Ugborough 
Devon  PL21 0HW 

Change of use of barn from agricultural 
to residential, demolition of  
barn and hardstanding and construction 
of garage 

16/07/2018 0 0 1 

Ugborough 1733/18/FUL Haydens Farm  Yellowberries Lane 
Wrangaton Devon  TQ10 9HB 

Replacement of existing temporary 
dwelling with permanent bungalow 22/10/2018 0 0 1 

Ugborough 1629/18/OPA Land At Combe Cross  Filham Ivybridge   
PL21 0LR 

Outline application with all matters 
reserved for permanent 
 agricultural worker's dwelling 

24/07/2018 0 0 1 

Wembury 0040/17/FUL Shiloh  Veasy Park Wembury   PL9 0ES 
Erection of single dwelling with integral 
garage within the garden of the existing 
dwelling 

08/03/2017 0 0 1 

Wembury 2988/17/OPA Land At West Hill, Adjacent To 'seaview'  
Heybrook Bay    PL9 0BB 

Outline planning application with all 
matters reserved for erection of 
detached dwelling. 

01/12/2017 0 0 1 

P
age 157



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Wembury 1560/18/OPA Xanadu  West Hill Heybrook Bay   PL9 0BB 
Outline planning application with all 
matters reserved for erection 
  of detached dwelling 

16/07/2018 0 0 1 

Wembury 2865/17/FUL Freebird  Wembury Road Wembury   PL9 
0DH 

Partial demolition and extension to 
existing outbuilding, removal of 
 existing outbuildings and storage 
containers to facilitate construction of 
new dwelling, and construction of 
additional detached dwelling and 
associated access, car parking and 
landscaping on adjoining garden 

31/10/2017 0 0 2 

Wembury 0124/18/ARM  
Proposed Development Site At Sx 5021 5026  
Bovisand Lane Down Thomas Devon  PL9 
0AE 

0124/18/ARM - READVERTISEMENT 
(Revised Plans Received) Application 
for approval of  reserved matters 
following outline approval 
58/0791/15/O for  demolition of store 
and shelter and construction of 1no. 
residential  dwelling (resubmission of 
0428/17/ARM). 

15/08/2018 0 0 1 

Wembury 0865/17/FUL Court Barton  Renney Road Down Thomas   
PL9 0AQ 

Amendments to planning application 
3681/16/FUL to create one additional 
dwelling unit 

06/06/2017 0 0 1 

Wembury 58/2080/15/F Wembury Reservoir  Knighton Hill Wembury 
Devon  PL9 0JD 

Proposed dwelling to replace existing 
above ground water storage tank 02/06/2016 0 0 1 

West Alvington 2432/16/FUL Land south of The Ridings   West Alvington 
Devon  TQ7 3PP 

Construction of new dwelling with 
integral garaging 16/02/2017 0 1 0 

West Alvington 59/1574/12/RM Woolston Court, Woolston, Kingsbridge, 
TQ7 3BH 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans 
received): Reserved Matters application 
for approval of all matters and in 
accordance with condition 5 of Outline 
permission 59/0892/10/O for the 
erection of an agricultural dwelling 

16/09/2013 0 1 0 

P
age 158



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Woodleigh 0261/18/FUL Higher Torr Farm  East Allington Totnes 
Devon  TQ9 7QH 

Re-organisation of site, including 
parking and removal of barns to    
accommodate extension of domestic 
curtilage of 4 barn conversions.  
Officers report states - The application 
seeks full planning consent for the 
removal of the holiday use restriction 
imposed on planning consent given in 
2004, to allow the barns to be used as 
unrestricted dwelling houses. 

20/11/2018 0 0 4 

Woodleigh 61/2588/14/F Lowerdale, Woodleigh, Kingsbridge TQ7 4DJ 

Conversion of 2 barns to 2 dwellings 
(Granary and Shippen), reinstatement 
of former cottage to residential 
dwelling and associated works to 
farmhouse. 

23/04/2015 0 2 0 

Woodleigh 2500/16/ARM  

Higher Grimpston Leigh  Lane From Lower 
Grimpston Leigh To Higher Grimpston Leigh 
Grimstoneleigh East Allington Devon TQ9 
7QH 

Application for reserved matters 
following outline approval 
          

03/02/2017 0 1 0 

Woodleigh 0735/16/PDM Building at Moreleigh Mount   Moreleigh 
Devon  TQ9 7JR 

Prior approval for proposed change of 
use of agricultural building to 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) and 
associated operational development 

26/04/2016 0 0 1 

Woodleigh 0234/16/PDM   Stepping Stones Barn Torr Lane East 
Allington Totnes TQ9 7QH  

Prior approval for proposed change of 
use of agricultural building to 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) and for 
associated operational development 
  (Class Q(a) and (b)) 

13/04/2016 0 1 0 

Yealmpton 2108/18/ARM The Orchard  Yealmpton Plymouth    
2108/18/ARM -Application for approval 
of reserved matters following outline  
approval.    

18/01/2019 0 0 1 

Yealmpton 0390/17/FUL Adj to Western Torr & South View  Bowden 
Hill Yealmpton Devon  PL8 2JX 

Application for provision of single 
dwelling (application confirmed that this 
is a resubmission of planning ref no.  
1240/14 &1728/08) 

15/05/2017 0 0 1 

Yealmpton 2158/18/PDM Barn at SX583541  West Pitten Farm West 
Pitten Yealmpton  PL7 5BB 

Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use of 
      agricultural building to 2no. 
dwellings (Class C3) and for associated 
operational development (Class 
Q(a)&(b)) 

17/08/2018 0 0 2 

P
age 159



Parish number Application Number Address Description Date 
granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed and 
not yet started 

Yealmpton 4320/17/FUL Dunstone Barn  Dunstone Yealmpton   PL8 
2EL 

Conversion of redundant barn to 
dwelling (amendment to consent        
62/0643/08/F) 

01/03/2018 0 0 1 

Yealmpton 0144/17/POD New England Quarry  New England Hill 
Plympton Devon   

Prior approval for proposed change of 
use from Office use (Class B1 (a) to 
dwellinghouse (class C3) 

15/05/2017 0 0 1 

Yealmpton 0579/16/FUL Site Of WI Hall  Ford Road Yealmpton Devon  
PL8 2NA 

Erection of a detached house on land 
previously used for WI hall 08/08/2016 0 0 1 

Yealmpton 0010/18/ARM   Land Behind 11 Fore Street Yealmpton Devon  
PL8 2JN 

0010/18/ARM - Application for approval 
of reserved matters following outline 
approval 62/2507/15/O for 
construction of two-storey dwelling 

03/01/2018 0 0 1 

Yealmpton 3909/17/FUL Wilburton Farm Burraton Yealmpton PL21 
9LB  Barn conversion to dwelling 19/02/2018 0 1 0 

                
      Totals   5 144 337 

 
  P

age 160



 
Small sites (<10 dwellings) Trajectory for West Devon LPA 
 

Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Beaworthy 0127/17/PDM Patchacott Farm Barn   Patchacott Devon  EX21 5AR 

Prior approval for proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) and for associated 
operational development   (Class Q(a+b)) 

14/03/2017 0 0 1 

Beaworthy 2024/16/PDM Land to the North East of Venn Down Gates Thorndon 
Cross Okehampton   

Prior Approval of proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to 
 dwellinghouse (C3) and associated operational 
development (Class Qa+b) 

28/10/2016 0 1 0 

Bere Ferrers 2213/16/FUL Land Adjacent To 45  Maynard Park Bere Alston Devon   Construction of No.4 detached single storey 
dwellings 31/10/2016 3 1 0 

Bere Ferrers 2787/16/FUL 10-12  Station Road Bere Alston   PL20 7EL Change of use and conversion of buildings to 2 
dwellings 09/10/2017 1 1 0 

Bere Ferrers 0060/17/FUL 47 Station Road Bere Alston   PL20 7EN Resubmission of 2737/16/FUL for conversion of 
building to dwelling. 30/03/2017 0 0 1 

Bere Ferrers 1784/16/FUL Bere Alston Reservoir  Bere Alston Yelverton    
Works to redundant reservoir to create dwelling 
including part 
 demolition and alterations. 

24/08/2016 0 1 0 

Bere Ferrers 4043/17/OPA  8 Drakes Park Bere Alston Devon  PL20 7DY 
Outline planning application with all matters reserved 
for the 
 erection of one dwelling 

16/05/2018 0 0 1 

Bondleigh 1225/16/PDM Westworthy Farm North Tawton Devon EX20 2DJ  
Prior Approval for proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to 
2 dwellings 

23/06/2016 1 1 0 

Bondleigh 2246/18/FUL Copplestone Barns Bondleigh Devon  EX20 2AW Conversion of barn to dwelling and change of use of 
agricultural land to residential curtilage 23/08/2018 0 0 1 

Bradstone 4062/18/FUL Holland Farm  Road Past Torr Barn Bradstone   PL19 
0QT 

Conversion of redundant agricultural buildings to 
form two holiday 
 cottages and two dwellings; alteration to accesses 
and associated works including demolition /removal 
of 6 modern structures 

15/02/2019 0 0 2 

Bratton Clovelly 2215/16/PDM Barn Opposite South Fursdon  Fursdon View Farm 
Building Bratton Clovelly Devon   

Prior approval for proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) and for associated 
operational development   (Class Qa+b) 

23/01/2017 0 0 1 

Bratton Clovelly 2783/16/PDM Hillside  Bratton Clovelly Beaworthy   EX20 4JD 

Prior approval for proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) and for associated 
operational development   (Class Qa+b) 

16/11/2016 0 1 0 

Bratton Clovelly 0804/16/PDM Agricultural building  Brooklands Farm Bratton Clovelly 
Devon  EX20 4JH 

Prior approval for a proposed change of use of 
agricultural building 
 to a dwellinghouse 

10/06/2016 0 1 0 

P
age 161



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Bridestowe 1105/17/FUL Barn South West Of Hillside  Pool Hill Bridestowe   
EX20 4EN 

Change of use and conversion of an agricultural 
building to a single residential dwelling and associated 
works 

02/06/2017 0 0 1 

Bridestowe 2708/16/OPA 3 South Ball Cottage   Bridestowe Devon  EX20 4EN 

Outline application with all matters reserved to build 
an attached endof terrace one bed cottage with one 
off road parking space on brown   field site consisting 
of garage, shed and wood store 

05/04/2017 0 0 1 

Bridestowe 4161/16/OPA Land at SX 516 892 Opposite Springfield Park 
Bridestowe   

READVERTISEMENT (Procedural Purposes) Outline 
planning application with all matters reserved for 
construction of 4 dwellings 

27/04/2018 0 0 4 

Broadwoodkelly 3655/16/PDM Newer Park   Broadwoodkelly Devon  EX19 8EQ 
Notification for prior approval for a proposed change 
of use of 1 
 redundant barn to residental use. 

31/01/2017 0 0 1 

Buckland 
Monachorum 0131/19/OPA  Poundhanger  Road From Pound Lodge To War 

Memorial Crapstone Devon  PL20 7PW 
0131/19/OPA - Outline application with some 
matters reserved for erection of one dwelling.   25/03/2019 0 0 1 

Buckland 
Monachorum 4261/17/FUL West Harrow  Road From The Crescent To Woodend 

Crapstone Devon  PL20 7PW 

Application for construction of new detached 4 
bedroom dwelling with 
 integral double garage 

12/12/2018 0 0 1 

Buckland 
Monachorum 2336/18/FUL Land adjacent to Tyller Tythy Crapstone Devon  PL20 

7PF Erection of two storey dwelling 18/10/2018 0 0 1 

Buckland 
Monachorum 0875/18/FUL Pilchers Field  The Crescent Crapstone   PL20 7PS 

Application for two storey extension to existing 
supported sheltered  home to provide 6no. self-
contained apartments, communal lounge with  
additional car parking 

07/09/2018 0 0 6 

Buckland 
Monachorum 3319/18/OPA 4 Moorland Court Yelverton Devon  PL20 6BL 

Outline application with some matters reserved for 
demolition of 
 existing bungalow and erection of 2 dwellings 

30/11/2018 0 0 1 

Drewsteignton 3585/17/PDM Agricultural Building at SX71306 93514 West Park 
Farm Drewsteignton   

Notification for prior approval for a proposed change 
of use of 
  agricultural building to dwellinghouse (Class C3) 
and for associated  operational development (Class 
Q(a)&(b)) 

12/12/2017 0 1 0 

Exbourne 3082/17/FUL Hole Downs   Exbourne   EX20 3QT 
Proposed erection of one permanent agricultural 
worker's supervisory 
 dwelling 

13/04/2018 0 0 1 

Exbourne 2263/17/ARM Land Adjacent To Wood Close  High Street Exbourne   
EX20 3SA 

Approval of reserved matters following outline 
approval 00458/2015 
 (residential development of 9no. dwellings) 

25/10/2017 0 0 9 

Exbourne 3342/16/FUL Town Living Farm   Exbourne Devon  EX20 3RX Application for conversion of out buildings into three 
dwellings. 27/01/2017 0 0 3 

P
age 162



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Exbourne  00437/2015  Stone Farm, Fore Street, Exbourne, Okehampton, 
Devon 

00437/2015 - Approval of details reserved by 
condition 5 attached to 01235/2014 for change of use 
of barn to 3 bed dwelling including demolition and 
reconstruction of southern extension and formation 
of parking area and associated works.  

27/04/2015 0 1 0 

Germansweek 1117/16/PDM 
Dartmoor View  Road From Boldventure Cross To 
Eworthy Cross Eworthy Germansweek Devon EX21 
5AF 

Notification for prior approval for a proposed change 
of use of 
 Agricultural Building to a Dwellinghouse (class 3). 

28/07/2016 0 0 1 

Germansweek 0941/16/OPA Road Past Higher Eworthy Farm Germansweek   EX21 
5AH 

(Re-advertisement) Proposed agricultural workers 
supervisory dwelling. 07/11/2016 0 0 1 

Gulworthy 3233/18/FUL Higher Parswell Farm  Lumburn Tavistock   PL19 8HR 
READVERTISEMENT (revised plan) Conversion of a 
group of redundant barnbuildings to a three 
bedroom dwelling 

18/01/2019 0 0 1 

Gulworthy  00358/2010  Barns At Hurlditch Horn, Gulworthy, Tavistock, Devon Conversion of barns to 5 dwellings 14/01/2013 3 2 0 

Hatherleigh 3255/17/FUL Land to rear of Bank House  Bridge Street Hatherleigh   
EX20 3HZ New detached dwelling 02/02/2018 0 1 0 

Hatherleigh 3423/16/PDM Barn adjacent to  Lower Upcott Farm Hatherleigh 
Devon  EX20 3LN 

Prior approval of proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to dwelling house (Class C3) and 
for associated operational development   (Class 
Q(a+b)) 

13/06/2017 0 1 0 

Hatherleigh 2556/17/ARM Land At SX 4886 1044  Roseland Farm Church Road 
Highampton  EX21 5LE 

Reserved matters application following outline 
approval 3248/16/OPA 
  for single dwelling 

02/10/2017 0 1 0 

Hatherleigh 2214/17/PDM Barn at  Arnolds Fishleigh Hatherleigh Devon  EX20 
3LH 

Notification for prior approval for proposed change 
of use of agricultural building to dwellinghouse (Class 
C3) and for associated  operational development 
(Class Q(a+b)) 

22/08/2017 0 0 1 

Hatherleigh 2685/16/FUL The Barn At  Fishleigh Castle  Devon  EX20 3LH Change of use of barn to dwelling with associated 
works 21/12/2016 0 1 0 

Hatherleigh 1553/17/ARM   Land Adjacent To Edgemoor  Runnon Moor Lane 
Hatherleigh Devon   

1553/17/ARM -  Application for approval of reserved 
matters following outline approval 2609/15/OPA for 
erection of 2no. dwellings  

22/07/2016 0 0 2 

Hatherleigh 0794/17/FUL Land at  Red Lane Hatherleigh Devon   
Application for Outline approval for a detached 
dormer style bungalow 
with all matters reserved. 

02/01/2018 0 0 1 

Highampton 3685/17/ARM Tree Tops  Church Road Highampton Devon  EX21 
5LS 

3685/17/ARM - Application for approval of reserved 
matters following outline approval 1033/17/OPA for 
3no. dwellings  

18/01/2018 1 2 0 

P
age 163



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Highampton 0268/17/ARM Land At London House  Highampton Beaworthy    

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plan Received) 
Application for approval of   reserved matters 
following outline approval 01380/2014 (erection of   
dwelling) 

21/07/2017 0 1 0 

Highampton 0392/17/ARM Clannica  Land Adjacent To Village Hall Highampton 
Devon   

Application for approval of reserved matters 
following outline 
 approval. (0618/16/OPA) 

11/04/2017 0 1 0 

Highampton 1298/18/FUL Barn Chidesters  Road From Church Road To 
Holsworthy Bridge Highampton Devon  EX21 5LE 

1298/18/FUL - Conversion of agricultural building to 
a dwelling.  Prior approval of proposed change of use 
of agricultural building to adwellinghouse (Use Class 
C3) and for associated operational development 

09/07/2018 0 0 1 

Highampton 2576/15/PDM Willsland Sheds  Road From Church Road To 
Holsworthy Bridge Highampton Devon  EX21 5LQ 

Prior approval for proposed change of use of 2no. 
agricultural 
 buildings to 3no. dwellinghouses (Class C3) 

09/02/2016 0 3 0 

Highampton 0127/18/OPA Land at SX 482 104  between Woodfields and 
Sunnyside A3072 Highampton  EX21 5LP 

Outline application with some matters reserved for 
removal of existingbarn and erection of 3no. 2 storey 
dwellings, together with car parking, landscaping and 
associated works with access from A3072 

23/07/2018 0 0 3 

Highampton 01010/2015 Land Adjacent To Beacon Down Farm  Highampton. 
Ex21 5le Highampton Devon  EX21 5LE 

Application for outline approval for a detached 4 
bedroom house with all matters reserved. 01/07/2016 0 0 1 

Highampton 0684/16/OPA The Golden Inn  Burdon Lane Highampton Devon  
EX21 5LT 

Outline Planning Permission with all matters reserved 
for detached 
   bungalow 

20/05/2016 0 0 1 

Iddesleigh 3970/16/FUL Nethercott Barton  Road From Week Moor Cross To 
R Iddesleigh   EX19 8SN 

Proposed alteration of the layout of a previously 
approved C3 barn 
 conversion (2577/15/PDM) 

21/04/2017 0 1 0 

Inwardleigh 3913/16/PDM Goldburn Farm Inwardleigh       

Notifiation for Prior Approval for a Proposed change 
of use of 
 agricultural building to a dwellinghouse (Class C3) 
and for associatedoperational development. 

23/01/2017 0 1 0 

Inwardleigh 3408/18/PDM Northwood Farm, Goldburn Close, Okehampton, 
EX20 1RW 

Description: Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use ofagricultural building to a 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) and for 
associatedoperational development (Class Q(a)&(b))  

25/01/2019 0 0 1 

Inwardleigh 1326/17/FUL Lower Eastwood Farm   Okehampton   EX20 3AE 
Single eco-dwelling to replace 2No. residential 
dwellinghouses given  prior approval under LPA Ref. 
00954/2015 

19/10/2018 0 0 -1 

Inwardleigh 1286/18/PDM Traditional Building  Downhouse Farm Folly Gate 
Okehampton  EX20 3AE 

Prior approval of proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to 
 1no. dwellinghouse (Class C3)(Class Q(a)) 

25/07/2018 0 1 0 

P
age 164



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Inwardleigh 2626/16/FUL Barn East Of Five Oaks  Folly Gate Okehampton    Change of use from barn to dwelling and associated 
work 28/10/2016 0 0 1 

Inwardleigh 2023/16/PDM Higher Oak  Inwardleigh Okehampton Devon  EX20 
3AS 

Prior Approval of proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to adwellinghouse (C3) and 
associated operational development (Class Qa+b) 

28/10/2016 0 1 0 

Inwardleigh 00682/2014 Folly Gate Garage  Folly Gate Okehampton Devon  
EX20 3AH 

Demolition of garage and associated outbuildings. 
Erection of 8 dwellings and associated works. 21/04/2015 0 0 8 

Inwardleigh 2636/17/FUL Five Oaks  Folly Gate Okehampton Devon  EX20 3AA 
Outline application with all matters reserved for 
three bedroom 
 detached dwelling 

02/10/2017 0 0 1 

Inwardleigh 0772/16/PDM Durdon Farm   Northlew Devon  EX20 3PU 
Prior approval for proposed change of use of 
Agricultural building to 
a dwellinghouse 

04/05/2016 0 1 0 

Kelly 0082/19/FUL Former Kennels adjoining Grattons  Kelly    PL16 0HQ 
Proposed change of use of agricultural barn 
(historically used as 
 kennels) into a dwelling 

22/03/2019 0 0 1 

Kelly 0749/16/PAM Mead Farm   Meadwell Kelly Devon PL16 0HJ 
Prior approval for change of use from 
storage/distribution buildings 
 to dwellinghouses 

10/05/2016 0 0 1 

Lamerton 3274/17/ARM Land adjacent to Ashton Court   Lamerton Devon  
PL19 8QD 

Outline planning permission with some matters 
reserved for proposed erection of 5 dwellings and 
improvement to access 

08/05/2017 3 2 0 

Lamerton 0626/17/FUL Unit 1 Down Farm   Lamerton   PL19 8QA Change of use of building to dwelling 15/05/2017 0 0 1 

Lamerton 1462/17/OPA Kooshti Bok   Lamerton Devon  PL19 8RU 
Outline application with some matters reserved for 
erection of 2no. 
  semi detached houses and 3no. detached houses 

19/02/2018 0 0 5 

Lamerton 0154/18/FUL Village Hall Lamerton   PL19 8RZ 2 new houses to replace redundant village hall. 28/08/2018 0 2 0 

Lamerton 2382/17/FUL Lower Hill Farm  Road Past Lower Hill Farm Lamerton   
PL19 8RR 

RE ADVERTISEMENT (CHANGE OF 
APPLICANT)Change of use of existing barn  (barn 1) 
to holiday let and change of use of existing holiday let  
(barn 2) to a dwelling. 

20/10/2017 0 0 1 

Lamerton 2487/18/FUL Land at SX442753  Western edge Of Ottery Tavistock    Proposed new dwelling house with associated access 
and parking. 22/10/2018 0 0 1 

Lamerton 2568/17/OPA Rushford Cottage  Road From Blacksmiths Arms To 
Lamerton   PL19 8RY 

Outline planning application with some matters 
reserved for erection 
 of dwelling 

20/04/2018 0 0 1 

Lamerton 2242/17/OPA Land previousley St Johns  Adj to Rose Cottage 
Lamerton Devon  PL19 8RZ 

Outline planning permission with all matters reserved 
for Erection of  
a two bedroom bungalow. 

21/11/2017 0 0 1 

Lifton 4116/17/OPA Borough House  Fore Street Lifton   PL16 0BH 
Outline planning application with all matters reserved 
for the erection of 5 dwellings, following demolition 
of existing agriculturalbuilding 

25/01/2019 0 0 5 

P
age 165



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Lifton 2501/17/ARM The Arundell Arms Hotel  Land At Rear Of Arundell 
Arms Lifton   PL16 0AA 

Application for approval of reserved matters 
following outline approval 01865/2011 06/10/2017 0 0 2 

Lifton 3495/16/FUL Land opposite Selvi Cottage   Liftondown Devon  PL16 
0DB 

Readvertisement (amended address) Application for 
erection of 
 building. 

07/08/2017 0 0 1 

Lifton 3528/16/FUL Hillside  Station Road Tinhay   PL16 0AN Proposal of 1 detached and 4 semi-detached 
dwellings 22/03/2017 0 5 0 

Lifton 2862/15/FUL Robins Croft  Road From Liftondown Cross To Robins 
Croft Liftondown Devon  PL16 0DA Erection of 2 dwellings 08/09/2016 0 2 0 

Lifton 01014/2015 Smallacombe  Lifton Lifton Devon  PL16 0EB Application for the erection of a dwelling 05/08/2016 0 0 1 

Lifton  00219/2015  Barn, Langham House, Liftondown, Devon Prior Notification for change of use from agricultural 
building to C3 dwelling Class MB. 18/03/2015 0 1 0 

Lifton  00345/2013  Gatherley Wood, Lifton, Devon 
New planning permission to replace extant 
permission 00438/2010 for erection of 
gamekeeper/forestry workers dwelling.   

29/07/2013 0 1 0 

Lifton   3246/16/FUL Car Park, Fox And Grapes Hotel, Tinhay, Devon Reserved matters application for the erection of 3 
dwellings.  Retrospective application for extract flue 02/05/2014 0 0 3 

Lifton  01686/2011 The Engineers Shop", Station Road, Tinhay, Lifton, 
Devon 

Additional supporting information Residential 
development.  Extension of time limit for residential 
development as per planning permission 
10618/2007/TAV.   

20/08/2008 0 2 2 

Lydford 0917/17/PDM Barn at  Forest Lodge Lydford Devon  EX20 4BP 

Prior approval for proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to dwelling house (Class C3) and 
for associated operational development   (Class 
Q(a+b)) (resubmission of 0129/17/PDM) 

08/05/2017 0 0 1 

Milton Abbot 3363/17/FUL Homeleigh  Chillaton Lifton Devon  PL16 0HR Construction of new dwelling in grounds of existing 
house 13/02/2018 0 0 1 

Milton Abbot 4170/18/OPA Land at SX 404 792  Fore Street South West Of Milton 
Abbot Devon   Outline application for agricultural workers dwelling 29/03/2019 0 0 0 

Milton Abbot 0770/17/FUL Enfield Barn  The Village Milton Abbot Devon  PL19 
0PB 

Application for the erection of a three bedroom 
house. 26/02/2019 0 0 1 

Milton Abbot 0887/17/FUL Land Adjacent To April Cottage  Chillaton Lifton   PL16 
0HR Proposed erection of 2 bedroom dwelling 26/10/2017 0 0 1 

Milton Abbot 2592/16/FUL Braemer House   Chillaton   PL16 0HS READVERTISEMENT (Additional Plans Received) 
New dwelling 16/12/2016 0 1 0 

Milton Abbot 0634/16/FUL Youngcott Barn   Sydenham Damerel    
Conversion of redundant barns to form a single 
residential dwelling 
  with associated storage. 

28/07/2016 0 1 0 

Monkokehampton 2939/16/FUL The Forge  Road From Monkokehampton Cross To 
Beare Farm Monkokehampton Devon  EX19 8SE Conversion of the forge to a dwelling house 09/01/2017 0 0 1 

P
age 166



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

North Tawton 2265/18/PDM Building at SS 682 031 Little Beare Farm North Tawton 
Devon EX20 2BT 

Description: Notification for prior approval for a 
proposed change of use ofagricultural building to 2no. 
dwellings (Class C3) and for associated operational 
development (Class Q(a)&(b))  

30/08/2018 0 0 2 

North Tawton 2207/18/PDM Cattle Shed  East Hill North Tawton Devon  EX20 2BS 

Notification for prior approval for proposed change 
of use of agricultural building to 2no. dwellinghouses 
(Class C3) and for associated operational 
development (Class Q(a+b)) 

29/08/2018 0 0 2 

North Tawton 4237/17/FUL Barn at Bouchers Hill North Tawton Devon   Part retrospective change of use of barn to 
residential accommodation. 11/04/2018 0 0 1 

North Tawton 0595/18/PDM  Barn at OS map ref SS 267202 101667     

0595/18/PDM - Notification for prior approval for 
proposed change of use ofagricultural building to 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) (resubmission of 
1669/17/PDM)  

10/04/2018 0 0 1 

North Tawton 2411/16/FUL Land adjacent to Greenslade Farm  Greenslade Lane 
Sampford Courtenay Devon  EX20 2SF 

Change of use of agricultural building to 3no. 
residential dwellings, 
 and agricultural field to gardens 

15/03/2017 0 3 0 

North Tawton 4101/16/FUL Land Adjacent To 1 Park House  Fernleigh Court 
North Tawton Devon  EX20 2DX 

Erection of single dwelling (Renewal of Planning 
Approval 00956/2013) 03/03/2017 0 0 1 

North Tawton 0752/16/FUL  12 High Street North Tawton Devon  EX20 2HF Revised application for erection of dwelling 21/09/2016 0 1 0 

North Tawton 3043/15/OPA Land Adjacent To Bouchers Hill  Road From Bouchiers 
Close Past The Holt North Tawton Devon   

Outline application for proposed development of 
nine self build homes 06/04/2018 0 0 9 

North Tawton 3254/17/OPA Land Adjacent To Richina Drive  Yeo Lane North 
Tawton   EX20 2EA 

Outline planning application with all matters reserved 
for residential development of two dwellings 14/12/2017 0 0 2 

North Tawton 1836/16/OPA Land at SX 665 101  adjacent to East of Devonshire 
Gardens North Tawton    

Outline application with all matters reserved for 
construction of 
 three self-build dwellings and associated works 

02/11/2016 0 0 3 

North Tawton 4009/18/CLE 
Beere Moor Bungalow  Road From Staddon Moor 
Cross To Chubs Cross North Tawton Devon  EX20 
2BS 

Lawful development certificate for existing use for 
reconstruction of 
Beere Hill Bungalow and use as a single dwelling 
house 

18/02/2019 0 0 1 

North Tawton  00918/2014  Upper Depot, Devonshire Gardens, North Tawton, 
Devon 

Reserved Matters application for erection of 2 live 
work units including commercial garage and printery. 14/10/2014 0 1 0 

North Tawton  03115/2012  Butts Farm, Barton Street, North Tawton, Devon Reserved Matters Application for dwelling following 
outline approval number 00659/2010 22/11/2012 0 1 0 

Northlew 3815/16/FUL Building On At Higher Southcombe  Northlew 
Okehampton   EX20 3PD Change of use of agricultural building to dwelling 31/05/2017 0 0 1 

P
age 167



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Northlew 4025/18/FUL  East Kimber Farm   Northlew   EX20 3NG 4025/18/FUL - Proposed conversion of barn into 
dwelling and garage (Resubmission of 1871/18/FUL) 28/01/2019 0 1 0 

Northlew 1885/18/FUL Higher Gorhuish Farm Northlew   EX20 3BT Proposed change of use of barns to residential and 
associated works 07/08/2018 0 0 2 

Northlew 4313/17/FUL Old Transport Depot  Station Road Northlew   EX20 
3NH 

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans Received) New 
dwelling and garage 24/05/2018 0 1 0 

Northlew 0481/18/FUL Higher Southcombe Farm Northlew   EX20 3PD 

Change of use and conversion of an agricultural 
building to form 
 a single dwelling and associated works, including 
partial demolition  of existing building. 

18/04/2018 0 0 1 

Northlew 2056/17/FUL Morth Grange   Northlew   EX20 3BR 

Replacement of the existing redundant swimming 
pool house within the 
 grounds of Morth Grange with a single storey 
building (dwelling) together with associated access 
and driveway. 

11/08/2017 0 0 1 

Northlew 0344/17/PDM  Barn  Higher West Kimber Northlew Devon  EX20 
3NF 

Prior approval of proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to 
 dwellinghouse (Class C3) and for associated 
operational development (Class Q(a+b)) 

30/03/2017 0 0 1 

Northlew 01169/2015 Land To Rear Of South Meadow  Northlew 
Okehampton Devon Ex20 3NY  Proposed erection of dwelling 24/10/2016 0 0 1 

Northlew 2418/16/PDM Land at SX 502 994  Adjacent To Kesterfield Northlew 
Okehampton   

Prior approval for proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) and for associated 
operational development   (Class Qa+b) 

29/09/2016 0 0 1 

Northlew   00405/2013 
(1616/17/ARC) 

Glebe Yard, Old Transport Depot, Station Road, 
Northlew, Devon 

Erection of detached dwelling with garage and 
associated access.  (Application for approval of details 
reserved by condition 3 of planning consent 
00405/2013) 

31/10/2014 0 1 0 

Northlew  00787/2014  Oakwood, Holsworthy Road, Hatherleigh, Devon Conversion of an agricultural building to a dwelling. 26/08/2014 0 1 0 

Okehampton 0484/17/FUL Upcott House  Upcott Hill Okehampton   EX20 1SQ Change of use from B &B and sub-division into 4 flats 13/04/2017 0 3 0 

Okehampton 1667/18/FUL Land rear of London Inn  22 West Street Okehampton 
Devon  EX20 1HH Erection of 3no. Cottages 27/02/2019 0 0 3 

Okehampton 2614/18/OPA Upcott House  Upcott Hill Okehampton   EX20 1SQ Outline application with all matters reserved for 
proposed dwelling   (resubmission of 1572/18/OPA) 19/10/2018 0 0 1 

Okehampton 1771/17/FUL Land adjacent to 10 Upper Crooked Meadow 
Okehampton   EX20 1WW New dwelling 02/10/2018 0 0 1 

P
age 168



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Okehampton 0848/18/POD 10 St James Street Okehampton Devon  EX20 1DH 

Notification for prior approval for proposed change 
of use of buildingfrom Office use (Class B1(a)) to 
2no. dwellinghouses (Class C3) (resubmission of 
0226/18/POD) 

18/04/2018 0 0 2 

Okehampton 2128/16/FUL  7 Wonnacotts Road Okehampton Devon  EX20 1LX Erection of two bedroom detached bungalow with 
parking space 21/09/2016 0 1 0 

Okehampton 2777/15/FUL Bobs Garage  Park Row Okehampton Devon  EX20 
1DP 

Addition of second floor flat to park row frontage 
and increase size 
 of unit 1 to join neighbouring property (alterations 
to consent  00861/2014) 

10/02/2016 0 1 0 

Okehampton 2915/16/FUL Higher View Farm  Broadbury Okehampton   EX20 
4LG Change of use of cabin to rural worker's dwelling 21/06/2017 0 0 1 

Okehampton 3644/16/OPA Land West Of Willow Tree Close   Okehampton    Outline application with all matters reserved for the 
construction of three houses 21/03/2017 0 0 3 

Okehampton 12123/2008/OKE Trevenn, Exeter Road, Okehampton, Devon, EX20 1QF 
six new dwellings (Planning regs have it down as 5 
but one of the 5 is a semi detached building hence 
the 6 properties 

11/11/2008 1 0 5 

Okehampton  3891/16/FUL 
3 Kempley Road, Okehampton, Devon  Planning app 
3891/16/FUL gives an address of Former Site Of Bobs 
Garage Park Row Okehampton EX20 1DS   

3891/16/FUL - This is a revised proposal to extant 
approval 2777/15/FUL & previously 00861/2014 and 
Conservation Area Consent 00862/2014. Work has 
commenced on converting the existing stable block 
as per 2777/15/FUL. The original Fire station has not 
been demolished, it is now proposed to retain & 
convert this to a 3 bed dwelling.   Former Site Of 
Bobs Garage Park Row Okehampton EX20 1DS   

07/02/2017 0 2 3 

Okehampton Hamlets 1851/17/PDM Barn at SX 571 946  Beacon Down Hill Okehampton   
EX20 1SN 

Prior approval of proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to dwelling house, 1 bedroom 
(Class C3) and for associated operational 
development   (Class Q(a+b)) 

24/07/2017 0 1 0 

Okehampton Hamlets 1015/17/PDM Barn at Knowle Farm  Brightley Road Okehampton 
Devon  EX20 1RH 

Prior approval for proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to a dwelling house (Previous 
planning application number 3482/16) 

26/06/2017 0 1 0 

Okehampton Hamlets 2337/18/FUL Fatherford Farm   Okehampton Devon  EX20 1QQ 
Proposed conversion of existing dwelling and 
extension to form new 
   unit of accommodation 

05/09/2018 0 1 0 

Okehampton Hamlets 2188/17/FUL Place Farm  Tavistock Road Okehampton Devon  EX20 
4LR 

Change of use and conversion of barns into 1no. 
dwelling, with 
 hardstanding car parking and gardens 

26/04/2018 0 0 1 

Okehampton Hamlets 2793/17/FUL Barns adjacent to Lower Chichacott  Chichacott Road 
Okehampton Devon  EX20 1RS 

Application for proposed barn conversion to two 
dwellings 24/01/2018 0 0 2 

P
age 169



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Okehampton Hamlets 2376/16/PDM Fowley Barns  Tavistock Road Okehampton Devon   

Application for prior approval for a proposed change 
of use of 
  agricultural building to a dwellinghouse (Class C3) 
and for associated operational development (Class 
Qa+b) 

29/09/2016 0 1 0 

Okehampton Hamlets 1355/16/PDM The Barn  Rosewyn Okehampton Devon EX20 1RR  
Prior Approval application for change of use of 
agricultural building  
to dwelling 

19/07/2016 0 1 0 

Samford Courtenay 0961/17/PDM Glebe Farm   Honeychurch North Tawton  EX20 2AG 
Prior Approval of proposed change of use of 
agricultural building  to dwelling house (Class 
C3)(Class Q(a)) 

15/05/2017 0 0 1 

Samford Courtenay 3112/16/FUL The Highwayman Inn  Road From Pigs Leg Cross To Th 
Sourton Devon  EX20 4HN 

Construction of 8 houses on land adjacent to The 
Highwayman Inn. 05/06/2017 0 0 8 

Sampford Courtenay 2985/17/FUL Langmead Farm North Tawton   EX20 2AD 
Barn conversion into 2 no. new semi-detached 
dwellings, with 
 associated parking and amenity space 

27/02/2018 0 2 0 

Sampford Courtenay 0722/17/PDM Barn  Willey Farm Sticklepath Devon  EX20 2NG 
Prior approval of proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to  2no. Dwelling houses (Class 
C3)(Class Q(a)) 

28/04/2017 0 0 2 

Sampford Courtenay 3585/18/FUL Oxenpark Barn   Sampford Courtenay   EX20 2AD 

Conversion of an agricultural building to residential 
dwelling to 
 include change of use of agricultural land to 
residential garden and erection of timber framed car 
port. 

28/02/2019 0 0 1 

Sampford Courtenay 2373/17/FUL The Chapel  Sampford Courtenay Okehampton    
Change of use of buildings to form two dwellings 
with associated works(resubmission of consent 
3687/16/FUL) 

19/10/2017 0 0 2 

Sampford Courtenay 0410/17/PDM  Hayrish Farm   South Tawton Devon  EX20 2LZ 

Prior approval for proposed change of use of 
agricultural building to 
1no. dwellinghouse (Class C3) and for associated 
operational development (Class Q(a+b)) 

28/03/2017 0 1 1 

Sampford Courtenay 1870/16/PDM 
Highridge Farm  Road From Sampford Cross To 
Belstone Corner Cross Sampford Courtenay Devon  
EX20 2TF 

Notification for prior approval for proposed change 
of use of 
  agricultural building to dwellinghouse (Class 
C3)(Class Q) 

06/03/2017 0 0 1 

Sampford Courtenay 2089/16/FUL Ballhill Farm  Road From Church Hill Cross To Beer 
Cross Sampford Courtenay   EX20 1SB Change of use of barn to dwelling 31/01/2017 0 0 1 

P
age 170



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Sampford Courtenay 2563/16/PDM  Main Barn  Clover Hill  Farm Sampford Courtenay 
Devon  EX20 2SA 

Notification for prior approval for a proposed change 
of use of 
 agricultural building to 2no. dwellinghouses (Class 
C3) and for associated operational development 
(Class Q(a+b))one to be a carers dwelling. 

21/11/2016 0 0 2 

Sampford Courtenay 00430/2015 Barn At Solland Farm  Exbourne Okehampton Devon  
EX20 3QT 

Conversion and part rebuild of stone and cob barn 
into 2-bed dwelling.  (Application for removal or 
variation of a condition following grant of planning 
permission. ( 00430/2015)  Conditional Approval) 

09/06/2015 0 1 0 

Sampford Courtenay  03314/2012  Land Adjacent To 1 Brook Close, Land Adjacent To 1 
Brook Close, Sampford Courtenay, Devon Erection of dwelling 11/03/2013 0 1 0 

Sourton 3994/18/FUL East Bowerland Farm  Road To West Bowerland 
Okehampton   EX20 4LZ 

Change of use of existing agricultural barn and 
adjoining land to 
 provide a new dwelling with associated 
refurbishments and landscaping 

14/03/2019 0 0 1 

Sourton 3464/17/PDM Barns at SX 532 907 & SX 531 907 Forda Sourton   

Notification for prior approval for proposed change 
of use of an agricultural building to form one 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) and for associated 
operational development (Class Q(a+b)). 

06/12/2017 0 0 1 

Sourton 01109/2015 Bowerland Barns 1&2  Okehampton Devon Devon  
EX20 4LZ 

Application for change of use of agricultural buildings 
to 2 dwelling houses. 21/12/2015 0 2 0 

South Tawton 3407/16/PDM  Barn Adjacent To Cawsand View   Taw Green Devon   
Prior approval for a conversion of existing 
agrictultural building 
   into a 5 bedroom detached dwelling. 

28/02/2017 0 1 0 

Spreyton 01396/2014  The Barton  Spreyton Crediton Devon  EX17 5AL 

Demolition of two agricultural buildings and erection 
of 4 detached and 2 semi-detached dwellings. 
Extensions and alterations to existing barns and 
change of use to form 2 further dwellings. External 
alterati ons to the Barton . New vehicular access, 
parking and garages for new dwellings together with 
associated landscaping.   

30/07/2015 7 1 0 

Spreyton 2168/18/PDM Long Barn  Spreyton House Spreyton Devon  EX17 
5AH 

Notification for prior approval for a proposed change 
of use of 
 agricultural building to 2no. dwellings (Class C3) and 
for associated operational development (Class 
Q(a)&(b)) 

28/08/2018 0 2 0 

Spreyton 1037/17/FUL Skywood   Spreyton   EX17 5AF 

Renewal of existing consent to replace mobile home 
with permanent 
  dwelling (previous application 00408/4014, decision 
notice issued  03/06/2014) 

16/10/2017 0 0 1 

P
age 171



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Spreyton 1511/17/ARM Spreyton Barton Farm   Spreyton   EX17 5AL 

Application for approval of reserved matters 
following outline 
  approval 00956/2015 for the development of 3 No. 
detached houses,  including demolition of modern 
agricultural barn 

05/09/2017 0 0 3 

Spreyton 2942/16/PDM The Barn  Great Begbeer Farm Spreyton Devon  EX17 
5AR 

Notification for prior approval for proposed change 
of use of 
  agricultural building to dwellinghouse (Class C3) 
and for associated  operational development (Class 
Q(a+b)) 

15/11/2016 0 1 0 

Spreyton 1440/16/FUL South Nethercott Barn   Whiddon Down Devon  EX20 
2QZ 

Change of use from redundant agricultural barns and 
adjoining stable  to 4 dwellings 09/08/2016 0 0 4 

Sydenham Damerel 1279/16/FUL Derriton Farm  Road From Derriton Cross To 
Sydenham Cross Sydenham Damerel Devon  PL19 8PX Conversion of redundant building to dwelling 25/08/2016 0 0 1 

Tavistock 2764/17/FUL  Breckland  Down Road Tavistock Devon  PL19 9AG 

READVERTISEMENT (revised plans and information 
received).Outline application for the erection of one 
single dwelling with all matters  reserved.  
Application for the erection of 2 dwellings  

12/12/2018 0 0 2 

Tavistock 0168/18/FUL Whitchurch Methodist Church  Whitchurch Road 
Tavistock Devon  PL19 9EG 

Change of use from redundant chapel to one 
dwelling 13/03/2018 0 0 1 

Tavistock 1353/17/FUL  2 Drake Road Tavistock Devon  PL19 0AU Conversion of 1st floor offices to dwelling 15/06/2017 0 0 1 

Tavistock 0944/17/FUL Cornerways  Down Road Tavistock Devon  PL19 9AD 
Demolition of existing swimming pool and erection 
of a dwelling with associated access and external 
works 

19/05/2017 0 0 1 

Tavistock 0967/16/FUL Anderton Farm   Tavistock Devon  PL19 9DU The conversion of a barn to a dwelling 20/04/2017 0 1 0 

Tavistock 3283/18/OPA Phoenix House  Maudlins Park Tavistock   PL19 8LJ Outline application with all matters reserved for new 
detached dwelling 18/02/2019 0 0 1 

Tavistock 3382/18/ARM  51 Milton Crescent Tavistock   PL19 9AL 
3382/18/ARM - Approval of reserved matters 
following outline approval reference 0089/17/OPA 
(Erection of Dwelling).  

08/02/2019 0 0 1 

Tavistock 3138/18/FUL 20 Canons Way Monksmead Tavistock  PL19 8BJ 
Two storey side extension and subdivision of existing 
dwelling to form1 No. 3 bed house and 1 No. 2 bed 
house 

10/12/2018 0 0 1 

Tavistock 1664/18/FUL 24 Boughthayes Tavistock Devon  PL19 8EF Construction of two detached dwellings 10/12/2018 0 0 2 

Tavistock 2225/18/FUL 25 Boughthayes Tavistock   PL19 8EF Erection of end of terrace dwelling house. 17/10/2018 0 0 1 

Tavistock 4290/17/FUL Godshill  Down Road Tavistock Devon  PL19 9AD Erection of 1no. dwelling attached to existing 
dwelling 04/09/2018 0 0 1 

Tavistock 4426/17/FUL Land adjacent to 24 Glanville Road Tavistock PL19 0EB   
Application for demolition of western boundary 
wall(s) and erection of4no. dwellings (two pairs of 
semi-detached dwellings) 

29/06/2018 0 0 4 

P
age 172



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Tavistock 0393/18/FUL Land adjacent to Fernside Crease Lane Tavistock  PL19 
8EW 

Residential development for 4no. dwellings with 
garages, external parking and new access off Crease 
Lane (resubmission of 2686/16/FUL) 

23/05/2018 0 1 3 

Tavistock 3423/17/FUL Little Church Park Whitchurch   PL19 9EL Erection of single-storey detached dwelling on land 
adjacent to LittleChurch Park 04/12/2017 0 1 0 

Tavistock 1939/17/FUL Land Adjacent To Lynares  Maudlins Lane Tavistock   
PL19 8ED 

New bungalow at Garden Site of Lynares  with a 
garage and utility room undercroft,  revised design 
from lapsed approval including, change of external 
materials for upper floor walls and modification of 
balcony. New dwelling at Old Ruin Site constructed 
within the existing stone   walls, which are to be 
restored and conserved, shed to be removed and 
existing retaining walls and boundary walls 

11/08/2017 0 0 2 

Tavistock 1564/17/FUL 72 Plym Crescent Tavistock   PL19 9HX Application for new dwelling. 07/08/2017 0 0 1 

Tavistock 0704/16/FUL Land Adj. Gajon House  Down Park Drive Tavistock 
Devon  PL19 9AH Erection of dwelling 01/12/2016 0 0 1 

Tavistock 2266/16/ARM Rosebank  Butcher Park Hill Tavistock   PL19 0EH 
Application for approval of reserved matters 
following outline 
 approval 00235/2015 for a new dwelling 

30/09/2016 0 1 0 

Tavistock 00949/2015 Barn  Anderton Farm Tavistock Devon  PL19 9DU 
Alterations to previously approved scheme 
RN/3/50/1455/1991/8787/001 for conversion of barn 
to dwelling. 

10/12/2015 0 1 0 

Tavistock 2301/17/OPA Xanadu  Launceston Road Tavistock   PL19 8LQ Outline planning application with some matters 
reserved for new detached dwelling 05/09/2017 0 0 1 

Tavistock 0844/16/FUL Land Adj 41  Bannawell Street Tavistock Devon  PL19 
0DN 

Erection of 3 flats and partial demolition of garage 
and boundary wall 02/06/2017 0 0 3 

Tavistock 00520/2015 Quicks Garden  St Johns House St Johns Tavistock 
Devon  PL19 9RF 

Construction of a three bedroom bungalow (Re-
submission of applicationno. 00072/2015).   
Application for Approval of Details Reserved by 
Condition 4 of Planning Consent 00520/2015  
Discharge of condition Approved   

25/09/2015 0 1 0 

Tavistock  01300/2014  Kilworthy Service Reservoir, Kilworthy Road, 
Tavistock, Devon 

Conversion of redundant water reservoir to a 
dwelling, erection of double garage, demolition of 
storage building and associated works. 

16/03/2015 0 1 0 

Tavistock  00889/2014  Land Adjacent To 3 Stannary Bridge Road, Tavistock, 
Devon 

Change of use of former foundry building to use as a 
single dwelling, demolition of outbuildings and 
construction of a single dwelling.   

26/09/2014 1 1 0 

Thrushelton 0444/18/FUL Broadley Chapel Lewdown Okehampton  EX20 4DY Conversion of chapel into one residential unit 17/05/2018 0 1 0 

P
age 173



Parish  Application number Address Description Date granted 

Total 
dwellings 

completed 
to date 

Number 
of 

dwellings 
u/c 

Number of 
dwellings 

committed 
and not 

yet started 

Yelverton 3390/17/OPA 
APP/Q1153/W/18/3194516 Tamar 11 Moorland Court Yelverton 

Outline application (with some matters reserved) for 
erection of single detached dormer style bungalow 
with integral garage 

18/07/2018 0 0 1 

                

      Totals   21 87 201 
 

P
age 174



 
 

APPENDIX 8 
Small sites windfall allowance – historic 

evidence 

Page 175



 
 
 
 
 
 

Plymouth LPA - Small sites windfall allowance - historic evidence

20
06

-0
7

20
07

-0
8

20
08

-0
9

20
09

-1
0

20
10

-1
1

20
11

-1
2

20
12

-1
3

20
13

-1
4

20
14

-1
5

20
15

-1
6

20
16

-1
7

20
17

-1
8

20
18

-1
9

Total 
2006-2019

Average
2006-2019

41 37 17 29 23 31 29 14 18 19 28 30 12 328 25

46 54 57 31 31 14 8 13 21 11 26 30 34 376 29

2 -3 3 6 8

0 0 0 1 0 1

87 91 74 60 54 45 37 27 39 32 51 64 52 713 55

16 13 4 10 16 17 15 5 9 3 12 11 9 140 11

71 78 70 50 38 28 22 22 30 29 39 53 43 573 44

-1 -1 0 -1 -6 -6 0 -1 0 -5 -2 -1 -2 -26 -2

42

*student accommodation included in windfall completions prior to 2014

Windfall Allowance (Averagae Total Excluding Garden development (44) minus average demoltions under 5 (2) = 42

Total Excluding Garden development
Demolitions (under 5 dwellings)

Windfall Completions on sites less than 5 dwellings
Conversions (net change less than 5)
Communal Accomodation (net change less than 5)
Student Accommodation (net change less than 5)*
Total Windfall Completions on sites less than 5 dwellings
Number of windfall completions that are Garden Development

P
age 176



Small sites windfall allowance (<10 dwellings) South Hams and West Devon LPAs 
 
 
The supply contains an allowance for future delivery on future small windfall sites 
(excluding-garden land).  The combined annualised allowance for the 2 LPA areas has 
increased from to 54-56dpa to 91dpa.  It applies only to years 4 and 5 of the 5 year 
period. The following evidence justifies the updated windfall delivery rates and 
supersedes previous evidence1. 
 
Table 1 records the historic annual delivery from small windfall sites (net 9 dwellings or 
less that are not JLP allocations or neighbourhood plan allowance sites) for each 
monitoring year from 2011/12 to 2018/19.  For clarity, the table is disaggregated into the 
South Hams and West Devon LPA areas. These sites include conversions and changes 
of use. Communal accommodation sites with a net change of net 9 or less are then 
added to give the total windfall completions. There are no student accommodation units 
in these areas. Subtracting the number of windfall completions that are garden 
development gives the net total windfall excluding garden development. 
 
However, the 5 year land supply assessment also has to take account of the interaction 
between neighbourhood plan allowance (sustainable villages) and small windfall 
allowance supply categories in the South Hams and in West Devon. The net windfall 
total has to be modified to avoid double counting with the potential for housing from 
small sites to be delivered through the neighbourhood plan allowance supply category. 
In this forecast there is minor downward adjustment of about 1dpa in the South Hams, 
and a downward adjustment of about 11dpa in West Devon. The explanation for these 
discounts is set out in Annex 1 to Appendix 8. 
 
Dividing the adjusted net total windfalls (excluding garden development) by the number 
of years (8) between April 2011 and March 2019 gives the historic average annual 
delivery rate for each LPA. 
 
This updated monitoring information is the basis for the average annual delivery rates on 
small windfall sites in the South Hams and West Devon LPA areas for years 4 and 5 in 
the forecast. At 64dpa, the annual windfall allowance rate in the South Hams for the 
2019 Monitoring Point forecast is higher than the 42dpa in the previous 2018 Monitoring 
Point forecast.  At 27dpa, the annual windfall allowance rate in West Devon for the 2019 
Monitoring Point forecast is higher than the 11 to 12dpa in the previous 2018 Monitoring 
Point forecast. The previous forecast informed the December 2018 Housing Position 
Statement. 
 
The increases in each LPA area are due in part to the overall rise in net completions on 
small sites in each of these areas, particularly in 2017/18 and 2018/19. The rise reflects 
the impact of Government rural housing policy including the recent trend in Use Class 
Q2 development in the South Hams and West Devon. The LPAs are also mindful of the 
number of small sites under construction at end March 2019 in each LPA area which 

                                                           
1 Previous evidence about windfall delivery rates was set out in the Revised Housing Topic Paper 
Addendum October 2018 (TP3(rev2) Appendix 7.4 
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/RevisedHousingTopicPaperProvisionAndSupplyAddendum.
pdf 

2 The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 – SI 2015 No 
596 – Schedule 2 part 3 

Page 177

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/RevisedHousingTopicPaperProvisionAndSupplyAddendum.pdf
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/RevisedHousingTopicPaperProvisionAndSupplyAddendum.pdf


can reasonably be expected to be completed in 2019/20, and the extent of other small 
site commitments that are non-garden windfalls. It is therefore realistic to expect the 
updated, adjusted historic small windfall (excluding garden land) trends to continue. 
 

Page 178



Table 1   South Hams and West Devon LPAs - development on small windfall sites 

South Hams and West Devon 
LPAs 
Small Windfalls* 20

11
/1

2 

20
12

/1
3 

20
13

/1
4 

20
14

/1
5 

20
15

/1
6 

20
16

/1
7 

20
17

/1
8 

20
18

/1
9 Total 

2011-
2019 

Average 
2011-
2019 

Adjustment 
to avoid 
overlap 
with NP@ 

Small 
Windfall 
rate in 
trajectory 

South Hams               
Windfall Completions on sites less 
than 10 dwellings:* 

80# 
(111) 65 70 86 64 75 137 157 734 92   

Communal accommodation (net 
change less than 10)       0 0 0 0   

Number of windfall completions 
that are Garden Development: 30 23 15 18 17 27 26 23 179 22   

Total Windfalls Excluding  Garden 
development:  

50# 
(81) 42 55 44** 47 48 111 134 531** 66 - 1.25 64 to 65 

dpa 
             
West Devon             
Windfall Completions on sites less 
than 10 dwellings:* 42 28 33 26£ 51$ 45 87 77 389 49   

Communal accommodation (net 
change less than 10)       4 2 6 1   

Number of windfall completions 
that are Garden Development: 13 19 7 12 25 3 7 8 94 12   

Total Windfalls Excluding Garden 
development: 29 9 26 14 26 42 84 71 301 38 -10.83 27 to 28 

dpa 
             
Thriving Towns and Village Total 
Windfalls Excluding Garden 
development: 

79 51 81 58 73 90 195 205 832 104 -12 91 to 93 
dpa 

Notes:  *  Includes conversions on sites of less than 10 dwellings 
#  Likely that some of the completions recorded in 2011/12 occurred in 2010/11 so 2011/12 total reduced by 31 (figure in bracket is recorded total) 
** 2014/15 is a moderated figure eg omits units if evidence suggests regularisation or potential delay in certificate of completion or final certificate. 
$ Excludes dwellings at Brook Lane, Tavistock (recorded as small site, but part of large site development) 
£  excludes some agricultural dwellings 
@ see TP3(rev2) Appendix 7.6 Annex 1 for the amended explanation about reducing the small windfalls forecast to avoid overlapping and double 
counting with the neighbourhood plan allowance supply category forecast  

P
age 179



ANNEX 1 
Adjustment of the Total Windfalls Excluding Garden Development 
 
Where necessary, an adjustment is made to the ‘Total Windfalls Excluding Garden 
Development’ rate to avoid overlap with the forecast potential small sites supply (sites of 
10 or less)  for the neighbourhood plan allowance.  The need for this type of adjustment 
was set out in the Revised Housing Topic Paper (TP3(rev)) and the Addendum 
(TP3(rev2)) which are part of the JLP evidence base.3   The adjustments for the South 
Hams and West Devon LPA areas for the 2019 monitoring point forecasts take account 
of the following: 
 

a) South Hams: A small downward adjustment to the small windfall rate of net 1 to 2 
dpa was included forecast supply TP3(rev2)) Appendix 7.4. This was also taken 
into account in the 2018 Housing Position Statement. None of the new 
commitments in the South Hams approved in 2018/2019 were on sites that had 
formed part of the potential forecast supply used to justify the 550 allowance in 
JLP TTV25 relating to sites of 10 or less dwellings. Therefore there is no need to 
change the discount applied to the small windfall allowance relating to the South 
Hams for the 2019 supply forecast. The historic annual rate of unadjusted small 
windfall (excluding garden land) delivery in the South Hams between 2011 and 
2019 is 66dpa (see Table 1 in Appendix 8).  Subtracting a discount of 2dpa from 
this results in the adjusted small windfall (excluding garden land) rate of 64dpa. 
 
The small windfall allowance (excluding garden land) rate applied in the South 
Hams LPA in years 4 and 5 of the 5 year period is therefore 64dpa. 
 

b) West Devon: The 2019 supply forecast takes into account 37 dwellings that had 
previously formed part of the potential forecast supply used to justify the 550 
allowance in JLP TTV25 relating to sites of 10 or less dwellings. These 37 units 
are no longer counted towards the potential supply of small sites within West 
Devon relating to the neighbourhood plan allowance for the JLP plan period. 
They comprise: 

• 20 dwellings on small site commitments consented in 2018/19 that are 
windfalls. They did not come forward through the Neighbourhood Plan 
process. They were not the result of direct allocation or the positive 
intervention of made or emerging Neighbourhood Plans for those 
settlements.  Furthermore, they do not meet the tests of TTV25 (notably they 
do not provide affordable housing to meet local needs). Nor is there potential 
alternative supply identified in the evidence in Revised Housing Topic Paper 
Appendix 7.6 (TP3(rev)) to compensate for the absence of allocations and 
interventions. These 20 dwellings comprise: 

                                                           
3  Revised Housing Topic Paper March 2018 TPE(rev) Appendix 7.6  
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/HousingTopicPaperProvisionSupplyUpdated.pdf 
as amended by the Revised Housing Topic Paper Addendum October 2018 (TP3(rev2) Appendix 7.6 
Annex 1 
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/RevisedHousingTopicPaperProvisionAndSupplyAddendum.
pdf 

 

Page 180

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/HousingTopicPaperProvisionSupplyUpdated.pdf
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/RevisedHousingTopicPaperProvisionAndSupplyAddendum.pdf
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/RevisedHousingTopicPaperProvisionAndSupplyAddendum.pdf


o new small commitments consented in 2018/19 at Land at the 
Highwayman Inn, Sourton (+5dws) and Workshop rear of Meadows 
Edge, Exbourne (+5dws) which are sites that were listed as potential 
neighbourhood plan allowance supply in TP3(rev) Appendix 7.6.  

o the commitment consented in 2017/18 at Rowan Cottages 
Lewdown(+10) which was also listed as potential neighbourhood plan 
allowance supply in TP3(rev) Appendix 7.6. 

• 10 dwellings at Cross Roads Farm Lewdown which was also listed as part of 
the potential neighbourhood plan allowance supply in TP3(rev) Appendix 7.6. 
This is now a large windfall site commitment – with consent for 17 dwellings 
on this site.4. Therefore these 10 dwellings now need to be discounted to 
avoid double counting with the small windfalls forecast. 

• 7 dwellings that had been listed as potential neighbourhood plan allowance 
supply in TP3(rev) Appendix 7.6 but which were excluded because they were 
on a potential supply site that is in the AONB (see TP3(rev2) Appendix 7.6-
Annex 1 para 11 (C2) Page 171). 

 
Whilst those 37 units had been listed in TP3(rev) Appendix 7.6 as potential supply in 
West Devon for the neighbourhood plan allowance, they were also part of the 167 
dwellings deducted from the small windfalls allowance to avoid double counting (see 
Appendix 7.6 page 273).  However, because those 37 dwellings are now no longer 
counted towards the neighbourhood plan allowance in 2019 they can now be counted 
towards the small windfall allowance, so there is no overlap and no double counting. 
 
The 37 dwellings are therefore deducted from the original 167 dwellings discounted from 
small windfalls. This leaves 130 dwellings to be discounted from the overall small non-
garden land windfall forecast for the remainder of the JLP. This relates to the 12 year 
period 2022/23 to 2033/34 (i.e. to the end of the JLP plan period).  Dividing the total 
discount of 130 dwellings by 12 equates to the annual discount of 10.83 dws dpa.  
 
The historic annual rate of unadjusted small windfall (excluding garden land) delivery in 
West Devon between 2011 and 2019 is 38dpa (see Table 1 in Appendix 8).  Subtracting 
the 11dpa discount from this results in the adjusted small windfall (excluding garden 
land) rate of 27dpa. 
 
The small windfall allowance (excluding garden land) rate applied in West Devon LPA in 
years 4 and 5 of the 5 year period is therefore 27dpa. 
 

                                                           
4 there is an alternative site of 15 dwellings in Lewdown in Appendix 7.6 which is now counted towards the 
potential neighbourhood plan allowance supply, but  this is not a ‘small’ site so is not discounted from the 
small windfall forecast. 

Page 181



 
 

APPENDIX 9 
List of site with consent for communal 

accommodation and list of losses 
forecast in the 5YLS 

Page 182



Plymouth LPA - C2 communal accommodation forecast (net) with ratio of 1.8 units per bed space applied, 2019 - 2024 
 
    Impact on Supply (with ratio applied to bedspaces) 

Application Number Site Address  Units Bedspaces 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

18/01182/FUL Captains House, 99 Craigie Drive -1 -29   -16       

18/00769/FUL Plymouth College, Ford Park  1 24   13       
                 

Year Totals 0 -3 0 0 0 
                  

    Plan Period Total -3 

 
South Hams LPA -  C2 communal accommodation forecast (net) with ratio of 1.8 units per bed space applied, 2019 - 2024 
 
 

        Impact on Supply (with ratio applied to bedspaces) 

Application 
Number Site Address Units Bedspaces 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

0440/16/CRM Former Totnes Creamery, Totnes, TQ9 5JP 1 38 0 0 0 0 21 

3136/16/FUL 
Dawn Residential Home, Cott Lane, Dartington, 
TQ9 6HE 0 5 3 0 0 0 0 

                  

  Year Totals 3 0 0 0 21 

         

    Plan Period Total 24 
 
  

P
age 183



West Devon LPA - C2 communal accommodation forecast (net) with ratio of 1.8 units per bed space applied, 2019 – 2024 
 
        Impact on Supply (with ratio applied to bedspaces) 

Application 
number Site address Units Bedspaces 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

0125/18/FUL Fariway Lodge, Thorndon Cross, EX20 
4NE 1 7 0 4 0 0 0 

3917/16/FUL Hart Care Nursing & Residential Home, 
Crapstone Road, Yelverton, PL20 6BT 0 14 0 0 8 0 0 

1117/2010 Lower Maddaford Farm, Okehampton 0 8 4 0 0 0 0 

                  

  Year Totals 4 4 8 0 0 

                  
    Plan Period Total 16 

 
 

P
age 184



Plymouth LPA - C3 Conversions losses forecast (net units), 2019 - 2024 
 

Application 
Number Site Address  2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

16/02184/FUL 4 West Hoe Road -1         

17/01670/FUL 142A King Street -1         

17/02444/FUL 95 Durnford Street  -2         

18/00139/FUL 1 Athenaeum Street  -2         

18/01395/LBC 2, 2A, 2B Athenaeum Street  -1         

17/02018/FUL 13 Alfred Street  -1         

17/01555/FUL 11 Beaumont Road -1         

18/00674/FUL 7 Lower Compton Road  -1         

18/02067/FUL 29 Sutherland Road  -1         

17/02238/FUL The Post Office, 10 Church Hill  -1         

16/01180/FUL 22 Springfield Road -1         

              

Year Totals -13 0 0 0 0 
              

  Plan Period Total -13 

 
 
 

P
age 185



Plymouth LPA - Demolitions Forecast, 2019 - 2024 
 

Site Address  2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

PLY58.15 Savage Road Barne Barton -150   -78     

PLY58.6 North Prospect phase 4 -140         

            

Year Totals -290 0 -78 0 0 
            

 Trajectory Total -368 

 

P
age 186



 
 

APPENDIX 10 
Progress towards JLP Policy Area and 

LPA monitoring targets at 2019 
monitoring point 

Page 187



Progress towards JLP Policy Area and LPA monitoring targets at 
2019 Monitoring Point. 

 
 
1.0 Plymouth Policy Area 

 
1.1 Policy SPT 3 refers to a target1 of 19,000 net additional dwellings to be delivered over the 

plan period 2014-2034, annualised to 950 dwellings per annum. 
 
Net additional dwellings to the stock since the plan base date (2014-2019) 
 

1.2 A total of 4,667 dwellings (net) have been provided in the first 5 years of the plan period.  
Table 1 below provides a breakdown by year by type of development 
 
Table 1: Net additions to the dwellings stock in the Plymouth Policy Area, by development 
type (2014-2019) 
 

 
 

1.3 At the 2019 monitoring point the Plymouth Policy Area (PPA) is in a small shortfall position of 
83 dwellings against the annualised monitoring target of 950dpa.  To ensure the JLP is on track 
a net additional supply of 4,833 dwellings over the next 5 years (2019-2034) should be 
identified in the supply.  The net supply identified in Plymouth2 and the South Hams3 part of 
the PPA totals 5,408 dwellings which is 575 dwellings above the 4,833 dwellings required to 
remain on track in the policy area.  No action is required at this point to address the supply in 
the PPA. 

                                            
1 As the Housing Requirement, Housing Delivery Test and 5 Year land Supply is at the whole plan level, the targets 
relating to policy areas become monitoring targets to ensure the JLP strategy is on track to be delivered. 
2 See appendix 2 of this Position Statement 
3 See appendix 3 of this Position Statement 

Breakdown of Delivery 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019
Total 

2014/2019
Small Sites 25 30 33 31 14 133

Small Sites Student 0 0 0 1 0 1

Small Site Communal Accommodation 0 6 0 3 8 17

Small Extra care 0 0 0 0 0 0

Small Site Conversions 21 13 27 32 47 140

Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 0 0 6 0 0 6

Total Small Site Gross 46 49 60 67 69 291

Large Sites 686 887 472 476 315 2836

Large Sites Student 65 67 58 386 15 591

Large Site Communal Accommodation 0 0 0 0 6 6

Large Extra Care 0 40 0 0 0 40

Large Site Conversions 6 8 21 11 9 55

Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 214 380 112 121 107 934

Total Large Site Gross 757 1002 551 873 345 3528

Allocated sites 100 145 129 489 615 1478

Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 19 29 23 191 286 548

Total Allocated 100 145 129 489 615 1478

Demolition’s and conversion Loss -203 -63 -144 -2 -113 -525

Number of demolitions which are Affordable Dwellings -203 -46 -115 0 -73 -437

Communal Accommodation Loss 0 -4 -39 -29 -33 -105

Total Net 700 1129 557 1398 883 4667

Total Net Affordable Dwellings 30 363 26 312 320 1051

Page 188



 
1.4 At the 2019 monitoring point a total of 10,802 dwellings have consent in the Plymouth Policy 

Area of which 1,656 dwellings had commenced construction.  A total of 15,469 dwellings 
therefore have either been delivered, are currently under construction or have planning 
consent at April 2019, which represents 81% of the Policy Area monitoring target.   
 

1.5 A total of 1,161 dwellings had commenced construction in the 2018/19 monitoring year and 
the forecast for next year (2019/20) is very high at 1,360 dwellings (net), which would move 
delivery in the Plymouth Policy Area into a surplus position of 327 dwellings at the 2020 
monitoring point.  It should be noted that not all dwellings with consent appear in the 5 year 
supply due to phasing on large sites. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 

1.6 Policy SPT 3 refers to a target of 4,550 net additional affordable dwellings from development 
over the plan period 2014-2034 annualised to 227.5 dwellings per annum.   Net additional 
affordable housing delivery from development over the first 5 years of the plan period (2014-
2019) = 1,051 dwellings at an average of 210dpa. Although there is a shortfall of 87 dwellings 
at the 2019 monitoring point this is due to large scale regeneration programmes in Devonport 
and North Prospect in the early part of the plan period that has resulted in 437 losses of poor 
quality affordable houses being replaced by a supply of high quality affordable housing.  
 
 

2.0 Thriving Towns & Villages Policy Area 
 

2.1 Policy SPT3 refers to a target4 of 7,700 net additional dwellings to be delivered over the plan 
period 2014-34, annualised to 385 dwellings per annum. 
 
Net additional dwellings to the stock since the plan base date (2014-2019) 
 

2.2 A total of 2,547 dwellings (net) have been provided in the first 5 years of the plan period.  
Table 2 below provides a breakdown by year by type of development. 
 

  

                                            
4 As the Housing Requirement, Housing Delivery Test and 5 Year land Supply is at the whole plan level, the targets 
relating to policy areas become monitoring targets to ensure the JLP strategy is on track to be delivered. 

Page 189



Table 2: Net additions to the dwellings stock in the Plymouth Policy Area, by development 
type (2014-2019) 
 

 
 

2.3 At the 2019 monitoring point the Thriving Towns and Villages Policy Area (TTVPA) is in a 
surplus position of 622 dwellings against the annualised monitoring target of 385dpa.  To 
ensure the JLP is on track a net additional supply of 1,296 dwellings over the next 5 years 
(2019-2034) should be identified in the supply.  The net supply identified in West Devon5 and 
the South Hams6 part of the TTVPA totals 3,389 dwellings which is 2,093 dwellings above the 
1,296 dwellings required to remain on track in the policy area.  No action is therefore 
required at this point to address supply in the TTVPA. 
 

2.4 At the 2019 monitoring point a total of 4,652 dwellings have consent in the TTVPA of which 
548 dwellings had commenced construction.  A total of 7,199 dwellings therefore have either 
been delivered, are currently under construction or have planning consent at April 2019, 
which represents 93% of the Policy Area monitoring target. 
 

2.5 A total of 684 dwellings had commenced construction in the 2018/19 monitoring year and the 
forecast for next year (2019/20) is very high at 565 dwellings (net), which would increase the 
surplus in the TTVPA to 802 dwellings at the 2020 monitoring point.  It should be noted that 
not all dwellings with consent appear in the 5 year supply due to phasing on large sites. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 

2.6 Policy SPT 3 refers to a target of 2,050 net additional affordable dwellings from development 
over the plan period 2014-2034 annualised to 102.5 dwellings per annum.   Net additional 
affordable housing delivery from development over the first 5 years of the plan period (2014-

                                            
5 See appendix 4 of this Position Statement 
6 See appendix 3 of this Position Statement 

Breakdown of Delivery 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019
Total 

2014/2019
Small Sites including conversions and change of use 118 123 120 224 234 819

Small Sites Student 0 0 0 0 0 0

Small Site Communal Accommodation 0 0 0 4 2 6

Small Extra care 0 0 0 0 0 0

Mobile and Temporary 0 0 0 2 0 2

Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 5 0 0 0 0 5

Total Small Site Net 118 123 120 230 236 827

Large Sites (new build and redevelopment) 175 408 347 148 108 1,186

Large Sites Student 0 0 0 0 0 0

Large Site Communal Accommodation 0 0 0 0 -16 -16

Large Extra Care 0 0 0 60 0 60

Large Site Conversions 0 5 0 0 14 19

Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 93 105 156 73 43 470

Total Large Site Net 175 413 347 208 106 1,249

Allocated sites 0 46 55 207 163 471

Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 0 0 30 64 43 137

Total Allocated Net 0 46 55 207 163 471

Demolitions and conversion Loss n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Number of demolitions which are Affordable Dwellings 0 0 0 0 -14 -14

Communal Accommodation Loss 0 0 0 0 -16 -16

Total Net 293 582 522 645 505 2,547

Total Net Affordable Dwellings 98 105 186 137 86 612

Page 190



2019) = 612 dwellings at an average of 122dpa and a surplus position of 100 dwellings at the 
2019 monitoring point. 
 
 

3.0 Plymouth LPA  
 

3.1 Annex 2 of the JLP refers to monitoring target of 13,200 net additional dwellings over the plan 
period 2014-34 in the Plymouth LPA area, annualised to 660 dwellings per annum. 
 
Net additional dwellings to the stock since the plan base date (2014-2019) 
 

3.2 A total of 4,608 dwellings (net) have been provided in the first 5 years of the plan period.  
Table 3 below provides a breakdown by year by type of development 
 
Table 3: Net additional dwellings to the stock & net additional affordable dwellings from 
development since the JLP base date (2014-2019) 
 

 
 
 

3.3 At the 2019 monitoring point the Plymouth LPA is in a surplus position of 1,308 dwellings 
against the annualised monitoring target of 660dpa.  To ensure the JLP is on track a net 
additional supply of 1,992 dwellings over the next 5 years (2019-2034) should be identified in 
the supply.  The net supply identified in the Plymouth LPA7 totals 4,117 dwellings which is 
2,125 dwellings above the 1,992 dwellings required to remain on track in the Plymouth LPA 
area.  No action is therefore required at this point to address supply in the Plymouth LPA. 
 

3.4 At the 2019 monitoring point a total of 5,574 dwellings have consent in the Plymouth LPA 
area of which 1,414 dwellings had commenced construction.  A total of 10,182 net dwellings 

                                            
7 See appendix 2 of this Position Statement 

Breakdown of Delivery 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019
Total 

2014/2019
Small Sites 25 30 33 30 12 130
Small Sites Student 0 0 0 1 0 1
Small Site Communal Accommodation 0 6 0 3 8 17
Small Extra care 0 0 0 0 0 0
Small Site Conversions 21 13 27 31 47 47
Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 0 0 6 0 0 6

Total Small Site Gross 46 49 60 65 67 287

Large Sites 686 887 472 476 315 2836
Large Sites Student 65 67 58 386 15 591
Large Site Communal Accommodation 0 0 0 0 6 6
Large Extra Care 0 40 0 0 0 40
Large Site Conversions 6 8 21 11 9 55
Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 214 380 112 121 107 934

Total Large Site Gross 757 1002 551 873 345 3528

Allocated sites 100 145 129 465 584 1423
Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 19 29 23 188 274 533

Total Allocated 100 145 129 465 584 1423

Demolition’s and conversion Loss -203 -63 -144 -2 -113 -525
Number of demolitions which are Affordable Dwellings -203 -46 -115 0 -73 -437
Communal Accommodation Loss 0 -4 -39 -29 -33 -105

Total Net 700 1129 557 1372 850 4608

Total Net Affordable Dwellings 30 363 26 309 308 1036

Page 191



therefore have either been delivered, are currently under construction or have planning 
consent at April 2019, which represents 77% of the Plymouth LPA monitoring target. 
 

3.5 A total of 932 dwellings had commenced construction in the 2018/19 monitoring year and the 
forecast for next year (2019/20) is very high at 1,156 dwellings (net), which would increase 
the surplus in the Plymouth LPA area to 1804 dwellings at the 2020 monitoring point.  It 
should be noted that not all dwellings with consent appear in the 5 year supply due to phasing 
on large sites. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 

3.6 Affordable Housing targets are at the whole plan and policy area level within the JLP.   Net 
additional affordable housing delivery from development over the first 5 years of the plan 
period (2014-2019) = 1,036 dwellings at an average of 207dpa. 
 

 
4.0 South Hams LPA  

 
4.1 Annex 2 of the JLP refers to 2 monitoring targets for South Hams LPA.  5,800 net additional 

dwellings over the plan period 2014-34 in the South Hams part of the PPA, annualised to 290 
dwellings per annum and 3,200 net additional dwellings over the plan period 2014-34 in the 
South Hams part of the TTV.  This totals 10,300 net additional dwellings over the plan period 
2014-34 annualised to 515 dwellings per annum 
 
Net additional dwellings to the stock since the plan base date (2014-2019) 
 

4.2 A total of 1,907 dwellings (net) have been provided in the first 5 years of the plan period.  
Table 4 below provides a breakdown by year by type of development 
 
Table 4: Net additional dwellings to the stock & net additional affordable dwellings from 
development since the JLP base date (2014-2019) 

 

Breakdown of Delivery 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019
Total 

2014/2019
Small Sites including conversions and change of use 86 64 75 139 159 523

Small Sites Student 0 0 0 0 0 0

Small Site Communal Accommodation 0 0 0 0 0 0

Small Extra care 0 0 0 0 0 0

Mobile and Temporary 0 0 0 -1 0 -1

Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 5 0 0 0 0 5

Total Small Site Net 86 64 75 138 159 522

Large Sites (new build and redevelopment) 91 330 227 95 102 845

Large Sites Student 0 0 0 0 0 0

Large Site Communal Accommodation 0 0 0 0 0 0

Large Extra Care 0 0 0 60 0 60

Large Site Conversions 0 5 0 0 14 19

Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 37 75 139 62 43 356

Total Large Site Net 91 335 227 155 116 924

Allocated sites 0 29 24 218 190 461

Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 0 0 18 55 55 128

Total Allocated Net 0 29 24 218 190 461

Demolitions and conversion Loss 0 0 0 0 0 0

Number of demolitions which are Affordable Dwellings 0 0 0 0 -14 -14

Communal Accommodation Loss 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Net 177 428 326 511 465 1,907

Total Net Affordable Dwellings 42 75 157 117 98 489

Page 192



 
4.3 At the 2019 monitoring point South Hams LPA is in a shortfall position of 668 dwellings 

against the annualised monitoring target of 515dpa the whole of South Hams LPA.  This was 
expected due to Sherford delivery commencing later in the plan period.  To ensure the JLP is 
on track a net additional supply of 3,243 dwellings over the next 5 years (2019-2034) should 
be identified in the supply.  The net supply identified in the South Hams LPA8 totals 3,453 
dwellings which is 210 dwellings above the 3,243 dwellings required to remain on track in the 
South Hams LPA area.  No action is therefore required at this point to address supply in the 
South Hams LPA. 
 

4.4 At the 2019 monitoring point a total of 7,777 dwellings have consent in the South Hams LPA 
area of which 593 dwellings had commenced construction.  A total of 9,684 net dwellings 
therefore have either been delivered, are currently under construction or have planning 
consent at April 2019, which represents 94% of the South Hams LPA monitoring target. 
 

4.5 A total of 699 dwellings had commenced construction in the 2018/19 monitoring year and the 
forecast for next year (2019/20) is high at 558 dwellings (net), which would reduce the 
shortfall in the South Hams LPA area to 625 dwellings at the 2020 monitoring point.  It should 
be noted that not all dwellings with consent appear in the 5 year supply due to phasing on 
large sites. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 

4.6 Affordable Housing targets are at the whole plan and policy area level within the JLP.   Net 
additional affordable housing delivery from development over the first 5 years of the plan 
period (2014-2019) = 489 dwellings at an average of 98dpa. 

 
 

5.0 West Devon LPA  
 

5.1 Annex 2 of the JLP refers to monitoring target of 3,200 net additional dwellings over the plan 
period 2014-34 in the West Devon LPA area, annualised to 160 dwellings per annum. 
 
Net additional dwellings to the stock since the plan base date (2014-2019) 
 

5.2 A total of 699 dwellings (net) have been provided in the first 5 years of the plan period.  Table 
5 below provides a breakdown by year by type of development. 

 
  

                                            
8 See appendix 3 of this Position Statement 

Page 193



Table 5: Net additional dwellings to the stock & net additional affordable dwellings from 
development since the JLP base date (2014-2019) 
 

 
 
 

5.3 At the 2019 monitoring point the West Devon LPA is in a small shortfall position of 101 
dwellings against the annualised monitoring target of 160dpa.  To ensure the JLP is on track a 
net additional supply of 901 dwellings over the next 5 years (2019-2034) should be identified 
in the supply.  The net supply identified in the West Devon LPA9 totals 1,227 dwellings which 
is 326 dwellings above the 901 dwellings required to remain on track in the West Devon LPA 
area.  No action is therefore required at this point to address supply in the West Devon LPA. 
 

5.4 At the 2019 monitoring point a total of 2,103 dwellings have consent in the West Devon LPA 
area of which 197 dwellings had commenced construction.  A total of 2,809 net dwellings 
therefore have either been delivered, are currently under construction or have planning 
consent at April 2019, which represents 88% of the West Devon LPA monitoring target. 
 

5.5 A total of 214 dwellings had commenced construction in the 2018/19 monitoring year and the 
forecast for next year (2019/20) is very high at 211 dwellings (net), which would reduce the 
shortfall in the West Devon LPA area to 47 dwellings at the 2020 monitoring point.  It should 
be noted that not all dwellings with consent appear in the 5 year supply due to phasing on 
large sites. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 

5.6 Affordable Housing targets are at the whole plan and policy area level within the JLP.   Net 
additional affordable housing delivery from development over the first 5 years of the plan 
period (2014-2019) = 138 dwellings at an average of 27 dwellings per annum. 

 

                                            
9 See appendix 4 of this Position Statement 

Breakdown of Delivery 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019
Total

2014/2019

Small Sites including conversions and change of use 32 59 45 87 77 300
Small Sites Student 0 0 0 0 0 0
Small Site Communal Accommodation 0 0 0 4 2 6
Small Extra care 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mobile and Temporary 0 0 0 3 0 3
Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Small Site Net 32 59 45 94 79 309

Large Sites (new build and redevelopment) 84 78 120 53 6 341
Large Sites Student 0 0 0 0 0 0
Large Site Communal Accommodation 0 0 0 0 -16 -16
Large Extra Care 0 0 0 0 0 0
Large Site Conversions 0 0 0 0 0 0
Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 56 30 17 11 0 114

Total Large Site Net 84 78 120 53 -10 325

Allocated sites 0 17 31 13 4 65
Number of which are Affordable Dwellings 0 0 12 12 0 24

Total Allocated Net 0 17 31 13 4 65

Demolitions and conversion Loss n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Number of demolitions which are Affordable Dwellings 0 0 0 0 0 0
Communal Accommodation Loss 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Net 116 154 196 160 73 699

Total Net Affordable Dwellings 56 30 29 23 0 138

Page 194



6.0 Conclusion 
 

6.1 The delivery and supply identified in the next 5 years within 2 Policy Areas and the 3 LPA 
areas is sufficient and each area is on track to meet the Policy Area and LPA monitoring 
targets.  

 

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative 

Change Overview Scrutiny Committee 

Work Programme 2019-20

Please note that the work programme is a ‘live’ document and subject to change at 

short notice. The information in this work programme is intended to be of strategic 

relevance. 

For general enquiries relating to the Council’s Scrutiny function, including this Committee’s work 

programme, please contact Helen Prendergast, Democratic Adviser on 01752 305155. 

Date of 

meeting 

Agenda item Prioritisation 

Score 

Reason for consideration Responsible 

Cabinet Member / 

Officer 

5 June 2019 

Strategic Transport Schemes 

Update 4 (Medium) 
Update on strategic transport schemes 

(Presentation) 

Councillor 

Coker/Paul Barnard 

Air Quality Management 5 (High) 
Overview of the air quality management 

within the City 

Councillor 

Dann/Ruth 

Harrell/Nicola Horne 

Transforming Cities Fund 

Programme Update 
4 (Medium) 

To provide an Update on Transforming 

Cities Fund Programme (Presentation) 

Councillor 

Coker/Paul 

Barnard/Richard 

Banner 

17 July 2019 

The Box Update 
5 (High) 

Final Capital Budget settlement (pre 

decision scrutiny) and general update to 

include programme, budget and plan for 

opening  

Councillor 

Evans/David 

Draffan/Paul 

Brookes/Caroline 

Cozens 

The iMaylfower Project 4 (Medium) Part of the Mayflower 400 Plan 

Councillor 

Evans/David 

Draffan/Tracey 

Beeck/Nina 

Sarlaka/Lindsey Hall 

Plymouth Sound National 

Marine Park 
5 (High) 

Review the Plans for the National 

Marine Park 

Councillor Dann/Paul 

Barnard/Kat Deeney 

25 

September 

2019 

Brexit – Plymouth Ports 
5 (High) The impact of Brexit on Plymouth Ports 

Councillor 

Haydon/Ruth 

Harrell/Katherine 

O’Connor 

Mayflower Update 5 (High) 
To include final programme, Elizabethan 

House, trails, marketing  

Councillor Peter 

Smith/David 

Draffan/Charles 

Hackett 

Page 197 Agenda Item 11



 

 

 

Date of 

meeting 

 

Agenda item 

 

Prioritisation 

Score 

 

Reason for consideration 

 

Responsible 

Cabinet Member / 

Officer  

City Centre Bid Renewal 5 (High) Pre decision scrutiny 

Councillor 

Evans/David 

Draffan/Patrick 

Knight/Steve Hughes 

 

Plan for Homes: The First 5 

Years 

 

5 (High) 
Update on the Plan for Homes: the First 

5 Years  

Councillor 

Penberthy/Paul 

Barnard/Nick Carter 

 

 

Annual Housing Statement 

 

5 (High) 
To provide the Annual Housing 

Statement 

Councillor 

Penberthy/Paul 

Barnard/Grant 

Jackson 

 

20 

November 

2019 

 

Visitor Plan (2020-2030) 4 (Medium) 
Review the refreshed Visitor Plan 2020-

2030, prior to Cabinet approval 

Councillor Evans 

Smith/David 

Draffan/Amanda 

Lumley/Patrick 

Knight 

 

Plan for Fishing 5 (High) 

Pre decision scruitny an dupdate on thhe 

outcomes of the Select Committee 

Review Fishing and Fisheries 

Councillor 

Evans/David 

Draffan/Amanda 

Ratsey 

High Street Fund Update  5 (High) 
Update on the outcome of High Street 

Fund submission 

Councillor 

Lowry/David 

Draffan/Stuart 

Wingfield 

 

Joint Local Plan Authorities 

Annual Monitoring Report 

 

4 (Medium) 

 

To provide the Annual Monitoring 

Report 

 

Councillor Coker/ 

Paul Barnard/Richard 

Grant 

 

Climate Emergency Plan 5 (High) 

 
As part of the Council’s decision to 

declare a climate emergency it 

committed to draft a Climate Emergency 

Plan and report back to Council.  

 

Councillor Dann/Paul 

Barnard/Kat 

Deeney/Alistair 

MacPherson 

 

Brexit – New Burdens 5 (High) 
Impact of Brexit on new burdens for the 

City Council 

Councillor 

Evans/Kevin 

McKenzie 

 

 

15 January 

2020 

 

Plan for Homes 3 Update 

 
5 (High) Update on the Plan for Homes 3 Update 

Councillor 

Penberthy/Paul 

Barnard/Nick Carter 

 

Strategic Transport 

Programme Update 

 

4 (Medium) 
Update on strategic transport schemes 

(Presentation) 

Councillor 

Coker/Paul Barnard 

 

11 March 

2020 

    

 

 
   

 

Site Visits 2019/20 

 

Page 198



 

 

 

Date of 

meeting 

 

Agenda item 

 

Prioritisation 

Score 

 

Reason for consideration 

 

Responsible 

Cabinet Member / 

Officer  

8 

June 2019 
The Box  

 

To review the building works 

 

David Draffan 

10 

September 

2019 

Plymouth Port  

 

Site visit to better understand the 

impact of Brexit on the port (Millbay) 

 

Katharine O’Connor 

19 

September 

2019 

City Centre Site Visit 
 

 

 

Tour to include the Barcode, Derry’s, 

Colin Campbell Court and Railway 

Station 

 

David Draffan 

October 

2019 
Derriford Site Visit  

To review the delivery of the Derriford 

masterplan and direct development 

programme 

 

David Draffan 

December 

2019 
Oceansgate Site Visit  

 

To review progress on Phases 2 and 3 

 

James Whitlock 

 

 

Select Committee Review 

 

 

TBC 

 

Buses 5 (High) 

To include bus services, subsidised fares, 

real time information, low admission 

buses, young people concessionary fares, 

dial a ride 

 

Councillor 

Coker/Paul 

Barnard/Phil 

Heseltine 

January 2020 Budget Scrutiny (Joint Review) 5 (High) 

The Select Committee will consider 

whether the Cabinet has an effective 

plan for the implementation of a 

reduced budget for the next financial 

year and any steps that the council is 

taking to respond to the financial 

situation 

All Cabinet 

Members/Strategic 

Directors/Service 

Directors 

 

Workshop 

 

TBC Fishing Workshop 5 (High) 

Interactive session to inform 

consultant’s brief for infrastructure 

study 

Amanda Ratsey/Sean 

McSeveney 

 

 

 

Items to be Scheduled 2019/20 

 

TBC Community Cohesion 5 (High) 

Further look at Community Cohesion 

following the UK leaving the EU 

 

Councillor 

Penberthy/Darin 

Halifax 

TBC iMayflower Project 5 (High) 

Progress update following consideration 

at July 2019 meeting 

 

Councillor 

Evans/David 

Draffan/Tracey 

Beeck/Nina 

Sarlaka/Lindsey Hall 

 

Items to be Scheduled for 2020/21 

 

     

 

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank



 

V1 04/07/2016  OFFICIAL  

SCRUTINY PRIORITISATION TOOL 

 

 

 

Test  

 

 Yes 

(=1) 

Evidence 

Public Interest Is it an issue of concern to 

partners, stakeholders and/or 

the community? 

 

  

Ability Could Scrutiny have an 

influence? 

 

  

Performance Is this an area of 

underperformance? 

 

  

Extent Does the topic affect people 

living, working or studying in 

more than one electoral ward 

of Plymouth? 

 

  

Replication Will this be the only 

opportunity for public scrutiny? 

 

  

 Is the topic due planned to be 

the subject of an Executive 

Decision? 

 

  

 Total:  High/Medium/Low 

    

Priority Score   

    

High 5-6   

Medium 3-4   

Low 1-2   

 

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Tracking Decisions 2019/20

Tracking Decisions- 25 September 2019 OFFICIAL

Minute No. Resolution Target Date, Officer Responsible 
and Progress

Minute No. 8

Overview of Air 
Quality Monitoring in 
Plymouth  

5 June 2019

The Committee requested that an update be provided to members relating to the 
possible link of mortality rates (due to air pollution issues) specifically related to 
the five areas contained within the AQMA.

Complete

Date: July 2019
Officer:  Helen Prendergast
Progress: 
The response to this question was 
emailed to Members on 7 August 2019.

Minute No. 16

The Box

17 July 2019

The Committee agreed the Plan for Learning and Engagement.

The Committee requested that all Ward Councillors be briefed on the Plan for 
Learning and Engagement, in order to assist with the areas identified as having low 
engagement (the 12 ‘cold spots’).

Complete

Date: August 2019
Officer: Helen Prendergast
Progress: 
Officers have been advised that the 
Plan for Learning and Engagement was 
agreed at the meeting held on 17 July 
2019.

Officers have been also been requested 
to brief all Ward Councillors regarding 
the Plan for Learning and Engagement 
and are currently auctioning this 
request.

P
age 203

A
genda Item

 12



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Tracking Decisions 2019/20

Tracking Decisions- 25 September 2019 OFFICIAL

Minute No. 18

Plymouth Sound 
National Marine Park

17 July 2019

The Committee noted the assurance that all Councillors would be provided with 
the results of the current consultation exercise regarding the Marine Park.

Complete

Date: August 2019
Officer: Helen Prendergast
Progress: 
Officers have been requested to 
provide this information to all 
Councillors once available.

Minute No. 19

Work Programme

17 July 2019

The Committee agreed to include an update on the iMayflower Project (and 
schedule in at an appropriate time, in consultation with the officers).

Councillor Mrs Aspinall noted that the Visitor Plan 2020-2030 was due to be 
scrutinised by the Committee in November 2019, and asked how disabled groups 
such as Plymouth Area Disability Action Network (PADAN) could become 
involved in this process.  The Chair advised that the relevant officers would be 
made aware of this issue.

Complete

Date: August 2019
Officer: Helen Prendergast
Progress:
The iMayflower Project has been 
included on the Committee’s work 
programme as a ‘to be confirmed’ item. 
Officers have been asked to provide a 
suitable date that this project can come 
back to the Committee.

Officers have advised that Destination 
Plymouth adopt the overarching 
principle of applying accessibility 
principles in the same way, as Plymouth 
City Council, wherever possible.

Accessibility will be a key theme for 
Visit Britain going forward, so it has 
been suggested that Destination 
Plymouth could hold a specific session 
with PADAN at this stage. Councillor 
Mrs Aspinall has been advised of the 
offer of a specific session.

P
age 204



Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Tracking Decisions 2019/20

Tracking Decisions- 25 September 2019 OFFICIAL

Minute No. 20

Tracking Decisions

17 July 2019

Councillor Wheeler considered that whilst the cycle path from Plymouth to 
Yelverton had not been included within tranche 2 of the Transforming Cities 
Fund, this scheme should be include in the next tranche of the fund and as such, 
Councillor Coker, the Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure 
should be urged to progress this issue.

Complete

Date: August 2019
Officer: Helen Prendergast
Progress:
Councillor Coker has advised that he 
will raise this issue with the relevant 
officers.

P
age 205



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Mapping of Corporate Plan to Scrutiny Committee
	6 Update on the Potential Impact of Brexit on Port Health
	7 Mayflower 400 Update
	Mayflower report 11-09-19
	M400 Community Sparks round 1 & 2

	8 Plymouth City Centre Business Improvement District (2020-2025)
	10 Annual Housing Statement
	25072019 final report with appendices July 2019
	5 year land supply cover page
	2019 HPS final report
	1. Introduction
	2. What is the 5 year land supply?
	3. What is the Housing Delivery Test?
	4. National Policy & Guidance - Demonstrating a 5 Year Supply
	5. JLP whole plan delivery 2014-2019 & 5 Year Housing Land Supply Position (2019 monitoring point)

	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1 MHCLG letter
	2019 MHCLGLetterRevisedHDT2018

	Appendix 2
	Appendix 2 Plymouth LPA supply
	2019 Plymouth 5YLS

	Appendix 3
	Appendix 3 South Hams LPA supply
	2019HPS APPX-SHLPA 5YLS-14pt Table

	Appendix 4
	Appendix 4 West Devon LPA supply
	2019HPS APPX-WDLPA 5YLS -14ptTable

	Appendix 5
	Appendix 5 Sites removed from 5YLS
	Appendix 5 Plymouth 2019_lapsed_and_undeliverable_Formatted
	Appendix 5 pt 3 SH_WD_Small_lapsed

	Appendix 6
	Appendix 6 Past delivery amendments
	Appendix 6 2019 amendments to past net additional dwellings formatted

	Appendix 7
	Appendix 7 List of small sites
	Appendix 7 List of small sites in 5YLS 2019

	Appendix 8
	Appendix 8 Small sites windfall allowance
	appendix 8 combined
	Appendix 8 Small sites windfall allowance SH WD to follow formatted
	Appendix 8 part 2 SH windfall allowance evidence


	Appendix 9
	Appendix 9 communal and demolitions
	Appendix 9 pt 1 2019_Communal_forecast_Formatted_inc_SHWD
	Appendix 9 pt 2 2019_Conversion_Losses_forecast_Formatted plymouth
	Appendix 9 pt 3 2019_Demolitions_forecast_Formatted plymouth

	Appendix 10
	Appendix 10 Policy area and lPA monitoring progress
	Appendix 10 Progress towrards Policy Area and LPA monitoring targets



	11 Work Programme
	Prioritisation Tool

	12 Tracking Decisions

